@ pcddemicSenate .  EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE,

Friday, February 5, 2016 — Folsom College
10 College Parkway, Folsom, CA 90650
FL1-20, Community Room (Parking in Lot A)
12:00 p.m. to 12:30 p.m. Lunch
12:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. Meeting
6:00 p.m. to §:00 p.m. Dinner: To Be Announced

Saturday, February 6, 2016 — Lake Natoma Inn
702 Gold Lake Drive, CA 95630
Room: Sierra 1
8:30 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. Breakfast
9:00 a.m. to 1:30 p.m. Meeting

The meeting is accessible to the physically disabled. A person who needs a disability-related accommodation or
modification in order to participate in the meeting may make a request by emailing the Senate at
agendaitem@asccc.org or contacting Tonya Davis at (916) 445-4753 x106 no less than five working days prior to
the meeting. Providing your request at least five business days before the meeting will help ensure availability of
the requested accommodation.

Public Comments: A written request to address the Executive Committee shall be made on the form provided at the
meeting. Public testimony will be invited at the beginning of the Executive Committee discussion on each agenda
item. Persons wishing to make a presentation to the Executive Commiitee on a subject not on the agenda shall
address the Executive Committee during the time listed for public comment. Public comments are limited to 3 minutes
per individual and 30 minutes per agenda item. Materials for this meeting are found on the Senate website at:
http./iwww.ascee.org/executive_committee/meetings.

I. ORDER OF BUSINESS

A. Roll Call

B. Approval of the Agenda

C. Public Comment
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the
Executive Committee on any matter not on the agenda. No action will be taken.
Speakers are limited to three minutes.

D. Calendar

E. Action Tracking

F. Dinner Arrangements

1I. CONSENT CALENDAR
A, January 8 - 9, 2016 Meeting Minutes, Stanskas

III. REPORTS
A. President’s/Executive Director’s Report — 40 mins., Morse/Adams
B. Foundation President’s Report — 10 mins., May



IV.

C.

Liaison Oral Reports (please keep report to 5 mins., each)

Liaisons from the following organizations are invited to provide the Executive
Committee with updates related to their organization: AAUP, CCA, CCCI, CFT,
FACCC, and the Student Senate.

ACTION ITEMS

A.

Legislative Update — 20 mins., Bruno

The Executive Committee will be updated on recent state and federal legislation
and take action as necessary.

2016 Academic Academy — 25 mins., May/Smith

The Academic Senate will make recommendations and consider for approval the
theme and draft program for the 2016 Academic Academy.

Update to the Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications Paper — 20 mins.,
Stanskas

The Executive Committee will consider for approval revisions to the Equivalence
to the Minimum Qualifications paper.

. ASCCC Professional Develop Plan — 20 mins., Rutan

The Executive Committee will consider for approval feedback on the draft
ASCCC Professional Development Plan.

Board of Governors Taskforce on Workforce, Job Creation and a Strong
Economy Recommendations Implementation — 15 mins., Bruno/Adams
The Executive Committee will review the Workforce Taskforce
Recommendations Grid and consider for approval suggested assignments.
Effective Curricnlum Processes Paper — 20 mins., Freitas

The Executive Committee will consider for approval the effective curriculum
processes paper.

ASCCC Caucuses Participation and Engagement — 10 mins.,
North/Freitas/Adams

The Executive Committee will discuss caucus participation and engagement and
consider for approval if subsequent action is needed.

2016 Spring Plenary Session Planning — 120 mins., Morse/Adams

The Executive Committee will consider for approval the 2016 Spring Session
preliminary program.

I. Career Technical Education (CTE) Program — 20 mins., Goold
The Executive Committee will consider for approval the program for the May
CTE Leadership Event.
J. ASCCC Periodic Review, 10 mins., Adams/Stanskas
The Executive Committee will consider for approval conducting the ASCCC
Periodic Review in 2016 -17 and discuss the approved process.
DISCUSSION
A. Chancellor’s Office Liaison Report — 45 mins., (Time certain 1:30 pm)
A liaison from the Chancellor’s Office will provide Executive Committee
members with an update of system-wide issues and projects.
B. Board of Governors/Consultation Council — 10 mins.,

The Executive Committee will receive an update on the recent Board of



Governors and Consultation meetings.

C. IDI - 20 mins., Adams/Rutan
The Executive Committee will debrief the Instructional Design and Innovation
Institute.

D. Lauchboard — 15 mins., Adams/Bruno
The Executive Committee will be updated on a recent discussion on the
Launchboard buildout.

VI. REPORTS (If time permits, additional Executive Committee announcements and
reports may be provided)
A. Standing Committee Minutes
i.  Curriculum Committee, Freitas
ii.  Faculty Development Committee, Rutan
iii.  Noncredit Committee, Aschenbach
iv.  Online Education Committee, Davison
v.  Part-time Task Force, North
B. Liaison Reports
i. ACCE, Aschenbach
il. Basic Skills Advisory Committee, Aschenbach
iii. Director’s Collaborative Committee Mecting, Adams
iv. General Education Advisory Committee, Stanskas

C. Senate Grant and Project Reports

VII. ADJOURNMENT






A’ Academic Senate
S for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT, VOILE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

[ SUBJECT: Calendar -

Month: February ] Year: 2016

temNo' I.D.

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will be updated on
upcoming ASCCC meetings and events.

Urgent: NO

Time Requested: 5 minutes

CATEGORY: Order of Business TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW™. Julie Adams Action
‘ | Information X

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

Upcoming Events and Meetings

* Accreditation Institute — San Diego — February 19-20, 2016

* March Executive Committee Meeting — Walnut/Pomona — March 4-5, 2016
* Academic Academy — Sheraton Sacramento — March 18-19, 2016

* Area Meetings — April 1-2, 2016
* Online Education Regional Mectings (North/South) — April 8-9, 2016

¢ April Executive Committee Meeting — Sacramento — April 20, 2016

* Spring Plenary Session — Sacramento Convention Center — April 21-23, 2016
* Career Technical Education Institute — Anaheim — May 6-7, 2016

* May Executive Committee Meeting — Catalina Island — May 27-29, 2016

* Faculty Leadership Institute — Riverside — June 9-11, 2016

¢ Curriculum Institate — Anahein — July 7-9, 2016

2013-16 Event Timeline is attached.

Reminders/Due Dates

February 18, 2016: Agenda Items, Committee Reports, and Action Tracking updates for Mar, Exccutive meeting

February 27, 2016: Paragraphs for the Annual Report due to the Executive Director (see IT. N, Annual Report)

April 4, 2016: Agenda Jtems, Committee Reports, and Action Tracking updates for Apr. Executive meeting

May 12, 2016: Agenda Items, Committee Reports, and Action Tracking updates for May Executive meeting

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.







“Awepesy Juwepesy 310 1sed ay) Sulpniaur sseaced Loeoyes,
D00SY 8Y) Waleldw] 0] S22 SSHIWWCS (Id SU) YliM UCHEIONR|0D Ul ‘Sluepy

"|lej s1y3 anpoy
" wnmowng
2yl yum
pajusLa|duy
G [

Bm_aEcoc;

|imng

swepy

acm

510

Alenuga ‘g

uopEdYIS] 3308V

"Bu@sw
SBYLILICD BAINISXKT BININY € 0} UCHERLSLUWIOSA B Yoeq Buuq pug sayuny eap) sup)
2.01dxS || SO JSLUSSISSY PUEB UORENPAIIIY PUE LONEINPT aouBSI] BYL

snieys
Y1135l o] pasy

a1e|dwoou)

aumng

uosIAeq

STOT

Aenuer -g

SMBINGY BUnjong
pue ABoBepad uoneypausdy|
uonesnp3 aouelsiq

"20UepPING Jaylny 1sanbal
01 Bupesw oax3 Alenuer syl 1oy pepiLIgns Uesq Sy wa) epuabe uy 510z 28Q
uiebe JOVS Je pas|el o) Spaau Wa)| S L 1GL0Z AON

8jadwoonuy

aImn4

uosiAB(/SENRL

DAl

S10¢

Menuer g

ucnesnp3 saueysy] Bulpietsy
G AL 0} Suols|Aey pasodord

‘pouad

awi) oyioads e 0] PUNOq JoU SWatU0d AYNoe) [Eluuarad S1e 1By} SANSST UM lesp
Jo ‘(suonegnd [euibuc sy} jo Majuoa ay) yo ssejpieBal) pouad awy Aue o Aidde,
uea jey sauepint Jayo ‘seidiound 5009y BulpuEls LM Buieap 1o |ealydosopyd
TBUSIND BUWMO|I0) SY) SMO|I0) TBY) WNIPUSLLOD LNJISOY SY) Ul LWISNjaU)

10J SODE WNNSoY B} MalARY (1w (SJeyd 1snf Jou) sapwwoo Sulpue)s yoeg

ssesboud u|

Aepy

swepy

EN

ST0T

Aderntuer -g|

wnijsoy ay; jo 1seg syl

'S9IBUSS |B20] JSISSE 0)
MO U SSPILIIOT SAINDSXT 8U} O) UORBPUILINIONS) S)EW PUE SO)EUSS |BI0| 1SiSSE
0} MOl INOQEe UOHESISALOD B 9ABY |t (QvaF) ssNiWwo) uopoy Alsisaig pue Aunbg

*1edd sy
SSRISIP (|14 DYA3

sdwoou)

aumnyg

g

A

PLOTPSQUISAON 7

Jnessy |enxag
‘Regeg Wapnis £96 95

"BUNSSW 9 9102 AGi SU} A UONEISPISUOS
Jo} saullepinG awos Bupeip pue saloljod sy} BuISIASI LIO YIOM M SWEpY

ojajdwoouy|

aming

swepy|

Y1z

J2qong e

UONEDIUNLILGY SSPILUIWIOD

(S107 Jauwiwing;/Sunds xo1dde)

SYIUOW MB) JxaU BY3 UIYHM [S5unod [eSa) mau e Bulaey sejedpiue 07 3y "uIsoyD

s1[25uno3 [eda) m3U e IuN 0D SU) Wieuy uoludo |eFa) upelgo 03 ajqeun :Slepdn |07 UM dnmajjoy

“UOISSNOS|P Jayury Joy
BSIILIIOY SANNOT B 0} 3oBq Well S|y Bupg pue [eba) st Aue9) Buippe Jou 1o
JSUIB UM BUILIBISP O) 3DIJ0 SCHISAUEYD SU} Lyiw dn MOJO} JiIM LIEINY *LOZ 1990100

1M JIBYD 4'gS

ajajdwonu

anng

ueyny

‘H'Al

1oz

JagoPQ ‘e

SMULIED 495 woy
Aaning (Aoussay) Juaung

“Jaded jujof & Buidojaasp jo eap! aUl 0400 Uim si0/dx@ O} 98I0 :5L0Z "99-
‘leaocsdde

Jo} uoneiapisucs oy Bunesw seRIWeD smncexT JaLoue of saded aly Joy aupno
ue 3oeq Sulq (v a3IWOD S3IDHOH {8 UOREANDPT BUL JO JIBYD BU | +|0Z Tdeg

040D yum uede
dn mo||04 [[1m
3550 --Juipuad

apadwoou]

amng

asJop

A

¥102

aquialdes 'z

1aded suajjejay uour)/sleuss

'9T0Z Asenuer u|

Paleulass|p 3 || pue Buipa jeuy ug aue sJaded alyMm 0M) By 1STOTZ Jaquansa
“Bunasw Jusnbasgns e 1e 3a1YWWOoD AN

33 03 pajuasaad aq || ssaded aHym OM] JBLI0 By “s3a130RId BAIIRYS puUe AJolsy
243 uo ssaded a)ym 0m) a3 P3IKOPE IBINUWIWOD SAINIXT 3] :GLOZ JSG0I00
"S20028.d 8AI1DBYT pue SOWL pue gI-D Jo AIoisIH Sy Bupssw semwwos
AIN0AX] 1BGCI00 BUY) 12 PRGNS Bq [ siaded 2lym om| :§10Z Jequisiieg

“Jead syl siaded sjym preamioy,

Buuqg pUE SJUSWINIOP JUBLIND MBIASY [I|M NBlid 213U PUE g IN[* §L0Z 1snBny
“Buesw aInmny e je SUCREPUSLIWODAI Yoeq Buug pue

@y oax3 ey Aq pasied swaoue? ssauppe o) aBenBue) yew (M ounlg :GLoz judy
“g21do) 2 uo susded apum

Ysiqnd o} Jaded au} 1o JUFUCI B4) BSK ¢} S1 UOIDE JO SSINCD 1537 Y} 'POISMSUEBUN
paulews.) suchsanb souls Jey) paujuLBiep SsLLLIOD Andex] ey "Bullsaw
asnuIwog aAnNdaxg yaew sy o) yBnosq sem saded | gy syl :gL0Z yorepw

ssalboad u)

aimng

ounug

DN

1oz

sqwaidas 'z

Jaded yeuq 1QV

soloNismelg  @1@jdwio) Jea)

a9dwo)  ajedwodu
Yo |fe39dwoy

23eq ann

0) paudissy

# wiagl
epuady
Fup

pausissy
1B,

pausissy
Yuopw

WA)| uoyy

Ll

Gl

£l

3

oL



1507 [[1% SWepY

BYSqaM SU UO SYSIA WNIN2LMNY) Joy ssedaud v L a4 1s0d ||Im J2is aje|dwon Jaquiadag swepy 1N 910z Aenuer SHSIA V1 wnnownd
o LY a1|dwon Jaquiasag swepy ol otoz|  Asenue SBunaepy
pue a)sgam DSV Syl uo sBupesw feuciBat ay) Joj epusbe [euy ol 1sod M UEIS r eucifiay uoneanpg auluy
“ooqpuey aako|dw 3y Jo Adod [euy yum saakojdiua g — e — Py
opinosd puE B)IsGem OISV BU) O} oOGPUEH SaojdLLT pasiAel i 15od (M &S Ao S Swepy 47 910z enuer YoogpueH safodwz
paAcidde Se Se|npow oy} Jo UoRa|diioD oL BUREHIOE] Ul SAELD .
SBNWILIOD LM HIOM |1 JOJ031I SrINDexg pue Jjeys Juaudojaas Aynoed eyl Sieidwau Y| swepvjueny ani 9toz Asenuer S2INPOW D0d
* "|eaosdde pue UONEISPISUCY
Joj Bupsaw sunry e o) epusBe ue Buug [ HeyD "sirelep sBupeaw pue suopeoo| a)sjdwoouy Hodea] YIBqQUaYDSY| 3 910z Azenuer sB) |euoiBay ypaouoN
JIp2JoUoU U SZ|[Bul} C) SSHILILLOT JIPSJIUOU 8U) JO JEYD BU1 Lim HI0Mm [Im Jels
)Isqem DDDSY SUI O) SHINUIW JaquaAc pascidde pejsod Jaquwsdag| ele|dwod Jsqwedsg SEYSUB)S vl a1z Arenuey| S8INUIL IBGLUBACN
“aded suoneayeny WNLUY SY) 0] 83uUseAInbg e laded suoneayenty
81 8s1A8] 0] S8RILULUOT S8I0EId PUE PIERUELS U] UIA JIOM IIM SEXSURIS gt aimn seRsuag 4N ST0Z( JSQWSACN wnwiuy sy} 0 dousjeainby
"SBUREaW g0z YOIEN PUE AJerugad au) I8 malaed 10} Se55e00Md WNNomng a1oidwoouy ST — aA croz| saquisnon SUIINQ 1ede $855900Ig
DA[1294J® U Jaded sy} Jeip O} SHILLLOY) LUNAILING Bt} YILM OM (W Sejalq WnnoWNY eAloelg
‘Remyied vy O vy pue 'Ayees sndweo Y0 ‘sednes esy [euiaw
‘|encidde 8SIN0D SUDIE PUB)S ‘93] JIPNE SPN|OU 1S2J23U| J0 sealy "Bulasiu 1aguIsAcN
sy} 1e epusby aape|siban 910z 2y percdde sepuILIoD BANSEXT 8Y] (GL0Z 280 ssauboid u| aimng ounig VAl STOZ| Jlaquwaion epuaby aagesifa
‘epusby aapels|Be 910z SL dojeasp O] SNUKUOD PUE 1S2IAYU| JO SEAIR
201y 5 2so|dxe 0) sqWLIoD ASED0ADY puB aalelsiBo sy ylim oM [jim ounig
"JUBAS [{BI8A0 BU) PUE UCISSSS JNojyesl] y2es 10} welboud synsu) uonzaouu] aidwoou e UEINELIE o sogwanon| SHOISSeS Incyeald [enpiapL)
pue uBisaq [euchanisy] 91.0Z @Y1 Ul SSLUONG apNjou] (M UEINY pUe SWeRY e I ind BI/SUERY i st0z a N PpuUE S8ININSU| JOJ SBLLOIINY
ELERe]
(90d) ebe)j0) Juswdoeraq [Buassajold siadwosu suning uEny HU stoz| ssquanon|  wewdoeasq euoissejoig
SU} Jo} SIANPOW MBU XIS CORASP (M SEWWOY juswdoeasg AYnoed ayl S} JO} SS|NPO MBN
*|eacidde 1o} epusbe Asenuer sy} uc S| W8)| siy ) GL0Z 280
‘G Loz Buuds alajdwony) amng oung N SIOZ| JequuAoN Aeq Aoesoapy D008V
10} ABp AJBDOADE DDOSY UB YSHOEISS [IM 99)IWWoT) ADB20ARY pue uone(siBa ay |
|udy Ul play 24 j|is pue 28x3 Aq paacidde ussqg saey sjeuoiBay (GLOZ 290/MON sBugeapy
"Areuaid 0y soud ssalboig u aining uosiaeq a-n STOZ| JaQUBAON jeuciBay] UoEINP3 BUIUG
Buuds a1 v sBupasul peucibal Jo 185 B ploy JliM 93PIWLICT UONEINRT SUUO YL,
BWETE) -
aja|dwoay sumn 0C 18QOI0| eSO WNINJLIN
5L} U0 SSAYWILOD LINJNGLING PUE UONENPSI0Y BL) LM I0M |4 D LD UL pelosyl = PIOSD i 9 O wininoung 319
*SUOHepUBLLLLODa) 33)dwioouy 2unin4 SIDNHO g AlfST0? SUCHEPUBILIOISY J1IM
- 1 JAA BY] JO uonEjuBWBdL S WIOI 1580 0] MOY SSNOSIP 0 1881 [|IM SISDIU0 aY 1 laquiaidas
feus|d |led 18 pauouoy Sem HOW 1GLOZ JaquisaoN aining 3510 ‘3 *H|ST0T Slsquiaiy
‘@9ILULIOD SANDEXT S} U0 adIASS JIBL) 55348014 U| JVPNWILIOD SAFNISXKT
10 JOUOY Ul LeL||IH-sauWUs) 3|yl pue QEEU ueq O} suojjnjosal Eom@n_ llim 83J01y LmnEmanmm JaUWLIC JOUDH 0} SUCN|0s3Y
SIUBPNIS PaS|YIURILBSIQ
ITUIWIWIOT 3AINDXT Ag UOINGLIISIP Jo) partidde Aains Yei] G| 0z JOGWBACH o in
waisAg abe)j0n AILNWILGT BILIoNE:) Sij} ssa.80.d Uy amny|  uosimegien R g0zl 1sngny -g| 104 5SS S 355V1
Ul SjUapn}s pasiyoueluasip Jo) saoiaas Bunsixe uec AsAIns B jnquisip [ DSSY L
B " d ‘flejw d
‘Yuedsas Buponpuos Joy s58304d SE ||9M SE ‘SB[ILIo 3 & . s JudwdojeAa(] yolesssy
uo|IN|osal Ssalppe o) Moy Joy ueld yaueasal e yoeq Buuq [im uohepuno- ey | ueid e y3eq Buliq @eidwooy| eimnd o an ELL4 LS — uoiepuncd DoD4SY!
1M uonepunog
Bupasiy
B A B Auenuer 3y on SUSIA WNNSLING
‘Bupsaw saxg Alenuer sl 10} PANIWIGNS Uasg sey S|Ul uo We)| epusbe uy G0z 990 o~ . 151 DL
uauodwos 1509 3yl 151A8) — 1deouoD u| peacuddy _mm“”“om“mmuﬂwm“ anaqdwoou| aimnd Sens 2 s10¢ WIBA L BIUBSISSY [EDILYID]

Fax

6l

8l



“1033J1p
BANI3XS BY3 01, /7 AeNniga4 Ag anp aJe s3)doj 353l L "lueAs|al 3j3) SIaqUISW

gjajdwony Aenige. Swe W Adenue Hoday [enuu
$:1d0} 19YI0 Se [[am se epuale Arenuer 3y uy paisy saidoy 3y Suisn wodas {enuue el : 4 Pv Wl 9t f . v
33 40} ap1Ac.d e J0122JIp 3AIINIEXS 3U) SPInCId ||IM SISQUIBW I3WLLCT SAINZaX]
‘Hodal [enuue
Sunds HHHSV oy unoyur 0) pasn aq [[Im saepdn asAUL, * ¢ Arenuef ug
L U} uLogur 0} pasn aq [[IM saepdn asayL, " 1€ [ueg sjeidwoou| Alentier swepy 1 9toz|  Aenuer Ueld be1ens
Is1B] QU I010RI(] SANNISXY N 0] SUONIE paudisse Jo sapepdn uaim apraosd

PUEB UB[J J1B01eNg DSV AU ASIA [[IM SIHUIOUT 99YIIUILE0;) SANNIOYY







"A = Academic Senate
E for California Community Colleges
LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. ¥OICE

LEADERSHEIEP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE,

2015-2016 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
MEETING DATES
*Meeting will typically be on Friday’s from 11:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. and Saturday’s from 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.!

Meeting Type Date Campus Location Hotel Location
Executive Meeting August 21 — 22, 2015 Los Angeles City College Embassy Suites
855 N. Vermont Avenue 800 N. Central Avenue
Los Angeles, CA 90029 Glendale, CA 91203
Executive Meeting September 1112, 2015 Sacramento City College Citizen Hotel
3835 Freeport Boulevard 926 J Street
Sacramento, CA 95822 Sacramento, CA 95814
Executive Meeting QOctober 2 — 3, 2015 MiraCosta College Hilton Resort & Spa
One Barnard Drive 1775 East Mission Bay Drive,
Oceanside, CA 92056 San Diego, CA 92109
Area Meetings Qctober 23 — 24, 2015 Various Various
Session Executive November 4, 2015 n/a Marriott Irvine
18000 Von Karman Avenue,
Irvine, CA 92612
Fall Plenary Session November 5 -7, 2015 n/a Marriott Irvine
18000 Von Karman Avenue,
Irvine, CA 92612
Executive Meeting January § — 9, 2016 Cerritos College Sheraton Cerritos
11110 Alondra Boulevard 12725 Center Court Dr §
Norwalk, CA 90650 Cerritos, CA 90703
Executive Meeting February 5 -6, 2016 Folsom Lake College Lake Natoma Inn
10 College Pkwy, 702 Gold Lake Dr,
Folsom, CA 95630 Folsom, CA 95630
Executive Meetings March 4 - 5, 2016 Mit. San Antonio College Sheraton Fairplex
1100 North Grand Avenue 601 W. Mckinley Ave
Walnut, CA 91789 Pomona, CA 91768
Area meetings April 1 -2, 2016 Various Various
Session Executive April 20, 2016 n'a Sacramento Convention Center
Spring Plenary Session April 21-23, 2016 n/a Sacramento Convention Center
Executive/Orientation May 20 —22, 2016 n/a Metropole Hotel Catalina Island
Faculty Leadership June 9 — 11, 2016 n/a The Mission Inn
EVENTS?
Career Technical Ed January 14-15, 2016 n/a Napa Valley Marriott
Innovation and Instructional January 21-23, 2016 n‘a Riverside Convention
Design Center/Mission Inn/Marriott
Accreditation Institute February 19 - 20, 2016 n/a Marriott Mission Valley San
Diego
Academic Academy March 18 — 19, 2016 n/a Sheraton Sacramento
Career Technical Edu. Institute May 6 —7, 2016 n/a DoubleTree Anaheim
Curriculum Institute July 7 -9, 2016 n/a DoubleTree Anaheim

! Times may be adjusted to accommodate flight schedules to minimize early travel times.

? Executive Committee members are not expected to attend these events.







ﬁ .
Academic Senat
CE for California E::mmuniety Colleges EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Cerritos College — F, riday, January 8, 2016

LEATERSHIY. EMVOWERNENT. VOICE. )
Sheraton Cerritos Hotel — Saturday, January 9, 2016

| Friday, January 8, 2016 - Saturday, January 9, 2016 ]

L ORDER OF BUSINESS

A. Roll Call
President Morse called the meeting to order at 12:30 p.m.

Members present: J. Adams, C. Aschenbach, R. Beach, J. Bruno, D. Davison, A.
Foster, J. Freitas, G. Goold, V. May, W. North, C. Rico, C. Rutan, C. Smith, and
J. Stanskas.

Liaisons present: Dahlia Salem, SSCCC.

Guests present: Dan Crump, American River College; Jolena Grande, Cypress
College; Michelle Lewellen, Cerritos College; and Pete Snyder, Fullerton

College.

B. Approval of the Agenda
The agenda was approved by consensus.

C. Public Comment
Dr. JoAnna Schilling, Vice President of Academic Affairs/Assistant

Superintendent, Cerritos College, welcomed the ASCCC Executive Committee
and thanked members for all they do on behalf of facuity and students statewide.

Michelle Lewellen, Cerritos College local senate president, informed members
that Cerritos College has recently hired 12 new counselors — 2 tenured and 10
untenured — using SSSP and equity funds. Morse noted that Chancellor Harris
mentioned at the Board of Governors meeting that these funds should not be used
to hire non-tenure track faculty and asked members to alert him if they hear about
other colleges who are doing the same. He will follow up with Vice-chancellor

Walker,

D. Calendar
Members were reminded of deadlines for the January Rostrum articles, Executive

Committee agenda items, and ASCCC events.

E. Action Tracking
Member were asked to review the items on the Action Tracking and send updates

as necessary.

F. Dinner Arrangements
Members were informed of dinner arrangements.



IL.

CONSENT CALENDAR

ZZVRECOTIEE AP

November 4, 2015 Meeting Minutes

Noncredit Regional Meetings

Professional Development College Modules

Professional Development College Module on Peer Review
Personnel Manual

. Online Education Regional Meetings

Curriculum Technical Assistance Visits
AA to MA Program

The Best of the Rostrum

Strategic Plan Status

. Spring 2016 Annual Report

Audit Fee Survey

MSC (Rutan/Davison) to approve the consent agenda as amended.

Action:

e

Item A: Staff will post the approved November minutes to the ASCCC website.
Item C: Staff will work with the Noncredit Committee to schedule the Noncredit
Regional meetings. Dates and locations will be posted to the ASCCC online
calendar. Noncredit Committee chair will bring an agenda to a future meeting for
approval.

Item D: The Faculty Development Chair and Executive Director will work with
committee chairs in facilitating the completion of the modules as approved.

Item E: Resolution 19.03 S13 will be reassigned to the Educational Policies.

Item F: Staff will post the approved Employee Handbook and provide employees
with a revised copy.

Item G: Online Education Regional Meetings will be finalized and posted on the
website, Mectings will be posted on ASCCC online calendar.

Item I: Staff will post the curriculum visit costs and process on the ASCCC
website. These curriculum visits will be promoted more broadly.

Item J: The president will inform the Chancellor’s Office that the ASCCC will
participate in the AA to MA program.

Item K: Each standing committee (not just chairs) will review the Rostrum articles
for inclusion in the Rostrum compendium that follows the following criteria:
Philosophical or dealing with standing ASCCC principles; offer guidance that can
apply to any time period (regardless of the context of the original publications); or
deal with issues that are perennial faculty concerns not bound to a specific time
period.

Item L: Executive Committee members will review the ASCCC Strategic Plan
and provide written updates of assigned actions to the Executive Director no later
than January 31*. These updates will be used to inform the ASCCC spring
annual report.

Item M: Executive Committee members will provide the executive director a



IIL.

provide for the annual report using the topics listed in the J anuary agenda as well
as other topics members felt relevant. These topics are due by February 27" to

the executive director.

B. Resolution Assignments
Members briefly discussed the resolutions assignments:

MSC (Freitas/Nortk) to approve the resolution assignments with the
understanding that the president will work with committee chairs to modify
assignments as necessary.

Action

Members will provide the president and executive director with any suggested
modifications to the resolution assignments.

H. Accreditation Institute

Members were informed of the planning for the upcoming Accreditation Institute and
a request from ACCJC to participate in the event. It was noted that a few years ago
ACCJC volunteered to participate in the Accreditation Institute but then pulled out at
the last minute. If ACCJC agrees to present, the committee should have a backup

plan in case they pull out again.,

MSC (Beach/North) to approve the first reading of the Accreditation Institute

program allowing ACCJC representatives to participate as appropriate and to
restructure the current program to accommodate a panel on the Consultation

Councii Accreditation Task Force Report.

REPGRTS

A. President’s/Executive Director’s Report
Members were reminded that the Accreditation Taskforce recommended and the
Board of Governors approved the recommendations of the taskforce. The original
taskforce membership was augmented with additional CEOs and Thuy Nguyen,
Vice-chancellor of Legal Affairs, to form an implementation team. This new
team met with ACCJC on Wednesday in closed session to understand from
ACCJC how it would respond to the taskforce recommendations. After receiving
the response from ACCJC, the taskforce will prepare a recommendation to the
Board of Governors on next steps for accreditation of California community

college.

The Board of Governors approved the search firm and process for identifying a
new chancellor. The Board of the Governors has formed a search committee —
mostly comprised of sitting board members, David Morse, ASCCC President
(alternative Julie Bruno, ASCCC Vice-president), Keetha Mills (Foundation
CEO), and Larry Galizio, Community College League of California President and
CEO (alternative Brian King, Chancellor Los Rios).



The Chancellor’s office is working on creating a pathway from AA to MA to
incentivize our students to go into teaching at a CCC. Vice-chancellor Thuy
Nguyen is spearheading this work. The ASCCC has been asked to participate as
noted under the consent item on this pathway.

The EEO and Diversity Advisory Committee met to discuss the implementation
of the nine metrics identified to measure success, which will be phased in over
time. The metrics are on the Consultation Council agenda in November. The
final set of multiple methods will be presented to the Board of Governors at its

January 2016 meeting for consideration.

The ASCCC is currently having challenges in transitioning C-ID to a new district
even though we thought everything was going well at our last team meeting. The
Chancellor’s Office is working with Mt. San Antonio College to resolve issues.
Given some of the difficulty, the Chancellor’s Office is also seeking alternatives
to funding through a district. We will keep the Executive Committee informed.

The ASCCC staff continued to work with CCCAQE and the Chancellor’s Office
to hold the CTE Curriculum Academy January 14 — 15, 2016, in Napa. Over 200
faculty, staff, administrators, curriculum chairs, deputy/sector navigators, and
Chancellor’s Office staff are registered. We anticipate that this event will be
more interactive than last year’s event. Napa Valley will be showcasing their
Viticulture program and provide attendees with wine samples,

Adams updated members on staff changes and event registrations. She noted that
many of the other items staff have been working on are on the current agenda for

discussion.

Finally, Adams reported of Doug Sabiston, ASCCC Senator Emeritus, passing
and his memorial service. Both Smith and her attended the memorial on behaif of
the ASCCC. She provided a eulogy to recognize Doug’s contributions to the state
and his local campus. The eulogy will be published in the Rostrum.

Foundation President’s Report
Members were undated on the activities of the Foundation.

Liaison Oral Reports
SSCCC President Salem provided members with Student Senate activities

including the March in March and upcoming General Assembly. She noted that
the SSCCC has concerns with students not having a role on the Chancellor’s
Office search committee and with the implementation of the Fall 2016 Board of
Governors Fee Waiver changes (SB1456). The concern with SB1456 is mostly
because there is no appeal procedure. The SSCCC is requesting that the



Chancellor’s Office push the implementation data until 2018 so that financia] aid
offices can be updated on the changes. Members discussed the student’s concern
with not having a student on the Chancellor’s Office hiring committee.

IV. ACTION ITEMS
A. Legislative Update
The legislature is on recess so no new action has occurred since the last Executive

Committee meeting. The last day to introduce legislation is February 19", Bruno
reminded members that the ASCCC Legisiative Agenda was approved at the
November 4, 2016, Executive Committee meeting. Since that meeting, the
Legislative and Advocacy Committee met and proposes to hold an ASCCC
legislative day on May 9, 2016.

MSC (North/Foster) to approve the May 9™ ASCCC Legislative Day.

Action
FACCC Executive Director Jonathan Lightman will be invited to provide
advocacy training on Friday, April 29, 2016, to the committee and the Executive

Committee,

B. Board of Governors Interviews
In closed session, the Executive Committee conducted interviews for the faculty
position on the Board of Governors. The Executive Committee reported out of
closed session that the following faculty will be forwarded to the governor for
consideration: Joseph Bielanski, current Board of Governors faculty member and
a counseling faculty from Berkeley City College; Richard Mahon, humanities
professor from Riverside City College; and Cynthia Reiss, Art History, West
Valley College. Gregory Breyer will be encouraged to continue to participate in
statewide activities and on committees.

By consensus, the Standards and Practices Committee will review the Board of
Governors process to evaluate the effectiveness of the interview process and
possible alternatives to this process.

Action

* Adams will alert the candidates about the action of the Executive Committee
and send the governor the information,

* The Standards and Practices Committee will review the Board of Governor
recruitment and interview process and report back to the Executive Commitiee
at the May Executive Committee meeting.

C. 2016 Academic Academy
Members were informed that the Chancellor’s Office has scheduled an event

addressing equity and student services issues the same week as the Academic
Academy in Sacramento—Monday through Wednesday. Since the topics might
be the same as the Academic Academy, it will be important to distinguish the



ASCCC event from the Chancellor’s Office. The theme of their event is “From
Plan to Action.” May and Smith updated members on possible themes for the
ASCCC event and highlighted possible topics. This item will come back to the
next meeting for discussion and possible action.

. Upaate to the Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications

Members briefly discussed the Standards and Practices Committee revisions to
the Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications paper. By consensus, members
argued that the paper should clearly state that the local equivalency committee is a
committee of the local senate. While the current paper hints that the committee
should be a local senate committee, it does not make a strong statement.

Members discussed the minimum qualifications for career technical education and
the Board of Governor Task Force on the Workforce, Jobs, and a Strong
Economy. By consensus, the Standards and Practices Committee will review the
current revision for areas that might be modified to address the task force
recommendations if possible. Robert Cabral, C-ID CTE Director, will work with
the Standards and Practices Committee to address CTE minimum qualifications
noted in the Board of Governors Taskforce on Workforces, Job Creation, and a
Strong Economy recommendations.

Action
The Standards and Practices Committee will review the current revisions to the

Equivalence to Minimum Qualifications to address the task force
recommendations if possible.

. Online Education Initiative (OEI) Pilot Colleges MOU

Members reviewed a draft MOU on the operation of the OEI course exchange
between the OEI pilot colleges. The MOU is an agreement between the eight
pilot colleges and provides details of the OEI course exchange reciprocity policies
and business processes. All members on the OEI Steering Committee were asked
to seek feedback from their organization prior to the next OEI meeting. The
Executive Committee provided feedback, which will be shared with the OEI
Steering Committee. No action taken.

. Local Curriculum Committee Visits and the Role of SACC

Vice-chancellor Walker suggested at a recent System Advisory Committee on
Curriculum (SACC) meeting that the committee should provide technical
assistance to colleges on issues related to curriculum. ASCCC members of SACC
questioned whether having SACC provide technical assistance would create
confusion in the field since the curriculum is under the purview of the ASCCC
and not SACC. Members were reminded that the Executive Committee approved
a technical assistance process for curriculum in March 2015 and the costs for such
a process was approved under consent on this agenda. Given current challenges
from the field in the area of curriculum, the ASCCC should make available



3

curriculum technical assistance visits. Members agreed that the technical
assistance process in curriculum should be implemented immediately. No action

taken.

Action

* The Senate Office will update the ASCCC website with the technical
assistance process for curriculum.

* The ASCCC Technical Assistance service will be advertised more broadly.

* The Curriculum Committee chair with collaborate with the committee
members, CCCCIOs, and president in developing a PPT presentation.

Attendance Accounting Issues
Resolution 13.03 passed in Spring 2013 requested that the ASCCC address

aligning attendance accounting for distance education classes with that for in-
person classes. The issue noted in the resolution is the disparity in FTES for
courses in the online versus in-person modalities at colleges that use compressed
calendars. SACC has discussed this item but no action has been taken. After a
brief discussion, members agreed by consensus that the chair of the Curriculum
Committee will discuss at the CIO next meeting whether or not the CIOs see this

issue as problematic.

Action
Freitas will discuss with the C10 board ideas for how to address Resolution 13.03

S13.

2016 Spring Plenary Session Schedule

Members were reminded that the 2016 Spring Session will be held jointly with
the CIOs, CSSOs, CCCAOE, and others. A majority of the joint program will be
on Thursday and Friday. All organizations have been asked to modify their
program so that the attendees will get the most out of the event. A draft program
was provided to members that included possible modifications. Members

discussed.

MSC (Stanskas/May) to approve the program format as discussed.

Basic Skills Definitions

Resolution 7.05 F14 urged the development of a standard definition for basic
skills courses and is currently assigned to the Curriculum Committee. The
committee discussed how to best address this resolution and requested that the
Executive Committee provide guidance. The resolution resolved that we “urge
the Chancellor’s Office to work with the Academic Senate for California
Community Colleges to develop and use one standard definition for basic skills
courses that can be applied to math, reading, and English and a separate definition
for ESL courses that acknowledge that ESL can be non-degree applicable, degree
applicable, or transferable.” A working definition exists in the “Poppy Copy” and
the 2008 Basic Skills handbook but there is no “official” definition of basic skills



for California community colleges, nor is there one for ESL. The Basic Skills
Initiative and Senate lead effort to align CB21 coding has guidelines for funding
of basic skills classes, but no standard applies to all colleges. Members were
asked to consider if the Curriculum Committee is the best group to address this
resolution or should it be SACC. Members discussed possible action.

MSC (Davison/Aschenbach) to reassign Resolution 7.05 F14 to SACC.

. Workforce Task Force Recommendation Implementation

Adams, Bruno, and Morse met with Vice-chancellor Van Ton-Quilivan, Lynn
Shaw, and Paul Steenhausen to discuss the ASCCC’s role in implementing the 25
recommendations of the Board of Governors Task Force on Workforce, Jobs, and
a Strong Economy. The item included in the agenda has been developed to
summarize the recommendations and include possible partners, past resolutions
and positions, 10 +1 areas, as well as areas where more direction is needed. An
updated version was emailed to members containing the results of the
conversation with the Vice-chancellor and others. Members discussed the
recommendations and the ASCCC involvement in the implementation.

MSC (Goold/Foster) to approve the recommendation implementation
strategies.

Actior
Adams will update the table with committee and Executive Committee

assignments and timeline.

. Dua! Enrollment Srequently Asked Questions

The Educational Policies Committee developed a frequently asked questions for
dual enrollment and implementation and requested feedback from the Executive
Committee. The committee recommended that a Rostrum article be developed
using the attached document and an FAQ be posted on the website. Member felt
that the document should be shortened for the Rostrum.

MSC (avison/May) to publish an edited version of this document in the
Rostrum and to establish a FAQ document for the website.

. Launchboard

The Chancellor's Office is planning to kick off a massive outreach campaign for
the LaunchBoard starting in January. A number of groups — WestEd, RP Group,
Regional Consortia, and other constituent groups will be participating in this
work. The ASCCC has been asked to partner with these groups to expand
Launchboard to all 113 colleges. The general outline of the campaign has been
established by the Chancellor's Office. The ASCCC would work with others to
develop training on how LaunchBoard data can be integrated into local program
review and curricular processes; to develop a day-long advanced training that
helps people become more proficient in using the LaunchBoard; and to develop a



LaunchBoard Fellows program who can do LaunchBoard training and technical
assistance during 2015-16. The timeline for this work will begin in fall 2016 and
spring 2017. There will be funding available for the ASCCC to participate in this
work.

MSC (Aschenbach/Goold) to partner with the Chancellor’s Office, WestEd,
RP Group, and others to expand the LaunchBoard expansion.

. Open Educational Resources

The California Open Educational Resources Council (COERC/CA-OERC), which
was created out of SB1052 (Steinburg, 2012) has been meeting regularly for
almost two years with the intent of creating a plan to expand the use of Open
Educational Resources (OER) in all three segments of post-secondary education
in California. The council’s work on SB1052 concludes in December, although
the council will be working on the new OER bill, AB798 (Bonilla, 2015). At the
December 17, 2015 ICAS meeting, the council presented its final report on
SB1052; all three of the ICAS leads asked that the report be truncated (from more
than 30 pages to 3 pages) to report solely on SB 1052, and the council met on
December 21 to discuss how to reduce the report and what to do with the original
report; there is disagreement about this between members of the council, and it is
possible that the CCC representatives will vote against publicizing the full report
due to its inclusion of information that is either inaccurate or biased.

In its first two years, the council succeeded in identifying the 50 most subscribed
courses between the three post-secondary segments, although several of those
courses had poor or non-existent Open Education Resources (noted on the
website-—coolded.org). The council’s work also included vetting peer reviewers
for extant OER materials, attending conferences and presenting on the COERC
efforts, and publicizing the work of the council. Going forward in the work for
AB 798, the council will be producing rubrics and reviewing applications from
colleges and universities that wish to be incentivized to implement the use of
OER materials (specifically textbooks), recruiting faculty advocates/ambassadors
for OER, and continuing to publicize the purpose of the council’s work and OER
usage. By consensus, Aschenbach, Crump, Davison will prepare guidelines for
CCC faculty who would like to receive grants through AB798. ICAS will be
informed about

Members discussed AB798 and the need for ASCCC to create its own initiative
for developing online educational resources, particularly given the challenges
ICAS has had with Ca-OER. If the ASCCC wanted to do something in this area,
what would that look like? Staff members at the Community College League of
California (CCLC) have also expressed an interest in doing something for
community college faculty as well. By consensus, a task force will be formed
including Aschenbach, Beach, Crump, Davison, Freitas, and Smith, as well as the
CCLC and SSCCC. A report on the progress of this task force will be brought to
the March Executive Committee meeting,



MSC (Davison/Beach) to develop a proposal for a CC focused initiative on
OER including Z degrees (zero cost textbooks).

DISCUSSION

A.

B.

Chancellor’s Office Liaison Report
No report provided.

Board of Governors/Consultation Council

Morse briefly updated members on the Board of Governors and Consultation
Council meetings, particularly the Board of Governors approval of the 25
recommendations of the Taskforce on Workforce, Job Creation and a Strong
Economy recommendations and conversations on accreditation.

Part-Time Faculty Priorities

The Part-Time Faculty Task Force has had some challenges in meeting because of
schedules of the part-time committee members. Members discussed the
challenges and ideas for engaging faculty. It was suggested that the Part-time
Faculty Task Force be treated similarly to the CTE Leadership Committee
members. For example, members of this committee are provided stipends or
reassigned time and free ASCCC event registration to participate in statewide
activities. By consensus, the Budget Committee will consider this suggestion
when developing the ASCCC budget in March.

Members discussed how to deliver professional development for part-time
faculty, particularly the skills needed to get a full-time tenured position. The
question was raised about the need to understand how many part-time faculty are
secking full-time jobs versus those who are not and in what disciplines. The
Chancellor’s Office Datamart does track full- and part-time by TOPs code, which
could be used to determine the need for this type of professional development.
By consensus, the Chancellor’s Office will be contacted to see if this information

can be disaggregated.

Another idea is to hold an institute dedicated to part-time faculty professional
development, This institute could have breakout sessions such as what it means
to be a full-time faculty member, what are effective interviewing skills (i.e., mock
interviews), as well as pedagogy, teaching modalities, etc. The ASCCC couid also
develop a mandatory Professional Development College module that would cover
CCC terms, syllabus, and other basic information. We could partner with other

groups such as FACCC and CCCAOE.

By consensus, the Part-time Task Force will develop a plan (long- and short-term)
that includes activities, objectives, possible partnerships, and other ways to
engage and improve professional development activities by May. In addition, all
committees will consider Part-time faculty issues as they relate to topics assigned.
Finally, committees should be careful not to cross the line between academic and
professional matters and bargaining issues.

10



D. ASCCC Audit
Adams presented the 2015 Fiscal Year audit and informed members that no
findings were reported. She reminded members that the audit was no presented to
the delegates in fall because the ASCCC was delayed in its audit preparation and
the auditors were already scheduled to the end of the year. The audit will be

presented to the delegates in spring.

E. Budget Performance
Adams presented the budget performance for the first half of the fiscal year and

noted that the expenditures are on target with the proposed budget. Members
discuss the budget performance.

VL.  REPORTS (If time permits, additional Executive Committee announcements and
reporis may be provided)
A. Standing Committee Minutes
i.  Faculty Development Committee, Rutan
il.  TASSC, May
iii,  Curriculum Committee, Freitas
iv.  Accreditation and Assessment Committee, Beach
v.  Legislative and Advocacy Committee, Bruno
B. Liaison Reports
i.  SACC, Freitas/Shearer
ii. COERC, Davison
iif.  Open Education Resources Conference, Davison
iv.  EPI, Rico
v.  OEISC, Freitas
vi.  SSSPAC, Adams
C. Senate Grant and Project Reports
i.  C-ID, Rutan

VII. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at (time).

Adjourned at 1:00 pm.

11






7 Academic Senate
E for California Community Colleges
LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Legislation Update Month: February | Year: 2016
lteruNa V. A
Attachment: Yes (2)

DESIRED OUTCOME: Update the Executive Committee on recent Urgent: NO

legislative activities, the ASCCC 2016 legislative | Time Requested: 20 minutes

agenda and the ASCCC advocacy day in May.

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Bruno/Davison Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW*: Julie Adams ' Action X
Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

Legislation Update: The Legislature is back in session and drafting legislation for 2016. The
Executive Committee will be updated on recently submitted bills as well as legislation under
consideraticon. Please see the attachments for additional information.

ASCCC Legislative information including the ASCCC Legislative Reports and letters submitted in support or
opposition of 2015 legislation may be found on our Legislative Update page:
http://www.asccc.org/legislative-updates.

ASCCC 2016 Legislative Agenda: The ASCCC Strategic Plan includes the following strategy that was
identified by the Executive Committee as a priority for the 2015-2016 year:

Develop a legislative agenda aligned with goals of the ASCCC and actively pursue bills of interest.
The Executive Committee will be updated on items on the ASCCC legislative agenda:

1) Audit Fee
2) Stand Alone Course Approval
3) Mental Health Service

Additionally, the Legislative and Advocacy Committee continues to investigate areas of interest for
possible addition to the ASCCC legislative agenda:

1) Online Educational Resources
2) Campus Safety
3) AAto MA Pathway

ASCCC Advocacy Day: The ASCCC Legislative day is scheduled for Monday, May 9, 2016. Training will
be provided on Friday, April 29.

1 Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






g0l 9L 61 | xinepy sane|siBen

PleH "sdosddy ‘wsy X|X uojedidied ssauisng [[ews S198JU0D N[ iedmes-seuor] 1SE | Y
PleH "sdoiddy “wsy XX weibold ApniS-yiopm WyIQ Pl [eroueuld uspnig 8UCIS| 90¢ | av
anoeu| - Joojd ajeuasf [xfofx [x[xTo[x s9|ablUy 507 jo Ajunod Juewdojarspey|  [euuoq,Ol o0z | av
peH ‘sdoddy ‘wsy X{x G10g J0 10 80UB)SISSY [EOlUYda ] SSauIsng [lewsS ‘qees vg, | av
pleH "sdosddy ‘wsy x| x sdiysaoljuaiddy ‘sypal) :sexe] awodu)]  zenbupoy| SL | gy
ploH ‘sdouddy ‘wsy X[ X ainseay puog UoReBiiqQ [elauss) :seRiioe-] [00yaS uspioH| svlL ay
[e9si4 % 1oBpng ojetieg X [x[x[x]x JUSLILLIBAOS) |EJ0T] B4sp| €11 av
P4 sjeusg X{X|X|X|X {poddng) uojn, juepisaiuo) wiol4 uoduwex3 - suesjan NSYIN ZoABYD| L¢ av
peH sdouddy "wsy X[ x WweiBo.d uohin| payifeny) Jpald) Xe) swoduy| [euosiod eliuog! /1 ay
FEEGES XIX|x|x]|x (Hoddng) uonin] JuspisaiuoN wo.4 suopdwex] sUBISIaA 0D Zoreyn| €l av
pleH - ‘sdoddy sjeusg X[x[x]x[x]x MBIAdY SUOQE|NDaY SANBJSIUILUPY ;JUBWLIBAOE) SjE)S Agjoon| 1 av
m___m {e8A 7 - 301440 SHOTIIONVHI IHL AR gaIMoL ST :
‘P3 ‘ueg Hnl [eIouRly yjjeeH [ejusiiuosaul IH] ¥ a8s
paonpofu| SpI0day Aqnd M| 891 | av
'$00IdCY "WSY X| X shemybiH ajels :saloz jooyas seleg|GLLL]| gy
£ ¥311 - 301440 SHQTIFINYHY FHL A9 AIMIVHL ST )
‘39 Twsy X Wweiboid juels) dyseonuaiddy saloppop uoipiep] oos | av
'P3 JaYDIH “wsy X S)YOIR JO [IIg SJe|uly JuspN}S uojeanp3 Aiepuodasisod| sewoy kepr| SEZ | GV
¥4 zm_._. 391440 SHUOTIIONVHI FHL A nmxu.nE. STIg
FENES (1osuodg) Wweiboid skemyjed uogeonp3 [ealuyoa| JEETER) eads]| 99 qs
padnPOy| Bugpodey swyg ‘Aejeg wepns|  obenues| 59 | av
peonpou| djewi|n sndwe) :uoljeanp3 Aepucdss}sod lagap| £601 | ay
paonpoAu| sasndwe) uo buidep pue Bupjows Jo uoniqiyoid|  ANEDoW| ¥651 | av
PEoNpOU| wesbold asiwold abajjon Aunwiwo) ejuwioyen obepues| €851 | av
paonpoiu] suognjsul [euoneanp3 :sapoy) JSalajul JO JoIU0D uelly[ 285l | av
"P3 JeybiH "wisy X weibold piemy ouejsIssy [euojeonpg pieng [euojeN|  19A WSY| 6261 | gV
"sdoiddy "wsy XX Weiboid Juawapiug Juels) [ Jejsuel] D07 -pi [B1oUeuld Juspmis zado| 6¥pL | gy
i e e | ¥31L - 391440 SHOTIONVHD JHL AT AINIVHL STI9 = e
gl (22l =i
suvis  [E[FIE iSRS Lo3rans NOHLY | g
= = 1)
AN E NS
SNOH puoes[asnoy Jsu14

9102/02/1 :uojssag aane|siba 91.0z-5102
xiyey Bunpoea) aape|sibion 040 sJ0|92uey? sebejjo) AYunwwon eluloes




€402

9l G1 | xuepy aanesiben
OAle) - 100l Sjeuss) [ X O | XXX X[ X {uonyisod ON) uoje}ipaiody :s8bsjjon Aunuiwo) Buy| g8elL | av
'p3 sjeuss X Ix[x]x]x Aouspisay JuapniS :uofieanp3 Aiepuodss)sod Jgnd euipaiy] o261 | av
pieH ‘sdoiddy “wsy X|x JoY Js1i4 eiwojie) uoneanp3 Alepuodas)sod dljgngd lagopl s¥EL | av
p3 ajeuss XIx[xx]x uolesuadiuog) J9oiO aANISXJ 10N PUB NSO seeg| /11 | gy
"sdoiday sjeusg X{x[x]x[x]x welbold 869)|09) o} Juswwwon Ale] spdng euipaiy| gLl | gy
EDEER X Ixfx]x[x sicjoeljuo) ashojdwauoy :sesAojdw3 palisseld|  zejezuos| 9ggl | gy
peH - 'sdosddy sjeles Xx]xfxfx]x seshoidw3 Arejodwa] ‘awn]-ued :sebejjon Aunwiuor) euipay| 010)L | Gy
‘sdolddy "wsy X|x 10V ausalg) 0y puog :sapljioed jooyag|  yBuueq,0l 8801 | av
peH ‘sdoddy ‘wsy x| x Wa)sAg Juslualgey sisyors | 8jels euipap] 966 | av
sajny ajeussg X|X|x|Xx Jousi 8bsjj0n Alunwwoy uoydwo) :sebejjon Auunwwos uosdo| 986 | gv
BAIIBU[ - J00[4 Sjeuag | X [ X | X [ X XX | X [ X {(woddng) uoisindx3 ‘uoisuadsng ‘[eaoway :absjjon Alunwiwon Swenimi 696 | gy
FEEEIES X [x]x[x]x {uoddng) yJomiaN paeds ybiH Z|-) :Abojouyda] uoieanp3 eueg| ¥€6 | av
pieH ‘sdouddy “wsy X|x suoieziuebi() juspnig :uonesnp3 [ealuyds] Jeared|  jeuucqol 916 | av
FERCRECER X|x[xlo[x $821A8(] JIUONO8|T 3jqedod :spuog |ooYas Al 288 | avy
PleH 'sdoiddy ‘wsy XX solejes asAojdw :Hn zepuewsH| /€8 | av
PieH ‘sdouddy “wsy XX suonenbay :seping Inoj| uopuay{ 9¢8 | av
PleH 'sdosddy “wisy x| x weibold Juels) [e7 ply [eioueUly JUBpNS gjpuog| 1€8 | av
anyoeuy| - Joold apeusg| | X X X x| x | x Joy uoieanp3 JaybiH ul yIno A SSASLICH 10} $§929hg wooig| 108 | av
pleH - ‘sdoiddy sjeusg XX |x|x|x|x {pepusiue 4 ‘voddng) juswdojanag |eucissajold s oiseq :safis|o) Aunwwon umil 024 ay
PIeH - ‘sdoiddy sjeusg XXX X[ XX sjyauaq ||ig |9 :ANIqI0NT SYOM [BD uewbb3| ¢y, | av
pleH "sdoiddy "wsy X|X $)207 100(] :Al9jes |00Y2S ppoq| 219 =
NEEEER X [x]xTxTx s10jonJsu| :sabg|jon) Ajlunwiio) mol[ oz9 | av
| % 7 9leuss X x[x|x]x dalysaofuaiddy auma| ozs ay
peH ‘sdoiddy ‘wsy XX sweiboldq AjunpoddQ papusix3 sbsjjor) Ajunwiwo? olofyl 06y | av
pleH “sdoiddy ‘wsy X[ x salbajeng jeuononnsuyy :uoeanp3 Alepuodasisod|-  jeuuoq,0l esy | gv
ploH ‘sdoiddy "wsy XEX (papuawe y ‘Yoddng) Jojesunos sueisjap sebsljon Aunwwosy| | UoIspeD| LZ¥ ay
pIeH sdoiddy ‘wsy XX {popuawe §| ‘woddng) weiboid Juels sisluan sonosey Uesslsp| ZOpueulsH| €6¢ ay
ARHEERE
Suvis  [SISRI2 ISIEI IS Lo3rans YOHLAV T8
NEEENEE
[esnol puedeg jasnop Jsild

9102/02/ :uolssag aApe|siba 91.02-5102
xujep Bunjoel] aayeisiba ao1yo s Joj|eourys sebajjoy APUNWWOY rvIUIOH|E)




gjoe

91 SI L XuIel saneisiBoT]

% J pUNGY 8q U3 SSSAIRUE BaNILIWICY SALESIDS] PUE S| 8Sa4] JO 591007

£229-12€ (916} ‘Npe02030(0)E[NUIEIET - SUONE[eY |EJUBWILISACS) BINGUIE]Y [NEY (JOB)I0S

‘pejuelb useq arey Aew uonelspisucoay "ssed Jou pip pue 100y 8U) U0 4O S3RIUIWIOD Ui pJealy sem [liq Y] = pajieq

"30Cr S,J0]|92LBYY) Ay} Aq payoel) 8q

O} BNUIUOO pUE SisAlem 81 SAIE33) PINOD INg ‘SaaRIWNg saneisiBa) ybnoiy fuinow aq Afjusuna jou Aewr ,pjaH, pereubisap ale jey} sjiq aLog

'Seulpeep sAue|siBa) 19au Jou pip 11 10 pe|[8aued sem buliesy )| ‘6joA & 0/m S3RILUWICD SU) Ul 1daY 8|l SALORLI BUY Ul pageld sem [Ig ay| = pleH

smels
9102 J0 Joy Jabpng ousyy 6Zg | 8S
9102 40 1oV Jabpng Jegap| 86SL | Ay
1obpng - 301440 SHOTIIINVHO FHL A9 03MAVNL ST
pleH ‘sdosddy ueg x| x Ishi| aleysiejoyos sje)g usplos) piy jeroueuld Juspnig|  bieqzueH| 162 | gs
pleH "sdosddy "wsy X[x[x]Pxx]x BILIOSUOY) Jeuoibay :Uo)esnp3 npy ua|y| o8/ | 43
peH 'sdosddy ‘uag X[ x Jinessy |enxag pue adey :uoheonp3 Alepuodss)sod ¥oo|g| 99 | 4s
pleH “sdoiddy wsy x[x [x]xx]x SJUNOLLY JLUBIL) :SWIRIB0.d |00UdS Jayy yoooueH| ¢y9 | €S
pieH “sdosddy ‘usg X| X wesbold Buiuier] pue juswAojdg ysai4en nq| 125 | 4s
pleH ‘sdoiddy uag X[ X justudinb3 AAeaH payijeny) :Uojexe | ued| osy | 4s
pleH "sdoiddy ueg x| x 19y S|00Y2S Ajjuntuwo?) eiulojed nal €or | 4s
pleH "sdoiddy ‘ueg x| x Sjuswubissy peouan( :sabe||0] Aunwiic) ello)es ued| ¢ | 8s
100]4 8jeuds x| x {yoddng) seiii0e4 uoieanp3 olqnd Aysiaalun-ustiebiapury, |l w11 as
pleH "sdoxddy “wsy X[x[x]x|x]x uoljeonp3 10} SUBOT JO UONAWNSSY :ply [RlOUBUI JuspnS Aspned| z9 as
'q % WSy X[xIx]x]x 1oy AjlunuoddQ pue uoneAcuU| BOI0PHOM [BISpa4 ezopusp| s as
P JaybiH "wsy X [x[x]x[x (poddng) piy [eoueuld :uojeonp3 A1epuodss)sog yoolg| i a3
peH “sdoiddy “wsy x[xIx[x]x]x YinoA is}so4 llesg| ¢l gs
pleH -sdoiddy ‘wsy xfx sweibold 80IAI9S [ESIOAIUN SUORRIUNLULLOOS]S | ealad| €051 | av
pleH ‘sdoiddy ‘wsy X[ X (uoddng) puog sapijioe uoleanp3 JsybiH fe| ¢epy) | gy
SAlJoBU| - Io0j Bleuag] I X | X | X XXX ]| X (uopisod oN) JuswwoY Agnd uoleNpaIDY sebaljo) Aunwwo) Buil| /6€1 ay
(e
S H e R Lo3rans ¥OHINY | T8
HAREE S NEE

[2SNaH PU09 |esiioH JsuId

910Z/02/) :uo|ssag aAne|sIio 9102-610Z
Xljep Bunjoel) sanejsiBa asyo s Jojjeoueys saba||0) AJunwiwos) eluioyjen







CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES

STATE LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

January 8, 2016

OVERVIEW

The Legislature was on recess from September 11, 2015, to January 4, 2016. The Governor introduced his
budget January 7, 2016. The next key date is January 15, 2016, when legislation introduced last year that
has a fiscal effect (cost) will have to pass the policy committee in the house that introduced the measure.
This means that bills on the matrix that were listed as two-year bills and were not heard last year must
pass in the Assembly Higher Education Committee, the Senate Education Committee or other appropriate
committee or move no further.

Because the Legislature operates in a two-year session, many of last year’s bills are still viable. Until key
dates pass in 2016, bills from 2015 still have a chance. Bills that were almost at the Governor’s desk, but
were pulled back before being sent to him, can move forward late in the legislative session. The bill
deadlmes apply to the bill number not the substance of the bill, so we have to be on alert for possible
“gut-and-amends” (bills that are amended with entirely new content) right up to the end of session. While
many of the two-year bills are still viable as “vehicles” for other subjects, we expect to see a number of
new bills mtroduced by the February 19, 2016, deadline. Persistence pays off in the Capitol, and many of
the same bill concepts have been reintroduced every year for the past several years. One of these
reintroduced bills may successfully pass because of a new committee chair, new staff, a new author, a
change in the economy, etc.

For details and copies of any bill, please contact the Governmental Relations Division of the Chancellor’s
Office or visit the Legisiative Counsel’s website at: http//www.leginfo.ca.gov or its new website at:

http//leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/. The new website allows you to compare prior versions of the measure,
review proposed changes in the law as amended, etc.

BILLS OF INTEREST

ACADEMIC PROGRAMS
* AB 288 (Holden) Public Schools: College and Career Access Pathways (CCAP)

Partnerships. AB 288 (Holden) encourages an expansion of vohmtary dual enrollment
partnerships by reducing fiscal penalties and policy barriers that currently limit such
collaborations. The bill authorizes a community college district and K~12 school district to enter
mto a formal CCAP partnership with the goal of developing seamless pathways from high school
to community college for career technical education or preparation for transfer, helping high
school students achieve college and career readiness, and improving high school graduation rates.
AB 288 (Holden) passed in the Senate Appropriations Committee with amendments to prevent
oversubscribed courses from being offered through the partnership.

o Position: Sponsor/Support

o Status: AB 288 (Holden) was signed nto law by the Governor.

o AB 542 (Wilk) Community Colleges: Early and Middle College High Schools. AB 542
(Wilk) exempts Early College High School (ECHS) and Middle College High School (MCHS)
students from the lowest priority enrollment consideration. The bill allows a community college
to claim state apportionments for MCHS and ECHS students enrolled in physical education
courses beyond the 5 percent statutory cap and exempts these students from the 10 percent cap

1|Page



regarding enroliment in community college summer courses.
o Status: AB 542 (Wik) was *held” in the Senate Appropriations Committee.

¢ AB 770 (Irwin) Community Colleges: Basic Skills and Innovation Strate gies. The Budget Act
included language from earlier versions of AB 770 (Irwin) to create the Community Colleges
Basic Skills Innovation Program. Following enactment of the State Budget, AB 770 (Irwin) was
amended to add clarifications to this new program regarding application criteria, administration,
and technical assistance.
o Status: AB 770 (Irwin) was “held” in the Senate Appropriations Committee.

¢ SB 172 (Liu) Pupil Testing: High School Exit Examination: Suspension. SB 172 (Liu)
suspends the requirement to pass the California High School Exit Exam (CAHSEE) as a
condition of receiving a high school diploma through the 2017-18 school year because the
CAHSEE exam is not aligned with the new Common Core State Standards, The CAHSEE
contract was suspended as of July 1, 2015, which left approximately 5,000 high school
“araduates” for the 2015 school year with no opportunity to take the test. This outcome resulted
in questions about the impact of SB 172 (L) on admission to community colleges, access to the
BOG Fee Waiver, and access to the Cal Grant and Pell programs. SB 172 (Liu) passedin the
Senate Appropriations Committee with amendments to authorize local education authorities to
award degrees without the exam requirement, and to add a sunset date.

o Status: SB 172 (L) was signed mto law by the Govemnor.

e SB 725 (Hancock) Pupil Testing: High School Exit Examination: Exemption. SB 725
{Hancock) applies to the 2015 high school graduating class and removes the requirement that
seniors pass the California High School Exit Examination as a condition of graduation from high
school if they have met all other requirements for high school graduation. The bill contains an
urgency clause allowing the provisions of this bill to take effect immediately.

o Status: SB 725 (Hancock) was signed into law by the Governor.

¢ SB 786 (Allen) Adult Education: Regional Consortia. SB 786 (Allen) provides that specified
joint powers authorities which provide adult career technical education be eligible for
Maintenance of Effort (MOE) funding through adult education.
o Status: SB 786 (Allen) was “held” in the Assembly Appropriations Commitiee.

CAMPUS CLIMATE/CAMPUS SAFETY
¢ AB 340 (Weber) Postsecondary Education: Campus Climate Report. AB 340 (Weber)
declares the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation requiring governing bodies of the higher
education systems to submit a report once every two years to the legislature on campus climate.
The Chancellor's Office report is contingent on information received from colleges.
o Position: Support
o Status: AB 340 (Weber) was vetoed by the Governor.
o Included in the Governor's veto message:
“While I understand the desire to create a more vibrant, intellectually serious and
inclusive campus environment at UC, CSU and the community colleges, each of their
governing boards has already taken steps aimed at achieving these important goals. ™

s AB 636 (Medina) Student Safety. AB 636 (Medina) authorizes postsecondary education
institutions to disclose the identity of a student or employee who is accused of a violent crime,
sexual assault, or hate crime to local law enforcement if the institution determines that the alleged
assailant represents a serious and ongoing threat to the safety of persons or the institution and if
the immediate assistance of police is necessary to contact or detain the assailant, AB 1433
(Gatto), signed into law last year, requires colleges to report serious crimes to local law

2|Page



enforcement if the crimes occur on campus or involve students or employees. While AB 1433
(Gatto) included language prohibiting the disclosure of the accused assailant’s identity to local
law enforcement if the victim declined to be identified, AB 636 (Medina) allows colleges to
wdentity the accused (not the victim) if the college determines that the accused assailant poses a
serious and ongoing threat to campus safety.

o Status: AB 636 (Medina) was signed into law by the Governor.

¢ AB 767 (Santiago) Community Colleges: Emergency Preparedness Standards. AB 767
(Santiago) requires the Chancellor's Office to update emergency preparedness standards by
January 1, 2017 and every 5 years thereafter and to consider including an active shooter response
plan.

o Status: AB 767 (Santiago) was signed into law by the Governor.

¢ AB 913 (Santiago) Student Safety. AB 913 (Santiago) expands written agreements between
colleges and local law enforcement agencies to clarify operational responsibilities for
mvestigations to include sexual assault and hate crimes.
o Status: AB 913 (Santiago) was signed into law by the Governor.

o AB 967 (Williams) Student Safety. AB 967 (Williams) requires the governing board of each
community college district to adopt and carry out a uniform process for disciplinary proceedings
relating to any claims of sexual assault.

o Position: Neutral
o Status: AB 967 (Williams) was vetoed by the Governor.

e AB 968 (Williams) Transcripts: Expulsion Note. AB 968 (Williams) requires the governing
board of each community college district to indicate on a student’s transcript when the student is
ineligible to reenroll due to suspension or expulsion for the period of time the student is ineligible

to reenroll
o Status: AB 968 (Williams) was vetoed by the Governor.

o Included in the Governor’s veto message:
“I don'tthink it is necessary at this point for the state to divectly insert itself into the
disciplinary and governing processes of all private nonprofit and public colleges in
California.”

* AB 969 (Williams) Community College: Removal, Suspension, Expulsion. AB 969
(Williams) authorizes a district to deny or permit conditional access to a student found
responsible for sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking, The bill would also
allow adistrict to require a student seeking admission to disclose any past expulsions for sexual
assault, domestic violence, dating violence or stalking; failure to do so may be considered by the
community college district in determining whether to grant admission.

o Posttion: Support
o Status: AB 969 (Williams) was placed in the Senate’s inactive file.

¢ SB 186 (Jackson) Community College Districts: Removal, Suspension, or Expulsion. SB 186
(Jackson) chrifies that state law does not prohibit districts from taking disciplinary action against
students for off campus behavior if the district is doing so to comply with federal law, such as the
Clery Act, Title IX, Violence Against Women Act, etc. SB 186 (Jackson) also adds sexual assault
to the list of “good cause™ reasons to remove, suspend, or expel a student and defines sexual
assault for those purposes. The definitions used in this bill are those provided by the White
House’s Task Force on Campus Sexual Assault.

o Position: Support
o Status: SB 186 (Jackson) was signed into law by the Governor.

J|Page



FACULTY

AB 626 (Low) Community College: Employees. AB 626 (Low) requires the California
Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office to convene a group of stakeholders on or before July 1,
2016, and every four years thereafier, to develop recommendations on funding strategies to
enable the community colleges to achieve the 75 percent standard and increase district
participation i the support of part-time faculty. The bill requires the Chancellor's Office to report
these recommendations to the Legislature.

o Status: AB 626 (Low) did not meet legislative deadlines.

AB 1010 (Medina) Community Colle ges: Part-Time, Temporary Employees. AB 1010
(Medina) specifies minimum standards for the treatment of part-time, temporary faculty to be met
by comnumnity college collective bargaining agreements. The bill urges commumity college
districts without a collective bargaining agreement in effect as of January 1, 2016 to negotiate
with the exclusive representatives for part-time, temporary faculty regarding the terms and
conditions required by the bill.

o Status: AB 1010 (Medina) was “held” in the Senate Appropriations Committee.

FINANCE AND FUNDING

SB 605 (Gaines) Community Colleges: Nonresident Tuition Exemption for Nevada
Students. SB 605 (Gaines) exempts up to 200 students in any academic year from paying non-
resident tuition fees if they attend the Lake Tahoe Community College (LTCC) and reside in
certain communities in Nevada and permits the LTCC to count these persons as resident full-time
equivalent students (FTES) for purposes of determiing apportionment funding, This bill makes
these provisions contingent upon the Board of Governors of the California Community Colleges
entering into an mterstate attendance agreement with the Nevada System of Higher Education
providing reciprocal rights to California residents attending Western Nevada College.

o Position: Support

o Status: SB 605 (Gaines) was signed into law by the Governor.

GOVERNANCE

AB 404 (Chiu) Community Colleges: Accreditation. AB 404 (Chi) requires the California
Community College Chancellor’s Office to survey all 113 community colleges, regarding the
evaluation of the current regional community college accrediting agency. The survey will be used
by the Chancellor’s Office to develop a report that reflects a system-wide evaluation of the
regional accrediting agency based on the criteria used to determine an accreditor’s status. The
report will be sent to the U.S. Department of Education and the National Advisory Committee on
Institutional Quality and Integrity.

o Status: AB 404 (Chin) was signed into law by the Governor.

AB 986 (Gipson) Community Colleges: Compton Community College District. AB 986
(Gipson) requires the Chancellor to report to the Legislature concerning the priorities identified in
each Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team report and to provide a response on how the
Chancellor intends to resolve the issues identified m the report in a timely manner.
o Status: AB 986 (Gipson) passed in the Assembly and was sent to the Senate but was not
heard in a policy committee in time to meet legislative deadlines.

AB 1385 (Ting) Community College: Accreditation. AB 1385 (Ting) prohibits the accrediting
agency from imposing a special assessment on commumity colleges to pay for the accrediting
agency's legal fees for any lawsuit unless there has been an affirmative vote of the majority of the
chief executive officers, or their designees, of all of the community colleges. The bill would

4|Page



excuse compliance with this prohibition if the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges
determines that the accrediting agency’s compliance would violate federal law.
o Status: AB 1385 (Ting) was placed in the Senate’s inactive file.

AB 1397 (Ting) Community College: Accreditation. AB 1397 (Ting) enacts the California
Community Colleges Fair Accreditation Actof 2015. It requires that at least 50 percent of each
visiting accreditation team from the accrediting agency for the California Community Colleges be
composed of academic personnel as defined in the bill The bill prohibits persons with a conflict
of interest from serving on a visiting accreditation team. The bill requires the accrediting a gency
to conduct the meetings of its decision-making body to ensure the ability of members of the
public to attend those meetings. AB 1397 (Ting) also requires the accrediting agency to preserve
all documents generated during an accreditation-related review. AB 1397 (Ting) requires the
agency's accreditation-related decisions to be based on written, published standards in accordance
with state and federal statutes and regulations.

o Status: AB 1397 (Ting) was placed in the Senate’s inactive file.

SB 42 (Liu) Commission on Higher Education Performance. Although Governor Brown
deleted funding for the California Postsecondary Education Commission (CPEC) years ago,
statutes referring to CPEC remain. SB 42 (L) revises these statutcs and creates the California
Office of Higher Education Performance and Accountability. The executive director of the
proposed office would be appointed by the Governor and subject to confirmation by the Senate. A
six-member advisory board would be established with three members each appointed by the
Assembly Speaker and Senate Rules Committee. SB 42 (Liu) excludes representatives from
postsecondary institutions from serving on the advisory board. SB 42 (L) passed out of the
Assembly Appropriations Committee with amendments that stipulate the advisory board
members will not be paid; that the Assembly Higher Education Chair and Senate Education
Committee Chair be appointed to the advisory board; that require an anmal report to the
Governor on higher education; that require an annual performance review of the executive
director; and that require the office to review cross segmental initiatives for future study.
o Position: Concern
o Status: SB 42 (L) was vetoed by the Governor,
o Included in the Governor’s veto message:
“While there is much work to be done to improve higher education, I amnot convinced
we need a new office and an advisory board, especially of the kind this bill proposes, to
get the job done.”

SCA 1 (Lara) University of California: Legislative Control. SCA 1 proposes an amendment
to the State Constitution to repeal the constitutional provisions relating to the University of
California and the regents. This measure subjects the university and the regents to legislative
control as may be provided by statute. SCA 1 prohibits the Legislature from enacting any law that
restrams academic freedom or imposes educational or curricular requirements on students. A
Senate Constitutional Amendment, or SCA, is a measure that places an initiative on the statewide
ballot to change the California Constitution and it is not subject to the same legislative deadlines
as Assembly or Senate Bills.

o Status: SCA 1 was referred to the Senate Education and Elections and Constitutional

Amendments Committees.

MISCELLANEQOUS

AB 176 (Bonta) Data Collection. AB 176 (Bonta) requires the segments of higher education to
post specified data on Asian and Pacific Islander (APT) subgroups by July 2016 and to expand the
number of subgroups after the 2020 Census. The bill also imposes specified data collection
requirements on the Department of Managed Health Care.

5|Page



o Position: Support

o Status: AB 176 (Bonta) was vetoed by the Governor.

o Included in the Governor’s veto message:
“CSU, community colleges, and UC already provide many ways in which to self-identify,
including choosing among several ethnic identities. In the case of CSU, thereare 50
choices for API applicants alone. Codifying the collection and reporting of at least 12
API groups several years into the future appears unnecessary, or at least premature.”’

AB 653 (Levine) Community College Contracting Practices. AB 653 (Levine) authorizes
community college districts to share contracts with University of California (UC) and California
State University (CSU) by adding clarifying language to statute. This will provide for more
efficient contracting practices and has the potential for cost savings for all three segments.

o Position: Support

o Status: AB 653 (Levine) was signed mto law by the Governor.

AB 798 (Bonilla) College Textbook Affordability Act. AB 798 (Bonilla) seeks to lower
textbook expenses for students by creating incentives for campuses to use Open Educational
Resources (OER). AB 798 (Bonilla) provides that the California OER Council may utilize its
funding as designated in SB 1052 of 2012 to provide grants to community college and CSU
campuses which, with their local academic senates, develop and submit plans to increase the use
of OER. Campuses that reach benchmarks will be eligible for a bonus grant. The program would
be administered by the California OER Council, composed of representatives of academic senates
from all three segments.

o Position: Support

o Status: AB 798 (Bonilla) was signed into law by the Governor.

AB 963 (Bonilla) Teachers' Retirement Law. AB 963 (Bonilla) revises the definition of
creditable service for purposes of the Defined Benefit Program and the Cash Balance Benefit
Program,

o Status: AB 963 (Bonilla) was signed into law by the Governor.

STUDENT SERVICES

AB 801 (Bloom) Success for Homeless Youth in Higher Education Act. AB 801 (Bloom)
establishes priority enrollment for homeless students and makes them eligible for a Board of
Governors fee waiver. A homeless student must be verified as being without a residence in the
last six years. Thehill also establishes a liaison for homeless students that can be a current
employee, rather than requiring colleges to hire a new staff person. AB 801 (Bloom) passed in the
Senate Appropriations Committee with amendments to remove ongoing cost pressure.

o Status: AB 801 (Bloom) was placed in the Senate’s mactive file.

AB 1016 (Santiago) Public Postsecondary Education: Student Transfer Achievement
Reform Act. AB 1016 (Santiago) would require the Chancellor’s Office to report to the
Legislature on the status of each community college’s compliance- with statutory requirements
related to creating Associate Degrees for Transfer.
o Position: Support
Status: AB 1016 (Santiago) was signed into law by the Governor.

AB 1366 (Lopez) Public Postsecondary Education: Dream Resource Centers. AB 1366
(Lopez) authorizes the governing boards of community college districts to designate a Dream
Resource Liaison on each campus to assist AB 540 students with information about financial aid
and academic opportunities. AB 1366 (Lopez) passedin the Senate Appropriations Committee
with amendments to remove the mandate.

6|Page



o Status: AB 1366 (Lopez) was placed in the Senate’s inactive file.

TUITION, FEES, FINANCTAL AID

AB 25 (Gipson) Financial Aid: Cal Grant Program: Renewal. AB 25 (Gipson) requires the
Student Aid Commission to establish an appeal process for an otherwise qualified institution that
fails to satisfy the 3-year cohort default rate and graduation rate requirements under the Cal Grant

program.
o Status: AB 25 (Gipson) was signed into law by the Governor.

AB 82 (Garcia) US Selective Service: Financial Aid Ineligibility. Similar to last year’s AB
2201 (Chévez), AB 82 (Garcia) establishes a program through the Department of Motor Vehicles
to register males between 18 and 26 years old for Selective Service when they submit an
application for an original or a renewal of a driver’s license. The bill’s statutes would only be in
effect if the Selective Service System provided funding for the project. AB 82 (Garcia) passed out
of the Senate Appropriations Committee with amendments requiring the registrant to “opt-in”
instead of asking to “opt-out.” The amendments to AB 82 (Garcia) were significant and prompted
the sponsor to ask the Governor to veto the bill if it reached his desk.

o Position: Support

o Status: AB 82 (Garcia) was vetoed by the Governor.

AB 449 (Irwin) Income Taxation: Savings Plans: Qualified ABLE Program. AB 449 (Irwin)
partially conforms state personal income tax law to the federal Achieving a Better Life
Experience (ABLE) Act 0f 2014. ABLE programs help students with disabilities and their
families save money by significantly expanding the definition of qualified education expenses,
thus ensuring that ABLE account earnings and withdrawals for qualified expenses are not
included in a student’s income for purposes of state personal income tax reporting each year. AB
449 (Irwin) implements the state ABLE Act program, and directs the State Treasurer to
administer ABLE accounts on behalf of qualified Californians. AB 449 (Irwin) contains
provisions that were removed from the final version of SB 324 (Pavely) to prevent conflicts. The
final versions of these two complementary measures provide California with a comprehensive
statute that conforms to the federal ABLE Act. AB 440 (Irwin) is contingent upon the enactment
of SB 324 (Pavely), meaning both bills must become law to be in effect.

o Status: AB 449 (Irwin) was signed into law by the Govemnor.

AB 573 (Medina) Student Financial Aid: Corinthian Colleges, Inc. (CCI) Closures. AB 573
(Medina) Student Financial Aid: Corinthian Celleges, Inc. (CCI) Closures. AB 573
(Medina) provides financial and other educational assistance to students affected by the April 27,
20135 closure of CCI campuses in California, including Heald, Everest, and WyoTech campuses.
The bill restores up to two years of Cal Grant and National Guard Education Assistance awards
for Heald College students who received awards in the 2013-14 or 2014-15 academic years and
withdrew from their college programs between July 1,2014, and April 27, 2015.
o Position: Neutral
o Status: AB 573 (Medina) was vetoed by the Governor.
o Included in the Governor’s veto message:
“While the bill's provisions to extend Cal Grant eligibility for Heald students are well-
intentioned, I am not comfortable creating new General Fund costs outside of the budget
process, particularly given the Cal Grant augmentations already included in this year's
budget.”

AB 721 (Medina) Student Financial Aid: Private Student Loans. AB 721(Medina) requires
community colleges to comply with federal student loan disclosure requirements, including
notifying students if a college does not participate in the federal loan program, advising students

7|Page



that they may be eligible for federalloans at other community colleges, and providing students
with information regarding the California Student Aid Commission’s website and the Federal
Student Aid web link on the U.S. Department of Education’s website.

o Position: Neutral

o Status: AB 721 (Medina) was signed mto law by the Governor.

AB 1091 (E. Garcia) Student Financial Aid: Cal Grant Program. AB 1091 (E. Garcia)
authorizes the California Student Aid Commission (CSAC) to require public schools and school
districts to electronically submit verification of high school graduation. AB 1091 (E. Garcia)
would also require CSAC to develop a standardized form for electronic submission of GPA
information. AB 1091 (E. Garcia) builds upon previous legislation, AB 2160 (Ting, 2014), that
required all public schools and districts to electronically submit student GP A information to
CSAC. If AB 1091 (E. Garcia) becomes law, the electronic verification of high school graduation
would be added to the same standardized form used for GP A information. Recent research
confirms that these practices are highly effective and would allow many more students to
complete their financial aid applications in a timely manner.

o Position: Support

o Status: AB 1091 (E. Garcia) was signed into law by the Governor.

SB 150 (Nguyen) Personal Income Tax: Exclusion: Student Loan Debt. SB 150 (Nguyen)
amends the state personal income tax code to exclude from gross income m the amount of student
loans that are forgiven for eligble students who were enrolled at Corinthian schools on or after
January 1, 2015,

o Position: Support

o Status: SB 150 (Nguyen) was signed into law by the Governor.

SB 324 (Pavley) Income Taxation: Savings Plans: ABLE Program. SB 324 (Pavley) partially
conforms state personal income tax law to the federal Achieving a Better Life Expericnce
(ABLE) Act of 2014. ABLE programs help students with disabilities and their families save
money as a result of an expanded defition of qualified education expenses, thus ensuring that
ABLE account earnings and withdrawals for qualified expenses are not included in a student’s
income for purposes of state personal income tax reporting each year. This bill creates the ABLE
ActBoard, specifies the composition of Board membership, and expands the defmition of a
qualified education expense. The expanded definition includes: the full cost of housing and food,;
transportation; employment trainmg and support; computers, assistive technology and personal
support services; health prevention and welness; financial management and administrative
services; legal fees; oversight and monitoring; and funeral and burial services. Some of the
provisions in SB 324 (Pavley) were removed to prevent conflicts with AB 449 (Irwin). The final
versions of these two complementary measures provide California with a comprehensive statute
that conforms to the federal ABLE Act. SB 324 (Pavley) is contingent upon the enactment of AB
449 (Irwin), meaning both bills must become law to be in effect.

o Position: Support

o Status: SB 324 (Pavley) was signed into law by the Governor.

VETERANS

AB 1361 (Burke) Student Financial Aid Cal Grant Program: Veterans. AB 1361 (Burke)
eliminates the age limit of 28 years old for veterans applying for the California Community
College Transfer Cal Grant Entitlement Program. Itis sponsored by the California Student Aid
Commission.

o Position: Support

o Status: AB 1361 (Burke) was vetoed by the Governor.

o Included in the Governor’s veto message:

8|Page



"I am not comfortable creating new General Fund costs outside of the budget process,
particularly given the Cal Grant augmentations already included in this year's budget.”

¢ AB 1401 (Baker) Veterans Student Financial Aid. AB 1401 (Baker) reinstates expired
provisions of state law that requires financial aid information, including the Board of Governors
(BOG) fee waiver and the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) to be made
available to eachmember of the California National Guard, the State Military Reserve, and the
Naval Militia who do not have a baccalaureate degree.
o Position: Support
o Status: AB 1401 (Baker) was signed into law by the Governor.

* SB 81 (Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review) Postsecondary Education: Budget Trailer
Bill. During this legislative session, two bills by Assembly Member Chévez, AB 13 and AB 27,
were introduced 1o align state law with the federal law known as the Veterans Access, Choice,
and Accountability Actof2014 (VACA). VACA requires the state's public postsecondary
educational institutions to exempt qualifying nonresident veterans and covered individuals from
paying nonresident tuition and fees. Because the University of California (UC) has autonomy
through the state Constitution and authority to setits fees, UC was able to address compliance
with VACA by amending their Educational Policy through the UC Board of Regents. The
California Community Colleges (CCC) and the California State University (CSU) do not have the
same authority to set fees. Therefore, while the CCC Board of Govemors supported prior
legislation to provide instate tuition to veterans and continued that precedent by supporting AB 13
and AB 27, without a change in state law VACA would have prevented the US Veterans
Administration from providing GI Bill education benefits to veterans attending CCC and CSU.

While AB 13 and AB 27 were going through the legislative process, SB 81 was introduced as a
budget trailer bill. SB 8! included an addition to Education Code to address the issue of aligning
state law with VACA to authorize and require districts to charge instate tuition to individuals
covered by VACA. SB 81 also allows the colleges to count students affected by VACA as
California residents for the purposes of state funding. SB 81 was signed by the Governor as part
of the budget bill package on June 24, 2015 and was effective immediately upon signature.
However, as stated in VACA, SB 81 applies for terms beginning on or after July 1, 2015.
Assembly Member Chavez may now use AB 13 and AB 27 for other purposes.

o Position: Support

o Status: SB 81 was signed into law by the Governor.

ADVOCATES LIST SERVE
Government Relations information is routinely distributed using the list serve:

ADVOCATES@LISTSERV.CCCNEXT NET.

If youhave not already subscribed you are welcome to join. Please follow theinstructions below:

To subscribe send an c-mail from the address to be subscribed to LISTSERV@LISTSERV.CCCNEXT NET and put
SUBSCRIBE ADVOCATES in the body of a BLANK, NON-HTML e-mail. NO SUBJECT OR SIGNATURES.

To unsubscribe from the listserv, send e-mail from the subscribed address to:
LISTSER V@LISTSERV.CCCNEXT NET and put UNSUBSCRIBE NETADM IN in the body of a BLANK, NON-
HTM L e-mail. NO SUBJECT OR SIGNATURES.

9|Page






CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGIES

|'n_'ill._'l‘.t] {'_ 1+ CUIItIrLCGInn H{_'|;‘llic:11'--

January 8, 2016
OVERVIEW

The congressional committee hearing process for policy legislation and the federal budget moves ata much
slower pace than the legislative process at the state level. As a result, the status of bills may not change for
months. Disagreements and posturing during the federalbudget process often result in “contimzing
resolutions™ (CR) that maintam the prior fiscal year's funding levels, setting aside major changes proposed
earlier in the year. On September 30, 2015, the last day of the federal fiscal year, the federal government
avoided a shutdown by passing a CR that only funded the government through December 11, 2015. On
October 26, 2015, outgoing House Speaker John Boehner announced he had reached an agreement—privately
negotiated with House Minority Leader Nancy Pelosi, Senate Majority Leader Mitch McConnell and Senate
Minority Leader Harry Reid—submitting a tentative budget agreement. The budget agreement increased
federal spending by $80 billion over two years and would be divided equally between defense and domestic
programs. The federal government passed another CR that extended the December 11, 2015 deadline. The
House and Senate subsequently adopted an Omnibus Appropriations Act, which President Obama signed on
December 18, 2015. The $1.1 trillion funding bill will keep the government running until September 30,
2016.

Reauthorization of the Ele mentary and Se condary Education Act (ESEA)

On December 2,2015, the U.S. House of Representatives voted and passed a bill, the Every Student Succeeds
Act (ESSA), to replace the No Child Left Behind law (NCLB) and reauthorize the Elementary and Secondary
Education Act(ESEA). The bill subsequently passedin the Senate and was presented to the President on
December 9, 2015. President Obama signed ESSA into law on December 10, 2015. Unlike NCLB, signed
into law by President George W. Bush in 2002, ESSA gives more autonomy to states and does not provide a
single definition of proficiency, leaving each state to develop its own metrics to measure improvement. The
passage of ESSA and movement on the reauthorization of ESEA signals that there may also be movement on
the reauthorization of the Higher Education Act.

The Department of Education to Provide Federal Pell Grant Funds to Dual Enrollment Stude nts

In October 2015, the U.S. Department of Education announced that it would be launching an experiment,
granting access to Federal Pell Grants for high school students enrolled in college courses for credit through
dual enrollment. The Department’s goal is to expand access to college coursework and promote academnic
success [or low-mcome and first-generation college students. Research has shown that dual enrollment can
lead to better grades in high school, increased enroliment in college following high school, higher rates of
persistence in college, greater credit accumulation, and increased rates of credential attainment. Community
colleges offer over 70 percent of the dual enrollment courses taken by high school students nationwide.

On November 3, 2015 the Department released a Federal Register Notice, inviting Title IV -eligible
institutions of higher education, in partnership with one or more public secondary schools or local education
agencies, to apply to participate in the dual-enrollment experiment. The experiment is expected to benefit up
to 10,000 students across the country with the Department investing up to $20 million in the 2016-17 award
year will. More information and a Fact Sheet can be found on the Department’s website:
hitp//www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/fact-sheet-department-education-launches-experiment-provide-
federal-pell-grant-funds-high-school-students-taking-college-courses-credit.

Education Secretary Arne Duncan Steps Down in December

Education Secretary Arne Duncan has announced that he will step down from his post in December 2015.
Duncan is an original member President Obama’s cabinet and came with him to Washington from Chicago,

1|Page



where he served as the city's schools chief. President Obama has selected Deputy Secretary of Education John
B. King, Jr. to replace Secretary Duncan. Dr. King is the Senior Advisor Delegated Duties of Deputy
Secretary of Education, a position he assumed in January 2015.

Dr. King oversees all preschool-through-12th-grade education policies, programs and strategic initiatives, as
well as the operations of the Department, which has more than 4,000 employees and a budget of more than
$60 billion. He also oversees the Department’s work leading cross-agency collaboration for President Obama's
My Brother's Keeper task force, which seeks to address persistent opportunity gaps faced by boys and young
men of color and ensure that ail young people are able to reach their full potential

Prior to his arrival at the Department, Dr, King had served since 2011 as the commissioner of education for
the state of New York. In that role, he served as chief executive officer of the State Education Department and
as president of the University of the State of New York, overseeing the State's elementary and secondary
schools (serving 3.1 million students), public, independent and proprietary colleges and universities, libraries,
museums, and numerous other educational institutions.

Secretary Duncan's departure means Agriculture Secretary Tom Vilsack will be the sole remaining Cabinet-
level secretary who has been with President Obama since 2009 (Office of Management and Budget Director
Shaun Donovan started in 2009 as his Housing and Urban Development secretary).

Accreditation Reform

The U.S. Department of Education took action in November to influence the institutional accreditation
process through a variety of means, including administrative action and legislative proposals. The
Department’s stated purpose is to require accrediting agencies to place greater emphasis on student outcomes,
including graduation rates and job placement. The Department’s executive actions also aim to increase
transparency in the accreditation process. The Department will publish each accreditor’s standards for
evaliating student outcomes and post online all publicly releasable portions of accreditor’s decision letters.

The Department’s legislative proposals include a recommendation that Congress repeal the statutory
prohibition on its ability to setand enforce expectations regarding student achievement standards in accreditor
recognition. As aresult of the sudden closure of Corinthian Colleges in April 2015, the Department also
recommends that Congress establish recognition standards that require accreditors to request more complete
teach-out plans from high-risk institutions and, to shield students and taxpayers, ensure that there are
resources available to cover the costs of executing such teach-out plans. More information and a factsheet can
be found on the Department’s website: https//www.ed.gov/accreditation?src=rn

White House Announces Changes for FAFSA

The Obama Administration anmounced use of “Prior-Prior Year” tax information for the Free Application for
Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) starting in October of 2016. This means that students will be able to submit a
FAFSA earlier, and more FAFSA filers will be able to use the IRS data retrieval tool. Presently, students and
families are often unable import their tax information into the FAFSA because their prior year tax information
is unavailable. This change will make it easier for students and families to file a FAFSA. A fact sheet on the
FAFSA changes may be viewed here: https.//studentaid. ed gov/sa/sites/default/files/fafsa-changes-17-18.pdf

COMMUNITY COLLEGES BILLS OF INTEREST

Campus Climate and Safety

HR 2680: HALT Campus Sexual Violence Act

2|Page



The Hold Accountable and Lend Transparency on Campus Sexual Violence Actor the HALT Campus Sexual
Violence Actamends the Department of Education Organization Act to require the Department of Education
to make publicly available on its website:

» alist of the institutions of higher education (THEs) under investigation, sanctions or investigation
findings, and a copy of program reviews and resolution agreements
*+ the letter terminating the Department’s monitoring of such agreements

The bill also amends the Clery Act to direct the Department to develop a biennial sexual violence climate
survey and include statistics from the survey in the annval campus security report provided to current and
prospective students and employees. It would allow an individual to allege a violation of the Clery Actin a
judicial proceeding and increase the maximum penalty for substantially misrepresenting the mumber, location,
or nature of the crimes required to be reported under the Clery Act. Lastly, the bill would make changes to the
annual statement THEs prepare regarding their policies on domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault
and stalking, and would direct the Departments of Education and Justice to create a joint interagency Campus
Sexual Violence Task Force.

8. 590: Campus Accountability and Safety Act

This bill by Senator Claire McCaskill (D-Missouri) and co-sponsored by a bi-partisan group of 12 Senators
will establish new campus resources and support services for student survivors, ensure minimum training
standards for on-campus personnel, create new transparency requirements, require a uniform discipline
process and coordination with law enforcement, and establish enforceable Title IX penalties and stiffer
penalties for Clery Act violations. This bill was referred to the Senate Committee on Health, Education,
Labor and Pensions.

S.706: Survivor Outreach and Support Campus Act

Senator Barbara Boxer (D-CA) mtroduced the Survivor Outreach and Support on Campus Act (S.0.8S.
Campus Act). The legislation would require every institution of higher education that receives federal funding
to designate an independent advocate for campus sexual assault prevention and response. This advocate
would be responsible for ensuring that survivors of sexual assault — regardless of whether they decide to
report the crime — have access to: emergency and follow-up medical care, guidance on reporting assaults to
law enforcement, medical forensic or evidentiary exams, crisis intervention, and ongoing counseling and
assistance throughout the process. Congresswoman Susan Davis (D-San Diego) introduced H.R.1490, a
version of this bill in the House.

Tuition, Fees, Financial Aid

S.1716 and H.R. 2962: America’s College Promise Act of2015

Senator Tammy Baldwin (D-WI) and Congressman Bobby Scott (D-VA) introduced legislation, S. 1716 and
H.R. 2962, modeled after President Obama’s America’s College Promise proposal. These bills would make
two years of community college free through a federal-state partnership. Federal grants would be awarded to
states that agree to waive community college resident tuition and fees for all eligible students. The federal
mvestment in the program would be $79.7 billion over the next 10 years; however, no source of revenue has
beenidentified to cover the cost, States would be required to commit to Mamtenance of Effort equal to or
exceeding their average spending per full-time equivalent student at institutions of public higher education for
the three preceding years and contribute 25 percent of the average community college resident tuition and fees
per student in all states in the 2016-2017 award year.

S. 60: Eligibility for Postsecondary Education Benefits

S. 60 by Senator David Vitter (R-LA). This bill would prohibit states from offering in-state tuition to
undocumented immigrants unless they offer n-state tuition to all Americans. The author contends that 15
states have exploited a loophole in federal immigration policy to extend in-state tuition to undocumented
immigrants. States are currently prohibited from grantmg postsecondary education benefits to undocumented

3|Page



immigrants on the basis of residency. However, using different criteria, such as graduation from an in-state
high school (similar to California’s AB 540), states have been granting in-state tuition regardless of
immigration status. If enacted, this bill would force states to either grant in-state tuition to Americans from
every U.S. state or deny in-state tuition to undocumented immigrants that are currently considered residents.

HR 1507: Investing in States to Achieve Tuition Equality for Dreamers Act 0f2015 or the IN STATE
Actof2015

The IN STATE Act of 2015, sponsored by Congressman Polis (D-CO), would amend title IV (Student
Assistance) of the Higher Education Actof 1965 (HEA) to direct the Secretary of Education to allot grants to
states to offer Dreamer students in-state tuition and expand their access to in-state financial aid. This bill is
similar to its Senate version: S.796 IN-STATE for Dreamers Act of 2015.

HR 1959: College Options for DREAMers Act

This bill sponsored by Congressman Hinojosa (D-TX) would amend the HEA to provide Dreamer students
with access to student financial aid. This bill is identical to the Senate measure S. 1059 College Options for
DREAMers Act

HR 1956: Pell Grant Protection Act

This bill would amend the HEA to ensure funding for the Federal Pell Grant program by removing the
program from the congressional discretionary appropriations process. This measure is identical to the Senate
bill: S 1060 Pell Grant Protection Act.

HR 1958: Year-Round Pell Grant Restoration Act

Sponsored by Congressman Hinojosa, HR 1958 would amend the HEA allow eligible students to receive
additional Federal Pell Grants for payment periods that are not otherwise covered by their Federal Pell Grant
award for that academic year. This bill is identical to the Senate measure S1062 Year-Round Pell Grant
Restoration Act.

S.1102: Protect Student Borrowers Act 0f2015
Sponsored by Senator Reed (D-RI) this bill would amend title IV of the HEA to require institutions

participating in the Federal Direct Loan program to accept risk sharing requirements. The House version of
this measure is HR 2364 Protect Student Borrowers Act of 2015.

S.1373: College for All Act
Sponsored by Senator Sanders (I-VT), the College for All Act would amend the HEA to eliminate tuition and

required fees atpublic institutions of higher education by creating a grant program funded by a federal-state
partnership.

Workforce Training

HR 1503: Community College Energy Training Act 0f2015
This bill would require the Secretary of Labor to carry out a joint sustanable energy workforce training and

education program. It also appropriates $100,000,000 for each of the fiscal years 2016 through 2020. Not less
than one-half of these funds shall be awarded to community colleges with existing sustainability programs
that lead to certificates, credentials, or degrees in one or more of the industries and practices.

HR 2224: Youth Access to American Jobs Act 0f2015
This bill, sponsored by Congressman Rick Larsen (D-WA), would direct the Secretary of Education to award
grants to 10 partnerships between a local educational agency (LEA), a community college, and a state
apprentice program to carry out a program for students to:
1) take science, technology, engineermg, and mathematics (STEM) courses and STEM-focused Career
and Technical Education courses a during grades 11 and 12 ata secondary school that prepare them

for community college;

4|Page



2) enroll in a course of study related to the manufacturing field at the community college upon
graduating from the secondary school;, and

3) emroll, fora two-year period, in the state apprenticeship program or the joint-labor management
training program upon receiving an associate's degree from the community college.

Miscellaneous

HR 182: Centralized Report of Veteran Enrollment

H.R. 182 by Congressman Ken Calvert (CA-42) would streamline the Department of Veterans Affairs (VA)
processes for community colleges that have multiple campuses. Currently, the VA requires community
colleges to certify that their veteran students are enrolled for a specific number of classes before the VA will
disperse student benefits. These rules must be updated to account for multi-college Commumity College
Districts, such as Riverside Community College District (RCCD). Without such an update, veterans that take
classes at a multi-college District see their benefits delayed while colleges and the VA complete and shuffle
unnecessary paperwork. H.R. 182 would direct the Secretary of Veterans Affairs to permit the centralized
reporting of veteran enrollment by certam groups, districts, and consortiums of educational institutions.

HR 937: Dual Enrollme nt Grants

Congressman Ruben Hinojosa (D-TX 15) introduced The Fast Track to College Actof 2015, The bill
authorizes the Secretary of Education to award matching six-year grants to local educational agencies (LEAS)
that partner with mstitutions of higher education (IHEs) to establish or support dual enrollment programs,
such as early college high schools, that allow secondary school students to earn credit simultaneously toward
a secondary school diploma and a postsecondary degree or certificate.

S. 649: Higher Education Reform and Opportunity Act 0f2015

The Higher Education Reform and Opportunity (HERO) Act would allow all 50 states and the District of
Columbia to develop their own systems of accrediting educational institutions, curricula, apprenticeships, job-
training programs, and individual courses, all of which would be eligible to receive federal student loan
money.

5/Page






cﬁ_AJ

Academic Senate
for Catifornia Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOILE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

SUBJECT: Academic Academy Month: February | Year: 2016
IemNe IV. B .
Attachment: no
DESIRED The Academic Senate will make Urgent: ves
OUTCOME: recommendations and consider approval of Time Requested: 20 min
theme and draft program for the 2016 Academic
Academy.
CATEGORY: Action or Discussion TYPE OF BOARD
CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Ginni May/Cleavon Smith Consent/Routine
First Reading
- STAFF REVIEW ! Julie Adams - | Action X
Information

BACKGROUND:

The Equity Diversity and Action Committee (EDAC) and the Transfer, Articulation, and Student
Success Committee (TASSC) are planning the 2016 Academic Academy.

We are looking for approval of the following draft so that we can begin contacting the
presenters.

THEME: Living a Culture of Equity, Student Success, and Empowerment.: Implementing and
Embedding Equity Across the College.

You’ve got your plans...so now what?

The Student Success and Support Program and Student Equity Plans gave way to a lot of
scrambling in our colleges since the new mandates were first announced. In the best case
scenarios, faculty, administrators, staff and students were meeting several times throughout the
fall term to examine data from the previous year’s plans and to review proposals for equity-
minded initiatives the college could implement and/or improve in order to ensure success and
achievement for all of our students. To our credit, colleges were energized and conversations
about student demographics and success that were once marginalized came to the center of
college planning and budgeting discussions. While there was a lot of confusion about the format
and evaluation of the plans, what was not confusing was the system-wide commitment to
transformative educational services and instruction for each and every one of our students to
foster a climate where success was the overwhelming norm.

Then came the hard part. In this case, the devil has not been in the details; the devil has been in
the disciplined implementation of the details of our plans throughout the entire college body.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.

1




In this institute, the Academic Senate for the California Community Colleges will host
interactive and experiential workshops where presenters and panelists will engage attendees with
activities to take back to their colleges that will promote a disciplined approach to seeing our
colleges living and acting on the hope expressed in our plans and in our students’ continued
arrival at our doors. In addition to the workshops and keynote-led activities will be opportunities
for teams from the colleges to work together to reflect on the details of their plans and design
intentional and deliberate means of evaluation to ensure accountability. Also during this institute
educators from our California Community Colleges will have the opportunity to learn how the
ASCCC can provide resources, support and communities of practice so that this institute lives on
long after the weekend is over.

Proposal Categories:
Assessment: Effective Practices of Pre-Assessment Processes. Bridge Programs. Test Preparation.

Basic Skills: Sustaining Learning Communities. Start to Finish Models of Basic Skills and Student
Services. Panel Review of the E-Resource on Basic Skiils Compietion. The Use of Supplemental
Instruction, Tutoring, and Instructional Aides.

Educational Planning: Effective Practices of Workshops, Groups, Classroom, Instructional Courses,
Basic Skills, or Other Contexts to Assist with the Delivery of Academic Advising.

Equity and Intervention: Scaling up the First-Year Experience or First Time in College Course. Going
from Boutique Program to Institution-Wide Program (How to Scale Up Successful Programs). Growing
and Using Your Learning Center: From Tutoring to Supplemental Instruction. Cultural Competency on
Your Campus: Understanding Student and Faculty Culture. Using Disproportionate Impact to Think
about Curriculum and Instruction, Planning for Equity: Institutional Effectiveness and Accreditation,

Follow up Activities — Intervention Practices: Showcasing Successful Results of Working with Student
Services (e.g., effective communication with students in promoting intervention practices, coordinating
student services and wrap around services as an intervention [food, shelter, and health], faculty assistance
in helping students with their career choices).

Institutional Transformation: Building Equity into Your Program Review. Shifting Your Campus
Culture to an Equity Mindset. Closing the “Silo” Gap: Bringing Student Services and Instruction.
Coordinating with Categorical Programs. Building Professional Development for Equity.

Noncredit: Equity and the Noncredit Question. Effective Practices in Transitioning Noncredit Students
into Credits and Plans.

Orientation: Effective Practices of Online and In Person QOrientation.

Student Voices: Effective practices in incorporating student voices and qualitative data in curriculum
development and assessment and program review and development. Professional Development Programs:
Programs that embed issues of equity and disproportionate impact into ongoing, iterative professional
development offerings.

Diversity Hiring: Intentional efforts of diversity mindfulness during recruiting, interviewing, and hiring
activities at the college.



Digital Divide: Practices in equity regarding recognizing that technology is not available to all of our
students. It may be assumed that all students are proficient in technology and that they possess it. It
becomes an equity issue because students are not able to do the types of work or perform at the level of
their classmates, if they don't possess the technology that they need to succeed.

Cultural Competency: Creating an environment with ongoing efforts to assess diverse issues of cultural

competency and building mechanisms to respond to the assessment results for a more safe and inclusive
institution.

2016 Academic Academy Program - Draft

Friday, March 18, 2015

9:00 AM Continental Breakfast and Registration

10:060 AM - 10:20 AM Welcome
Cleavon Smith, Chair, ASCCC Equity and Diversity Action Committee
Ginni May, Chair, ASCCC Transfer, Articulation, and Student Services Committee
David Morse, ASCCC President

10:20 AM - 11:35 AM General Session: Keynote Address:
Veronica Neal/Mayra Cruz

11:35 AM - 11:45 AM Break
11:45 AM - 12:45 PM Lunch

12:45 PM - 1:00 PM Break

1:00 PM - 2:15 PM Breakout Session Block I (3 or 4 Breakouts)
1. Follow-up with General Session Speaker
Veronica Neal
Mayra Cruz
2.
3.
4
2:15PM -3:30 PM Break
3:30 PM - 3:45PM Breakout Session Block II (3 or 4 Breakouts)
1.
2.
3.
4.
3:45 PM - 4:00 PM Break
4:00 PM - 5:15 PM Breakout Session Block ITI (3 or 4 Breakouts)



el 8 S

5:30 PM - 6:30 PM No Host Reception — AS Foundation
Attendees may sign up to join different Executive Committee Members for
dinner following the reception

Dinner - TBA

Saturday, March 19, 2015

8:00 AM - 9:00 AM Breakfast Buffet

9:00 AM - 10:15 AM Breakout Session Block IV (3 or 4 Breakouts)

e s

10:15 AM - 10:30 AM Break

10:30 AM - 11:45 PM General Session — Bringing it Back to our Colleges
This will be a panel of individuals OR tables each with an individual where
attendees can discuss colleges that have been successful in making the
changes needed to address Equity at all levels. The panel or table host will
identify challenges that they face/faced, explain how they addressed them,
and respond to questions from attendees.

11:45PM - 12:00 PM Break
12:00 PM - 1:00 PM Lunch Buffet

1:00 PM - 2:00 PM General Session — Don’t Go It Alone: ASCCC’s Relation to Local
Colleges
During this time, attendees will have the opportunity to share the challenges
identified during the 10:30 General Session and discuss how ASCCC can
help local colleges address those challenges either through online resources,
upcoming institutes, or local visits.

1. Learning from Our Students: Equity Focus Groups-44

Darla Cooper, Director of Research and Evaluation, The RP Group
Terrence Willett, Senior Resecarcher, The RP Group

*Equity and Intervention, Cultural Competency

2. EOPS Impact Study: Estimating Effects and Inferring Implications-43



Terrence Willett, Senior Researcher, The RP Group
*Equity and Intervention

3. Serving Former Foster Youth in California Community Colleges: Successes, Challenges,
and Recommendations-42

Darla Cooper, Director of Research and Evaluation, The RP Group

*Equity and Intervention, Cultural Competency

4. Diversifying Our Faculty: From Conversation to Action-41

Adrienne Foster, Ph.D., President, Academic Senate, West Los Angeles College, 310-287-4589
Thuy Thi Nguyen, J.D., Interim General Counsel, CCCCO, 916-445-6272

*Equity and Intervention, Diversity Hiring

Schedule for Friday

5. Award Winning Campus Programs that Increase Diversity Awareness-37
Shannon Vellone Mills, Professor of Anthropology, Cosumnes River College
B.J. Snowden, Professor of RTVF, Cosumnes River College

*Educational Planning, Equity and Intervention, Cultural Competency
Schedule for Saturday

6. Equity-in-Action Redux: Implementing Equity-Minded Frameworks-35(33)
Micaela Agyare—Foothill College Instruction Librarian

Hilda Fernandez—Foothill College Student Equity Tri-Chair and English Faculty:
Carolyn Holcroft—Foothill College Academic Senate President and Biology Faculty:
Paul Starer—Foothill College Dean of Language Arts and Learning Resource Center:
*Institutional Transformation

7. Using an Academic Support Index to better understand student data, identify students for
intervention, and more precisely evaluate program efficacy-32

Dayvid Stevens, Berkeley Unified School District (contact Cleavon Smith)

*Equity and Intervention, Follow up Activities, Institutional Transformation, Professional
Development, Cultural Competency

8. Breaking Down Silos in the Basic Skills: How Faculty can Integrate Classified Staff and
Student Tutors to Foster Student Success-31

Holly Piscopo, Sacramento City College, History professor/Faculty coordinator of the Basic
Skills Initiative

Tara Loschiavo, Sacramento City College, Student Personnel Assistant for the Basic Skills
Initiative,

Cindy Dibble, Sacramento City College, Math Professor

Hannia Velez, Sacramento City College, Instructional Services Administrative Assistant,
Nick Banford, Sacramento City College student, Math Tutor/Student Instructional Assistant,



*Equity and Intervention, Follow up Activities, Institutional Transformation, Professional
Development, Cultural Competency

9. Using Open Educational Resources (OER) to Close the Achievement Gap: What Faculty
Can Do?-28

Cheryl Aschenbach, Lassen College, COERC Member

Dan Crump, American River College, COERC Member

Dolores Davison, Foothill College, COERC Member (

*Professional Development Programs, Digital Divide

10. Practices of a Students of Concerns Team Across Services-27
Dr. Nicky Damania, Director of Student Life, Bakersficld College,
Grace Commiso, Counselor, Bakersfield College,

*Follow up Activities

11. Institutional Change to Equitably Improve Student Success: From Planning to Action to
Evaluation-26

"DVC's Strategic Plan" Andrew Barloiw

"Changing DVC's Governance and Resource Allocation Process" Beth McBrien and John
Freytag

"Innovation in Practice: Project ACCESS at DVC" Joan Symonds

Andy Barlow, Strategic Plan Implementation Coordinator, Diablo Valley College

Beth McBrien, John Freytag (or designee) Diablo Valley College Academic Senate President/VP
Joan Symonds, Diablo Valley College Professor of Early Childhood Education

Others to be added.

* Assessment, Basic Skills, Equity and Intervention, Follow up Activities, Institutional
Transformation,

12. Incorporating Equity into the Program Review and Institutional Planning Processes-23
Carolyn Holcroft, Foothill College Academic Senate President

Paul Starer, Foothill College Dean of Language Arts

* Equity and Intervention

GENERAL SESSION followed by Breakout
13. Lead the Choir: How Academic Senate leadership is critical for integrating equity into the

campus culture-21
Mayra Cruz, De Anza College, Faculty ECE, President of Academic Senate

Veronica Neal, De Anza College, Office of Equity Director
* Institutional Transformation

14. Understanding ESL, Equity, and Diversity: The carts, or the horses?-20
Kathy Wada, ESL Professor, Cypress College



Sydney Rice, ESL Professor, Imperial Valley College, and CATESOL President
Leigh Anne Shaw, ESOL Professor, Skyline College
* Assessment, Basic Skills, Equity and Intervention

15. Supporting Student Success and Completion through Mentoring: A Two-Pronged
Approach-19

Darlene Murray, Student Equity Coordinator Reedley College

Nate Saari, Director of Student Success, Equity, and Outreach, Reedley College

Sandra Fuentes, Director, Student Support Services, Reedley College

* Equity and Intervention

16. Implementing Effective SI: A How-to Guide for Community College Faculty & SI
Leaders-16

Elizabeth Rodacker and Laynatreell Allen

College(s): Bakersfield College (Bakersfield, CA)

Qualifications: Professor & student SI Leader

* Basic Skills

17. Racial Battle Fatigue Syndrome and the Psychosocial Health of African-American Men-7
Yamonte Cooper, El Camino College Career Center Faculty Coordinator

Brian Mims, El Camino College Project Success Faculty Coordinator

* Equity and Intervention, Follow up Activities, Institutional Transformation, Professional
Development Programs, Cultural Competency

18. Supporting African-American Male Student Success-5

Yamonte Cooper, El Camino College Career Center Faculty Coordinator

Brian Mims, El Camino College Project Success Faculty Coordinator

*Equity and Intervention, Follow up Activities, Institutional Transformation, Student Voices,
Professional Development Programs, Cultural Competency

19, Scaling Up Student Success Programs in Community Colleges: From Islands of
Innovations to Institutional Practices-1

Diana Bajrami

Interim Vice President Student Services, Berkeley City College, Peralta District
Previously,

Economics Faculty at College of Alameda, Peralta District

* Equity and Intervention, Institutional Transformation, Student Voices, Professional
Development Programs, Diversity Hiring, Cultural Competency

Expected/Needed Proposals:

20. LGBT Resolution 7.01 F15
Johnnie Terry and Stephanie DuMont (Ginni emailed them 1-16-2016)

7



21. Maybe something from Fabiola Torres on Digital Divide — Access for students to technology
(Ginni emailed Fabiola 1-16-2016)

22. Still need to contact Grant Goold and ??? regarding CTE and Equity. What about recruiting
men to Nursing programs, women to welding programs, etc.? {(Cleavon will contact Grant)

23. We have nothing on Orientation...(Ginni emailed a group 1-16-2016)



Y
~—= Academic Senate
—— California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOILE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications Paper — Second

Month: February | Year: 2016

approval revisions to the Equivalence to the
Minimum Qualifications paper.

Reading Iterm Np: V. C.
Attachment: YES
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: YES

Time Requested: 15 minutes

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: John Stanskas Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW*: Julie Adams Action X
1 Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

The Standards and Practices committee is submitting the paper update requested by resolution FA14
10.01 (attached). This is a second reading. Feedback from many has been incorporated into this

draft.

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will approve the paper Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications,
revisions and send it to the body for consideration at the Spring Plenary session.

Revise the Paper Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications

Fall 2014 10.01

Whereas, Education Code §87359(b) states that local academic senates are
responsible for developing procedures for evaluating and determining equivalency to
minimum qualifications by joint agreement with their governing boards;

Whereas, The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges adopted
Resolutions 10.06 S07, 10.01 S09, 10.02 F09, and 10.11 S11][1], which call for further
guidance on equivalency through such actions as the development of criteria and
standards and the presentation of model practices for determining equivalence to

minimum qualifications by establishing eminence;

Whereas, Numerous breakout sessions held at plenary sessions since 2006 on
minimum qualifications and equivalency have included discussions and requests for
assistance regarding eminence, criteria, and model practices; and

L Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.




Whereas, The paper Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications was last revised in
2006[2];

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges survey the field
to identify local practices for establishing equivalence to minimum gualifications,
including the use of eminence; and

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges revise the
paper Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications and bring it to the body for adoption at
the Spring 2016 Plenary Session.

MSC



Executive Summary

In 1988 the Community College Reform Act (AB 1725) began to phase out credentials
for faculty in favor of a process for establishing minimum qualifications to teach in a
discipline. Part of that process included a way to determine equivalencies to those
qualifications that are at least equal to the state-adopted minimum qualifications for a
particular discipline. According to Education Code §§ 87359 and 87360, those who do
not possess the minimum qualifications for service may be hired as faculty members if
they possess “qualifications that are at least equivalent to the minimum qualifications..."

The Disciplines List, a list of Board of Governors’ adopted minimum qualifications for

hmng facultyJ uses the term eqtqvalency” to, {dascrlbe proeesses to s«upport thfs
b .'/ : 1

regulatlon.

Every dlstrlct must have an equwaiencyfprocess and the determination of equivalency is
the pumew of the academlc senate. Educatlon Code§87359 (b) requires that *ft]he
process, as well as criteria, and standards by which the governing board reaches its
determination regarding faculty members shall be developed and agreed upon jointly by
representatives of the governing board and the academic senate, and approved by the
governing board.” While neither the Education Code nor Title 5 Regulations provide
additional guidelines for what constitutes af least equivalent, each district's governing
board, acting on the advice of its academic senate, must establish its standard for
equivalency, permitted the standard is not less than qualifications specified on the
Disciplines List. Once equivalency regarding an individual applicant has been

determined, Education Code §87359(a) requires that the governing board take action



on the equivalency before hiring occurs. Because the equivalency process was created
by AB1725 and chaptered into the California Education Code, districts are not free to

ignore provisions within the law.

The Academic Senate has consistently supported the following basic principles for

granting equivalency:

e Equivalent to the minimum qualifications means equal to the minimum
gualifications, not nearly equal.

e The applicant must provide evidence they have attained the breadth of
coursework orexperience equal to the;ﬁgeneral education {;ompgn?mwgian,,
earneld\%a'.‘ssocia’te’s;)l: -b;ch_ei.br’s degr’;e\'.'-‘_

e The applicant muﬁ@mwde evidende they have attained £hig skills and knowledge
providfzé by spec_ializec; :';céi;lrse V\{srk required fb_r the degree listed in the
Disémhnes List.: | .

e Faculty members exemplify to their students the value of an education that is
both well-rounded and specialized and has consistently defined associate’s
degree parameters. Faculty should act as models for students by demonstrating
a breadth of general education knowledge and a depth of knowledge that is
discipline specific.

¢ Eminence should not be used as the sole criteria for granting equivalence

(Senate Resolution 10.01 SPQ9).

e There is no provisional or conditional equivalency.



Many criteria for determining equivalency seem obvious and can be handied in a simple
manner. Others are more difficult. Most district equivalency policies recognize at least
one of three ways of demonstrating equivalency: 1) course work, 2) work experience,
and 3) eminence in the field; in addition, a sub-set of experience, or a combination of
the three may be recognized. But whatever the means are for making determinations,

equivalency should never mean less than the qualifications specified on the Disciplines

List.

Establishing equivalency through coursework is often relatively simple, as transcripts

are concrete documents that can be compared to concrete criteria. A somewhat more

T

dlfﬁcu%t case occurs when the ﬂame of a degree |s close to that spemﬁed en the
Dlsmpllnes Llstvbut the coursewo;k is sl:ghﬂy dlfferent Other more difficult cases occur
when work expenenoe s propg:sed as the equalént of acJademrc work. Knowledge
acquired in.a oourse could also be gainad in other ways however the problemiies in

obtaining convincing evidence to establlsh that an appllcant has enough necessary

educational preparation through an alternative means to be judged as knowledgeable

as someone with the appropriate degree.

It is important to distinguish between general education preparation and discipline
specific preparation. The Academic Senate supports the principle that all community
college faculty exemplify the qualities of a college educated person. This is why the
universal requirement for all disciplines includes at least an associate degree in addition
to six years of experience. So, when a local academic senate evaluates an applicant's

equivalency, an equivalency committee should consider whether the applicant satisfies



the general education qualification for which they seek equivalency. In addition, the
applicant should be expected to provide evidence of equivalent preparation that is as
reliable and objective as a transcript. Thus, the candidate seeking equivalence should
be measured by the same yardstick as a candidate who possesses the minimum
qualifications. Moreover, processes for determining eminence should be defined in
hiring practice criteria and indicate that, regardless of the discipline, general education
preparation is vital to instruction of any subject to provide an essential cross-curricular

breadth and depth.

Many local academic senates use an equivalency committee to ensure that the
equivaieney process ismeﬁe;a;{‘stent and fair. Thia commlttee ls eithef; a'su beemmﬁtee of
the academic senate or a separate commlltee whose menibership is determined by the
agademic senate As difficuit- as 1t‘can be te r‘nﬁtﬁthe judgment of whether a specific
candidate’s. expenenee is equwa1ent to the minimums quallﬁcatlons it is clear that facuity
in the discipline play a critical role in |nform|ng the de0|3|on However, to ensure that the
process of determining equivaiency is applied consistently across the campus, it is
important to include faculty from outside the discipline and appointed by the academic

senate. The benefits to having a breadth of discipline representatives on an

equivalency committee are the following:

e The breadth or general education requirements equivalent to an earned
degree may be more readily addressed when faculty from other disciplines

are involved.



e Committee decisions are easily communicated and the logic and credibility
of a specific decision is more easily understood by administrators, external
partners or agencies, and future senate leader when more faculty voices
are involved.

¢ Decision-making is more consistent when committee representatives are
constant rather than dependent on the discipline, and their decisions are
made without bias.

The role of the Human Resources office should be limited to collecting, date-stamping,
and forwarding applications and other pertinent information to the academic senate or
equivalency. wmmiﬁe&-A-goJlege district that,attempts to use its human resources.
ofﬁce staff to astabhsh equwalenoe hot only, !‘islﬁs creatlng & situation in which

Code and T|tle 5 Reguiatlons (‘See Education Code~§87359 (b) and Title 5 §53430 (b)).

It is vital to remember that minimum qualifications in a discipline—and, by extension,
equivalency—are the same whether the position is full- or part-time. Title 5 Regulations
do not allow for a different standard of equivalency for part-time faculty. An applicant is
either qualified to teach the full range of courses in a discipline or not, regardless of
whether applying for a full-time position or a part-time position. Education Code §87359
(a) (see also Title 5 §53430) states, “No one may be hired to serve as a community
college faculty ... unless the governing board determines that he or she possesses
qualifications that are at least equivalent to the minimum qualifications specified” (italics
added). In addition, minimum qualifications are determined for disciplines, not for

courses or subject areas within disciplines. Legal Opinion L 03-28 (R. Black, 2004) (see



Appendix C), supports the position that “a district is not authorized to establish a single

course equivalency as a substitute for meeting minimum qualifications in a discipline.”

It is also important to understand that when a faculty member is hired, he or she is hired
by a district's governing board. It is the purview of faculty through the academic senate
to determine if a potential faculty member meets the minimum qualifications, but it is the
purview of the governing board and administration to determine if the applicant shall be
hired. The fact that an applicant meets the minimum qualifications does not guarantee

an offer of employment by the administration.

This.paper. concludes.with. recommendatlons ,for the determination of. equxvalenc:es,

including who determmes equivalency; that equwalency isjgranted for a discipline; that

policies and precedures__mgst be consrsteﬁt objec;twe ewdence based, and mindful of

= ' N
HL
! (Y

general educatlon and speclallzatlon anﬂ that local, gcvermng boards include action on

the equwaiency as part of their subsequent hiring acfion.

Following the recommendations, this paper provides a proposed equivalency model as
well as a legal opinion stating that local districts are not authorized to establish a single

course equivalency.

Introduction

This paper is the third revision of the ASCCC paper on equivalency adopted by the
body in 1989, and was called for by the body by resolution in Fall 2014. The original
paper was intended to help local academic senates develop policies and procedures in

response to Education Code §87359, which requires that each district's governing



board and academic senate jointly develop an equivalency policy. This revision adds
new considerations and content called for by faculty subsequent to the 2006 version.
The Fall 2014 Resolution 10.01 states:

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges survey
the field to identify local practices for establishing equivalence to minimum
gualifications, including the use of eminence; and

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges revise
the paper Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications and bring it to the body for
adoption at the Spring 2016 Plenary Session.

Like the 2006 revision, this revision provides a more thorough discussion of equivalency

than the fmginal paper‘and the 1999 revnsmn It also mcludes thaiegal opmaon from the
General Counsel of the Callfornla Commun{ty Ccﬂieges Chancellor's Office distfibuted
December 23, 2003 which upholds the prohlblt{oﬂ on single-course equwalendes In
addition, it mc‘iudes results of the\Academw _S‘»;}}afé s 201 5 survey on equivalency
practices in California community colleges. The concepts discussed in the first three
equivalency papers remain substantively unchanged in this paper; however, there are

practical suggestions and considerations inserted to help local senates in refining their

policies and procedures regarding this important academic and professional matter.

The 2015 Equivalency Practices Survey

To determine how academic senates are meeting their responsibilities for establishing
and implementing equivalency policies and procedures, the Academic Senate surveyed
local senates in fall 2015. The survey results indicated that while most colleges and

districts have equivalency policies, and most senates recognize the need for



equivalency committees, 15% of respondents reported that the administration
determines equivalency on their campuses despite the fact that equivalency is the

purview of the faculty and the academic senate.

Further findings indicate the need for regular evaluation, review, and revision of
equivalency policies. Only a few colleges reported that a recent review and revision of
their equivalency policy had occurred by the local academic senate. Of the 59 colleges
that are part of multi-college districts who responded to the survey, 34 reported that they
coordinate equivalency decisions with the other colleges in their district while 25

reported that they do not.

Only a small\;nymber pf:senates indicated tt;i;i 'tr@ining is provided by the senate
equivalency committee of commattee chaiﬁi)ﬁ fle;ta‘_days or at department or committee
meetings. On_e college reportéii@éing ini'ﬁih'e process of deyeloping a handbook:with
ms*tru@ta_onsto be provided for fac;UItylrﬁembers invoived in‘determining equivalency,
which would be an effective way to ensure training is uniform and that all faculty
members involved in determining equivalency at any time of the year had correct

information.

The survey results and the resolution highlight the need for this paper revision and for
local dialogue by academic senates regarding equivalency policies, procedures, and

practices.

The Meaning of Equivalency



The term “equivalency” is found in the Disciplines List, which is a list of minimum
qualifications for hiring faculty adopted by the Board of Governors. The current
Disciplines List can be found in the Chancellor's Office publication Minimum
Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators in California Community Colleges and can
also be accessed through the ASCCC website (asccc.org). Equivalency refers to any
qualifications that are at least equal fo the state adopted minimum qualifications for a
particular discipline and the process for used for determining faculty preparation that is
equivalent to minimum qualifications. The academic senate shouid review the minimum
qualifications of faculty applicants carefully to determine if equivalency is necessary or
not Avcommon question from.the field mvolves faculty applicants. who may-have a.
d|fferent baccalaureate degree title but the Itsted master’s ﬂegree- hFor_ e;(ar-r;p@ an
applicant for the dlSCIle:iE_Of chemistry who posseSSes a baccalaureate degree in
Biblogical Scu;gnces and a master’s degree In C‘hemistry meets the minimum
quaiﬁaahons and does not need an edutvalency prooess However an applicant with a

baccalaureate degree in Chemistry and a master’s degree in Biological Sciences wili

require completion of the district equivalency process.

District equivalency policies usually recognize up to three ways of demonstrating
equivalency: 1) coursework, 2) work experience, and 3) eminence in the field. A
combination of the three may be the foundation for equivalency determination.
Regardless of the basis for equivalency determination, the applicant's evidence and the
academic senate’s process must document that the minimum qualifications have been

met or exceeded to grant equivalency.



Benefits and Pitfalls of Equivalency

One benefit to having an equivalency process is that it allows for greater flexibility in
hiring by creating a more diverse pool of potential faculty with a variety of qualifications
equivalent to minimum qualifications. Applicants who can provide conclusive evidence
that they have education and experience at least equal to what is required by the
minimum qualifications deserve careful consideration, even if their degrees have titles
different from those recognized in the Disciplines List or if they acquired their
qualifications by an unconventional route. If the granting of equivalency were not an

option, some fully qualified candidates would not receive consideration.

On the other hand, the authority to determing equivalent qualifications is not a license

fot a district to lower or walve éféﬁdards and accept less-than-qualified individuals. The

™

factthat a partfcular ¢ar'|didatebii§ the beéi.a‘ college'can find does not change the
i Y \.
requi}'e}ﬁent:that he orshe must possess qualifications at least equal to the published

minimum qualifications.
Legal Requirements

Every district must have an equivalency process. The process for establishing
equivalency needs to specify what the district expects in terms of course work, work
experience, and/or eminence when considering equivalency applications. Education
Code §87359 (b) requires that “[t]he process, as well as criteria, and standards by which
the governing board reaches its determination regarding faculty members shall be

developed and agreed upon jointly by representatives of the governing board and the

10



academic senate, and approved by the governing board.” Subsequent changes
proposed to jointly agreed upon policies or procedures for establishing equivalency
should undergo the same process for approval. The governing board shall rely primarily

on the advice of its academic senate, and both must jointly agree to proposed changes.

The goal of any equivalency policy should be to ensure the transparent and fair
determination of equivalency for applicants that possess qualifications at least equal to
the minimum qualifications. The process should be documented and justifiable so that
a determination of equivalency is understandable, ciear, and supported upon review.

Sound policy dictates that the practice of granting equivalencies must not mean

R s e o e e -

loWenng standards Conversely, 8 district is riot allowed to refuse to cenglder

L
5

equwalenmes m the rpame of ralsmg standards The equwaiency process was coreated
by AB 1725 and chaptered m‘to the Callforma Educatlon Code. Districts are not/free to

ignore this pmwsuon Wlthln the Iaw Academlc senawb shouid regularly review their

N _i’

o=y

policy, procedure and practice of determlnlng equuvalency and update them for clarity
and effectiveness as needed as well as to maintain accreditation standards regarding

the upkeep of all policies and procedures.

The academic senate, with the concurrence of the district board, is responsibie for
defining and maintaining the equivalency process for faculty applicants. It is critical that
academic senates focus on sound policies and procedures rather than expediency
when determining equivalency. Policies and procedures that are designed primarily to
address last-minute staffing needs threaten the principle that every instructor in the

California Community College system is at least minimally qualified. The Education

11



Code establishes faculty and the governing board as jointly responsible for developing
policies and practices and designates the academic senate as primarily responsible for
determining individual cases of those claiming equivalency. The Education Code does
not establish the criteria that districts apply to determine equivalency. While §87359
states that equivalency means “qualifications that are at least equivalent to the minimum
qualifications,” neither the Education Code nor Title 5 Regulations provide any further
guidelines for what constitutes at least equivalent. When taking an action on
equivalency on the advice, recommendation, or expertise of its academic senate, a
governing board sets its standard for equivalency in the eyes of the law, even if that

standard may appear. weak to.a reasonable person.

Ongce the local equivalency process has determined a recommendation regarding an

individual applicant, Edu'catldnﬁode §87_359(a}"regdires that the governing board take

k

action on the/equivalency before hiring occurs.

It is also important to understand that applicants who are granted equivalency, and
subsequently hired, retain that status for their entire career in the district which granted
that equivalency. When facuity members apply for positions in another district, they
may need to go through equivalency processes in that other district because

equivalency is not transferable from district to district.

Principles

The Academic Senate has consistently supported the following basic principles for

granting equivalency:

12



e Equivalent to the minimum qualifications means equal to the minimum
qualifications, not nearly equal.

e The applicant must provide evidence of attaining coursework or experience equal
to the general education component of an earned associate’s or bachelor's
degree.

e The applicant must provide evidence of attaining the skills and knowledge
provided by specialized course work required for a master's degree or requisite
gxperience and coursework for disciplines that do net require a master’s degree.

The Academic Senate believes that faculty members must exemplify to their students

the value-of an education that.is both well-rounded and specialized...

,f.__ i

T

Criteria for Determining Equivalent Qua/lfﬁéa.fi;_a‘ns

i 5
: . Hp - F e, f ' 5 Ll
Many criteria for determining equivalency seem obvious and can be handled inia simple
manner. Others are more difficult. The'three means of demonstrating equivalency are

coursework, work experience, and eminence.

Any applicant should be expected to provide evidence of equivalent preparation that is
as reliable and objective as a transcript. Thus, the candidate seeking equivalence
should be measured by the same yardstick as a candidate who possesses the minimum
qualifications. Evaluating experience depends on the candidate’s ability to provide
objective, detailed information from some source other than the candidate’s statements

about what exactly they did.

13



Establishing equivalency through coursework is often relatively simple, as transcripts
are concrete documents that can be compared to concrete criteria. Another clear-cut
example of equivalency through coursework occurs when someone has all the
appropriate courses for the relevant degree, but the applicant’s diploma or degree has a
different title or area of expertise. For example, if someone earned a degree in business
because a particular college or university combined its economics and business
programs but the coursework on the transcript shows the academic work completed is
the same as that for an economics degree, then that business degree is equivalent to a
degree in economics for the potential faculty member. Instances where determining
equivalency when the title.of an applicant’s eagned degree.cr.the title of some
courseworl?i's‘gightlﬁ' different from the mlnmaum qualifications have incr;e;séd with the

%

rige of specialized titles TtHE hversity level. Sometimes, a TéView of the catalog

= k -

- o

descriptions of courses and de\g{_ees are"helﬁf'ﬁr‘i'n Hhese cases.

A somewhat more difficult case would occur when the name of a degree is close to that
specified on the Discipiines List but ihe coursework is siightiy different. An exampie of
this problem occurs in determining whether a degree in education with a concentration
in mathematics is equivalent to a degree in mathematics. Another example of a non-
standard title may be an earned doctorate in Mythological Studies. The applicant with
such a degree may be equivalent to the disciplines of English or religious studies but a

careful review of coursework is needed.

A perennial question from the field involves applicants who may have advanced to

candidacy for a doctorate, completed coursework at the graduate level, but do not have

14



an earned degree other than at the baccalaureate level. It is common in some fields to
enter a doctoral program without first completing a Master's degree. While local
determinations may vary, it is important to note that if the applicant is hired through
equivalency and subsequently fails to complete another earned degree, the district
board has hired a person with only a Bachelor's degree and some units to teach in a
discipline that typically requires a Master's degree. Neither the district nor the academic
senate can revoke the determination of equivalency because it was found that the
faculty member was at least equal to the minimum qualifications at the lime of hire.

This example serves to illustrate the concept that there is no provisional equivalency.
The,_a,pplicant_ must be-determined to meet thg—m‘inimum qualifications. at the time of
hiye. The a&vwé from the Academic Senatg’jfn'ég;' be that ﬁoca;l_sie_n.at;s s;;ulcnj consider

these cases with extreme caiifion
5

One.[ast_exafﬁpie invoives using work g%périence irfwfﬂetermihing equivalency to the
Master's degree. For example, a jOIlrnaIISt with a bachélor’s degree in English who has
12 years of work experience in journalism may be an applicant to teach in the discipline
of Journalism which typically requires a Master's degree. The academic senate or
equivalency committee will need to evaluate the components of a Master's degree to
determine if the applicant's work experience is commensurate with the an earned
degree. Typically there is no general education requirement for a degree beyond the
baccalaureate level. So the committee may wish to consult the requirements published
in local university catalogs to earn a Master's degree in journalism and evaluate the

materials submitted against those requirements. Of course, no predetermined amount

of experience or number of years of work is unquestionably equivalent to a particular

15



degree. For example, ten years of experience may not be equivalent to any degree
while two years of work may be equivalent, depending on the breadth and depth of the
experience. Equivalency depends on the nature of the experience and the expectations

typically required of a discipline.
Equivalency to the Associate’s Degree

A problem that may arise particularly when we consider equivalencies for career
technical areas is determining how an applicant who lacks an Associate's degree has
acquired the broad knowledge that a general education program provides as well as the

discipline specific knowledge Evaluatlng expenence depends on, thecandtdate G ablllty

to provide objact;ve detalled mformatlon from some source other than the candldate S

4

statements about what exacﬂy he or she did. For exampie, military service often

requires technac_al tratning and certificate attalnment_ that, while not the same as college
A b . |

L 4
—— s

credit,ﬁhy be tequivalent to collége c:éhn in certain areasiof the general education
pattern. While the provision and consideration of such evidence can be a challenge for
applicants and local senates, general education preparation should endow instruction of
any subject with an essential cross-curricular breadth and depth while specialization or
discipline requirements demonstrate detailed familiarity with a field of study. The ability
to communicate a broad understanding regarding the context of discipline specific
knowledge is key in all disciplines. The general education pattern establishes a
baseline knowledge expectation of all faculty. It is the position of the Academic Senate
that both the discipline specific expertise, depth of knowledge, and the general

education, breadth of knowledge, are important considerations.

16



We must also distinguish between general education preparation and specialized
preparation. The Academic Senate supports the principle that all community college
faculty exemplify the qualities of a college educated person. It is also important that all
faculty can communicate the manner in which the discipline content is relevant to the
myriad other fields of study and the world at large. This is why the universal minimum

requirement for all disciplines includes at least an Associate’s degree.

When an equivalency committee reviews an applicant’s possible equivalency, the
committee should consider whether the applicant satisfies the general education

qualification for which they seek equivalency. One of the most difficult cases occurs

e LTI R e T Y Sl

when work experlenm is prapesed as the eqﬁwalent of aoademm work. anﬂedge
anU|red in a copurse gould also be galned ;n other ways; however, the problemlies in
obtaining convmc-ing pvidence, to establlsh th;at_aﬂrﬁ;_'a.;)pllcantfhas enough necessary
educational preparatlnn through an altematlve means 'to be judged as knowledgeable
as someone with the approprlate degr;e Of course, nd Stlait"amou nt of experience is
unquestionably equivalent to a particular degree; ten years of experience may not be
equivalent to any degree. Equivalency depends on the nature of the experience and the

ability to document the connection between the experience and the requirement of

qualification.

The issue of equivalency to the Associate’s Degree has been reported from the field as
a persistent concern in some career technical fields where the minimum qualification is
any Associate’s degree and six years of work experience. For example, a fashion

designer without any degree, who has spent two decades in the fashion industry and

17



can provide documented evidence of a breadth of work and experience in print and film,
may apply to teach in the discipline of Fashion and Related Technologies. It is
incumbent on the equivalency committee or academic senate to consider whether the
applicant has the equivalent to the general education breadth requirements and the

equivalent depth of a discipline required of an Associate’s degree.

For this example, the depth of a discipline requirement may not be in question, but the
general education component is. Some academic senates have used the requirements
for an Associate’s degree outlined in Title 5 when examining cases like this. Title 5

Section 55063 defines the components of the Associate's degree as:

e competency in reading

s competency in written @xpression at the level of Freshman Composition

]

. %

- ;"."."’.'f‘I : L 2
..e._atleast 18 units of discipline specific preparation.

e competency in matheméti'c;s at the level of Infermediate Algebra

e atleast 18 units of general education in the areas of
o natural sciences
o social and behavioral sciences
o humanities and
o language and rationality.
Some colleges may ask how applicants meet or exceed these requirements to be

evaluated by the academic senate’s equivalency committee.

In the absence of a clear and agreed upon way to determine what is equivalent to the

general education component of an Associate's degree, colleges might consider using

18



their institutional learning outcomes as metrics for determining if a faculty member's
qualifications are equivalent to an Associate’s degree. Another possibility is to use the
outcomes listed on the C-ID descriptors for general education courses. Prospective
faculty seeking equivalency may be asked to provide documentation consisting of
examples of work product or coursework to demonstrate proficiency in those outcomes.
This practice may address the need for a candidate to show that he or she exemplifies

the qualities of an educated person.
Determining Eminence

Seme-districts recogmze eminence as a ba5|s for granting. equ;valency Althaugh

P =

eminence is not spedﬂed in current law, it ig- no‘t prohlblted The Chancellor's Office
that 20 dlstncts specified equwa}ency by emrnencevjn ‘their pohcles and other districts

seem to ha’ve added this avenue in ﬁld years since.

Common as eminence is in policy, this designation poses probiems since districts may
define the term differently. Just what should constitute eminence if there is no legal

definition of the term? How eminent is eminent enough to be equivalent?

Historical analysis helps us understand how this term has been used. A Title 5
Regulation that has been repealed defined eminence as “superior knowledge and skill
[...] in comparison with the generally accepted standard of achievement in the subject
field.” Furthermore, this reguiation indicated how eminence should be determined

stating, “[d]etermination of eminence should be based on a conviction that the applicant,

19



if measured by recognized authorities in his subject field, would be judged superior.”
Other districts require that an applicant who claims eminence must be recognized
beyond her or his geographic area. Still other districts have no clear criteria and make
decisions on a case-by-case basis. Eminence has been observed to be something
about which some say “l don't know how to describe it, but | know it when | see it.” If it

can be known, it should be describable.

Another problem with the concept of equivalence by eminence is that it does not include
any reference to the broad educational background provided by a general education.
Someone may be recognized by her peers as having extraordinary skills and knowiedge

W ) — EEEii r " Fa ': B :*T-"_‘_‘.‘,' B
but not pessess the equivalent-of completing a general education-program.-For.this

a—— e [ et e e e R —

'

re@son, eminence hak been used by some_,f‘fdiStri’tgts“_in combination with other criteria,

such as an associateior bachefor’s degreé.

FinaI.Iiy;-&;s";i:icl‘s that ¢hoose to use-eminence, especially on'a case-by-case basis, risk
exposing themselves to allegations that hiring criteria are not applied equally to all
candidates. For instance, suppose that candidate A is granted equivalency based on
eminence, while candidate B's appeal for equivalency based on eminence is denied.
Absent pre-defined criteria, what prevents candidate B from charging that the decision

is based on bias? Some equally applied test or standard of eminence should be used.

A basic principle within this could be asking the question of those in the field not at the
college but within some reasonably large area including the location of the candidate
about who they would think of when asked to name top people in the field or if they

consider a certain individual eminent. Once a person not connected with the college

20



has named or has agreed with the naming of the candidate as eminent, the person
could be asked to describe what makes the candidate eminent. For example, is this
someone to whom others in the field turn to ask for definitive answers to questions:; for
help in solving problems, especially those requiring a range of knowledge beyond
narrow technical problems; or to critique their work or the work of students in the field?
Answers pointing to broader knowledge and communication skills might meet
descriptions offered by those who are asked about what might be observed about a

person having taken general education coursework.

Most equivalency committees or academic senates are not going to survey people
werka;{g na paﬂlcular ﬁei; ‘bl;t the concept apphes when &;gﬂto' ;éply a consisteﬁt i
definition of what equwalency thrﬁugh emmence would look’ llke and to document the
process used to. apply that defmitlon Some suggestlons far senates as they creft or
review a polfcy that mciudes equTvaiengzy through emtnenoe may require any or all of the

2 =

following:

¢ eminence should not be used as the sole criteria for granting equivalency

(Senate Resolution 10.01, SP09)

¢ documented regional or national peer-reviewed publications authored by the
applicant

e documented regional or national publications regarding the applicant’'s work
product

e national awards pertaining to the discipline

e formal action by the academic senate at large

21



In any case, the criteria for establishing equivalency through eminence should be
explicitly spelled out and documented. Equivalency is uncommon, as most applicants
should meet the minimum qualifications listed, but equivalency through eminence

should be particularly rare.
Equivalency Committees: Composition and Information Collection

As difficult as it can be to make the judgment of whether a specific candidate’s
experience is equivalent to the minimum qualifications, it is important that faculty in the
discipline are involved to inform the academic senate’s decision. Nonetheless, to ensure

that colleagues in various disciplines functlon w1th some cons;stency across, the

campus, the academlc senate should mcludfe faoulty from @ variety of the d|SC|pl|nes
An effective practice adopted by _some acafflemlc {?enates is fo create an equivalency

cammittee thaf servels for an e}itire academic year to evaluate requests. Thus having a

Pt \

o

mechamsm that includes the discipline faculty voice should'be written into the process
as the standing committee may not have a representative from the discipline in
question. Often, a faculty chair or discipline expert is invited to attend the meeting with
the equivalency committee. The benefits to having a breadth of discipline

representatives on the equivalency committee are the following:

e The breadth or general education requiremenis equivalent to an earned
degree may be more readily addressed when faculty from other disciplines
are involved.

e Committee decisions are more easily communicated because the logic

and credibility of a specific decision is more easily understood by any

22



external agency or future senate leader when more faculty voices are
involved.

» Decision-making is more consistent when committee representatives are
constant rather than dependent on the discipline, and their decisions are
made without bias.

To ensure that relevant information is available for the faculty charged with determining
equivalency, the application for employment must provide the listed minimum
qualifications and a place for candidates to indicate whether they possess the minimum
qualifications or, if not, why they think they possess equivalent qualifications. The latter
part.could be a separate page.with some detgﬂed inquiries,_-Ihe-foIIQMngare sample

L |
prompts for é’*gs_u.pplernent to the épplication}/.;,‘ ‘

i

1. Discipline for:WHich\yau\ claim equwaiency

2:Indicate the educational pr_epa-ration on whibh you base this claim.

3. Indicate the educational preparation and experience on which you base this

claim for the general education requirement of this degree

4. If you are using courses to establish equivalency, please submit both an
official transcript and copies of the appropriate pages from the college

catalog.

5. If you are using publications or other work products, please submit them or

links to online copies where appropriate and if possible.

6. Describe in detail work experience which you believe establishes equivalency

to the minimum qualifications. If you are using work products or other items

23



which cannot be submitted, provide detailed information from an objective
source about the nature of this work product or experience along with contact

or reference information about the source.

Faculty Responsibilities, Equivalency Committees, and the Role of the Human

Resources Office

Determination of equivalency is a faculty responsibility through the academic senate.
While the governing board provides the legal authority to determine equivalencies,
aoademicsengtes are res?qnfsjble for determ.i_ning whetheran 'applicant pgssesses-the :
equivalent;flkttire published mini;;lum qualifiéé;}dns_. Faculty in the discipline in- questlon
pcissess the academic e;gpggrftﬁi_seﬂ-‘needed I_:é:under"$tand quelifications in that disipline.
Yeét the urgent'heed o staff cla"ss'_és_ can_f;orhetimes'-.-lead ta questionable judgment in
equivalency determinations. Co!leges‘-i‘.h'ould create an edquivalency committee external

to a hiring committee and external to the part-time faculty hiring process to evaluate

applications where equivalency is in question and o determine equivalency.

Many local academic senates use an equivalency committee to ensure that the
equivalency process is consistently and fairly applied for ali requests for review from all
disciplines. It is effective practice to make the equivalency committee a standing or
sub-committees of the academic senate. Equivalency committees typically consist of
three to five members, each member selected for a term of at least one year, with
faculty members appointed by the academic senate. Often, as the committee meets to

evaluate each request for equivalency from across the disciplines, a representative from

24



the discipline in question is invited to participate. This ensures at least one discipline
expert for each consideration of the committee. As with all appointments to committees,
the academic senate should ensure that faculty appointed to the equivalency committee
represent the diversity of the faculty and the community they serve. In some cases,
equivalency committees may include administrators, but this practice should be
discussed by the local senate to determine advantages and disadvantages. The
equivalency committee should be trained on the role of the committee to determine
whether qualifications meet or exceed the minimum qualifications only. Other parts of
the hiring process will evaluate additional requirements such as teaching ability and
content expertise - th,_e-e_q_givalency process ig:r.o-nlly determining—who--may‘,_beicon‘deered
as part of the r,?ool of applicants. A

x
>

The role of the Human Resourges office i determining equivalency should be limited to

cdllecti'ng_andjr‘fo"rwarding applicétj_éng a’hd other pertﬁ;é_nt information to the semate or
equivalency éommittee. Human Resc;;}ées office stelii‘lr ;hould not be the arbiter of
equivalency. A college district that permits its Human Resources office staff to establish
equivalency risks hiring candidates that do not meet minimum qualifications and is out
of compliance with the Education Code and Title 5 Regulations (see Education Code
§87359 (b) and Title 5 §53430 (b)). The Human Resources office should ensure that the
necessary information is collected from applicants at the time the application is
submitted to support an effective equivalency process. Many districts use a
supplemental form to the application to collect information should a determination of

equivalency be necessary. The Human Resources office should also keep track of the

outcome of the equivalency process.

25



The hiring committee or a subset of the hiring committee charged with screening full-
time faculty applicants should review applications to determine if an equivalency
determination is needed before beginning the paper screening process. When a
determination of equivalency is needed, the equivalency committee should meet after
receiving materials provided by the applicant requesting equivalency and/or the Human
Resources office. At least one member of the hiring committee for a fuil-time faculty
position should meet with the senate equivalency committee to provide background. If
faculty in the discipline participate at the heart of the equivalency process, and if care is
given when collecting the necessary information to determine equivalency, the process
can be done fairly and expeditiously while still maintaining the standards set.in Title 5

Regulations: Y_astly, & hiring process without an equivalency process is unlawfil.
v 5 :
Determination of Equivalency for Part-éime_-'Hirés

It Is wvital to remember-that minimum quéltfications in a dissipline—and, by extension,
equivalency—are the same whether the position is full- or part-time. Title 5 Reguiations
do not allow for a different standard of equivalency for part-time faculty. An applicant is
either qualified to teach the full range of courses in a discipline or not, regardless of

whether applying for a full- or part-time position.

One problem that college instruction offices often face is how to provide a means by
which the academic senate can make a determination of equivalency for part-time hires,

especially during times when few faculty are on campus.

26



Ideally, the college should hire part-time faculty from a pool of available faculty whose
minimum qualifications or equivalencies are established before classes are staffed.
Unfortunately, part-time faculty hiring is frequently done under a tight time schedule and
a dean or department chair may seek equivalency to avoid closing a course section due
to a lack of applicants that meet minimum qualifications. Provisions in the local
equivalency process should attempt to strike a balance between minimum qualification
requirements and the need to expedite the process. The equivalency committee should
consider ways to be flexible and provide the faculty oversight needed when determining
equivalency, even at times when full-time faculty tend to be off-contract. It may be that
a mutual understandipng between the administration, local bargalmng unltand the
asademic sena'te can be reached: regardmg !,he work faculty d;r‘servmg o; an
equivalency commlttee wh?ie techmcally oﬁ-contract is beneficial to the institutien,
However, the'mablllty tp conven;_e-the equwalency tx"!m‘m ittee should not be seen as a

reason for.the Human Resources bfficé or administrator to'eircumvent the process to

determine equivalency for an applicant who does not meet the minimum qualifications.

When faculty are hired under equivalency, but have not been granted equivalency by a
process agreed to by the academic senate, those hires may be legally challenged and
students may lose the units they have earned in those classes taught by the challenged
faculty member, potentially putting the entire district at risk. Faculty who have been
granted equivalency incorrectly may challenge the district if the district does not rehire
them in the future, which could result in the district losing state apportionment and the

students losing units earned.

27



The Single-course Equivalency Issue

Education Code §87358 (a) (see also Title 5 §53430) states, “No one may be hired to
serve as a community college faculty ... unless the governing board determines that he
or she possesses qualifications that are at least equivalent to the minimum
qualifications specified” (italics added). In addition, minimum qualifications are
determined for disciplines, not for courses or subject areas within disciplines. In short,
Education Code and regulations do not allow for a faculty member to be granted a

single course equivalency.

Toverify this interpretation.of relevant Educatlen Code statutes, the. Academic Senate
requested a Iegal opinion from the Callfornla Communlty Golleges Chaneei!'or S Ofﬂce s
legal team in 20{34 In response the Senate received Legal Opinion L 03-28 (R: Black,
2004) (see Appendlx ), whlch eupports the posttioft that “a district is not authotized to
eetabi;g?;aﬂ smgle course equwalency as a substitute for meeting minimum qualifications
in a discipline.” This opinion reaffirms the importance ASCCC'’s “Disciplines List
Revision” process as the foundation of the minimum qualifications handbook (see
Education Code §87357 (b)). L 03-28 also affirms that single-course provisional
credentials are no longer valid. L 03-28 concludes firmly and simply that “a district is not

authorized to establish a single course equivalency as a substitute for meeting minimum

qualifications in a discipline.”

Some disciplines faced with a scarcity of faculty to teach courses have attempted the
single-course equivalency solution. Although reasons for circumventing these

regulations may stem from understandable difficulties, such problems are no excuse for

28



hiring someone who is not qualified to teach in the discipline. Those hired as faculty
members, both full- and part-time, are expected to have the expertise to teach the range
of courses in the discipline for which they were hired. To require less from some faculty
would be to develop a second class of less qualified faculty and thereby compromise
the integrity of the entire faculty. If a district hires a faculty member under an
equivalency fo teach one or two courses in the discipline, such as keyboarding in
computer applications or basic firearms in administration of justice, that person has
been granted equivalency to teach any course within the discipline and could request
and be assigned to teach a course he or she is not prepared to teach. Colleges can
solve some.of the hiring. problems they face qu creatmg more full-time.- pos:tlonsio

attract fully quahﬁed appllcants crseatmg mehtomhlp opportunities, and pathways to

hlgher education, degrees"for industry profésswnals in CTE pmmams

Those respeﬁ;ib.le for staffing may attempt to craft speciallimitations related to
equivalency to the minimum qualiﬁ:ca;ci;)ns to justify hiring apf)licants who are may
appear qualified to teach only a certain course or subject within a discipline. At first
glance, such a solution may appear reasonable, but it is essential that local senates and
governing boards do not grant single-course equivalencies. Suppose, for example, a
department head of kinesiology requests that an equivalency committee grant
equivalency to a person who has taught aerobics based on the applicant’s experience in
that specialty and bachelor's degree in exercise physiology, a related discipline. Even
though this individual may seem to be very well qualified to teach aerobics, the
applicant does not meet the minimum qualifications for physical education. Even if the

department head assures all concerned that this individual would be assigned to teach

29



only aerobics and no other course offered as physical education, tempting as it may be,
a decision to grant such an equivalency would constitute a violation of Education Code
§87359, which calls for “qualifications that are at least equivalent to the minimum
qualifications.” For the sake of maintaining the integrity of our profession, we urge local
senates fo resist attempts such as the above example and demand that their college's
equivalency processes comply with code and regulation and not allow for any such
adaptations which diminish the minimum qualifications by permitting single course
equivalencies. Misapplications of equivalency regulations clearly undermine the
required standards of minimum qualifications. As stated above, equivalency means that
an.applicant’s preparation is.equal to the published minimum.qualifications for a

particular discipline.

An alternate salution; which is both expegﬂie_r_fg Ea__rﬂ:i:l__"'__appropmaté_, is to assign a course to a
range of disc‘i'_i;iines based on the‘_pisciﬁ]‘ines List. This practice will increase the number
of ;ualified {f.;lculty to teach the cou‘rse.a(see Academic; éenate 1994 adopted paper
Placement of Courses in Disciplines). It is perfectly appropriate, for example, to assign a
course associated with coaching soccer to the discipline of coaching as well as to the
discipline of physical education, and if the individual were to be granted equivalency
only in coaching, he or she would not be able to claim equivalency to teach courses in

physical education.

Likewise, it would be pedagogically sound and appropriate to assign a course such as
word processing to a range of disciplines. Instead of assigning this course only to the

discipline of business, it could also be assigned to computer service technology,

30



computer information systems, and office technology. An instructor with minimum
qualifications in office management who is hired to teach a word processing class could
not then legitimately request assignment to other courses in business without meeting

the minimum qualifications for business.
Determining Equivalency In Multi-college Districts

It is important to understand that when a faculty member is hired, they are hired by a
district, not a college. In most muiti-college districts, faculty members can be assigned
to any facility or combination of facilities in that district, although practice varies
accoerding to negotiated.policies defining nghts of assignment.and- transfer‘. A vanety of

, o - R ==

posmblhtles emst for establishing and applymg equlvalency in multl college dlstncts

a0y

Each college may have its own equivalepi;yip?!i_{;é"éhd pracedures that the local board
accepts, ‘althf;ugh thé local boa‘rd“]\'s‘lik“dy to insist (:;n_ @ns]stency between or among the
colleges in the district. If colleges ha\}e;;aiﬁerent policies and procedures, each college’s
faculty would have to accept the possibility that someone hired under the equivalency
policy in a sister college may be assigned to their college, unless bargaining

agreements or other policies preclude this possibility.

An alternative arrangement is to have a district-wide equivalency policy and set of
procedures to which the academic senate of each college agrees. Hiring committees
would submit the documentation of applicants who claim equivalency to an equivalency
committee, which would make a decision based on the district-wide accepted

procedures and standards of evidence. This arrangement has the advantage of allowing

31



a part-time instructor whose equivalency has been established to work in any college in

a district.

Some districts may also create a district equivalency committee typically comprised of
members from all colleges. Such a committee may have regular meetings to process

applications for potential facuity as they are received by Human Resources.

A critical obligation of any equivalency policy in a multi-college district is to ensure, to
the extent feasible, equal application among the colleges. The colleges are not wel
served if there is a case where a person rejected at one college within the district is then
accepted at another and-then transferred or deemed automatlcauy quallfled at.all-the
colleges in the district. ‘On the other hand, havmg separate 3udgments at dl_fférent 7

colleges allows for peniodic’ dlscussmns and normmg activities which help maintain rigor

and broader pe:‘spectwes conce,gmtantly

Conclusion

AB1725 provides the intent language of equivalency and is explicit concerning faculty
responsibility: Faculty members derive their authority from their expertise as teachers
and subject matter specialists and from their status as professionals. As a result, the
faculty have an inherent professional responsibility in the development and
implementation of policies and procedures governing the hiring process. Equivalency
considered in this light will remind us that our guide must be the published minimum
qualifications. Legal Opinion L 03-28 reiterates and supports adherence to minimum

qualifications for a discipline. To maintain the academic integrity of the community

32



colleges and their faculty, equivalency to those minimum qualifications for hire must be

granted with careful consideration.

Recommendations

1. Equivalency determinations should be made by an equivalency committee,

that is a subcommittee or standing committee of the academic senate.

2. The equivalency committee should include representatives appointed by the

academic senate to ensure that the process is consistent and fair.

3. Equivalency should be determined with input from discipline fgg:ulty.

4. Equiyalency processes for part{irﬁé,_faculty and *emergency hire” should be

no different frigmisguivalency for full-time faculty,
o N y v

5. Logal senates musfgﬁl«sure t"hat their diéj:ﬁct and college policies and
processes do not allow for single-course equivalencies.
6. Academic senates should assure consistency of the equivalency process.

7. Equivalency decisions should be based on direct evidence of claims (e.g.,

transcripts, publications, and work products).

8. The determination of equivalency should be documented and justifiable to

an external review.

9. Claims of equivalence must include how both general education,

specialization and experience are met.

33



10. Human resources offices should NOT screen for equivalency but should
maintain records of the outcomes and documentation of equivaiency

requests.

11. Local senates must never allow equivalency to be delegated to
administration or classified staff or to allow determinations to degenerate

into becoming a gathering of signatures without discussion.
12. Equivalency policies should be reviewed regularly.

13. Criteria for the acceptance of eminence as a means to establish
equivalency must be clearly defined in hiring policy.
14.“@1303 the'local equiVa_lency procéss‘_has reached a reco}h'mei;{datibn
regarding an_ i.ndividuél ‘applicqht. Ed'i.g_cation Code §87359(a) requires that
A ‘1_‘ F

the goveming boérq take acﬁéﬁlﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁgquivalency before hiring oacurs.

but an important mechanism to ensure a diversity of qualified applicants are considered

to engage and enhance student learning. Additional training materials may be obtained

from the Academic Senate Office and/or at its website.

34



Appendix A: Sample Board Policy and Procedure

No. 7122 BP Human Resources
Minimum Qualifications, and Equivalency

Reference: Education Code Sections 87355-87359.5; 86360

Title 5 California Code of Regulations Sections 53410 - 53417

-‘\

The Community College Disfﬁct éhéll establish procedures for

déte;'mining fagulty service areas that adﬁéré to.collective bargaining agreements.

in addition, the College District will“_és;téb_lish procedufeé to determine minimum
qualifications and equivalencies for minimum qualifications for hiring faculty that are
compliant with relevant sections of the Education Code and Title 5 regulations and
include reasonable procedures to ensure that the Governing Board relies primarily upon
the advice and judgment of the Academic Senate to determine that each individual
employed under the authority granted by the regulations possesses qualifications that
are “at least equivalent to the applicable minimum gqualifications” per Education Code
Section 87359(b). These procedures will ensure the hiring of highly qualified faculty who
are experts in their subject matter areas, who are skilled in teaching and serving the

needs of a varied student population, who can foster overall college effectiveness, and

35



who are sensitive to and themselves represent the racial and cultural diversity of the

College District community.

NEW PROCEDURE
No. 7211 AP Human Resources

Minimum Qualifications and Equivalency

Reference: Education Code Sections 87001, 87003, 87355-87359.5; 86360, 87743.2

Title 5 California Code of Regulations Sectiqfls‘-53406, 53410 - 53417
THE ROLE OF HUMAN RESOURCES

The role of the Human Resources office is to collect, date-stamp, and forward
applications and other pertinent information to the appropriate discipline selection

committee (full-time) or discipline or department faculty and dean (part-time).

In addition, Human Resources ensures that the established minimum qualifications for
the position will be listed in the job descriptionfannouncement. The District criteria for
equivalency will be available at the Human Resources Department. A statement will be
included in the application materials requiring all candidates who do not possess

minimum qualifications to indicate in the application material how they meet the

36



equivalent qualifications for the position and to provide supporting documentation. The

burden of proof for minimum qualifications and equivalency is on the applicant.

Human Resources staff will verify that applicants have the appropriate credential, or that
applicants claiming the required minimum qualifications show the appropriate degrees
on their transcript. If there is an experience requirement, College District Human
Resource staff will verify that the applicant has the required number years of

experience, but will not judge if the experience is appropriate.

If the applicant claims to possess the minimum qualifications, but the degree titles are
mgmﬁcantly d[fferent from those I}sbed in the Mmlmum Qualifications for Faculty and
Administrators in Calrfom;a Genfmumty Co‘lieges"’ that appilcation shall be considered

urider the equwalencv process\even if the appﬁcant dld notclaim equivalency. Human

administration, to determine equivalency of degree titles based on an examination of an

applicant’s transcripts.

Human Resources forwards all applications which satisfy the credentials requirement,
satisfy the minimum qualifications requirement, or are deemed to be equivalent to the

college selection committee (full-time) or to the dean and chair in that department (part-

time).

Supplemental Equivalency Application

37



Human Resources is responsible for maintaining a “Supplemental Equivalency

Application.” If a potential employee applies for a position and wishes to complete a

“Supplemental Equivalency Application for Academic Employment”, the following

information should be provided:

1.

2,

Degree for which the applicant claims equivalency.

The educational preparation on which the applicant bases this claim for the major
of the minimum degree.

The educational preparation on which the applicant bases this claim for the

general education requirement of the minimum degree.

The. relevant courses the applicant has taken or other evidence that the applicant

has the, equiva;ient of the General Edgeation portion of the minimum degree.

An official transcﬁptif@ﬁdﬁépies of the appropriate pages from the catalog of the
institutién that granted ‘tﬁﬁe.degree:ﬁpo'n wﬁi‘ch the applicant bases a claim of
éai;;alency.

Publications or other work products that support a claim of equivalency.

A detailed description of work experience which the applicant believes
establishes equivalency to the minimum qualifications. If the applicant is using
work products or other items which cannot be submitted, provide detailed

information from an objective source about the nature of this work product or

experience.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS (]

The goal of the Community College District is to provide a faculty of highly

qualified professional educators who are experts in their fields, skilled in teaching, and

38



serve the needs of a varied student population. The District also seeks those who ¢an
promote overall college effectiveness and who are sensitive to the diversity of the
District community. [1The College District shall employ faculty who possess the
minimum qualifications, as established by the California State Chancellor's Office (see
publication, “Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators in California

Community Colleges”).

Faculty are responsible for including a minimum qualification on all new curriculum or as
part of a curriculum review process. All curriculum should be placed within a discipline
that is identified as hgving,a,mini_mum qualific:,ation. It is best practice to place.curriculum
inthe discipling that best matches the courgi; ﬁigﬁtent and for which the minimum

qualifications of faculty bestmalr.ﬁh the cou}se content.

l“‘.

qu‘défjeiﬁrij‘ehts thatinclude coufsps with dual desi'gg:gtorgl deans and chairs from all
relevant programs will collaborate to ensure the most qualified faculty teach these

courses and minimum qualifications are met.

EQUIVALENCY

All community college facuity should exemplify the qualities of a college educated

person.

Pursuant to Education Code Section 87359, the equivalency process "shall include

reasonable procedures to ensure that the Governing Board relies primarily upon the

39



advice and judgment of the Academic Senate to determine that each individual
employed under the authority granted by the regulations possesses qualifications that

are at least equivalent to the applicable minimum qualifications."

Equivalency may be recognized in three major ways: course work, work experience,

and eminence in the field or a combination of the three.
Equivalency Committee

The Equivalency Committee is a subcommittee of the Academic Senate. The committee
i e

is scomprised-of three faculty members appo}i"i'té.g:l by the Academic Senate president
and up to two administrators who are designated by the VPAA and.are advisory to the
process. The Equivalency Committee is,f'noi:éuﬁjéqt to the Brown Act for Public

5 g ES k [

V

Mestings

Process for Determination of Equivalency

In order to determine when an applicant for a faculty position who lacks the specific
degree or experience specified in the “Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and
Administrators in California Community Colleges” Handbook possesses qualifications

that are equivalent, the following process has been established:

1. When Human Resources stipulates that a determination of equivalency is
needed, the Equivalency Committee will be called to meet as soon as possible.

Human Resources will provide the Equivalency Committee with the necessary

40



information to determine equivalency no less than three working days prior to the
meeting.

2. The dean, discipline faculty, and applicant may address the committee and
provide additional information prior to the committee making a decision.

3. Determination of equivalency to the minimum qualifications for hire shall be
decided, by majority vote in the Equivalency Committee and is final. The
Equivalency Committee will document their determination in writing and send it to
Human Resources within 5 working days.

4. If new information becomes available, a new request for equivalency may be
submitted.

5. Human Resources will fomard the wﬁtteh rationaleifrom the Equwlalency
Commltlge explainmg the equwaleﬂw dec\mon to the @pplicant and dean.

8. The resu]ts of the EquI:ralency Cdmmlttee decismn shall be documented by
Hbmén Resources and reco:ﬂs"kept of all decisions.‘individual voting by
Committee members will not be recorded.

7. Education Code §87359(a) requires that the governing board take action on the

equivalency before hiring occurs. Equivalencies shall be forward to the Office of

the Superintendent President to be placed on a Governing Board agenda.

Standards And Criteria Applicable For Determining Equivalency

The following standards and criteria apply when determining equivalency:

41



. Minimum qualifications in a discipline—and, by extension, equivalency—are the
same whether the position is for a full-time or part-time faculty member.

. Equivalency is determined for an entire discipline, not on a course-by-course
basis, per legal opinion | 03-28. The granting of equivalency is on a case-by-case
basis and does not set precedence for future hires.

. Past equivalency decisions in the discipline will be made available as needed to
the Equivalency Committee or to the dean and chair in that department to aid in
their deliberations and can be considered when determining equivalency, though
they do not establish precedence.

..Should an equivalency be granted, that __glecision shall.not give the applicant any
more 61; any less consideration than 6ther applicants. In addition, granting an
equivalency neither: guarantees an fntemew nor a job.

. ltis the appllcant s responssblllty to prowde all docummentation in support of
equwalency and to be available: for questions. Appilcants wishing to establish
equivalency through work experience should provide objective, detailed
information about those work experiences. Any applicant who faiis to provide
evidence to support his/her claim of a credential, or of minimum qualifications, or
of equivalency may be eliminated from the applicant pooi.

. Various occupational experiences may be combined to total the required number
of years established by the minimum qualifications; all experience must have
taken place within the ten years preceding the date of application with at least
one year of qualified experience occurring within the three years immediately

preceding the date of application.

42



7. For the Performing Arts, a bachelor's degree in the discipline plus advanced
degree from an accredited institution specific to that art, or a bachelor’s degree in
the discipline and four years of professional experience in the discipline, is
required to be considered for equivalency.

8. No candidate for a full-time position shall be recommended as a finalist to the
President without meeting the minimum qualifications or having been verified as
meeting the equivalency.

9. Nc candidate for part-time employment shall be hired without either meeting the
minimum qualifications or having been verified as meeting equivalency per these

procedures.

i

Provisional Equivalency

Effetivé beginning in fall 2015, the Eqilivalency Committee will not grant “provigional”
or “temporary” equivalency. All faculty hires must possess the minimum qualifications or
be determined to possess equivalency to the minimum qualifications to be employed by

the college district.

Additional Criteria for the Equivalency Committee

In all cases in which equivalency is granted or denied, an officially signed form shall be
filed with the Office of Human Resources and the Office of Academic Affairs. This form

shall include a complete description of the Equivalency Committee's reasons for

43



determining that a candidate does or does not have the equivalent of the minimum
qualifications for the position. The Human Resources Office is responsible for creating

and maintaining this documentation.

Minimum Standards for Consideration of Equivalency to Minimum Qualifications in

Disciplines Requiring a Master's Degree

In order to be considered for equivalency, In the case of disciplines normally requiring a

Master's degree, the minimum standard shall be any one of the following:

A
;

1. A Master's degree in a discipline which is"pot specifically named in “Minimum
Qualifications for Facully:and Adm’iﬁ’_if_stjéjg@' in California Community Colleges”

for-thé.paﬂiculgr discipline'q quéstion, but which, V\llhen courses (and course

[LE ]

descriptions) are carefully reviewed, clearly constitutes parallel and/or closely
related coursework to the discipline which is specifically listed in “Minimum
Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators in California Community Colleges”.
2. In specific disciplines as named by the “Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and
Administrators in California Community Colleges”, a bachelor's degree in the
discipline, plus licensure by an appropriate state agency, plus at least two years

of professional experience, verified in writing.

Minimum Standards for Consideration of Equivalency to Minimum Qualifications in

Disciplines That Do Not Require a Master’s Degree

44



In order to be considered for equivalency in the case of disciplines not normally

requiring a Master's degree, the minimum standards shall be one of the following:

1. An Associate degree plus six years of related experience

2. Bachelor's degree plus two years of related experience,

3. Associate degree plus graduation from an institution specific to that field, plus

two years of professional experience in the discipline, verified in writing, plus

appropriate certification to practice or licensure, if applicable.

4. Pursuant to Title 5 § 53408, all degrees and coursework must be from

P

céllé@és‘iunivei‘éiﬁes ac&rédi&ed by onia-ﬁf the intersbgmental accrediti'ng

!

agencnes Westem Assoc’ atlon of S!choolskand Colleges Middie States

o

Assomahon of‘CoIIeges *and Schobis NewEngland Association of Schodls and

Colleges, North Central Assoq_qjgpns of Colleges and Schools, Southern

Association of Colleges and Schools, and Northwest Association of Schools and

Colleges.

Qualifications Established by Degrees and Coursework from Educational Institutions

QOutside of the United States

Applicants wishing to be granted equivalency based on coursework completed at an

educational institution outside of the United States must provide the following:

1. A transcript assessment by a third party degree assessment service.

45



2. Proof that the institution is accredited in its country of operation or in the United

States.
Local Minimum Qualifications and Equivalencies

Disciplines wishing to add “local” qualifications for hiring to their discipline beyond the
minimum qualifications established by the “Minimum Qualifications for Facuity and
Administrators in California Community Colleges”) may do say with approval of the
Academic Senate with a recommendation from the Equivalency Committee. Local
requirements may not be added on a course-by-course basis. quiya_lenc;y for the local

4

requ-irefﬁ'ent"w‘ili be determined through the édﬁivalency process.
Eminence

Although no legal definition of eminence exists, eminence shall mean that qualifications
which, as evidenced by prominence and celebrity, is established by the specific industry
and/or community at large and may be deemed equivalent to minimum qualifications.
This may include appropriate local, state, national and/or international associations,
trade unions, guilds or communities comprised of experts, who are themselves
renowned in the specific field, and who can attest, in writing, to the prominence and

celebrity of the applicant.

Eminence alone is not sufficient to grant equivalency. An application of equivalency

based on eminence must be accompanied by conclusive evidence that the applicant

46



exemplifies qualities of a college-educated person and brings to the college district the
knowledge and ability to expected at the college level. The applicant must provide

documentation supporting the status of eminence.

“.
s

Appendlx B ."R'elevant Education Code References.

1.  Assembly Bill 1725, Section 4 (p) (1) “The laws, regulations, directives, or
guidelines should help the community colleges ensure that the faculty and
administrators they hire and retain are people who are sympathetic and
sensitive to the racial and cultural diversity in the colleges, are themselves
representative of that diversity, and are well prepared by training and
temperament to respond effectively to the educational needs of all the special

pepulations served by community colleges.”

2. Assembly Bill 1725, Section 4 (s) (2) “The governing board of a community

college district derives its authority from statute and from its status as the

47



entity holding the institution in trust for the benefit of the public. As a resuit,
the governing board and the administrators it appoints have the principal legal

and public responsibility for ensuring an effective hiring process.”

3. Education Code, Section 87359 “No one may be hired to serve as a
community college faculty member, instructional administrator, or student
services administrator under the authority granted by the regulations unless
the governing board determines that he or she possesses qualifications that
are at least equivalent to the minimum qualifications specified in regulations
of the board adopted pursuant to Section 87356. The criteria used by the

_Lgo\mferning board in Ijl'laking the detgrmination shatl be re’ﬂected mthe
go‘vs;,ming board’s acti‘ol_ns employiﬁug y‘t'_he individual. The process, as Wwell as
criteria andstandardsby which.-’ih_e governing ani:a reaches its
detéirminatlons, sha;l‘be deveJ:)ped and'agr'eed upon jointly by
representatives of the Qoveﬁﬁi'ng board an‘d’tﬁe academic senate, and—
approved by the governing board. The agreed upon process shall include
reasonable procedures to ensure that the governing board relies primarily
upon the advice and judgment of the academic senate to determine that each
individual employed under the authority granted by the regulations possesses
qualifications that are at least equivalent to the applicable minimum
qualification specified in regulations adopted by the board of governors. The
process shall further require that the governing board provide the academic
senate with an opportunity to present its views to the governing board before

the board makes a determination; and that the written record of the decision,

48



including the views of the academic senate, shall be available for review

pursuant to Section 87358."

Education Code, Section 87359(a) “No one may be hired to serve as a
community college faculty member or educational administrator under the
authority granted by the regulations unless the governing board determines
that he or she possesses qualifications that are at least equivalent to the
minimum qualifications specified in regulations of the board of governors
adopted pursuant to Section 87356. The criteria used by the governing board
in making the determination shall be reflected in the governing board’s action
“employing thfef_i«_ijﬂi\ii_ﬂyal__”

Asssmbly Bill 1725, Section 4 (s)"f(é) “Faculty members derive their authority
fromf'their é}xperti'se_‘a's, téacher;sfaihd-;subjégt matter specialists and from their

s,taﬁ._l;s as professionals. "As a_.-‘il"'eSult, the fépﬁlty has an inherent professional

responsibility in the develoﬁnent and implementation of policies and

procedures governing the hiring process.”

Assembly Bill 1725, Section 4 (t) “While the precise nature of the hiring
process for faculty should be subject to local definition and control, each
community college should in a way that is appropriate to its circumstances,
establish a hiring process that ensures that (1) Emphasis is placed on the

responsibility of the faculty to ensure the quality of their faculty peers.”

49



Appendix C Legal Advisory Regarding Single Course Equivalency
STATE OF CALIFORNIAT ==

California Community Colleges

Chancellor's Office

1102 Q street .

Sacramento, Cal85814465611

(93;!6') 445-8752/

htip.//www.cceeo.edu

December 23, 2003

Mark Snowhite, Secretary

Academic Senate for California Community Colleges
428 J Street, Suite 430

Sacramento, CA 95814

Re: Single Course Equivalencies

Legal Opinion L 03-28

Dear Dr. Snowhite:

You requested our assessment of the ability of a community college district to establish
a single-course equivalency for hiring faculty. We understand your question to focus on

whether a person may be considered to meet minimum qualifications for purposes of

50



teaching a single class where that person does not possess the minimum qualifications
(usually a master’s degree or its equivalent) in the discipline under which the single

course falls.

As you know, Education Code section 87356 requires the Board of Governors fo adopt
regulations to establish minimum qualifications for service as a community college
faculty member. Education Code section 87357 requires the Board of Governors to
engage in various activities in establishing those minimum qualifications. Subsection (b)
of section 87357 requires the Board to issue a list of disciplines that is to be distributed

to the districts “for their use in applying the minimum qualifications for service.”

Title 5 of the‘Galifornia Code of RegUlationgf"f;’;if{é 5”), section 53407 reflects thé‘ éoard’s
adoption of disciplines lists: F\fthough the discipli;i'gs,lists are not fully set out in the

regulations, théy are incorpor;’té’;i;by retér_ence. S"e“qtibn 53407 contemplates disciplines
whef;a:iﬁés‘:té}’s degree is requiréd-.aé..a minimum dua.lification and disciplinesiwrhere a

master's degree is not generally expected or available as a minimum qualification.

Title 5, section 53410 sets the basic minimum qualifications for credit instructors which
include either a master's degree “in the discipline of the faculty member’s assignment”
or a master’'s degree “in a discipline reasonably related” to the assignment and a
bachelor's degree “in the discipline of the faculty member’s assignment.” We believe
that these Education Code and title 5 sections establish a firm relationship between the

disciplines and minimum qualifications.

51



Education Code section 87359 requires the Board of Governors to adopt regulations
setting forth a process to allow local districts to employ faculty members who do not
meet the minimum qualifications adopted by the Board of Governors. The section
provides that a person may be hired to serve as a faculty member if the district
governing board determines that the individual “possesses qualifications that are at
least equivalent to the minimum qualifications specified in regulations of the board of
governors adopted pursuant to Section 87356." The section requires a process to
ensure that “each individual facully member employed under the authority granted by
the [equivalency] regulations possesses . . . minimum qualifications specified in

regulations.adopted by the board of governors,” (Emphasis added.)

Title 5, section’53430 establishes the standards for hiring faculty based on
eguivalencies, and it echoes the Ianguags ofEducat:on Cede section 87358 that each
mdmdualfacqlty member must pqsssss minimum qt{allflcahons. As noted above, the
regulations contemplate a relationshibisshueen minirﬁu;n qualifications and disciplines.
Education Code section 87356 verifies that each individual faculty member is expected
to possess minimum qualifications under the regulations. The regulations demonstrate

that the focus of minimum qualifications for “teaching faculty” is on the qualifications of

persons to teach in a discipline, not to teach individual courses.

The concept of expertise within a discipline is reflected elsewhere in the regulations.
Title 5 section 53403 allows persons who have been employed “to teach in a discipline”
to continue teaching even if the minimum qualifications or disciplines list are amended

after the person is initially hired.

52



It is likely that the concept of single course equivalencies grew out of the provisional
credential that was available when a credentialing system was used to establish
eligibility for community college district faculty employment. Under that system, a person
could secure a “provisional” credential that listed a course that the individual could
teach. The credential allowed its holder to teach the specific course, but the
circumstances authorizing such services were very narrow. Former title 5, section

52223 provided the particulars, as follows:
“52223. A District shall establish the existence of the following facts:

(a)-1he. dlStl'ICt has made. everymasonable effort to locate,and {o. employ a person e

holdlng a credentlal dther than a provnsmnal credentlal to teach the partlcular course to

be named on the credential.

(b No..such-x‘:fedentieiied person Ig ready. able, and Vyﬁ{i_ng;_te accept such employment

in the district.

(c) The district shall employ the applicant to teach the course to be named on the

credential.”

Former section 52225 provided an alternative to the conditions of former section 52223.
Under section 52225, a provisional credential could be issued if a local board made a
finding that there was an inadequate number of credentialed persons available in the
state who were qualified to instruct in a particular discipline or skill and the board found

the discipline or skill to be an emergency area of instruction.

53



The services of a person who taught under a provisional credential did not count
towards tenure. The initial term of the provisional credential was one calendar year from
issuance, and reissuance of the credential could not result in employment to teach the
same course in the same district for more than three calendar years. (Former title 5,
section 52228.) Thus, even under the predecessor credentialing system, the norm was
that districts would hire faculty who were qualified to hold “regular” credentials, and

service only in specific courses was allowed in very narrow circumstances.

The current minimum qualifications closely resemble the former credential requirements
in many areas. it is telling that no current regulations clearly carry over the standards of

the pmvlsional credentlai |f é person were abla to producé a prow:;;onal credential that
Y
was reissued prior toithe explratmn of the eredentiallng system, and that person has not
exhausted the maximum three, calendar yeafs of mstructlon authorized by the former
re‘gulanons.;th_at persbn may be e;hgable'to serve undgr the terms of the provisional
crédential _up to the maximum auth;'J’r’iwzéd three calendar years of service. (See Ed.
Code, § 87355 that authorizes service under an unexpired credential notwithstanding
the replacement of the credential system with the minimum qualifications system.)
However, we believe that such a circumstance is highly unlikely, and we would need to
make a specific assessment of the credential and a fuller review of the former

regulations in order to make a definitive determination regarding the continued viability

of the provisional credential.

54



Based on the foregoing, we conclude that a district is not authorized to establish a
single course equivalency as a substitute for meeting minimum qualifications in a

discipline.
Sincerely,
Original signed by Ralph Black

Ralph Black

General Counsel
RB:VAR:sj

ce:  Fusako Yokotobi, Human Resources

Bobbie Juzek, Human Bésou rces

55






é“.‘” Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT VOICE.
Executive Committee Agenda item

SUBJECT: ASCCC Professional Development Plan

Month: February

| Year: 2016

Item Not V. D

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will provide feedback
on the draft ASCCC Professional Development
Plan

Urgent: NO

Time Requested: 20 minutes

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Craig Rutan Consent/Routine

First Reading X
STAFF REVIEW!: | Julie Adams Action
‘ Information

Piease note: Staff will complete the grey areos.

BACKGROUND:

Objective 3.2 from the ASCCC Strategic Plan calls for ASCCC to “Design and implement a
comprehensive ASCCC professional development plan.” The Faculty Development Committee was

tasked with the creation of the professional development plan and has prepared the attached draft

for feedback from the Executive Committee. Currently, the plan has a single goal “Deliver a
comprehensive professional development program for all faculty in the California community
colleges” and four objectives. FDC is hoping the Executive Committee can provide feedback on the
draft plan, with the expected adoption of the plan coming at the April executive committee

meeting.

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.




i



"SI29A 2911} JXaU 21)

"SS[NPOUL JO 395 JXaU oY) 10} [eaordde | 10 Jeak yoes sa[npowr INOY JO TNNIIUITE

1030211 SATINDSXY IRy pue UORRISPISUOd I19Y) 10§ so1do) AejA] e Aq (DAd) 23a110) juewdoraasg

9107 AB]A saprumoy) JusdosAs( Aynoe,] | [oRS S9PIUINOY) o>rnmuxm 1) 0) JUIsaI] | [BUOISSIJOI] 97} Ul SSULIDIJO o1} puedxg

"AJIAT[3PD JO ULIO] SATJRUIO)E

UE YA SULISIJO [BUOIFOI SUO SB[

" 1e soe[das pue sSunsow [euor3al uosiad

JOYRII( 2ATINOIXY “ITeyD) mﬂa_ow Jo sopomx aﬁmﬁoﬁ up | uraoejdar 01 s)seOpOd pue ‘Surdusioyuod

9107 wqudag sapnuwmo)) Jjuswdojssag Aynoe,] | sanianoe ﬁv&mo_m.»ov Teuorssgjoad oyea1) 09PIA ‘SIBUIGaM JO 9sn a1} a10[dxy

.&:EEE Jo d1oriva opam v Mﬁmﬁ mﬁm:a &mamﬁ fpuoissajosd saffo ‘71 341322190

‘ "SANIATIOR

9 justudojaaop [euorssajold 1ao

_ "S80Inosar \uQum< Io ‘s3unpsw [euordal Surpjoy ‘syuoAs

o pue sHIRAd uuﬂb nonﬁmwﬁﬂoo ojur | uo FuLwwred 10j s)sanbox Aue Furpiedas

IOIORII(] SANNOAXH IRy wﬁuﬁﬂlﬁnoﬁ qomy; mﬁgom 303 A1[1q1Ses] Ieak 3 SULIND SONTIILIO)) ATINOIXH

9107 A2 3PPIWO)) JUSWO[RAST ANar )i | Qnﬂgoo 2ANDSXY 2} 0} JUISII] 91} 0} SUOHLPUSWIUIOI3T OB

iy A "IeoA Surmoo

u _ | em .ﬁﬁ mmmno.to yuwdoraAsp Teuorssajord “Teok oes

' FO = Suruweld 10§ siseq e se Sugeswr | KA Ul SapALOR [enue Justdo[aASp

.5625 oEEonM .@ao i, u_ ABJA $31 18 9O1IUIIO.) SANNOIXY oY} [euolssajoid Uo 9o IWTO)) SANNISXT

9107 Aoy oBﬁEE,o.u Juotdopas(] &ﬂﬁw& 101 SUOLEN[BAD JUDAS JO AIRIIWINS € JUISIL] 9Y} 0] SUOTIEPUSUILIOIT BN

. oy "SOWOdIN0 | (S3Unedu [PUOISAI “SIIMITISUL ‘SUOISSIS

Surures| paje)s uodn paseq AyAnoe oes | “o°T) A)1AnoR JusWdo[RAp [RUOISSajoId

L1-910Z 5 SITRY) sepwmay) Supuelg I0J SUOLJEN[EAS SJRUTWIISSIP PUR 21831 DDDSV Yoee 10y sawoono dojpas(g
AUT[AWILY, PIPUITITIOINY E«m u_n_m-_e%vm SUONOV sa1daens

R
ki
*

il

Saganon awdopaaap jpuoissafoid IHHSY .\e SSauaanaffo ayy appnagy (11 sandalqo

CEVETITOR) b.::EEm@ EEPE«U oﬁé— A1moe; e 10] wesSoxd yusmidopaap [enorssajo.d sArsuaaIdWOod € AT 11805 dd

WALSAS IDHATTIOD

ALINNWINOD VINJOATTIV)D m—mﬂ. gm HZHE&O..—H.?WQ TVNOISSHAOUd ALTADVA AVA'T € TVOD NV'Id DIDALVILS DIISV

..

uslg yudmdopaa(q :Eo-mmo.ﬁc.ﬂ muwo__oo Aylunwuw o)) eNLIOJI[E)) J0] 3)BUIS JWIPBIY

"ADI0A

sads1100 Ajunwiwo) elvIoeD J0

TANITWHEIMOAdWE "dIHSY¥Iawvwin

=
_

3JeUSS JIWISpedY




L1-910C

ey

I010211(J 2ATINDDXY “ITRY))
29131UIwIo)) Eeqao_obuﬁ A)noeq

(0ad) 9897100

juowdofaAs( [eUOISSSJO1 A} JOf S[NPOWT
© doaAap pue reak goes juswdopasp
[euorssajoid paseq A1nba 19130 03 anunuo)

*PoIIY 21 S3JEpIpURD
159q 29U} JB5E OXISUS Q) SUOTROYIpOW
aqqissod.asodoxd pie Aimoey own-yred
pue -y wgogaﬁﬁ pasn sjapow
JUALMO 21} JO \ﬂomo@bs aﬁ [0IE0sOY

"STOIEO0] JO-lALiRA Y

B UI mﬁmmb%v SB [[0A SB SONISIAAL
Eooﬁo Wwowedefus :w:chm srood

. Ajnoey JO-§JIsaaTp JUSUI IR ST} TO
aﬁgﬂugw ?qﬂmﬂum&n :E&:mv IBJ10

*$2391100 AJUNUIMIOD BIWIOII[E)) o1}
Ut AJnoey 9y} JO ANSIDAIP oY) 9SLaIOU]

sasnduind m&vﬁ@u i paaiy M'ua Aypnonf auy -pnf fo Asaaatp ayp aaoidwuy per 24130310

L1-910C

SIOqUID UL quEEoO.wiasouxm
‘I0100II(] 2ANNOIXT IRy

soprmo)) Juemdoeaa( AJ[noe,]

_ _ /
: m "SUONIBZIUBSIO OPIMaIe)s
u@ﬁo ﬁgmmﬁﬂozﬁdnﬁuﬁno_o\ﬁv

| m&ﬁoamomo.a a[qrssod a101dxs pue Ajrjuap]

...\

"9)eUag OIWOPROY D) Y}
pue ‘ajeusg o1uspeoy NS ‘NSOE “‘GO0V

VOOV D100 ‘AOVIOD ‘0SSIDDD
‘OIDDDD Furpnydul suonezruesio

SPIMAIE]S JOTJO0 JO SOOUAIOJIOD O} puaje
[[1M 29PTUINIO) SATNOIXT 9} JO SIOQUIIA

"SIATIRIIUL Jueid

aimny [[e u1 Justrdo[oAap [enoissajord
Aynoey 10] ajqisuodsar ATrennd

ST 9]BUSS OTWIDPEOY 21} JRY[) INSUD

0} 33IO S L0][eoUBYD) ) YHM HIOM

"Aynoe] 10 Juewdojaasp

Teuoissajord ur DDHDHSV 23 JO 9foI
o1} sdnoid yIo Yim 93EoIuNIIOo))

§2327100 Apunuinod viuiofiv) 2y up suoyV2uPS10 12130 Ypum sdrysioupind asvasouy £°[ 2ai1221q0




P
:
-

-

L1-910C

SIOQUISUI SPTUIOJ). 32Uy [BO0]
‘SISQUISTT AANITIO)) SANNIIXF
“I010AII(] AALNSOXY IRy
IPIO) TUS WD [3AS(] ANnoe,]

u?qwm 0] J99JUN[OA 0) WAY) 9FBINOOUD
PR 901AIOS 3PIM3IRIS JO dourpOdWI
21) 0} )Mo} SONPOIUT O} 0IPIA B JJBII)

‘Jeuosiad Sunew waym pue
SIUDSA3 T8 SINQLUSIP 0} DSV 21} JO JIom
oy} moqe sjeLlew Sunayrewr dojaas(g

“SJUDAD
DDDSV 18 siopessequuie SUIARY SNUNUO,)

"Snones
Aymbo ue Jo uonead oY) seInoouy

"UOISSILITIOD FURIPaIdse

o7} pue ‘SIOWIDAQL) JO pIeog a1}
$9210] yse} pue sdnoid A10s1Ape 20110
§ JO[[90URY)) ‘seanTmIunod Surpue)s
DDDSV uo apimaeys Sunedionred
Ajnoej 3o A)is10ATp o)) dAoxdury

<

L1-910T

SIOQUISIU SNIWIHO)) SANIAXE
‘1019911(] 2ATINOAXH “IIRY))
sopruwoy) Juswdopsa(g A)noe,

“Sanlanos
Aep (yuowdofasap Jeuorssajord) xayy
Supnp juowidooaep reuorssajord apiaoig

"$9jeUss SIusproe [e20] uo Sunedmiied

Aymoey oy Jo ANSIDAIP o} srordury







L

Academic Senate

i—
S for catiforaia Coinnunivy Collegas

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Board of Governors Taskforce on Workforce, Job Creation and
a Strong Economy Recommendations Implementation

Month: February | Year: 2016

ltemNo*ILE.

Attachment: Yes

DESIRED OUTCOME:

Review the Workforce Taskforce

Urgent: NO

Recommendations Grid Time Requested: 10 minutes
CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Bruno/Adams Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW?: Auliz Adams Action X
a_ gt gt b o [nformation

BACKGROUND:

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

At the January meeting, the Executive Committee reviewed a spreadsheet that delineates the
Workforce Recommendations and assigned each of the 85 recommendations to an ASCCC
committee or lead individual. The spreadsheet has been revised to include the assignments as well
as additional information from the Chancellor’s Office. The spreadsheet will continue to be updated
as the work on the recommendations progresses.

Action: The Executive Committee will review and approve the WFTF Recommendations

spreadsheet.

L Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.







'sjuawalinbay

qof pue spsau JaAojdwsa |euoi3a) pue |220] pue ‘saiunlicddo Bujuies| paseq-yiom ‘sj|js ssaulpeas-aoe|dysom ‘Suiuued uoneanps pue Aemyled

3.1 ‘uonesoldxa pue ‘uoieseda.d ‘ssousseme Jaale Uo Joddns pue ‘s32mMosal ‘uonewLioful anIsusyaJdwod pue pajeIap apiacid o1 $10P5UN0D
989]|02 Ajunwwod pue uoneanpa jnpe ‘jooyas Y81y 4oy $j003 Suiuued [EUCIEINPS PUB J33.48D IA11I34S ‘UoWwod Juswaldw) pue dojpasg ‘g

OIS ST} U0 S[qE[IBAR SR
qol pue HOTEWLIOJUI 102180 0]
INUID J39TLD 1) WY $$9008 OARY
TED SJUAPNIS [[8 JeY} OS Se0LAJas
AFo[oun23) Ia)uR0 180180
poddns o) seyeuss [eoo] o1
§S300V IS|Us)

193IE]) puE Jow] L6S 1(071¢

“TOAS] S3E)S o1}

12 sAemuyed roores ur Sursoaut
pue SuneOIPIOED JOJ S90IN0SOI
pue sjeod o3ues Fuo] epnfawr 03
SIOTR[SIZS] PoISRIONUY A JI0M
pue ‘sAemmyed 190180 oFaqj00
Aunumon 03 [0y g3y

Idd | eruof[e)) ur syusunsaaur srpqnd $5200N8

armng pue juenno yoddng pue uoneredaxd

amjepsido Sumuerg Juopms

Q0 S5UEY 3U0 ] JO UONBUIPIO0,) Burpregar

uspoN s Joj[asuey) pue sAEmTYIR ] 15518 sarorjod

JVIPUE DSSV.L +9107 MM LI0sLApY ‘AOVIIID 407 surpund yoddng €15 709 10 sprepue;gy

[eua10d sBuIUIea pue puewap 1HEW Joge) uo SIUIPNMS 359105 ANUNWWOD PUE UONEINPS ) NPE ‘jooYdS
Y31y o3 uonewuoyul apirold pue Sujuue|d 1931ED JO SSIUIIEME BU) SSIBJ 0] SIIAISS 29JUSI JIIJED pue Lioddns 1USpN3s 10} S3IIN0SL BPIAOI B

"Sjuapn3s Jo} spoddns Jayjo pue ‘senjunuoddo Suluses) paseq-yiom ‘Suluueld pue uoleJojdxa JoaJed 3dUBYUS pue uapeosg ‘T

IRFIMUIO))

aunfaui |

o DMNNUQU,‘.\U
2014

uonIy

SADULIDF

suonsod juaiin)

2OUDPING 40
Ajod papaapny

[+01

DDIOSY

SSAIDNS INAANALS

SNOILVANANINODHY AINONODHA ONOULS V ANV
‘NOILVIE) 90f “IDI0NOM SHONYIAOD 10 CIVOS




1e) werdord 19018))-0)-[00T[0S mopnIs
oyt uSisap AJ[ERIULA0 [[IM Supredos
uBAIUINS) yomsm dnoig ap 03 puownuooay] sarorjod
JSSV.L L10T “U0T uep Sgosupy SSauateMy” Iaate]) 64 T1°1T 10 spepuelg
“590IA19s aailJoddns pue quawsaoe|d qof “Bui@sunod JaaJed apiroid 03 Ajloede) 35ueyua 0} SPJeOQq BI0PIOM YIIM 2)RI0qR|[0] P
papiaoid
UOTID2IIP Ja0 sdigsuonerax
Ol “12ASMOT] 9521} Suuauans
-Jumures] paseq JOJ SUCTIEPUSTUIIODDT SWHOS
-jpom SurApms Anoey 0] apraoid pue sejemas
ISV pue Aynoej [eco] pue sweigoxd
ay) Surpredar OVIAIM aousuadxo JJom moomiaq
SHO¥RAIg mﬁOﬂEOn—ﬁﬂcu SATI09[JO
pue suonn[osal | seauers (I 1oy saonoexd 1saq ayeSnsoau] | -sSuneow DI
[eroARg 0D “Yoelorg Surnoodn o msmdopaasp
UBAIUINY ‘dofeasp SIOppe] POA0AS SUTNIES ] | 0} UOUBSISAUOO wexdoxd
DSSVL | 910z sundg “UoT ueh -0D DDOSV d®) PasBg-310M 908 10°0T S PPV [eucneonpy
sdiysaanuaadde
pue sdiysusajul Suipnpaul ‘saunpoddo Suiules| paseq-yJom 1eupI00D pue dojsAap 01 SPIEOY I2104I0M pUE JOge] ‘ANSNPUl UM YoM D
e
0} paje[aI SI U
OTIBPUIITEOD3T
SHLL
"S[00) SunaNIeT
SNSIDA
5100} Surnoerd
[euOTIBONPS
Jojuomdofeasp | WO[MOLLING e
ay moqe u
uorsnFuoo owos | dwdo[assp
‘wIsAg storoyp uw | Werdord|
CI1-D = 01 pan joo) Suruued | onepusunmoos: | BUONEONPH e
[EUOIZONP2 PUE J9ATED B YIIM ST AJuepo | $sa0ons pue
I0M 20IO | seoyas Y3y sopraoid Injjoo L. 01 DDDSY o | voneredard
SH[} Shunuo 5 JO[[20UEYD) Jurpesuno)) (saneniut ajeusg PUR TS 0D JuSpMS
S9T0T[0 4 0} Burpuny 1d9d SIUSPRIY UR) TONEMOINY | Jo dnoid [ews Surpredax
[euonIRINPH 910T o9 ‘dofarsp ‘enIosuo)) 393T[0)) 01 jooog supealry |  eiegofol nd | sororod Jo
Pue H8EV.L Arenigeq st ned -00 DDOSV [euoisoy ‘SABMTIEd JoaRR]) SPIMIIEIS [ 0D 9L Splepuels e




I0J SUOQEPUSUIIIOISI JUIOS wexdoud |
A)noey 09 apracid pue seyBUDS ‘ssapoxd | BUOTEONPH e
pue Ajjroej Tesof pue suerdord wWnnowny) | $8905ns pue
WNSAG SNISA sousadxa oM Tsam)aq Iopopy | uoneredaid
(1D ydnormp | pue siojeSiaen SHOTRIOQE[[02 2ATI08[R PUE (O1-D o) juopmys
ssofford | 10100Q T MO 107 sao1oexd 150q 9)eSNSAATT |  UI JUDTUDAJOATE Surpredol
UBATIOIND 0 ‘dofaseqg Ajnoeg yroddng Sumaes] Ansnpuruo | sayod 10
aro +910C U0 ueA D208V sundiosiq P3SEQ-3IOM 90S T0°0T | UOROSHp ASI[OJ |  SPIEpuelsy e

"SIUBLISSBSSE Paseq-AdUS1adLLIOI JIUBYINE SB YINS SWSIUELIBW ySNoJYy] JUSWIIUBAPE JUSPNIS 913|084 03 JOPIO Ul suonednioo paynads
Joj ‘Adojouyd3) Buipnpul ‘s31oudzadwod [|pis pue paseq-yiom palsinbal AJquapl o] Allsnpul yym @1eutpJood 01 Ajjnae) yoddns pue aiqeuy ‘e

*$9W001n0 pue ssaldoad Juapnis 31y saosdwy)  *7

JV'1

910T

Wema)g
S0UIA

KIOSTAPY
D008V

"sjuapnis 317 289

05 Ajunwiwod o} weidoud J Juels je3 syl Jspun oddns [e3uBUL S5E340U) 0} suoyje pwoddng 7y

JTHID

+910T

TSPION
osma(]

dofasagy
DOOSV

“Surpasunoo

I291e0 Ul 30uaLIadxo

aARY oym Lynoe] Aq pado[oaap
WnnoLumy ssousIeme

J9218D OU) SABY O S0I0,] YSET,
19012)-0}-[000§ §JOUISACD)
oy 28m 0} eapIIIo.)
9ATINOXH JY) J001i(J

TBaren)

-0J-[COV9G 10Y JTUSmdOTaAS(]
WINOSLING 6.4 C1'1¢T

mawdofeasqg

[BUOTSSJO1]

sanlanoe
yuowdora.ep
reuorssajoxd
Lnoey

10 sa1o1[0g

‘swesdoud 310 o1 suosiel] Buneusisap Jo oyisads 317 se S10[2suUnod duneusisap se yons

saa)oeld 1539 jo ueys ay) pue Juswdo|aAap |eucissayosd ySnoayy

Bujjasunoy wesdoud paier-317 apiacad 01 s1ofEsun

02 jo Apedes aoueyuz 9

TTOISIO3P TIaY} (L Wit djoy
0} 9[qe[mrar uoneIodxe 101D
pastatadns pue Surjesunod
JO2IBO SINOY ()] ISBA[ 18 2ABY
UWInnarums SIATIEIID}| B I2JTBD
PUR WHNOLIMD SSIUAIEME
193180 JO JJSUQ 1) pey

10U 2ABI OM SIUSPIYS ISOTf)

$8020N8
pue uoneredoxd




*JONIEW Joqe] [euorda. oﬁ wWym _.%oun sqof 10y sywapmys axedasd yeyy sdemmud Ja0aud _qunamE-hbm-.m.E azdqnd A[peoaq pus ne-u?uﬁ €

ol

.

oo SAVAHLVL SIIIV)

soAneuasardoy
oVSd

+910T

Iex med

dofasa(g
JOISY

S9JeUag (820

Anoeg
aurdiost(

*Ioumem
seudordde ue ur sureigoxd
HID 0} S[qeNnS JU2)uoo
ysi[Suq pue ‘sonemay)em
orseq ‘saroualadwos

SNVDS spnjout 0} sdem

uo (Aynoey IS pue ‘Yssug
‘sonyemmatyem Furpnjouy)
A)Noe] JOO THIM HIoM

0) AJ[NoE] UONBINPS [EOTUT93)
JoaIe0 [B20] aSeImoouy
Torsuedxy 9sIn0)) SeIdoLy

TeuonednddQ 604 10°1C

sanIAnoE
juomdojasap
[RUOISSSJOL

UIMJnoismny)

*$9SINOD WONJBONPS [BISUST
OJUT JUSJUOD Paje[aI-1991ed SUIPpIquId pue suresgosd g 1) Oyl S[[js AS0]0uyo0) Pue SSIUTPRLI JI0M. ‘ST OISeq SUIZIen)xojuos ur Ajmoey uoddng  q

“JI0Mm JO pHOM

Sura]oas a1 moqe Surures]
UL JUSTUSAJOAT] JUSPIYS pue
Aynoey syowoxd pue peddng
2omRHedx

90BN IO M\, TO DIJTUIUEO)

SPMAIELS 664 £0'1T

S{fom pue
TOT)EONP2 UM} HONIDIOD
o1y} 998 sjuepmys d[a1] 03
Suures| paseq yrom yusmardun
0} 5080700 10 sourepm3

pue sar8arens dojosop

0] 9910] jSe) ® YsIqelsy
Jurmmes |
PoSBQ-3I0M B6d S0'0T
wnnowm) e
-sdrgsuone[es LI
asay Sumom)Fuans swdojaaap




u
swdoraaap
wexgord |
UBATUIOC) AI0S1APY rUONIBONPH
NpaIduoN +910T “UOT, UBA 2008V TINNILLIT
“suonendod Jnpe 10130 pue s1oues] s3enTuey ys1Sug ‘SURISIOA ‘SISHIOM paoeldsIp Jo 5paoau of) Jeawr sAemiped 1oores omsug 0
‘paziyeuonmnsur st wersold
B (ons 310J2( Uorezmesio
[BUITIXa UR AQ PAIajJO
shesmyped remonms pasodoid
AUE 3SI0pPTUS PUE S)BN[BAD
01 “00NTIUTIOY TNNILLIND
S A UOTIRI[NSUOD UT ‘ajeuns
Jmapese [800] o) annbaz
Jey samiod pue sassaooxd
[eULIO) 338210 0 $a8a[00 pur 108
Aynoey | SAIBUSS OMUSPEIE [E90] 35 PUB | puUR WNNOLLING
[ooyos ySrg | imaraind A)noe] sunmIapun 1o [opot
‘sJuspmys Jnpe TUSATINAID Jey) SuonezmedIo a-o 9sn
‘sdnoiSxiom | TewsaIxe Aq smexBoxd s{emied
Aynoeg JO uorsnyut oy asodd(y mdum 111
oudrost(y Lynoey [ooyos | 2undofaAasp
(a-o ‘sromred SRemreg | ySmyiopssaocad | Ererdord |
URATTUING ym) dofeasp Ansnpm JETOOTIND) 3O Jamdo[2AS(] | Sutumuusyep uo | BUOnBINPY
aro +910¢ “UCT, UBA “00 DODSV | pue 92I0HOM [E00THOdANg ¢TI ZT6 | Uonoalp Aorjod | WRMSHIN)
"Apm)s jo swrer8o1d a35[j00 ATUNUIIOD 0} SJUSPIYS JNPE PUB [OOYOS Y31 vorysury A[SSOTUIESS TRy} SSLIBIPOULIIT ANSIPUI pue s1omued
SOI0JHOM 1210 PUE AYNOLY YiLm PIJBIIPIOOD ‘sAemyjed PouLIOfUT ATjSnpul pamionys pue sa13ejens pausife-Aj[eaoi3al 1o paudie-aes dojoasq  °q
WM MoLLnD
soumred [epour (O1-D E
Ansnpur aurdoraaap
(aro ‘yoaforg samanoe | werford |
M) dopasp SIappe] jowdofeasp | eUONEONDY
a-o +910T | I[em ured -0D DDOSV Isale]) Jenorssejord | WONOLLIND

'S[ERUapaIo pazrudooar-Ansnpur o puodsaiios yem sjurod yixe pue Anus s[dnjnw yim sdemgied ulisap o) sa3o7j00 pue Anoe poddng e




JSSV.L

+910¢

Jo[em meg

AIOSTAPY
DOISY

u
swdofoasp

wesgoxd |
euorRINpy

WnnoLn.)

‘uonejuawIadun Aesed 100reo 0] srendordde se srereq 9A[0SOI pUR AJnuap] ‘o

saIod
[euoTIEONPH

L10T

oYM wed

EDIOSTO))
Jeuorday
‘dnoiny

4 WO

5, JO[[20oURy)D)

‘dojaang
DOO8Y

“S]0LIISIP 00708
pue 539[[02 §)0q JOF $IAIUSOUY
pue sjuawannbox LiMrqeyunoosoe
JO oy sy sjoword

Pue ‘(1009.L§ 9poD wonesnpy
mau pasodoid ot mn  senjiAoe
[euononysyl,, SurueaU Sy

JO UORIUIJap Jea]2 B sapnjout
1ey] Juswuonodde aATe001 0)
SJOLISIP TOOT]9s pue a3a[[0 o
JOJ SUOIPUOS PUE SPUStaIThbax
ot Jo uotneyaIdioym
PIM-TUR)SAS JeI[0 ® opriold
*sSULISMIO 95IN0Z JIIW[[OFUS
Tenp SUTATOAUT SI3IRUN
Iepnoruma e ur Aovurud Lnowy
98s]100 ANUNIHUTOD M9ssE
‘SIUOTIORIEE JUSTH[OIUD [BNP

Jo juswdoraaap o) Ul sojeUas
[BO0] YIm TOTIe}NsSuoo [e1dsyjoo
growmoxd Jey JuowI[oIu? [enp JO
uonejuaw[duwr o) Uo pfaIy o3
0y saut[apIng JJelp o) swoured
WIBISAS YO PUB 30J(O)

S Joj[eouBy)) oY YIM NIOM

SOBPMS JOOI0S

sanmumIodd() JUIW[[OITT [Bn]
Surpuedxy 1oddng $1S €09

smeidoxd
YUSTI[[OTUS [enp
Sunuamwayduny
30 seonoerd
159q dofeaa(g

u
amdorassp

wexdoxd |
BuonEONpy
e

"shemuied 31D pue JUSW||CIUS [ENP ‘UOIIRINDILIE 31B11[ID8) 1B} BIN3LLIND 31 |apow uBije pue dojaasp 03 Aynaej Loddng  *p




IVV

+910¢

rEMIG
a0omA

AJOSIADY
D008V

A[[NJSS320NS SIUSPNIS JUNOD O}
wstuegoaul v dofoasp 03 20130

S JO[[20UBYD) SU) [IM SHOM

TOnS[dWo,) T3p|Mq-STITS
70 TONTB055 F14 10'8

marasl wrerdord
IOJ $9553001

*sjuawauinbal Bunlodai

[83p3j Y3m 3)qneduwod aJe Aay) ey sansua pue sweaSoid 319 Papunya1e)s jje Joj SILIBLU SUIOINO UOLUWCS USIje pue ‘Qunweass ‘dojpasg e

Au.Lxe 3pIA 31} 193331 12)13( 0] SSAIINS JUIPN)S JO UCHIUESP )

puedxa pue smesdoad 1 1) papuny-3)e)s [[& JoJ

*SJUIPIYS 2F2[0) AJMUNTTWIOD JO SAUO0IINO L) JO

LW VIOPI0A UOTUTUO) NBIL)

O2LA0 NY VIVA TRIOTNTHOM . L7
WnJnoLLmo
Jepotu wu
SPR[OW 0} IS swrdoaasp
J0adoos oy | wexSoxd |
dofaaop Pa Suwpuedxouo | BUONEONPH e
WNP2IdUON AN Tred ~0D DDOSV HOPY ‘4a0 'q1 93§ | wopoamp Aofjod | WMMOHIND e

“Burye) es1moo 71 fey) ued sjuspms 935100 Aunumos djay o} Jopio wr skeaped 1) 08a[[00 AUnNWOs oy uoneredard moreonps Jnpe
Pu® 100y0s Y3y wioyy 3urspliq 10j sjoo} Apms Jo smerdord dojoasp 0) saAneHIUT JUSLIND Jo uonejuamadun pue Juswidoraasp Surofuo oy poddng

m
amdorasop
wexdord |
doraaa(g ROOTIRONDPH  »
WnnoLLms 1ayjepm wed D008V qg 99§ ummoumy e
“sjusmaxinbar 9213ap ojeroosse puz 1.0 YI0q 123U JBT) S9SIM00 Yiew pue gsiSug pardde dojaaap 0y A)noey ofemoous pue sjqeuy S
Uoned0[[E 1u
SOINOSA swmdopaasp
uo L10s1ape wergord |
pue doasa(] euoneONpy e
do¥ Dvsd 9107 | Jed[em wed JIO8V qz =% WNTOLLING - e

"SQUIIIOSTp STIIYS D1SBq UI PaUIen A)[Noe] (I UONERIOGE}[0D U #[noLumo Kemyyed
OUT STITYS $$oUTpEal doefdyjIom pue ‘o3endue] puosag e se ysyFug Yiew ‘ysyTug SIR{s SISBq SZIBMX3IUCD 0) AI[NOBY 0] S90INOSOI OPIADLL ]




"swesdord pue suonnINSUI $30.15¢ SHUSPNIS 10J SAW0INO pue ssaiSoad 3210 I0M YR 0)
BIUIOJI[E) I[qEND 0) swes3o1d Sulure.) pue uopEINpa A1spuodasysod Ul PAYJ0.IUI ISO1[) Puk SHUIPNJS [00YIS YSTY 10] JSYYUIP] JEIPN)S € YSIQEIST  °S

IVV

910T

UAIUIIQ
ueA MY

AJOSTAPY
DDO8Y

“Bp 90§

moraa1 wrerdord |
10] 83589001

*5313su810eIeyD JIydesSowap 1uapnls AQ sawoaino podsy

DOVS
IVV

21104

TOJSTI()
U A 901V

A1os18pY
DOOSV

‘sagejioa Anrunururod
BTIIOII ) 9T)) JO UOISSTUI
PSYSTIQRISS Y} [PIAL TUSISISUOD
‘monedwos Jo siejemered
PIeA st sue[d [eronEoNpo IS
uo §1203 [EUOHERONPS PAILIS-JAS
SIUOPNIS [ENPIAIPUT SZ]UF0201
O] 9ImMe[sIZ9] pue 201J0

§ JO[]20UBYD) ) A YIoM
pue {sa8aqj00 ArunuImos
BIWIOJI[ET) U1 JO UOLSSILL
POYSIRISY S YA JUSISISUOD
are gorgm “yuewiojdus
Suraoxdum 10 Ymowiordms
Sumred ‘sanisioamn oyearid
pue 31E)S-JO-IN0 0] I9JSUET]

se yons siaawrered noneduios
pue s[eo§ JeucnHEONPS

19730 2zm800al 0] axne[s1ga]
9y} puB BJEp J99[[00 0} 35TJO

S JOJ[92UBL]) 20 LM JIOM

ToTe[dwo]) pue
35900NG JO SUONIGa(] UspeoTg

P14 2080

mornor werdoxd
JOJ $28590014

"(1uswasueape 19818d pue JuswAioldwsa Sujo3uo Joy pauinbal 5395 s 01 Sulppe pue SuIUIEIUIBW IR OUM SIDNJOM) ,SIaP[ING
S|IPIS, PUE (SUOINUISUL 1ESA-INOY Ul JUSLL[0IUR IO ‘SSBUIPEII-13)SUEI] SaaJ8ap ‘SHUN ZT Uey) JaMay SE pauyap ‘Sa1ea1J1ua9 Hun-mo| Suipnpu
‘S91ED21II3D UIBTIE OYM SIUBPNIS) 51912|dwod,, L10q Jo) S3W0IN0 Buluiel] 82104J0M SSIUPPE 491134 O] SSI00NS JUSPNIS JO UoIPuULSp syl puedxy g

‘suorjerduos
se suerd [enoneonpa pojoduwos




A TVIRRAD

VY

+9107

URATIUING
-uo] uep

9104 AIOSTAPY
OISV

‘sdvd aoJopyIOMm SSHIppE

o1 Ayroedeo [euonEoNpS S,U0IBaI YaEs $59sSE 0} pue puewsp pue L[ddns soIopi0m ui sded pue saBueyd amydeo 01 Ayroedes s sje)s oy dofassq P

‘Suneaur Arenuey spr

1 ooloxd suyy wo Sumedronted
IOPISUOD 9q [[IA SONIWTIO])
2ATNDAXT AT, ‘sear[od

£11 [Te 01 pIEOqUauUNe ]

UDIIUIII() AJOSIADY Surpuedxo vo sdnoid Joo wol
IVY +9107 i i JOISY 03 resodoxd yua1mo € ST a1oy |
"BIEP SWONNO WIPIYS UL JA3IBUL IOGE] JO ASN 1) 10 $28a]]02 0} $]00) SISA[RUR PUE ‘S[00) UONBZIBNSIA B)ED ‘QOURISISSE [BOIUL09) OPIAOIJ O
UBAUING A30SIADY
VY +910¢ -UOT UBA DIOSY
"sipunled Alsnpur yum uoileusioju) puewsp pue Alddns j1a)Jew toqej sjepilen  'q
pleoqyoune TSTSUILI() AIOSIAPY
ovv 910¢ UBA 2V DID8V

S]qesn pue S[qISS3a0k A[ISEd AT J8Y) GONRMIo)UL/Eep o1ydeISowsp JUapi)s Pue ‘SN0 S0IOPIOM JaMIRIE JOQR] SPTAOIY

B

*§)10JJ3 yuatraAosdury pue Jusmidopasp weaSoxd L)) UI 3)€)s ) Pue ‘spasoq JUSUISIAUL XIOPLIOM [I0] ‘saaiofdurd
‘SOI3a1 ‘53321102 “s10)wINPI ‘syuapnys J1oddns o) ejep J9IETH JoqE] PUR SWON0 JUIPN)S Jo A)n pue ‘AIrqissade ‘Lrenb ayy asoxdary

‘9
IVD/SSVdTED

dpa maAngN AI0SIAPY
oVY L102 Anqy, D008V

“SIy8u Aoeanid Sunoojoid osfe spm ‘yusttaacsdur urexfoxd snontmuoo jo ssodmd 21} J0J aIe SanIAnoe SULIRYS vlep aInsug D
IVD/SSVd-1ED TRIITUUI) AIOSTADY
VY LI0T UEA 901V 2008V

"B1ep 40 FuilkyYS Aj3WI} BY] J0j SIAIUBIUI MBU B1BBIS PUE Blep Bulieys 0] ‘pIAI20Jad pue [eal Y104 ‘Sidliieq a10jdx3 'q
IVO/SSVd-T2) Wemag AI0SIAPY
VY 910T SIUIA DIISV

'$11IU JUBILIBAOE $SOJE BIEP UOIIRINILISI/S3sUadI| ALEd Py} pUB SAW0IIN0 a8em/JuawAoldws Jo Buueys ay3 asinbay

‘B




01

01 $95))IUI0) WINNOLLND
PUB 52JBUIS JIUAPEIE
[e20] 9310 {BNOMMD [9POWr U0
peseq se1eoymIa0 pue soaIsop
10 UCHERCHNUSPI IES[O SINSHD
0] UOTIRUSISap [e1oads © areaio
PUE B[NOLLMD [SPOW JO TOTIEAID
a3 ul A3nowy SudIoSIp Jo JFom
SuroSuo o 9s10pUL AJ[RIOTIO swdo[aas(
weIgo] |
dofanag TINNoIINY) [ePOJN GUIZI[BULI0 ] amonng | FUONBINDH e
a-o 9107 | 1ayjep wed DJDSV PII1T60 (dI-D 99} o8(] | Wnnatang - e

1

*s989||02 pue
Aynoey Aq uondope Joj pauapisuoD pue PaziWoIsnd aq UED 1By} BINJLLIND [pow SuldoRAap ul UO[REUIPJO02 pue dysIopes| [9A3[-21.]1S BpIACLd  °q

WOISSag TI0T Ted =

Aq uoneuLojuy sy juasord pue
Ansnpul pue $sauIsnq Jo spasu
Jenorund a3 o) Surpuodsaz

ur saonoead aanoagye syowoxd
pue ‘siapireq AJIuapl ‘seonoserd
Juaimo 210[dxo pue ‘AIaAl[ep
WANOLIND Funuatua]dur
A[SVEIPOUIWIL JO SUBO ©

SE UONBONP? 10BNUOD JIPId-J0J
-jou Jo 2sn oy} pue sassaooxd
Jenowamso Teao] aypadxa

01 STUSTUBT[2OW JO UOTIBOTTIUSPI
o) Surpnjout ‘Ieumew o)

B UT ANSNPUI pUe SsauIsng

JO SP23u IBINOLLING A1) 0)
puodsar Apaerdordde o) sAem
Jo uonesynuspl o) poddng

141D TeATUING dojensg SPOaN ATSTpU]
WOnoMIny 9107 | -uolwep 2208V O} SUIpUOUSSY 114 016 wnnoLny

$89001d Juemdo[aAdp WN[NOLLING Sy} Ul ANSHpPUT pue sseursnq Jo jusmaFedus [eaorfas paaoiduil 10§ SWSTUBISW JUSISTOO JJBAI) B

JUIWAO[duId 0) WOTIEINP W0 JUSWUITE 2INSTD 0 §83001d Judmwrdofasap WINMILLIND ) IS[AL PUE UIITUI.S ‘AQuneaq °L




1T

Surpoday A1qeiunossy ay) se
Uons sjuawmoop aaneredwos 1
BJRD JJLINOIE SIY) SPNOUT ©) pUE
wergold e yons ur Sugedioned
adsyj00 yors 18 suresord

9S01f) UL SJUSPNIS JO §§900NS

pue Tonsdmos yodar pus yoen
APremooz o) sureadord ymrofuos
s $352[J00 MOJE [[Iat

1B SIOWISAOL) JO PIBOE Y

0] suonepusuosal dojossp

0) 931 § Jo[[ouryD )

T JIOM JSUYINT PUB UOISSag
Areus[d €107 Ted a4 e

sdas 1xou ojqIssod pue sSurpury
o) odax pue swerfoxd

roluoo Jo osn o) Supuedxs Ju

Jo Aypiqrsed oyy arofdxy awdofaaacy

weigol [

dopaaap | DOVS “eohIO SUEXS0Tg Jovs | ruoneonpyg

WO +910Z | Jouunys yuy | =00 DDOSV s Jo[[oauey)) JaToluo)) [eUOIdoY IS 206 M OZTILICH] | WENNOLIN
*$882(107 usamiaq sweidoad aaleloqe)0d Jo awWdoPAlp 3Y) 1o} ssaa0ad e o1eRN) D

$20132p [ons 10J sseoo01d
1eaoxdde om Surururesns
IOPISUOD PUR B[NOLIIND

[9po Uo Poseq SABOHIHAD
pue s30180p 9ZIUS00a1
AJferoyIo 01 A%IQ 5 I0[[OUEY)
o) 931 pue ‘eMOLLND [POT
uo paseq ssasdop s[qeiedwod
i s939[]00 UsaMleq SJUSPIS
JO SUOnISUEN) SSO[UIESS SINSUD
01 sjuswaaIde Arooxdioar ydope
PUR ‘B[UOLLIND [9POW O} AIape
18U} pojuRLIEM USyMm $00180p
do[aaap “syeoS [euonesnps
Jia) SuTASIOR UT SIISPIYS
jstsse 0) Lemped B sB BNOLLND
[3pOW JO si1jauaq oyl azmSooal




(4"

1od pH
WID[NOLLN

+910C

Lox] ue(q

doyo.aep
-0 DOV

sI012ONPa
1oRIUO)

AQ POIIY 3TR A)NOET 953
‘SOSINM0D UONEONPS JIP2IOUOT
PUE JIpaIo 1980uo0 YoBd) 0}
AY[noey UL VoYM JBUE ISR
01 SJIOMSIP JISY) UTQIA SHOM “f

PUE ‘SJOMISIp Jratyy T

S9SIN0D UONEINP? NPSIIUCU pue
JIPOID 12BNU00 YOBa] 0] PRI
aIe AJNOBY MOY QUTHLINI(T “¢

pue ‘S3SIN0D

UOT}BONpS JIPAIJION pue

JIPAID 15eNUOs Yors) O Anoej
Surmy ustm A1sanssdsar
soundIastp JIpaloucu

PUE 1IpaId 10J pado[a.aap atom
e} suoneoyIenb WM 91
98T 0) SIOLNSIP JSY) PUNSY 7

pue ‘A124100dsa1 $5SINCH JIPAID
-JOJ-10U PUE JIPAIUOU YIPaId
Ie[n3al 10} Pash aIe SE $25IM0D
UOTEONPD JIPSIOUOU PUE JIPIID
1oBIUOD I0] Pposh sessasoxd
Tescxdde owes a1 asn

[ 321 sampaosoxd dojaas( 1

:S3JBUAS [B0O0] JBY) WILTeY

UonNEdPY 10B0UC) (64 ZO'TT

uoneonps

1ORIUOD
Surpuedxs pue u
Sunuowiepdun | Swdopassg
103 ssonoerd weIS0I] |
SATIORIIA U0 | BUONEINDH
UONOAIIP ASI[Od | WINNOLLIN

“19uuBwW palpadxa ue

ut Allsnpul pue ssauIsng J0 $paaU JIWeUAp SY) 133W 0] UCIIEINDS 19RJIU03 J0 asn ay) Sulpuedxa pue Suidojaaap u) s98s||02 pue Ayjnoej yoddng  p

*$13(]0 PUE ‘SPIBODIOOS
aZaqrop Almumuio)
aup ‘spodar (DDYV)

saFa[[00) ATunuIuIo,) of) 10§




£T

;525321100 T220] o1j1 JO Apnis opim
-312)8 # JOnpUod 0] 99))TUIIo.)
2ANNOIXT o) 109

SI5)0E7) JUSTIUOTaAS(]
IMUOUOIH,NIOD +68 T09

10°TTSA0IALSS

pue swexdoxd uoneonpa
1oenuod w uonedonred Lnoej
SN[ IOJ SOALIIIOUTSIP

pue sIolieq Sunowor o

pue ‘sassaoosd

wnnotund sjeudordde
SUOFISpUN OABT] PAlljo
$98IN0D fe JeT) SULmsus *q

{80918 JO PIROQ [BD0] 3N} PUR
9leUSs OIUOpROR OO oY) Aq
uodn pearde Apyurof sessanoxd
seudoxdde ySnomq paurg ore
pue suonesyyenb aendorddes
190w

surrrgoxd woyeonps 10BN JOT
pauy Anoe] jey) SULINSuL B

:£q uoneonps

10RRUOD 3A01dI 0) SonSes|[o0
Bumuredeq 2Anoo([o0

[e00] 12T} THIM JI0M O} SIIRTRS
JIUISpEOE [200] 9FRI0ouy

uoneInpy WeRuo) 664 90°1C

-Anoweg
JIPIdUOU e JIpaso Jefndax

Sunmg 10] paysIqeIse uaaq ARy
yeyy sampsooid oy Furmorroy




12"

APLMIYLIS TBY) OINSTL
01 1044, §5F3[[07) AJUNIWO)
BIIOTIE) JOJ jeUag
JMWUPRIY 21 1B |, “POAJOSSY

TonEnIpI00)
WMMILINT SPIMINEIS €076 FIS

's83004d [eacsdde
WNMOLLING PUE 23 ITULIOD
WNNSLLND [200] ) JO [0 3}

uaseam Jety) $1I0JJ8 Aue asoddpy oﬁaoﬁgum
Kowwiiig merdoid |
KIOSTADY | DOVS 20130 A0 Y pue uepq olooieny BUonEONPY  °
TOTnOLLIT 910C | 1o9em wed JOOSV S JO[[23UBYD) PO WASAFIT, 904 T0°L umnmoLang - e

"SI §, JO[[30uey)) 37} e $50001d [eacrdde winmotuns paul[ueans B 9mMSUS 0) UOHEUIPIOOD [QAS[-0J¥IS OPIAOL] ‘B

‘Teaoadde winmoLLIND
PAUITIIEIHS PUE “dAISUOdSII ‘AJotin) 2015Ud 0) §52301d [eacidde wmndLIIND T1D IPIAa)R)S pue ‘[BuorSal ‘[8I0] 9Y) IDIN0SIA PUE ISIAIL ‘IJEN[BAY '8

‘surexSoxd

Je[ngor uI e 03 Juafeamba

st styexdoxd yons 10y Sunpy
pue ‘vonerado quomdoyossp oy
T AJ[0B] JO JUSTHAAJOAUL I}
11 ATuo s1sjua)) juswdoaaacy
ommouoaq J0 juswdofaaap

a1y poddns pue ‘A[sanjuelsqns
£J[noe] 9AJOATIL O) PUE SAT)OR)JS
aq 0) UMOTS U2aq 2ARY Jey)
UONEINPS JIBQUAD JO S[OPoW
Jeoo[ mowmo1d pue ‘sassoooxd
g wonoe aAnEWIgR
Fupnpu ‘strexdoxd yons jo
uonesado pue juaurdoessp o)
ur A)Noe] JO JUSTISAJOATL 1}
0} nonuape renonted Surked
‘HonEONpa JORHUOD JO 95N




ST

(Ovad
WnOLLI,) paIsem M3
IVY ueAI[IINE) doraasp “VAaIm MIATY WeIsoig issaooxd urexgod
JTd1D +910¢ “UOL uBA -00 DOOSV SNS/NSA 10] SJOOL 4oreasay $1S SO°L | SHIM 2a0xdwy] | JOJSS900IJ e

"883001d Moaraal pue

juswmdoraasp wesgoxd sy ur L[noe s suonezueSIo S0I0JI0M ISYIO PUE ‘SIIUD justido[aAsp STOU0oS ‘spreoq aoIopjFom ‘s1okojdwo o3esug e

‘BJRP JOYIEW

10qe[ Uf Pa)I3Y3L SB ANSTIPUT PUB ‘SSIMISN] ‘SITAPN)S 03 WA weaSosd 2msus 0} sassdd0ad wojsiaal pue ‘monen[gA? ‘Morsdt meidoud sscxdug g
‘ssoo01d
M31A3] 91 JO 1081 pue A)uSnm
o) Suiazesard o[y “Iotaen
ATomy e ur pajusuradun
pue ‘pastass ‘padojosap MSTADI
ST WAJNOLLING JETy} SINSUD wesSord
01 I2pJo I sa559001d Teacidde 107
WAUILUND It Spen[eas SOSSO00L] e
0] §29))IIIUIOD WIN[NOLLIND
Pue ss1euss [820] 9310 A[Suong wu
amdoppasq
3559001 WM[OOLIY weidoid |
UOSNEUS)G doraaa(g [€007] JO SSRURANISL) euoyecnpy e
umpmoLm? 910T neq I8V Sl Jo uonenyery ¢1 30°6 WRnoIng e
‘$a3oy100
PUe £)[noey Joj 20UB)SISSE [OFUY0S) Spraocid pue sosse0o1d uoisiAs1 pue uondope B[NOLLND [600] UT $a01)2e1d 5A193]JS ojeummassip pue Ajyuspy o
A10S1APY
2IVS +910T | To[eMm wued DID8V

'853901d [eA0IddE WINNALLNG [949]-3Je}S S OJIS[SI0E 0} SOJ() S JO[[SOURYD) O} T SIOINOSAI PUE FULels JUSIOJNS 9PIAOGI]  'q

[lqrxey
pue ‘ssapmueas ‘snoxodu
urewas sAesmed soored

-0]-UOTINTISUI PUB UOTIRSUI-0]
-uonmusur 1y os ajerdordde
SIS1M PIIEUIPICOI-IANT

PU® ‘BIALIP A)oey ‘papuny
UIBTISY STIR)SAS WINNOLLING




9t

's1omued soxopjiom pue ‘siafofdws ‘gers o3o100 ‘Aynowy ‘sjuspmys woxy indur pue
SAWOANO JU3pTYS ‘¥IEP JoxIew Joge] uodn paseq souenupuoosip werdoid pue (Surfooar) yusursacidur wersoid 1oy seonoesd SAT}I3I9 SJowoIg  'q

surexgord A1D

103 sessaoord aaraar weifoxd
o1} SumWeans 10j seonoerd
JATIDO[JR PUE SPOYJOUW O
saomosalr ysiiqnd pue dojosag

BETASY
MEIB0IT AT ¢S ¢0'1¢C

"€10 1184 £q YoIBasAI SIL) JO
syrnsaz oty Jodax puE pIEOOICOS
$,9831]02 ® Uo BlRp DDAV
paimbsai 3q) 0} HOPIPPE UI Pasn
2q At 1e1)) BIEp 2AneNEnb pue
sAnEuenb [EUONIPPE YoIESssl
01 52807709 Yise Temred pue

; tsafa1100 HrumnmIos BIIICII B
JO TOTSSTII SU) Ul POIJIIUSPL SB
S[20% [enpIAIPUT JO AJOLIRA B JO
$95INO? 9[FWIs € Jo nonadmod
Burpnyour satwosino vonejdumos
Juspnis Jo a8ueI peoiq

B OPN[OUL O} paugap aq p[noys
$5200NS JUOPMS 18] WY

$8800Ng JUAPTHS
JOo uonmugepay ¢l ¢0'el

'59852001d A91a0T teaSoid
[e20] 10§ vjep [NJSUIUEOW pUe
saneyenb ‘2anemuenb Jsgo

1813 S[00] yareosar dofoasp

19Uy 0} sarouage sjendodde u
1210 puUR 01O S, 10][25UBYD) car-n | Swdopaasg
a8e100 AyunTumony —wnpnowmy | WeiSoid §

BILIOFI[ED) OT) IIAS YO M SINpojy | euonEonpg




L1

o
omdoparaq
werdold |
—dopaseq aimonng | BUOHEONPH e
ar-s 910T | Isve wed IJO8Y ({II-3 5[] | WNnaiumy e
"SPadU usmo J1a1) 0) ydepe pue 10595 UeS $380)[00 puE AI[NOES JBT) RNOLLING [SPOUI 5110 JO AJojsodor orsqam & dojoss( e
‘saondead 1) 2ARIRY0 AemuAssp put Anuapy ‘dopasq 11
b1
sudopaas(g
wersor] |
ueATIUIND dopaasg amjonng | BUCHEONDH e
{ossvi) arp +2102 “UOT TeA OISV dr-Des[) | Wnnauny - e

"§901A108 Woddns 1om10 pue ‘sopfunuoddo Surures] paseq-yiom “e[nOLLND pazLIB[npour pue syustoduwmon a[qexor)s apnjou Jep
semmyed ajqepod pue paseq-Aousjaduics ‘usaup-Ansnpur dojaasp o) ‘Ansnpur s uoreynsuoo Ut ‘safafjoo pue A)noey sfemnoous pue o[qeUy "o

O0VS
o)
}IpaIouoN

+910¢

USSR
[meg

dojoasp
-00 D008V

TAVD
HIOV ‘HOV

wnjnoLuny)

S)Ipa10 SuIpreme pue sousuadxo yrom pue Sunwrea]

‘sAemiped 410 premo) yuswsoe[d pasueApe 1o
Toud SurziuBosar oj s3559001d Buraord pue SuTuI[UIEsns J0J $20n081d SATIOATTD SJEUITSSSI(] q

“SIBMYILIDD
pue ‘saaidop ‘sasmoo ‘sweifoid
dorasacy A1 SIepOWwIoIdE 0} (I ammonng
ar-o +910T | 1ooepm wed 001014 4 -0 pepuedxa Apesife seq (I1-0 [igekn WNMOLIN,)

“SUOIINISUI SS045 UOLEINJILIE D|GeUS €] S83J88P pue $31BIIJ3D ‘S8SIN0D J17 10y WISAS (Jsyunuapl 85IN02) ,Al-J, Y1 32.n0s3L pue dn ajeag e

suopnyns ssodoe Amqelred Jemaruma e 01

WINNILIN,)
ovVVY UISTIBYUO)S dopasa(q M3Ta%1 merdorxd
‘T0od "PH +910¢T [ned DDISY "BR 999 I0J $9889001]




BT

‘ded Juom2AIYIE oY) 2S0[D

pue Aymbs saordurr o) Jpaouon
Bursn Surpnpour ‘Upatoucu
Sunyoogye sjustndorassp

1us2a1 apn[our 0} L]0T Jundg
wey) J9e] ou ‘6007 Junds w
Apoq s £q paidope 28uspoy
puv drunpioddyy suotonagsuy
npatouop 1aded sy ajepdn

pue ‘wonjonnsur pue ‘sureigord
“WN[NOLLIND JIPAISUOT

Jo voneuswaydun sjendordde
9} WO plaly ) 0) asueping
juRAQ[aI pue A[owmn sapraoad
Jey] NIPSIOUOU U0 JUSN0P
MU B SBOID 10 20UDID)

D 1D J1PaLDUo)N TUSTNI0p

9007 Y 951401 0} s1ouTed
waSAS 18I0 pue 29T

S JIOT[2IUEY Ty 273 YL JIOAN

[ RATe]
USSHBY UG dojasa(q JTPAISUON] 10T o20EpIng
JIPAISUON 9102 ned JDDSV WaSAS 37epdn) STA 20 €1 WMMOLLM,)
"93paMouy pue S[ID[S P[INg 03 Sjuspms 717 40f senmumuoddo opraoad o) pperoucu Sursn 1oj seonjoerd 159q SJLUNUASSIP pue AJNULp]  'q
UoANZN S10S1IApY
DOVS +910% Anyp D008V umnopIny

"saonorxd pue sororjod Sunusura|dun ur sadafjoo 1sisse 03 suonenIor uonnedar 25mod Jo uonelardiojur AJue[) B

*spudwa.nmbal [Ip{s uj SASUBYD J091U 0) SIA[0AI JUIJUG ISINCI UIYAM SISIN0D F I, 10] Uonyada 3s1mod Jo Sanss| ssaIppe pue saanoead AJe)) 71

OTHLD

+910¢

UASTIRYUS)G
ned

dojaasp
-00 3008V

2monng
ar-desn)

"
OTJEPUSTITIONY
0} }95UU0)

01421 wrergord
IQJ 59553201

*swe.doud
312 Jo Aljenb ay) soueyu@ pue ajepijea Uioq 01 Yoeqpasy spiaold uea slapjoyayes Asnpu| [euoi3ad a1sym WalsAs aanoelslul ue dojpaaq  'q




6T

et} pue ‘me[ [eIopaj pue )e)s
£q pazmbai [us axe ssssaooxd

BuLmy 9ATN0SYYS pue JTej Jey)

uRANgN Sp1eoq [e20] TLIOTL 0} SO

Anyy S lo][auRT) ST Yy oM
/ Aosuoeambyg
d»S UISNBYU2)Q dopaaap 5901081 SULH pue sO-
oVdd med -00 DDISV sALST] pue He 7S 10°¢ 9poD uoneonpy

‘s3duseAInbS pue

suoiedyijent wnwiui yo uonedijdde ayj pue Aynoeg assaaip Jo Bulliy pue JUSWIINIGAL BY] Ul Sadeld JAIIBYS 2leUIWSSSIg g

*a2180p {SOID Aaang
QJ2ID0SSE e 107 Ing souauadxs

Ansnpur saey ogm Lnoej KLouafeambs
Jof suoneoryifenb wnuuToy | pue souenndxs Aouspeambyg
uadAndN dofeasp Surpredas suonisod [ea1 ou Ansnput uo pue sOIN—
95 Any [, -0D DDIOSY Ing SUONNJOSAT PAIIJal [BIOADS | WONOAIp Ao1[0] | apo)) uonesnpyg

-aousliadxa Ansnpul yueorradis ssassod
inq spIepue)s SuLTy 93a]]0 FULSIX 109U 10U KB Oy sI0onnsUl 7.1 Suumy o} sioureq A1ojenSer pue aane[side) Ajue[y B
‘saondead Surny pue yueunmadex Amosy 71D Jmssasppe £q s103nsmr g1,y paymenb jo jood a1y aseaouy €1
AXTNOVETIS : x

S8220n8
pue venesedaid
Wapms
Smpaedax
eM2)§ AI0S1ADY sarorjod
V'L L10T SOMIA DIDSV 10 SpIepuelg

"a3pa[mouy pue S[[DYs JAT) Ysa1yal o) syuspn]s 10§ uondo ue se pajerdmoo Aysnorasxd sasmoo
1Ip30 Jo 3uyipne moffe 0} AJIqIxXa[ ATesse0au oY) Yim sa8o[[00 spraoid o) 937 jpne pannbai-ojels & Jo asn oy Swpiedal sororjod Junsixs astasy o

TONBONPa
a0I0IIOM pUe ST[IS OIseq
ynpe uo sisegduns pasearour
ue 3uIssaIppe pue ‘Surpuny
uoyezienbo noperedolg
a8afjopAusmdoasacy
Ioare)) Surderons]




0¢

SUIJU] ‘uonjesnpy
[EUONBOOA €64 ¥0LT

*$15Y B9} 986][00 ANTNTITIOD
SUI002Q 0] 928 OTM

sjuopnys sjenpeis pue s1oyoea]
Tooyos yang 103 stwerSoxd
drysuayun a28emoous g)
wersoxd e *Jo poddns [emueuy
231 pue ‘0] sainpaooid pue
suonenSar ydope s10UIBA0D)
Jo preog o) 1ey) pUSWIIOOFY

TOSNBYUIRNS doasagy SIofoes ], o990,y
[OEE) meq DDSY 210Ul 10y dIYSUISU] 065 20°6

Juajeainba ayy 4o aas8ap ajeposse ue uinsind ajIym asuaadxa
pue ‘a8pajmouy ‘sypjs duiyaesy uied 01 $989)|00 18 LID1UI 0] S|eUOISS3}0.d Allsnpul 1o shemiied sajeauyap 1eyl [epow diysiolusw e ysigels3

SVOI 2030

§ Jo[[aouety)

DTAID madnsN KI0SIADY ‘S20Mosay
ovad Anyp D008V wewngy

*suoljeziuesio [euolssajold Aisnpul
pue ‘ssauisng ‘uoilesnpa JaYB1Y Yum suoilesoqe]o2 ysnoa asiuadxe Agsnpul yum Aynsey 3831102 Ajunwiwod uniaal o1 sauradid dojaaag

(9)09¢.8 3po)) [eucheonpy
uy parytoads se ajeuas ormropeoR

[eoco] o) pue precq Sururaaod
oY) U39MIDQ JUSTISITR

juiof axmbor (s | sampasord
pue ‘sororjod ‘erIaLIo

Surmy Aoy, 01 saFueyo

Aue jey) $)51NSIP [2IO] TWIOIT
01 901} () sJo[[eouey)) o3 o8
pue saakojdurs 1oy soonoeid
Suug 0AN09]Je pUE IIR] 2INSUD
0} A1prqisuodsal sjonsip

' pare3oIqe 10 pajeurul]e

JOU SEY] HOISIOAP A[JSUTO.) o)




T¢

*K)ISIAIP

Anoey asoxdun o) swerdord
dryswoynr ur woyedionaed
SaB8a[[0o e puedxs 0 sajeUs
OTWPRIE [B20] 3eInosug

sdrgsuat 0S £0°L1

“(s1eudoxdde atogm) sumonoexd
Bumjoeo) pue ‘so11s Surures|
SSIDAIP ‘Arooy} Surres]

apnpour 0 521do) ‘sjuowesuene
drysuwsymn o) 9y1s1bar-09 10
aysmboioxd opews pue smreifoxd
Bupsixo oyu payerdom

aq Avm 59802 oS sadaqoo
AJUnuIuIes ur yoea) o wepd
oy 2501 oxedard 1on0q JRT))
swreidord poe sesmoo dojoasp
0} Arnoey 0397700 AUNUITOD
4 SIRIOQE[]0D O KJISIQATU)
QMBS BIUIOJI[ED) PUE BIIIOJE])
Jo AyisIaAtup) & Jo Lyjnoey

oy 23m 03 (YY) soreuag
OTUIPEDY JO SONIUITIO))
[BIUOWIZOSIANUT ST YIIA IO

TemdoEASq
810083 a1mn 668 10°6

"o11Y J0J smoneogjenb
WO Supeem

JO Jea£ SUO UIyIM OIB OYm pue
aar3ap s Jvsely e Sunbox jou
som[diosip ssom) 10§ surerSoxd
W2)UI AJ[NOE] aZLIONE

0} TONB[SIS0] Yoos SIOWISAOD)
JO pIeOg 1]} 18} PUSWIIONY




[44

d¥Ss

U2ANSN
Anyp

doesrag
D008V

B[ 998

. sioponnsut diyseonuardde oy suonesiienb
mnwium jo ssausjenidordde oy 4a1aa1 0) SISPOYSNEIS 15YJ0 pUE ‘SUOHEZITRII0 Joqe] ‘Ayjnoey Sumyoes) diyssonuaidde sanejuosordar susauoy 3

d¥s

usAn3N
Anq L

dorasa
I8V

5P €1 998

“pannbai 10 payoadxs Jou st sa1Sap s J05PW
B omm 107 samdiosip asor) 10f ‘suoneoyijen]) wnurury digsusu] Anoe ‘70ses§ § opr 1wewafdiur o sourpopms soword pue dojeasg o

JTH1D

maAnSN
Anr,

dopaasp
-2 DIOSV

(wungy
uyor) 0430
§ Jo[|20uey)D

24P €1 998

-sdysmIs)uT pae

dousradxa j}10m 10y SI0SIALRANS 9)1S-T0 st 9AI9S Oym s[enoISsaFord Ansnpur 41, 10y sopnpowr Sururen pue sourjapmg dojoasq  p

2ad

TUSSNEYUIS
[ned

dojaasg
DIV

SaMIALOR
juomdoraAsp
[euoissajoxd
Ajnoey

J07 saronod

"JIpI0 930[[00 FuTHIES S[Iym S[[DYs BuTora) ured 0) sTeuorssayord Ansnpur 10§ Ajumroddo ue opraold 0 sjpao uoHEONPS
Jumunuos Sururelqo jo nondo oy sapnour jer) 5597100 USMAO[RAA(] [BUOISSAIOI] DDISY 9 YSnomg SINpOTA SIS Teuononnsu] ue dojoas(] '

°d P

USSNEUIS
[ned

dorasaag
DIO8V

#4PE1 298

“UOEISmAdUIL 10] $2F9[[09 0] )EUTWIASSIP pue A)[nawj-uou

s sdgsiomued

Surgoes) reyuswoyddns pue ‘Furrmos] Jsans papseu azoym
sdmjswsur Ajnoeg se yons uononnsur 41, oyur sfeuorssajord Ansnpur SuneiSsm 105 seonoeld opImaels pue ‘euordal T2907 2ALD]J2 JBAID  °q

d¥Ss

meAnIN
Anqy

dojaseg
DIISY

"DDDSVY 9y 0} sassaoord
suonesyienb umurmorm £)noej
P21e39[op SIOUIBAOL) JO pIBOE

Aouoreamnbyg
pue SO —
opoy) uonesnpg

"SSur[dIoSIp 1D urgiA suonesyirenb
wnunumy 10J Aousrearnba Sunuesd uoym sa89][02 [BOO] Je pasn aq ABUI 1ET) BLIIS [RI2UST YSI[qRISa O} OPIAMaIE]S Aynoey aurdiosip suaiuo)) B

‘sured3oad [euonon.nsUy

LD 0juy LI Juedyrudys ssassod oy sjeuoissajosd Ansnpur 3pesdayu so31aq o) suonesyyenb wnnyunu Supeem Jof suondo JapIsuoy) ‘pi




€T

'SP3U [eRuLIaIIp AJefes poddns 0} Aunuwmoo Teoo] oy pue Ansnpur s dmsismred sJemooug q

saAneuosarday UISNEquasts AIOSTAPY
[SECe) e DIOSV

'Sp{ay Ard-y3ry ur spoou [eRUSIaYJIP ATRRS OT) SSAIpPE 0} Suonenodau Joqey [Bo0] Jo ued se padojoasp sasnoeid 1$aq pue S[9pO AIRYS pue 5jEs1) B

*sa33[[00 Ayunurwiod uy oy FL) AW033q 03 suonednade pariees-ySny ur sTeuorssajord Aysapur 1ova)e 0) suennjos asopdxy 9y

§S01ATIOR
yuamdoraaap

[euorssajoxd

T UISNEUIS dojaaap Aynoey
OTHILS med -00 DIDSY 103 saraned

“WISAS adI0p[IoM 91} puR s1akojdmo yym suonseunos pue aFpajmowy surdiosip
Juewmdne 0} FUIles pue sJuAS ATSnpuL ‘s[estieqqes se yons juowdo[aAsp [euoissayord ur oyedionred o) A[noey 417 103 senmmioddo asearon]  p

sanunde

yuswdo(aasp

I9Ju97) 85900NG Teuorssajord

oad BUSGT dojosop Juapms Anoey
OSSV.L BS2IY [ -0 DDOSV | ‘suomn ‘SOID 10 SaIOTOq

*$980[00 ANUNIIWOo PUE TONBINPS J[Npe
‘woneonpa A¥epuooas o} nounuos s[oo) uyuueyd [euonEONPS Pue 1901E0 3O 95N oY) Hoddns o) SI0[ESUNOD 10§ juswdoraasp [euorssejord aplaor] o

sanpuanae

jusurdorosop

UISNBYU)S dofersp | seanejmesaxdax Ajnogy

Q0 [req -6D DDISY IdA1 10 SO

"AouaLmng arnsus o sapeaddn [[Dys Jo spoipsw Iomo pue sdISUIa)xs ‘ouy) pauSissesl sSOIPpE Je) SAANUS0UE
13410 pue [eosy 3jea10 pue Juswdoyeasp jeuotssajord ur uonedronued L)nowy swn-yed pue -[og JuaAa1d Jey} SISLIEG [RIMONIS SSAIPPE PUL Amuuapy g

SONIATIOB
Juonrdoraasp

[enotssayord

eud ] doasaq A noej

oad BSAIRT L, DOV 10J S3Iot0q

“AZo[omyoe) 3o asn oty Surpnjour ‘sa18atens pue spoyiow uryoes) wr SUTUTED Qi A)noej Ne spraorg e

"NURAII uresdoud pue L1snpui urjurew 0y Aymdey A1) 10§ senrunyieddo yuamdopaap [enossajoaxd sdueyuy S|




e

$BULIJJ0 25IM0D JO UOTJEUIPIOOD
Jeuotsal 10 saonoeid oanooge | jem) smonenSor
pure so13orens ojqrssod 1s088ns ary
pue Jo ANIqIseay o) Yoreosay aIe -- S1aLueq
apqussod
uoAndN SO0 | F0J WNIIOSHOD
JOVS uRAIIING dopa.asp Anq, 3SIM0) JO UONEuIpIooT) [euorgar
ao “UOT UBA -00 DOOSV I JOM [BUOL33y S1eanSoAd] £1S 10°6 D0 Asamng

*S[PPOW WIN[NILLMD JJ8)S J0
[euofdal Suizipn sfesy)ed 103183 SUOTR UOPBNINIE ISIN0D AZI[EU0IFL 0) SITI[[02 AO[[E 0) suonwmIax s ‘Neurdordde se ‘Ayrpowr pue Ayar) ‘|1

(€qL1)
SITINASTRA
OTHILD ueAluIng Krostapy
‘od 'PH “UQ) UeA DIO8V AMa

wo18ax oy AQ paznuoud se sardsiens pue Spoou IS0 9PTACI] =

"8101095 ANSNPUI JO Spaaul [|Ns Burajoas o) puodsar 0) Anoej Jo juamdolaasp Jeuotssajord ymol oddng

‘Bunreys juswdmbs pue josse ojenoey pue Sunereuws juol 1onpuo) W

*BUC{EUI-UOISIOoP PUB “UOHEDIUNIUIOS “TOTEGIPIOo? [euolfal uo saonoead 1s0q oS

‘Spaeu Ansnpui [eUo15o1 U0 paseq S[EYUaPaIo panfeA-Ansnpul pue skemied Anus 710 uounuos Jo Juswdo]3ASp MOYE SUOISSNOSIP SUSAUG)  »

‘Spadu AGSNPUL PUB SSOUISTL] J00UT 0 UOISI o) UTyiias s959[[00 QJBUIPIOO)) &

SIS

Juowdo[aAap SIWOU09d Pue SPIEOq S0I0PI0M ‘SIOAOD YIiM UOBUIPIOOS UT S10J00s SMFIows pue Ajuoud uoALp jopew 10ge] 97eudso] =

Buimof[o] 911 Op 01 pauSIsap SI JIOMAIWRIJ [Buci3al I o) 1Bt amsuy  'q

NMda
UBAITUIM)) KIOSTADY BIIOSTO.)
OT1d1ID -U0J UBA D200SV [euoI3sy

"5289(102 Ayl pue 0D 3Y1 Yim sdiysuoie|al JIayl pue SIapladld 3IUels|ssy
[exuyaa] pue ‘sioledlaeN 163335 Andaq ‘sioleSiaeN 101935 ‘e[lI05U0) [euciBay B JO BJNIINAS JuBWaSeuBW |BISY PUB 3|04 Ayl Aje) e

*Spaau

JIew Joqe] [BUOLSAI J9ul 0} S3ZI[J0d A1) PUE SII0JJd A1) [BUOISII UIRAMIIQ SUPEW-UOSIIP PUE ‘UOHEUIPI00D “UONEIUMUTOD UNPSTINS L]
. : : NOTLVATIIIOOD TVNOEDTY TN |

saAneuesaIdoy ueAIUING) AJOSLAPY Zosuonisod
Q49D -UoJ ueA JOO8Y uipunj enuaagyiQg




5¢

[e43pay 243 Japun padojaasp yiomawel) [euoi3a) ay3 4o uonejuawalduw pue suoya 317 9851105 Ajunwwod Sucwe Juswuge SjeupIoD)

"BILIOSUOD UOIIEINPS 3} NPE 3Y) pue 12y AllunioddQ pue uoijeAouU| 825010

"3
ELjiite)
§ Jo[[oouBy)
HOVIDD
AIOSTAPY BILOSTO))
DTHID £or] ueq J00SY [euoIday
‘dn-pels wesgoid mau Yum paleRosse ys1 ay} 23e8iu pue spaau
|euoiBaJ 19aw 03 A)sedes ping 03 swealls Buipuny SdJopJoM pue 317 [es9pa) pue 31e1S a|di|nw a8elaAs| 0} suclieioqe) 0o ads)joo oddns  p
PO
B (V)] lalvi A i)
‘HOVIOD
UBAT[UING) dorasacr ‘BIIOSUOD) amjonns
ar-o “IoL ueA DIOSV TeucI3ay {I-D =4l as] oL
'SUO|83) $SOIIE S|RUBP2ID PAN|BA-AIISNPUI UIYUM PIPPAQLUS 135 ||[INS 23B|NdILY )
20O
§ JO[[3ouBy])
AOVIDID MINASY
redprd URAITOING) AIOSIADY ‘BIIOSUO)) urexrdor
VY -U0T U A OISV Teuorgay J0J $9852001J
"uswasosdw wesSosd snonuiuod 1og apiacid 1Y) Joge| pue Alsnpul Wwody spoylaw yoegpasy dojgasg g
2010
s Joj[souey))
HOVIOD
TRAT[UIR) AJOSTAPY ‘enIosuo))
214d1D -00J, UBA D008V TeuOI3ay
's21833.4)S 101235 03 pay; uswsBe8us Joge] pue Ansnpu) 2JeUIpIoo]) ‘B

*SJI03F3 WL, TIE JO AI0AT[P ) ao1durl 0) sapnua jusurdoaasp
U002 PUR FIOPHI04 JOYI0 pue “toqe] ‘Ansnpur 93a[jod Hunwurod Suowe sdnysiomaed (puonesodo pue digsiopus( [puoiSaa dopaaq 61

uo1ssog A1eald 410 fed

o 1@ s8utpuyy o) Wodal pue
sjuspnys 10§ AJ[IGR[IEAR 98IN0D
onoxduw 0} saSorjoo Suomre

¢UOREB[MONIE
feuo13ss yuoasid




9t

"swesdoud 319 03 pea| ey} s8snod J9Yio pue swelSoud 317 Jo 1500 ya1y ay1 19sy0 o1 Sutpuny 1a8ie] e

‘SPIIU JAIBW JOQE] [eUOISAI 0] 2AISTOdSAT a1€ JET)
swes3oad pue sasanod 1) Anpenb weyuiew pue ydepe ‘9peasd oy Ayoeded sa8a[100 Ayunurwed asgardur 03 adanes Fuipuny ‘paure)sns e ysuqeIsy ‘7z

DNIGNDL
18104 ned A10S1APY 20JO
DSSV.L fRoaT, ue(t 000SV | sJof[eouey)

"TONEINPS [EINUYIS) JIIIED JO IN[RA ) PUL JIHMuUENE pue jraurdo[asap Jea1e3 aouroad

0} A5IR[ JB LJUNUWUI0I 1) PUEB ‘J)s ‘A)[noej ‘syuated ‘SI0[asumod ‘S]uapn)s [ooYdIS

43y ‘Ansnpuy 0) uSreduizs gaeano J[qnd ‘poure)sns € eI 7

_ T

§ Jo[[2ouer)

‘AOVOID

ueAfuIng) AIOSIAPY ‘BILOSUO))

141D -UOJ UBA DDDSV Jeuorday

‘spieoq Alosiape

uo uonedpined pue “poddns sajioe) pue juswdinbs “uswhojdws ‘s1aanyoa] 3s9n8 ‘sdiysusaiul Suipnpou sweaSosd 319 Joj poddns apiaoad

q
MITADY
weIgorg
201JJO I0J S9850001J

s Jo[[eduen)

‘AOVID0 uawdoraaop
GBATUING) AIOSTAPY “BILIOSUO)) wesdoxd
J1dLD UOL UEA JIO8V [enOISay [eucnesnpy

*SpJeq 9210I0M

pue ‘saniua uawdo@asp 210U ‘sapusde a1els ‘SuoieIRosSE Allshpul ‘s1o1eSIABN 101935 Alndag ‘33Ua(j92%3 Jo s133ua) 83)|00) AJunwwo)

BluJojijeD Bulpnioul ‘S30Nn0s uonewIoU 1axJew Joge) ajdijnw pz SuiBelana) Aq spaau Allsnpul pue [euo|3as Uum swesSoud a8s) |05 udly

‘e

'surgidosd g1 10y yroddns apraead pue spasu Ansnpur pue [guor3aa s smeaSoead 2331103 uSne o) sromaed
JuanrdodAdp 32103104 [BUOIFII IO pue Joqe[ ‘saANBIUISIIdaT K1)SHPUT PUE SSIUTSNY ‘S9B[09 ANUNunuo? usImlaq SIeNIIUU Jsnqol dopasq "0z

OOEO

§ Jo[[9ouBy))

‘HOVIDD

JPRIOUON TBATUING) AJOSIAPY “BrI0SUO))
OTHLD -UoJ UBA D008V [euoI3ay




LT

DTHILD

moAngpN
Anyp

AI0S1ADY
D008V

UOEO
S JO[[22UBYD)

“IeATEM DO € I9pUN 33T J0 1800 1) FULISA0D SE [INS ‘SSO00” JUSPIIS 1N Jou s20p 1ey) oddns Surpuny
Ioy suondo arojdxa ‘pajuBirem J] ‘SIUSps pue swerSold F17) UO S[BLIOEU S[qRILNSTOD pue a[qesodsip J0J s25] Jusprys Jo joedwn oy oyenjeag

B

“S2OIIE] HID PUE S[BLI)EW J[EWNSUCD PUE Aqesodsp JoJ $39f Juapn)s 03 PAJERI SUONEMII PUE SAME] ‘PIPIIU St ‘AJIpo pue ‘FZA[CUE “MIASY ‘b7

OTHLID

Ko1] weqq

A1081APY

OISV

20430
s J0[[22uRY)

poddns o) spuny adsopjIom pue F 1. [BIIPIJ pUE )e3s ‘fedo] aidynuu sa8e1aAa] Jey) Ureas Surpunj pauiejsns pue

‘SANIATIIE UONBUIPE0OD 130 do[aAdp
pue {uonesouuy pue dn-)ae)s meidord yo Surpuny [euorBaa ysipqe)se $S[PAI [BIO] pue [EUOISII ‘3)E)S A1} }& UONRIGYR[[0) I0] 3IN)INIISRIJUI UL

‘payadae) ‘drqeropaad v pwaa) g7

"$939[]02 AIUNImoo
BILIOJI[E)) JO UOISSII o1} YITM
WISISISUOD ST PUR SIIUNUILECD

[e00] JO SPasll o1f) 19011

el sSuneo werdoxd pue
95IMO0 JO 198 aasuayaIdwos
‘paoueleq & 19130 01

Lipiqe  s1010s1p pue sofsqoo
yordur je1p sororjod woysAs
IoTo pue SE[MULIO] Supuny
JNOQE TONBSIDATOD OPTM
~WSIsAS © aj0umold pue syerry

STUNSJ () WEIS01] pue asiios)

BATSUAAIANI0,) UIBTUIEy

01 SB[NULIO,] SUIpUy uo womdoyaasp
AI0SIADY 201J () | TONESISATO)) SPIMAIES I0] [[8) uresfoid
J1a1D Aox], weg DI85V S Jo[[aduey) LIS I0'%0 [euoneanpy
"wes.s Juipuny sai|oey pue uawdinba s1enbape pue a|geureisns e Loddns pue dojaasg o
A10S1ADY 2030
DTHILD Aoxp ueq D008V | sJojjasueq)
“$SIUBAID34J3 BUIWIBIAP 0] SH NS 3Y) B1BN(EAS A|SNONULUOY PUB SBWO02IN0 anjea-y3iy 1oddns 0} SaAluadul [B3S1 |BUOLIPPE 3PIACYd |
AIOSIADY QOO
QTHID Aox ] ueq DDD8V 8. J0[[=2uRyD)




8z

UBAIUING AJOSTADY IO

131D U0 UBA DOI8Y S Jo][aduRyn
"surgagoxd 1) yo y1oddns uy yusunysaaur ealid pu drqnd sZyurzew o) s3s53001d IUUWELIL)S PUR SIATIUIINF VALY ST

AJOSIAPY NPO

141D Aoiy weq D008V | sJofeouryy

"S3LH|I9BY 31D PIZIUIIPOW PUB MIU 10} BuIpuny pue AH|IQIXS)) SpIAOLd  'q




lﬁ A -
- Academic Senate
SN, for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda item

SUBJECT: Effective Curriculum Processes Paper First Reading

Month: February | Year: 2016

ltem No: IV. F

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The board will give a first reading of the
effective curriculum processes paper

Urgent: YES

Time Requested: 20 minutes

CATEGORY:

Action Items

TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:

REQUESTED BY: J. Freitas Consent/Routine
First Reading X
STAFF KEVIEW.: Julie Adams Action X

Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

At spring 2015 plenary the body approved resolution 9.01 515 calling for a paper on effective practices

for local curriculum approval:

9.01 S15 Curriculum Processes and Effective Practices
Whereas, Colleges and districts have a variety of local curriculum processes, including timelines

indicating when courses and programs are submitted to technicol review committees, curriculum
committees, academic senates, and governing boards; and

Whereas, Timely curriculum processes are required for all disciplines and programs; and
Whereas, Colleges would benefit from a paper outlining effective practices for local processes on

curriculum approval;

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges survey curriculum chairs on the
timefiness of their local curriculum approval processes by Fall 2015 and develop a paper on effective
practices for local curriculum approval and present it to the field for adoption at the Fall 2016 Plenary

Session.

As an early response to the Workforce Task Force report in fall 2015, the Curriculum Committee drafted
a white paper on effective local curriculum approval processes that was approved by the Executive
Committee in October and distributed to the field soon after. The white paper focused on
recommendations for optimizing the local curriculum process itself. The full paper will expand on this
and also include discussion on the importance of professional development and training and sufficient
resources in ensuring the effectiveness of local curriculum processes, navigating CTE program approval
requirements effectively and distance education separate approval requirements.

This is the first reading of the paper by the Executive Committee. The Curriculum Committee seeks
additional input from the Executive Committee before it is brought forward to the March meeting for

action.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.







Ensuring Effective Curriculum Approval Processes: A Guide for Local Senates

Adopted Spring 2016

2015-2016 Curriculum Committ /'

,4‘

John Freitas {Chair), Chemistry, Los Aageles City (,ollage
Lori Bennett, Executive Vice Pres’ident Moorpark College
Ryan Carey, Emergency Medical Techn'okxgy,-xEl (;amlno College
Sofia Ramn'ez-Gelp;, Spamsh Allan Haeouck College
Michael Heumann, Enghsh ;mpmal Valley College
D1anaHﬂﬂbut Life Scﬁﬁes Irvmg Valley College
G’mm May, Mathemah.cs '&amamento City College
Bernard McFa&dgn. 8/'l:udent gm Tor CCC, Copper Mountain College
‘\Tgt_ii--.Pars;ﬁ's,\Ma:tl;cmaties, San Diego Mesa College
< Tiffany Trall',‘\("‘_.eunsellﬁé/Articulation Officer, Irvine Valley College

lea.n Varela, Sociology, Mendocino College



Table of Contents
Introduction
The Curriculum Committee
Local Curriculum Approval Processes: Review, Evaluate, and Improve
Training and Professional Development
Resources for Effective Curriculum Processes
Special Topic - Distance Education Separate Approval
Conclusions and Recommendations

/.’ il
e

References and Resources ) \ 4

Appendix A — Typical Duties for Curriculum Chalrs., Attmllatfon Officers and
Curriculum Specialists .

Appendix B — Accreditation Ellglblllty Requments and Sta:;ﬂards Applicable to
Curriculum .

Appendix C — Relevant Statitory and Reg&lﬁfory Citaﬂo"ns



Introduction

Curriculum is the driving force and foundation of all educational institutions. In the
California community colleges, faculty assume primary responsibility not only for
developing curriculum but also, through their local senates, for establishing effective
local curriculum processes. Ensuring the effectiveness of local curricular processes is

therefore a matter of faculty responsibility, and concerns about hqﬁx&eil local curriculum

F 4
F i

processes function are often a source of discussion and conc&ﬁﬁ:at both the local and state

. s, 'va

4
levels. When development or approval of curnculum 1£ Btali@d, 1neiﬁewm or otherwise

not working properly, the effectiveness of the cntiﬁe institution is adversely‘aﬁ'ccted
£ . 9 i

4
In recognition of the need for local seﬁama&to be prowded gmdance on ensuring the

k.
3 u. -
,' \ a'd

effectiveness of their local curriculum p};ocesses. thsiAcademIc Scnate for California

0 S ».*-
W .

Community Colleges (ASGEC).adopted R’w@lﬁﬁon 9.01 315:
45 kY
f‘:/ /:\. j ; “_‘ "

" 1 -
- . ; -

Wkereas Colleges :md zﬁstrzc&jmz a var:ety of local curriculum processes,

zmludmg nmcimes mahgﬂmg*when courses and programs are submitted to
,»' :
tedzmcal review: mmmzttees curriculum committees, academic senates, and
L _
" v

govemg‘fig_ g)oam#.,'/

.
v

Whereas, Timely curriculum processes are required for all disciplines and

programs; and

Whereas, Colleges would benefit from a paper outlining effective practices for



local processes on curriculum approval;

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges survey
curriculum chairs on the timeliness of their local curriculum approval processes
by Fall 2015 and develop a paper on effective practices for local curriculum

approval and present it to the field for adoption at the F aﬂ‘,?ﬂjf-flenary Session.

A

With the November 16, 2015 approval by the Board ofi Gov’ts(nors of ﬂm.Report of the
(g e

Task Force on Workforce, Jobs Creation, and a Sfrong Ecpnomy with 1ts ‘ﬁ)cus on

& -

Career and Technical Education (CTE), as well as m‘tﬁ thﬁe development of the pilot
baccalaureate degrees, effective and efﬁc&ent currlculum wproval processes are
increasingly a subject of interest at the Im,al and ﬁ;ate level Many of the task force
recommendations relate duﬁ:iy to cumcuh;ﬁ'i and mqre spemﬁcally, to ensuring that

local curriculum prooaﬂses ﬁlncfwn in ways &at allow for community college CTE

f Lo L,'

programs to respond effeetweiy and tn- ahmely manner to changes in industry and the
workfo;pe as Wel’l ag 130 the n&da of the communities they serve. Furthermore,
k _;

accredltaftwn requlremems are also important factors that push colleges to establish

efficient and 'effi:ctlve cdmeulum processes that ensure a high-quality curriculum.

As an initial response to the needs identified in resolution 9.01 S15 and to the fall 2015

recommendations of the report of the Task Force on Workforce, Jobs and a Strong

! Report of the Task Force on Workforce, Jobs Creation, and a Strong Economy, Board of Governors
(Approved November 16, 2015)
http:/‘doingwhatmatters.cccco.edu/portals/6/docs/sw/BOG TaskForce Report_v12 web.pdf




Economy, the ASCCC Curriculum Committee drafied and the Executive Committee
approved in October 2015 the white paper Ensuring Effective and Efficient Curriculum
Processes — An Academic Senate White Paper?, distributed this document to the field in
November 2015. The white paper provided the field with guidance focused on reviewing
and revising their curriculum policies and procedures as needed, and included examples

.
of good practices for improving the effectiveness and efficiency of ﬂtkqi{-;‘curriculum

4l

approval processes. Finally, in recognition of the need for flp{:él‘-ﬁéﬁi&% to take leadership

o i N

roles in addressing the Workforce Task Force rcoommjéid;ﬁéns at tl.f'e;.ldt:a_‘l level and

¢

r

begin the process of evaluating their curriculum approval PIOCESSes as soon as possible,
R é

the body adopted Resolution 9.08 F15 at the 201 5 Fq]l Plénary Sess1on

Whereas, The Recommendatwgm; af the Calzforma«.i_ammumty Colleges Task

\

Force on Workforce, Job Creatztm, and a Sﬁmg Economy (August 14, 2015)

"‘ f_/

identified six recomméndanons for 1@rovmg Qwrrzculum processes, including the

,A’
recommendatign, to evaiuate revise w{d Fesource the local, regional, and
e - o

statewzde CTi E cimy wuﬂ;m appr-mal process to ensure timely, responsive, and

vmzamlmed cfwfrzculurh (I'y};mval ")

Wheregs; The reported inefficiencies of local curriculum processes are often cited
as the reasen courses and programs are not approved in a timely enough manner

to meet student, community, and industry needs; and

? Ensuring Effective and Efficient Curriculum Processes — An Academic Senate White Paper, Academic
Senate for California Community Colleges Executive Committee (Fall 2015)
http://ascec.org/sites/default/files/Effective Curriculum Practices White Paper Final.docx




Whereas, Colleges may benefit from an evaluation of their local curriculum
processes that leads to improvements in the effectiveness and efficiency that allow

Jor more timely responses to student, community, and industry needs;

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges strongly

urge local senates and curriculum committees to evaluatqu _‘:,?yrriculum
approval processes in order to ensure that curr:culw?‘i 15" dmseloped revised, and
implemented in a timely manner, while preserv;ﬂg tfw mtegmfy ;md rigor of the

-

review pracess.

The purpose and scope of this paper isﬁﬂ -p:oyide guldanwto Jocal senates and

curriculum committees on effective practices for curm:ulum upproval processes, and
focuses on the partlc:lpator!r gcvemance as‘pec‘ts of curglculum Guidance and effective

practices for develop@‘ng new com'ses and programs are beyond the scope of this paper.

k.

The contents of the Fall ZQIS whlte papq m‘e mcorporated in this document, with

addltlonai the guldapce pr0v1duj regardlng professional development and training related

to loca‘l cumculum appm'val processcs providing sufficient resources for the college

!

cumculum team, and guidance on distance education separate approval requirements.

A
4

The Curriculum Committee

3 For guidance on effective practices for creating a high quality course outline of record, please see The
Course Outline of Record: A Curriculum Reference Guide, Academic Senate for California Community
Colleges (Adopted Spring 2008)

hitp://ascce.org/sites/default/files/publications/Curriculum-paper 0.pdf




Assuring an effective local curriculum process requires that all college constituencies
understand the legally defined role of the curriculum committee and the legal
requirements for establishing its structure. In this section the role, authority and structure

of the local curriculum committee is reviewed.

The Role and Authority of the Curriculum Committee 4

P

,(’f ety
Curriculum committees derive their legal authority from the»EdtGatipn Code and the
# i

California Code of Regulations. Specifically, Educatigfi: Lode §7090£{b3( 7) gives local

ff el

academic senates the right “to assume pnmary rf:aponmblhty for makmg

recommendations in the areas of curriculum and acadmio Staindards.” California Code of
L

Regulations Title 5 §53200 1dent1ﬁes€zm‘lculum as an acadmnc and professional matter

under the purview of academic senates v_shlle*ﬁﬂe 5 §5 5002 Tequires colleges and/or

districts to establish a cumﬂﬂum commlttoe elther as @,commlttee of the local senate or

k

as a separate commm?w cstabhshed by Inutual ag’eement between the administration and

the local senate Furthermﬁre, §5500“ g:wms cumculum committees the full authority to

- \ 2
recommeﬁd apprmai of new co{l@tate credit, non-degree applicable credit, and noncredit

y Mg o

ooursesﬂwectly to the gm ermng Board Finally, while Title 5 is silent about the authority

\

of cumculum_g(mllmlttgggto approve new degree and certificate programs, educational

- . F
A ¥

program developﬂf@gm"is an academic and professional matter identified in §53200 and in
partnership with academic senates, curriculum committees are generally given the
responsibility for reviewing and approving new programs. Furthermore, local curriculum
committees may be granted the authority to recommend approval of new programs

directly to the governing board.



While colleges and districts may have local policies and procedures that require
additional steps between curriculum committee approval and governing board approval
of new courses and programs, no legal requirement mandates such intermediate
approvals. Local senates are permitted to delegate authority for course and program
approvals to their curriculum committees. Education Code and ’I;itl;'ef‘,'s._\fggulations contain

no language requiring that new courses and programs be app_fé'\}‘aq by deans, chief

“
=

instructional officers (CIOs), or coliege presidents follo’ﬁfh'fg\gurricmmg"committec

approval and prior to submission to the govemigg‘-fﬁoard. &
s *

P

While no legal requirement exists for'aa;nini§Uative appm?;éis of new courses and

. Loy

programs following curriculum commiﬁée appmval and Prioi' to submission to the

H A - T
. r.

governing board, academjeideans and CIOX{__ﬁ;b'uld stil be involved in curriculum

!

processes. In fact,__cﬁin;ulum d;vélopment s'honid be a collegial and collaborative
process involving all c;)‘l‘l'@.é‘ eﬁnstltumasas 'appropriate; everyone has a stake in
ensurir}_gf thatfhe coﬂfge offgﬁ'ﬂ_‘m curriculum that best serves the needs of its students.
Acaﬁémi‘?:deans and (EIOS‘ lshoulé ‘a.ssist faculty in the curriculum development and
review proce&s ,:,Acade.r‘ﬁi;:i deans, which include CTE and noncredit deans, and CIQOs are
knowledgeable ;lf)t?uttéomp]iance and resource requirements for courses and programs,
and their early involvement in the process can prevent mistakes and delays later. Such
expertise provides valuable and complementary guidance to the faculty content experts.

A final review—though not approval—by the CIO of the proposals approved by the

curriculum committee ensures that that the governing board can be confident that the



proposals align with the college mission, comply with the requirements of Title 5 and the
Program and Course Approval Handbook (PCAH), fulfill validated college needs, and

that there are sufficient resources to support the new curriculum.

Input from students is also important. Under Education Code 70902(b)(7), students are
afforded the right to participate effectively in college governance md Tltle 5§51023.7
“shall be provided an opportunity to participate in formulatlen zmﬁ development of

district and college policies and procedures that have oﬂml‘} havea mgmﬁcant effect on

S
/

students,” including curriculum development. ’l;hus curnculum commlttees fshould

\.

include representatives from the local student senate or leadershlp organization in order

to afford students this opportunity to I:gartmlpgte in cumcul,um\ development.

s R
e
. % -

Y )

The final authority for appm—ﬁng new cou“rﬁ‘gs:."and progr’érhs always rests with the

'4

governing board or ;ts de&gnee ‘The CIO is oﬂéﬂ ‘responsible for ensuring that proposals

\

are forwarded to the gova;mng board ﬂﬂ‘agproval If the CIO, who has the ultimate

authonty i)n wheth%r 01' not cougws are offered in the schedule of classes, has serious
concerns about cumculum proposals those concerns will be brought to the governing

b

board. If the (?IQ is 1nc1uded in the curriculum process before final approval of the

e ,_
\

proposals, such co;apems may be addressed and resolved before reaching the governing
board. Each governing board includes at least one non-voting student trustee; when the
student voice is not considered—or is ignored—in the curriculum development process,
the governing board will take notice and may delay approval of new courses and

programs when students raise serious objections. Therefore, students, deans, and the



C10 should be involved throughout the curriculum development process. Such
involvement will help the faculty identify potential problems with curriculum early in the
process and minimize any concerns that may be expressed to the governing board when

new courses and programs come before them for approval.

Membership and Structure of the Curriculum Commilttee

The establishment of the membership structure of the cun‘iculiiﬁi*cﬂmmittee is senate

-

local decision made in accordance with the requu‘emepts of Title 5 §5500’?(a)(1) which

states that “[t]he college and/or district curnculum oommltlice recommendmg the course

(_.-

shall be established by the mutual agreement of the f:ul‘laege and/or district admmlstratmn
and the academic senate. The commltteﬂ shall be cither acnmlnlttee of the academic
senate or a committee that includes facu'lt‘v and‘i& oﬂlermse oomprlsed in a way that is

,r N

mutually agreeable to the atsllegc and/or dlﬁ:(‘lct adm1m'-strat10n and the academic senate.”

n' -

Because faculty have pn’nj\acy when makmg Tecommcndatlons oni curriculum to the

govcrmng board it h‘s -1mportan{ﬂ1at ﬂle majority of the members on the curriculum

RS

oommlttee are faculty. la addmon ensunng broad representation from all of the faculty
groups is c;ptin}all_?_ecaqseflt allows for a wide range of perspectives to be brought to the
discussions in curr;ﬂ'ulum committee meetings. Broad representation means not only
ensuring that the diversity of instructional disciplines, including CTE disciplines, at the
college are appropriately represented, but also ensuring that non-instructional facuity

from the library and counseling divisions, as well the college articulation officer are

included. Consideration should also be given to including faculty with distance education

10



expertise, learning disabilities specialist faculty, learning assistance faculty, faculty
coordinators of student learning outcomes assessment and, if applicable, the college
honors program. The distribution of representatives from the various faculty groups is a
local decision and should be established in a manner that allows the curriculum
committee to operate in the most efficient and effective manner possible. Regardless of

what distribution of faculty membership is established for the cumé.dpm committee, it is

/

important that the faculty membership recognize that they are nct ﬂaere to represent the

interests of their disciplines, departments or d1v1s1ons ﬂﬂthw they arg there to bring the

/‘ 4
perspectives of their areas to the discussions in enrrlculum,_eommlttee meef:_ngs that lead

1

to the best decisions being made for the students thecollege serves.

-

£ - -
. -

k3 e .,

Y

As discussed earlier, it is important to mclude ap;;ropmate admmlsh‘ators staff, and

‘«\ .’/

students on the cumculummmlttee It 1§\a common practlce to include at a minimum
the CIO and/or a culﬁ:mlum dean., and a curriwh}im specialist on curriculum committees.
Other non-faculty memB‘c(:B may mciudesaﬂler academic deans, such as the CTE dean,
and classiﬁed staf‘f\wim work Hu'eetlv with students, such as admissions and records staff

who' arecmurse transcrrpt,‘,and degree evaluators. These non-faculty members often

provide 1n31gkm in cumqmlum committee deliberations that faculty typically do not have

\'-'n
=g “».‘

and can help currfonltlm committees make better decisions.

~

Whether non-faculty members of the curriculum committee are voting members is a local
decision. However, regardless of whether or not non-faculty are voting members of the

curriculum committee, curriculum remains a matter of faculty primacy. Therefore it is

11



important that the faculty voice not be diluted in the curriculum committee, and thus local
senates should ensure that the proportion of faculty voting members is sufficiently large

to maintain faculty primacy over curriculum,

As stated above, per Title 5 §55002, curriculum committees may either be a committee of
the local senate or be committees external to the local senate. If them;nculum committee

il
is within the control of the local senate, then the local senatehas full authority to set the

L

membership and structure of the curriculum committge,"péi' Title 5 §53202(c)(1), which

z— i

states “(c) [t]he governing board of a district shall recogmzc the academic stmate and
authorize the faculty to: (1) Fix and amend by Vote of thafull “time faculty the

composition, structure, and procedur% 0; thc academlc s&gate. Because local senate

k. :_ o oy

committees are inherently part of the looal sena'be btmcture local governance policies and

procedures should recogmzé that the requn\maents of §53202(c)(1) extend to the

committecs of local Sﬁnates Atihose colleg@ Where curriculum committees have been

; Taes oy
a

established as college or\dlbmc’t conrnmt@es ‘external to the local senate’s committee

structure;’ Yocal pbhg%s that reﬁnm/ﬂ.l:he curriculum committee membership structure

from the Sale discretion\of the local senate may currently exist. In such cases, it is

‘!.

important to n:member that faculty roles in governance is an academic and profcssional
matter and thus the proportlons and roles of faculty on curriculum committees that are not
senate committees must be established through collegial consultation with the local

senate in a way that preserves faculty primacy over curriculum.

The leadership structure of the curriculum committee should be clearly defined.

12



Regardless of whether the curriculum committee is chaired solely by a faculty member or
has faculty and non-faculty co-chairs (such as a faculty co-chair with a CIO or a
curriculum specialist co-chair), the process for selecting chairs or co-chairs should be
clearly documented and established in a way that retains the local senate’s purview over
the selection of the faculty chair or co-chair of the committee in accordance with Title 5

sections §53202 and §53203. -

Additionally, curriculum committees may opt to torm sﬁbcbmmlttees%r more focused

work such as a Technical Review Committee, General Educatlon Comm1ttee SLO
o= N 4
Committee, Prerequisite Committee, Honors Comrhtiwe, ‘Mulh cultural Graduatlon

Requirement Committee and the like. zEaeh.of these subclsmmntees should have a chair

\ X B

who is responsible for facilitating the wm:k ot these ﬁubcommlttees and reporting the

outcomes of their work to th' entlre cumcuhﬁl commgttee

2 -
= N | -
- k- w
i »
A

Local Curriculum Apﬁmt*al‘_isfb'cesseiiﬁ&fiew, Evaluate, and Improve

i

~ E
Before the local cugriculum p\fm‘:ms can be improved, it is necessary to first review and
"_- 3 V ‘-.:‘..,l.‘ i’-,"
evaluate l;\he process to identify any improvements that may be needed. Once this stage is

e
$oa

completed, thie ,n}_‘.ethod_‘ffor improving the curriculum process can be implemented. In

-
-

this section, guidanee and recommendations for reviewing, evaluating and improving

local curriculum processes is provided.

Stage 1 - Review and Evaluate the Process

13



Before implementing any change to the local curriculum approval processes, local
senates and curriculum committees should first conduct a review and evaluation of the
effectiveness and efficiency of those processes. Important questions to ask during such a
review include the following:

* How long does it take to approve a new course or program, or to revise an
existing course or program, from initiation of the procesi‘bj?.ﬁ:g‘discipline faculty
to approval by the governing board, and could this t;mé’lfﬂe bc“improved?

e Does the approval process contain redundant”g;‘fiégx\ieeessarj; s.téqps,gand, if so,
what steps could be eliminated without’ P,_éé;tive impacts?

e Does the process require too many app;'o;ailsa_j.éi&tiﬁv;'é to what is actually required
by Title 5? -

o Does the process contain steps that corrldbe @mpl_ﬁtéﬂ ‘simultaneously rather than
sequentially? ¥ .-

¢ Arelocal cgtfrse ’and prog?_rp submisrgim}h and deadlines too infrequent or
restrictive? 'L\.\\ Y

. ,,Iéf'flji;-;)roéésag_iﬁapedé(\i\b{pi_fdblems caused by ineffective technology, or even a
h{gkof technol;g;y.', at theflocal level?

° Does\ﬁ'ag processf: focus too much on complying with course outline formatting

v

'l

inschtionSfléiﬁd too little on course and program quality?
While academic senates and curriculum committees must lead the effort to review and

evaluate their curriculum approval processes, CIOs, academic deans including CTE and

noncredit deans, curriculum specialists, articulation officers and student leadership

14



should be included in the conversation about the curriculum process. A good review
process should also include input from the facuity at large. They can provide a
perspective about the curriculum process that may not be readily apparent to curriculum
leaders who are more closely engaged with the process on a regular basis, Regardless of
how the local review and evaluation is done, since curriculum approval policies and

processes are academic and professional matters, local academic senas ‘- _are responsible

.l
s iy

for recommending revisions to curriculum policies and pro_geifuﬁﬁwdirectly to their

governing boards or their designees as appropriate. - -
‘/'.) e "

e
v g
P -
K g
o E

Stage 2. Make the Changes - Recommendations fé? {%&nﬁzmg Curriculum Processes

. . N . . ..
1. Make sure the process for initiatio of new curriculum-and revisions io existing

curriculum is clear. ‘g . >
Provide faculty with a cleardeéscription of the process anid timelines. Effective practices
‘ﬁl} 2 777.‘1‘ 4 l.-‘:-.
L b £ Y
for doing this includc" the following: Y

N -
E

. Creatlng a cumc’ulum‘ calenﬁarm‘ aprocess flow chart that clearly presents

)mpoﬂmf di.w ilates andqliustrates the process from initiation to approval.

ﬂmatc a cumculum web51te that allows easy access to local, district, and

‘V‘.. &

statevﬂglﬁ (;umcpi;am resources.
T

o 1 e
Ele. A
R

e C(Createa cun‘iculum handbook that includes all curriculum policies and
procedures, a discussion of the importance of high guality curriculum and an
explanation of its elements, and descriptions and instructions for all aspects of the
curriculum process including instructions for using the curriculum management

system.

15



2. Make sure the technical review process is streamlined and effective.

A common criticism of local curriculum processes is that they are too slow. Local
senates and cwticulum committees should work on developing ways to minimize the
time between curricuium development, technical review, and curriculum approval

without sacrificing quality. Ideally, once a new course or pro gra;n”_ié.-&;bmitted for

A

review and approval, it should come to the curriculum compittee for first reading within
< e
one month of submission, provided the curriculum dqy:"_ﬂopei,_responds\jt(_y'rc_equcsts for

<& 5
+ 3

corrections to the course or program submissior_l,_,diiring thetechnical rcviéw and other
stages. Some examples of ways to make technical lﬂqtie\i?'ﬁioi‘e efficient include the
following:

¢ Before engaging in a full techniéﬁi_rcﬁ‘eiﬁ,_h&_lve currii:ulum committee members

help faculty by screening cumculuh'l sﬁu‘l'omissiqné’for completeness.

e Make techlyigél"fc_view simultaneous Wlﬂ'l the curriculum development process so

~ A

that the MCulﬁ@dﬁeldba is1egeving constructive input by technical

o <

l‘rf;a'ri‘é\'é'&?ers prior to subiﬁig;;?.ipn*for formal or official technical review,

;JI_\;?H the technib;@ reviev:; ;ommittee to the most critical individuals, such as the
curri\éu@m _s:haj;:.iarﬁculation officer, librarian, SLO coordinator, distance
educatior‘l\:’f;;péil't., curriculum specialist, and the CIO or designee, and allow them
to conduct their review simultaneously rather than sequentially.

e Create criteria, submission schedules, and approval processes that allow minor

changes to courses and programs to undergo an expedited or streamlined technical

review rather than a full technical review.

16



® Provide the Technical Review Team with adequate time and support to do their
work in a timely fashion,

¢ Proofread, proofread, proofread! Curriculum is a matter of public record, so it is
important that all public documents, such as the course outline of record, are of a

level of quality commensurate with an institution of higher education.

4
3. Make sure curriculum committee meetings are run efficiesifly.".
Once the technical review of new curriculum is comp,lﬁiéd,‘*proposals‘"move to the

z”'.- =

curriculum committee for review and approval. .C’u\'r"riculu@._gommittee members must be

Lg 0 W ) N &

well prepared and curriculum committee meetings shpnldbe run as effectively as

possible. Curriculum committees shoﬁld focus on the con'hcnt of the curriculum rather

el
than on technical minutiae during meetli\gs Fommg too much on minutiae can render a

curriculum committee 1n§ﬁcbtlve and resu}t in delays {0 the approval and offering of new

<

4‘ ol s
curriculum. Some eﬁ‘ectlve praol:ices that can, be employed to ensure curriculum
'\'\ " (‘P 5

committees complete the‘u;buéiness ma ﬁmcly and effective manner include the

:\. b

followlgg‘: e b

. f ?rﬂpare a well-br!ggnized g'g‘..enda that includes the pertinent information such as
coﬁfs"d gumber,taﬂe, and whether the proposal is for a revision or new course.

s Assign severai ;urriculum committee members to each proposal as readers that
will provide prepared responses to the curriculum developers and help the
curriculum committee from becoming too overwhelmed, particularly when a large

number of new curriculum proposals are submitted.

¢ Use a consent agenda for non-substantial changes to curriculum.

17



e Engage in detailed review of new curriculum during first readings and use consent
calendars for approval at the second reading.

¢ Allow CTE proposals that are the result of a statutory or external accreditation
requirement to be approved without a second reading by the curriculum

committee.

T,

r
e Consider giving curriculum committee members access twﬂm-c;;mculum
s

management system so that they can make reviewer éomments prior to the first

N, L o
. i o

reading by the curriculum committee. yr

¢ Do not discuss typos and grammar duri.pg"ihp currigulum committéé;meétings -
have curriculum committee members send nated typos and grammar errors {o the
curriculum chair or designee f@f‘@rrcgﬁon_

A A

4. Streamline the approgaijéﬁfes;. , ¢

While governing bgai'tgs ‘must a:ﬁprqye new cOurées and programs, colleges may grant
their cun'iculu_m_ commltfee@ zm;hontyfer ﬁnal approval of minor revisions. Again, no
legal reqﬁlrement exj{sis.for l;oargs, CEOs, CIOs, or even local senates to approve minor

revisions to:courses and programs. Effective technical review processes should eliminate

the need for'ft!gtiwr appr,i;}"\';als beyond the curriculum committee.

Colleges may also consider expedited approval for time-sensitive curriculum proposals.
Some new courses may not need to go through all of the steps of curriculum adoption;
certain time-sensitive cases, particularly in CTE, may require more immediate action. In

addition to approval by the governing board, new CTE degree and certificate programs

18



require separate review and action by the appropriate regional consortium prior to
submission to the Chancellor’s Office (Title 5 §55130). At the same time, any expedited
approval must not come at the expense of the quality or rigor of the curriculum.
Examples of methods for expediting approval of new curriculum include the following:

¢ Give curriculum committees full authority to make recommendations on new

courses and programs directly to the governing board andxézmv«e any

/‘f r
intermediate approval steps. a4

A

F 2
e Give curriculum committees full authority to aﬁproval non- sub@tlal changes—

as defined locally—to courses and progrmns w1th01;t any addltlonal g,pprovals

including from the governing board. \ '

e Limit the requirements for cumcnlum subm1sswnsbt(= the govermng board to

= ..r-L\
1.‘.. 3

approval of new courses and prog}rams 3

\. ,I o

_!' _/'

e Submit new CTE}fztag'éJn proposalﬁ to the regmnal consortium simultaneously

\ I.

with subm1§51¢m to the currlculum oommittee for local program approval and

. ‘-.__,-‘>

\
prior to submlssm‘u\to fhe govemmg’board §

r‘,_«‘: & _ . \ -‘:\
. ',_Expedite téchmeal reviéw-forf‘course revisions that only involve changes to course
‘."; b .l = F
attnbutes such as content and objectives or for changes to courses and programs

that a}Q wqmred as a result of changes to statutory or external accreditation

requlremen_;s,

Multi-college districts may consider giving college curriculum committees the

authority to grant final approval for adoption at one college of courses that

4 Regional consortia establish their own procedures for submission and review of new program proposals.
Be sure to check the requirements of the regional consortivm to determine if it does aliow submissions of
proposals prior to local curriculum committee or governing board approval.

19



already exist at other colleges within the district, since those courses have already
been approved by the governing board.>
5. Increase the frequency of curriculum approvals by the curriculum committee and the
governing board.
The frequency of curriculum approvals among the California community colleges varies
widely. No matter how efficient and timely the technical revieW pram 18, if the rate of
review and approval by the curriculum committec and govgmﬁgg board is slow, then
approval of curriculum will be slow. Some curriculurn‘ﬁ(;)?l\lmitteeshﬁ.mef weekly or
biweekly, while others meet only monthly. leen that mény curriculum commlttees use
a first reading/second reading model for curnculum ;npnro”Valsl MEW Course élnd program
approvals by curriculum committees tﬁat m‘egt. monthly can take two months. Likewise,
some governing boards consider cumcuiumat werv meetin‘ga ‘While others consider it

only once per term or even:piice per acadennL year. Sglch 11m1tat10ns in frequency of

1;"-—.

approvals by govermﬁg boards are local prac’cwa!f that have no legal basis and can be

changed. Recommendaﬁons for unpmung the frequency of curriculum approvals

include ﬂié"fdllo“wing:? \ -
o “Schedule biweekly. or even weekly, standing meetings of the curriculum

com?n;ttec, partiéularly in the fall when curriculum approval workload is often the

heaviest.

3 An example of this process exists in the Los Rios CCD. The Los Rios CCD is a four-college district and
allows colleges to adopt courses upon curriculum committee approval if those courses have already been
approved by the governing board for adoption at another college in the district. The Chancellor’s Office
only requires the original approval date of the course by the governing board when the college submits the
newly adopted course to the Curriculum Inventory.

20



e Change local policies and procedures so that the governing board can approve

curriculum at every meeting.

6. Consider giving colleges in multi-college districts autonomy over their curriculum.

Multi-college districts present additional challenges. For example, some districts have

aligned or partially aligned curriculum that requires district-widclz_,fé:ti?ﬂj!i‘s{_before new

courses and programs are approved or even before approvaﬂlé%’@tantial changes to
p; . X

existing courses and programs. No legal requirement:d exists for colleges in multi-college

districts to have identical or aligned curriculum,,,xﬁfhile alig:ynent of curria_ﬂﬁfh in multi-
college districts can certainly be of benefit to studénts;— ‘Cw‘i'iéﬁhim alignment
requirements can also make curriculat m:xprovement at collcgcs much more difficult.

\.

Furthermore, accreditors hold colleges, hot d1stmcts rcsponsfble for the quality of their

curriculum and the effect,weness of their cu;mculum approval processes, and if a district-

I Ll
.

wide process is 1de;1t1ﬁed as not meeting the a_x.‘mdltanon standards, then all of the

A o B
colleges in the district wili besanctioned A’summary of the accreditation eligibility

require_mi:hté and standards that pertain to curriculum is provided in Appendix B.

If district-vsfidq processes are identified as reasons that curriculum is not approved in a
timely manner, tlfei_ﬂdcal senates should strongly consider changing their district-wide
processes. Considerations include the following:

¢ Eliminating district-wide approvals or requirements for achieving consensus

among the colleges in the district.

21



e Give each college in the district full autonomy over its curriculum, including
attributes such as units and contact hours.

e Ifalignment is a concern, use C-ID or articulation agreements as means to ensure
alignment of curriculum rather than using rigid district-wide alignment

requirements.

Training and Professional Development )

4
Curriculum is complex, and no one can learn everythjné overnight. Tae truly grasp the
many key elements of curriculum and the cun‘iqulﬁr_ﬁ process, training is réquifed. But

@

who exactly needs to be trained, and what kinds of h'almr.lg should be considered? In this

section recommendations on who sho'uld be trained and to.what level are provided.

.

Who Should Be Trained? -«

,a

Ideally, all college p’brsonnel in the college mﬁetmctlonal and student services divisions

who are respons1ble for stﬂdent success ndmmlstrators in the college business services

y

division, gstudents and members Df the governing board should have a basic
understa:;rhng of the locral cumculum process. This includes all administrators at all
levels, all faéul‘tv membérs and appropriate classified staff. Each should have a basic
understanding of th.c ’followmg basics of curriculum:
¢ The legal basis for faculty primacy over curriculum through local senates and
curriculum committees.
¢ What a course outline of record is, why they are required and where to access

them.

22



The existence of course, program and institutional student learning outcomes
(SLOs) and the differences between course SLOs and course objectives.

The differences between prerequisites, co-requisites, and advisories, and how
they are established through content review and, if appropriate, statistical
validation.

The purpose of the Course Identification Numbering Sy§tﬁ;1{CfID), how it
4
interacts with local curriculum, and its role in the AsSociage Degree for Transfer

(ADT).

Awareness of state requirements for cumifzﬁlum aSeBstablished in Education

= --.\ “

Code, Title 5 and the Program and Course App:tﬁVal Handbook (PCAH).

Awareness of local policies an_d grf\cedures estab]lshed fer course and program
curriculum development (such as gubmlssmn deadlmes and required signatures or
L4

approvals). 1
t _ "’.

/4‘--

Awarencssmf %program approval requmnents for CTE programs, particularly the
\ d *ﬁ “' . f‘\’
role of the reglon?:tl\consortlum“in CTE program approval.

,.gﬁwareness uf accredltm 'standards and, if appropriate, accreditor
&F

Fer;ommendatlong for the college as they pertain to curriculum.

-

- )
" A

While it might be dbvious why faculty, administrators, board members and students

should have a basic understanding of the curriculum process, it is also important that

classified staff have a basic understanding of the primary role of faculty and the legal

requirements for curriculum, and also to understand that the driving force for curriculum

development is to do what is best for the students, not technology and operational

23



considerations. In particular, classified staff from admissions and records, the college
office of instruction, and department or division offices should undergo professional
development training on the curriculum process. Such staff are often required to
understand grading policies, prerequisites, and legal requirements regarding the
scheduling of units/hours. Furthermore, it is important that staff in information
technology and in areas providing learning assistance, student sefw:m,,and disabled

services understand the relationship between curriculum andioplc& such as the Section

a0
ol

508 compliance(’ for instructional technology, prerequjsitcg;‘-ﬁnanciéi aid; and library and

tutoring needs. Training in the basics of curriculum is critical for these eésentigj
individuals to perform in their jobs effectively and "furﬂlel:"r'h'ofe’ consulting with the staff

in these areas during the development of cumculum allows staff to raise issues that might

.\ r_ \.

affect the ability of the college to offer nﬁw cumculum that might not have been

otherwise recognized by the faculty or aca'qgmic admigiistrators.
Individuals who are ﬁ&fé..inﬁniﬁtély'“iinvg;.l.véajx;vith the curriculum process clearly need
addltlonai trf;lmng«b¢ynnd the ‘baslcs of the curriculum process. They include, but are not
lunlted\to curnculum commlttee members technical review committee members,
curriculumb specaallst st@ff, academic/instructional and student service administrators,

h N
department chairsf()éb;dinators, counselors, librarians, student learning outcome

coordinators, learning disabilities specialists, and distance education coordinators. The

specific training required for each of these groups will vary, but all of these individuals

6 Section 508 of the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, amended 1998. For more information, go to
http://www.section508.gov/content/learn/standards

24



should have a solid understanding of the curriculum process. In addition to the basics of
curriculum outlined above that the broader group of stakeholders should understand, the
more detailed information shouid include:

e The details of the local approval process for curriculum, from initiation by the

discipline faculty, to the review and approval process by the curriculum

F
&

committee, to action by the governing board. P

Timelines and deadlines for submitting new program§ 'and_iburses, revisions to

s _‘.-

programs or courses, or updates to the college Jc:!("alo\g

Quality standards for program and courss( developmcnt

The existence and purpose of the Program C‘Bumc and Approval Handbook

"N
.. k.
- A L

(PCAH). L .y )
¢ The required components of thceaurseg,nﬂme of ggo&rd {(COR) as detailed in

Tltle 5 and the PGA—H—_‘ .\ J/ :

b

f
f

The acronyzmp assocmted With cumculum

.I..

The Taxonomy ofi?mgrams (TO.’P) and the uses of TOP codes

/

4stsomate Degrees for %ia‘nsfer and the connection to Transfer Model Curricula

aﬁd C ID local assomate degrees and the differences between all of these items.

The ty‘i)es of ceptlﬁcates the college offers and the differences between them.

n
¥ -l

\
The consideration of instructional materials fees and understanding of what is

allowed and what is not allowed to be required of students.

The placement of courses within disciplines, including standards and how this is

distinct from granting faculty equivalency.

25



e The relationship between credit hours (units}, student learning hours, and student
contact hours.
¢ Separate approval for distance education proposals.
e Use of the curriculum management system (CMS), if applicable.
¢ The role of the regional consortium in the approval of new CTE programs.
¢ Awareness of the basic requirements for submitting new mmmdum proposals and
y

revisions to the Chancellor’s Office.

What Type of Training Should Be Provided? ‘

How a college provides curriculum training is a local matter and there are many ways
that this can be accomplished. At the’ m;c of any currlcuhsm training program (and

curriculum committee succession plannmg) shc)}ﬂd be acollege curriculum handbook that
z 1 ‘,f‘
provides a compendium Qflaws, regulatlon«s and locaI\pol1c1es and procedures for

.

curriculum, and clearly cxplams how to nawgatc ‘the local curriculum process from

initiation to ﬁnal approvail chardless ofthe forms of the training, whether its local

‘;‘ . \

profess;dnal develOp plesentamms, webinars, or attendance at ASCCC events, a well-

crafted and comprehensivc curnculu:m handbook accessible to all is highly

R,
b J

recommended-,_

“Learning by doing” is also a valuable means to become familiar with the curriculum
process. All faculty are responsible for developing new curriculum or revising existing
curriculum, and every faculty member at some point in his/her career should be involved

in the curriculum process, and the earlier in the career the better. For example, newer

26



faculty can work with experienced faculty to revise a course or program. Such
engagement of discipline faculty in curriculum development processes results in a

broader understanding of the how the curriculum process.

Within a department or division, curriculum development and revision should be a

collegial and collaborative effort between the discipline faculty thafmmrs at the

initiation of the process. This will allow the faculty to reach: tvonwﬁsus on curriculum

\

proposals early in the process and avoid later dlsagreemfntswﬂaat can m&e delays in

approval.

Training in the Curriculum Managemént System (CMS) dcserves extra attention, because
most curriculum documents and curncu!'um ac”tlﬂtv A8 housed w1th1n these systems, and

this technology-based tramm,g s cons1dera$l§; dlﬂ‘crent from other curriculum training.

AR
oty

As such, the CMS m@ﬂ;e focal pc)mt for almosta!i curriculum-related activity, from the

4 - -,

development of a new c&mtgr revmﬁn of an existing course to the technical review
process, to 'che ﬁnal:a;vproval by\ﬁac cumculum committee. As with other forms of
tram%ngs, most everyonc ona campus should have some basic training in using the CMS.
Add1t10na‘ll3lf‘ :mﬁst facu]ty, administrators, and some staff should understand the
workings of the development and revision processes within the CMS. Of course,
curriculum committee members, technical review committee members, and others

directly related to curriculum will need to understand all aspects of the CMS, particularly

the approval process.

27



A stated previously, basic training on the requirements to submit curriculum to the
Chancellor’s Office is a must for everyone. However, beyond the basics of submission to
the Chancellor’s Office, it is imperative that certain members of the college curriculum
team understand the program and course submission requirements of the Chancellor’s
Office. These requirements are in addition to local and Title 5 requirements for program
and course approval. Depending on the local curriculum process ﬂi;;ﬁsponsibility for
submitting curriculum to the Chancellor’s Office is often delegated to 1ndmduals in

¢
positions such as the curricuium specialist, cumculum&ham dean oF cmmculum or other

appropriate individuals. Details on all of this 1nformat10n can be found in thc Progmm

and Course Approval Handbook.

._\

The Chancellor’s Office requires that all pourse and ‘program’ proposals be submitted

electronically to the Cumraﬁum Iuvcntory Iﬁ order to make program and course

-

submissions, each cpﬂege ChlefInstructlonal Oﬁr,er (CIO) is assigned a “College CIO”

J‘

account. The Chancellor -1 Oﬂ"ice gives. the pollege CIO the responsibility for managing
user accmm;é by assig;nmg rolexg andaccess levels to the college’s users. The Faculty
Curﬂculym Cha1r thc CIO and other appropriate and necessary curriculum staff (faculty,
adm1n1strat1v'eq, and classﬂﬁed) should work together to determine who will be users of the
“College CIO” acbpm;t, their roles, and their access levels. These users will need ongoing

professional development and training in order to be informed and stay current on the

CCC Curriculum Inventory, Management Information Systems data elements, and other

7 At the time of the drafting of this paper, the 5 edition of the Program and Course Approval Handbook

was the edition in effect
(http://extranet.cccco.edu/Portals/1/AA/ProgramCourse Approval/Handbook 5thEd BOGapproved.pdf). It
is expected that the 6% edition will be completed approved by the Board of Governors by summer 2016.

28



program and course approval requirements. The Curriculum Committee should have
some level of professional development and training on the Curriculum Inventory, MIS
data elements and the Chancellor’s Office program and course approval requirements. A
curriculum committee that understands some of the complexities of program and course

approval can help to facilitate efficiency of the entire process.

g
4

Training does not need to be a complicated process. An 1nd}x1dual that is experienced and
knowledgeabie in curriculum can conduct training on a‘6ne*gn-one orsnzall group basis.
The trainers, in these cases, can be mentors wiﬂ;j;iﬁf-@iivisioqs or departments, curriculum

committee members, curriculum staff—or, really,‘énj;bnﬂ%ith"'the necessary knowledge

and the time to help. This individualiﬁ';d attention is often t’nc most effective way to

=
\ ._‘~.

train, as it allows for a more streamhned,\appro&dl to the matenal and more
."

questions/answers. It is alsﬁ important to mnember tl@'t the ASCCC regularly provides

4"?»' -

professional dcvelc{mment oppoﬂ;amncs in thm ateas through its regional meetings,

institutes and plenary sessilons., and 18 wﬂlmg to prov1de assistance to local curriculum

commlt_tses ‘as requgswd.

Finally, m\éfdgr optimigé the training colleges should establish a formal, continuous
training plan. Such aplan can ensure there is a broad understanding of the curriculum
process not just among the faculty but also among all constituent groups. No matter the
format of the professional development, it is essential that there be training in order that

the college’s curriculum process works effectively and efficiently. With consistent and

effective implementation of its curriculum training plan, the college will be well-

29



positioned to ensure that its curriculum process is not dependent on a few knowledgeable

people and that it operates effectively over the long term.

Resources for Effective Curriculum Processes
In order for the curriculum process to operate smoothly and effectively, it is important to
have a curriculum team that includes, at a minimum, the curriculu;ﬁ',el\iair, articulation

officer and a curriculum specialist or the equivalent. The cun‘lculum team performs
<4 w

numerous critical functions during program and cour§§ﬂc\'(\éippmcnf'whilc also making

sure that policies, regulations and guidelines are being follewed and interi)'rﬁ;:teaéorrectly.

.

In many cases, this team often works extra hours and goes above and beyond minimum

job duties. Thus, in order to ensure the éﬁ‘ective operation.of the curriculum process, it is

L,
e &

L

important that local senates advocate fdi:\ﬁufﬁéimfresourcesﬁ such as reassigned time
and/or compensation and préfessional dev‘eg;ﬁprhent funding, to be provided to these key

members of the col],e_@e’s curriclum team.

g
e

\‘a

The sz;'ﬂé;l;mt‘hgir
Thef)i“im\ary faculty leéide;‘ in maiiliers of curriculum is the curriculum chair (or faculty co-
chair depe;!dﬁég pn the ,Qirirﬁculum committee structure). The curriculum chair is tasked
with assuring th.af"‘ﬁ.;;c "i(.)'cal curriculum processes are functioning well so that curriculum
proposals move through the process in a timely manner, and with providing leadership to
the college on curricular matters by working effectively with the local academic senate,

the college administration, faculty, and staff. Typical duties for a curriculum chair

include leading the curriculum committee and planning its agendas for the year,

30



providing orientation and training to curriculum committee members, keeping informed
on curriculum developments at the local and state level, and working with discipline
faculty and the technical reviewers to facilitate moving curriculum proposals through the
process. A more comprehensive list of curriculum chair duties is provided in Appendix
Al

The primary method of compensation for curriculum chairs is thrgugh !:he use of
reassigned time. It is a long standing position of the Academﬁ Senate that curriculum

chairs receive reassigned time as a good practice, as stated m 1ts paper T?xe Currzculum

R

Committee, Role Structure, Duties and Standards“éj Goodj’ractzce (Fall 191% p 7):

‘tfw i

“Reassigned time is appropriate in principle, is cdsbﬁccﬁ% € (especially when

replacement is at hourly adjunct rates‘of pa‘/), and is good pracuce In addition, more

£ ~ B - A

reassigned time is appropriate when the\mmcukxm bomm1tt@e ‘has an expanded and
active role in program revwﬁ pohcy and B@idget deve}opment and in college
governance.” Reassignment ﬁ'om regular fawlty Wuties should be sufficient to allow the

curriculum chair to perfo‘ml hts;’her typicgl &utles as summarized in Appendix A.

N
~
.

The‘ﬁir l{éﬂ?gﬁon Ofﬁcen‘_

The collegﬁé“a;!giﬁul_atioq i;“!fficer plays a critical role in assuring that curriculum
development is .cia\;‘;éf"fectively and in the best interests of the students. The articulation
officer is knowledgeable about transfer requirements and is a key advisor to faculty and
the curriculum committee on how curriculum proposals can affect course-to-course

articulation and acceptance of courses for general education credit by receiving

institutions. The articulation officer should play a key role in the technical review of

31



course and program proposals so that potential issues that may affect student transfer can
be identified early and corrected. Beyond the involvement in the curriculum process, the
articulation officer is responsible for assuring that courses are submitted for articulation
and that articulation agreements are kept up to date, for submitting courses for approval
to be included in the Intersegmental General Education Transfer Curriculum (IGETC)
and the California State University General Education-Breadth (F&U 'ﬁE-Breadth)

general education patterns, and for submitting course ouﬂiq_esﬁt:oﬂlle Course Identification
Numbering System (C-1D) for review and approval. Thie dities of theﬁgfticulation
officer, much of which involves working on an‘inﬂ'iiridual basis with faculty, ’are'

& oo
fc -,

extensive (see Appendix A) and critical for ensuri‘ﬁg;ﬁaat'ti;ahS‘fér mission of the college is

fulfilled.

The Curriculum Specialist-

o
SR

Many colleges em}()lf‘-,v;x‘:l?,ssiﬁeq gtaff as ﬁlll-flmecmnculum specialists. Typical duties
of the curriculum spec;alistthat 'dlrectijtzmpact the curriculum process include
coordir},atiag oi ﬂlt;éﬁrigulu\l\h*a?broyal process and preparation of the curriculum
developtixcnt calendar\“foxr each yéar, preparation of materials for curriculum committee

meetings and @f‘goverpiﬁg board meetings, assistance in operational support for the
technical revie\a.r ‘p;pc'f;ss, and submission of the locally approved curriculum to the
Chancellor’s Office for review and approval. The curriculum specialist provides valuable
technical support for the curriculum chair, which allows the curriculum chair more time
to focus on working with faculty to move their proposals through the process effectively

and in a timely manner. The curriculum specialist may also be responsible for the day-to-

32



day operations related to curriculum, including maintaining and ensuring the accuracy of
curriculum-related publications, such as the college catalog and schedule of classes, and
also are responsible for entering curriculum data elements into the local information
management system. (A more extensive list of curriculum specialist responsibilities is
provided in Appendix A.) Because of the role of the curriculum specialist in providing
day-to-day operational support for the curriculum process that en@%:that the college

Fo h
can offer the curriculum to its students, he/she can provide ;he“‘big picture” view to the
curriculum committee and discipline faculty beyond the cllmculum appmval process
itself, and thus can identify issues that may adve;ﬁ’ely affect cumculum approval that may

b

not be evident to the faculty. T

oy

Because of ongoing changes regardmg cunlcul{}m at Qoth the local and state levels, it is
important that colleges ffrowde resources be'yond reass1gned time that allow for ongoing

professional dcvelopment of thc- coilege s curhculum team. Professional development

funding i is essmtlal and shoﬁ{dhe put n place for the curriculum chair, articulation

{-f '.' ‘.‘

ofﬁcefﬁ -and curnculum__' sp.ec1al1s;}§u altend events that provide the professional
developlﬁegi needed to e;;cme that the knowledge and skills of the curriculum team
members areu‘c'pxt‘(é da;l;e Examples of such events include the ASCCC Curriculum
Institute, Plenary S:iéc;ions and regional meetings; the CIO Conferences; and the UC and
CSU conferences for counselors and articulation officers. Finally, the following

statement from the 1996 paper still applies today:

33



The implication for good standards that result from an expanded role for the
Jaculty in curriculum development and renewal is clear: the curriculum
committee and its chair require adequate reassigned time, secretarial support,

and budget for supplies and equipment.

Special Topic - Distance Education Separate Approyal",::_"

The curriculum committee bears an important part of the responsibility fer ensuring the

g . L

quality of distance education (DE) courses. Pet T;tle > §5;5.296. in order to 6ffer a course

through distance education, it is required that propos-allls‘_m' offer courses through distance
education undergo a separate (or addiﬁoi:'[al'; éurriculum ap‘pro‘-'alm to ensure that these

3

courses meet the requlrements for regularand effecme contact for distance education

\...

courses as defined i in Tiﬂe 5 §S52104 and U. S Dcpartment of Education regulation 34

CFR §600.2. Add1t10n>aliy, col],égcs nccd to msure that students taking distance

educatlon com‘ws are provui@d the same support as on-the-ground for face-to-face
\_

students, partlcularly‘for counseling, ﬁnancml aid, library services, and tutoring, and that

the courses;are. access1b19 {o students with disabilities.

-

.
Y

-

Regular and effecﬁi'i?e; contact is an academic and professional matter per Title 5 § 55204,
and therefore the establishment of policies and procedures for assuring distance education
courses meet the requirements for regular and effective contact require collegial
consultation with local senates. The responsibility for conducting the required separate

approval of distance education proposals is typically delegated to the curriculum

34



committee. The means by which a proposal to offer a course through distance education
is brought to the curriculum committee is a local matter, and the details of effective
practices ensuring a proposal reflects sound distance education practice is beyond the
scope of this paper. However a common practice is to use a DE addendum to the course

outline of record to demonstrate how instructors teaching in the DE modality will ensure
P N
regular and effective contact with their students while maintaining the fuality standards

p
£~

for the course established in the course outline of record.

Z .
.
e . 7
I b ‘.\‘

Before faculty develop proposals to offer coursgsﬁﬁough DE, it is importaii?t,;tg‘provide

&

professional development not only on how to propexiyco:ﬁplét’e a DE proposal, but more

importanily on what regular and effeuimeumtdot is and’ \bhat constitutes effective

practices for ensuring regular and effectlve oonm The coll&ge DE Coordinator and DE

‘.

Committee are valuable rpsuurces for accomp'llshm g tlns and should work cooperatively

!/ o ‘_ X
‘..

with the cumculummmmlttee t;) ensure that the’tmmculmn TeVIEW Process promotes

\. s .‘ i ___,
_L,-v'

\
sound practices in distancqédlic’atlon.

ot
ot
sl 1 -
PR 1
&
/"-.

As s"tatqi earher in this paper, an 1mportant member of the curriculum technical review

) '\

team is the DE Coordlnatt)r or appropriate DE expert. When faculty initiate a proposal
/
for a course to be lpu'ght in a DE modality, it is important that faculty work with the DE
4.!,-"
Coordinator early in the development process in order to identify potential issues with the

DE proposal before it is submitted for technical review and action by the curriculum

committee.?

# It’s important to note that there is a difference between approving a course for online delivery and
approving an individual class 1o be taught online. The former is specifically a curriculum issue through the

35



All DE courses must be accessible to students with disabilities and thus must comply
with the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, specifically Section 508, and the Americans
with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990. Therefore, it is important to work with the a
learning disabilitics specialist to ensure that the DE proposal reasonably meets legally

mandated accessibility requirements.

Finally, because the curriculum committee is require(_liﬁ S_é'parately review and approve

all distance education proposals, it is also important to proyide training to the curriculum
o ik Ps

"

committee on the legal requirements and effective practieés for regular and effective

contact and compliance with accessibi;ify"re_guirements: “This will allow the curriculum

L T

committee to critically review DE prop(%als tfbr_l)@th»cqmplia:nce and quality.

F

o
S

Conclusions and Récommendations

The Report of the Task‘:ﬁ'?;(ea&;i WOrkﬁl;%:,'_:jbbs Creation, and a Strong Economy
K-

creates ;ﬂéw sense, pf urgenc\jréfgr local senates and curriculum committees to ensure that

A \
4 )

their cuaﬂculum apprng:l procesé‘eé are effective and efficient so that new courses and
programs as w‘?ﬂ-_as coume and program revisions can be approved in a timely manner to
mect communit;é;;gi ih.dustry needs. Local academic senates and curriculum committees
should work together to review, evaluate, and revise the college’s and/or district’s

curriculum approval policies and procedures; to ensure that all relevant personnel receive

separate course approval process and would include an evalnation of the means by which the class will
ensure regular and effective contact. The latter, by contrast, is at the level of instruction, and how your
college chooses to assess the quality of an individual online course would apply.

36



training on the local curriculum process to the appropriate level; and to advocate for

sufficient resources for the members of the college curriculum team.

Curriculum, including the policies and procedures for approving curriculum proposals, is

an academic and professional matter under the purview of local senates. With external
forces calling for changes to the way community college cumculuﬁl;g designed,
approved and delivered, it is vitally important that local aché'lg;ci:sﬁnates and curriculum
committees take the primary leadership roles in ensutjng;-;i;e.\effectlii}enéﬁs_ Qf their local

-

curriculum approval processes.

ot
>

Recommendations for Local Senatcs:v;"‘

O iy .

-

¢ Review and evaluate the effecti;@esé'dfqi&al curricalum processes.

e Ensure that the cumaulum commltwe s;m.lctura mciudes a diverse array of faculty,
academic adxﬁimstrators}’btudents and staff that provide a variety of expertise and
perspectives mth‘(sz';l\\tw.cakenmg-‘f&culty primacy over curriculum.

. Enbure tha‘t’%tlié ‘proces‘s\fo_‘fthf: initiation of new curriculum and revisions to

‘wuasting curricﬁl‘n!;_:ig is cleéi:, that the technical review process is streamlined and
effectw-: and that ;*;un'iculum committee meetings are run efficiently.

o Streaxnlmgﬁé ;:urriculum approval process by ensuring a sufficient frequency of
curriculum approval opportunities by the curriculum committee and the governing
board, establishing an expedited approval process for time-sensitive proposals,

and provide individual colleges in multi-college districts autonomy over their

curriculum.

37



e Provide professional development at the appropriate level for facuity,
administrators, students and staff, with more detailed training provided to those
most closely involved with the local curriculum process.

¢ Advocate for sufficient resources to support the work of the college curriculum
team, including reassigned time and/or additional compensation, and for the
provision of ongoing funding and/or access to professior/;gl d;ttélppment
opportunities. A

e Ensure that facuity who develop distance educdﬁon proposalsare provided with

-

. . # -‘.: . i
professional development on effective practices foriensuring regular.and effective

contact and compliance with accessibility requuements

38



References and Resources

The Curriculum Committee, Role Structure, Duties and Standards of Good Practice,
Academic Senate for California Community Colleges (Adopted Fall 1996)
http://ascce.org/sites/default/files/publications/Curriculum 0.pdf

Ensuring the Appropriate Use of Educational Technology: An Update for Local
Academic Senates, Academic Senate for California Community Colleges (Adopted
Spring 2008)

http://ascce.org/sites/default/files/publications/Educational_Technology 0.pdf
#: e,

e

The Course Outline of Record: A Curriculum Reference Guzdg,‘ﬁéddc}nlc Senate for
California Community Colleges (Adopted Spring 2008) Vo

http://ascce.org/sites/default/files/publications/Curriculuraspaper 0 sdif
CIO Manual: Overview & Responsibilities, Cahforma Lommumty Colleges Chlef

Instructional Officers (July 16, 2012) 4 e AL
http://ccecio.org/documents/CIOManual01 OSQQB\pdf &

x r"/

Program and Course Approval Handbook g Edltlon -{l‘ahfornla Community Colleges

Chancellor’s Office (2013) e .
http://extranet.cccco. edu/Portals/l/AA}PromCourseAppmvaUHandbook SthEd_BOG
approved.pdf & ,

California Articulation Pthc*;é;s and Procedw‘es Handbook California Intersegmental
Articulation Council (Révised: &pﬂng 2013)
http://ciac.csusb. cdu/ ‘ ocuments IAC Han

i
oo

sok Spring 2013.pdf

! _;“

Ensuring Effective and Eﬁiaent Curm:u.,m Processes An Academic Senate White
Paper, Acadetmc Senate for. Cahfonua Community Colleges Executive Committee (Fall
2015) . =

http /jasccc orngtesf@@ult/ﬁlestﬁectlve Curriculum_Practices White Paper Final.do
0.4

Standards Pallues and Procedures Jor Intersegmental General Education Transfer
Curriculum, Vergion 1 6, Intersegmental Council of Academic Senates (Approved June

5,2015) b
http://icas-ca. org/Websﬂeshcascahmages/IGETC Standards_version 1.6 final.pdf

Report of the Task Force on Workforce, Job Creation, and a Strong Economy, Board of
Governors {Approved November 16, 2015)
bttp://doingwhatmatters.cccco.edu/portals/6/docs/sw/BOG _TaskForce Report v12 web.

pdf

Distance Education Guidelines: Omnibus Version, California Community Colleges
Chancellor’s Office (Issued 2008)

39



http://extranet.cccco.edu/Portals/1/AA/DE/de_guidelines 081408.pdf

Distance Education Accessibility Guidelines For Students with Disabilities, California
Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office (Issued January 2011)
http://extranet.cecco.edu/Portals/1/AA/DE/201 1 DistanceEducation AccessibilityGuideline

s%20FINAL.pdf

United States Access Board — Information about Section 508 compliance
https://www.access-board.gov/guidelines-and-standards/communications-and-it/about-
the-section-508-standards/background

Course Identification Numbering System (C-ID) — Various C II) resources for the field
https://c-id.net/resources.html 4

/‘

California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office List ofMIS Come Data FElements:
http://extranet.cccco. edu/D1v131ons/TechResearchInfoSw?MIS/DED/Comgggpg

Chancellor’s Office Curriculum and Instructiofi L,imt Webs)tﬁ { includes vari{)us useful

guides): w
http://extranet.cecco. edu/D1v1s1ons/Academ1cAffa1rs/ ¥) "culumandInstructlonUmt/Cun-i
culum.aspx e 1“{\

40



Appendix A — Typical Duties for Curriculum Chairs, Articulation Officers and
Curriculum Specialists

Curriculum Chairs
In its paper The Curriculum Committee, Role Structure, Duties and Standards of Good
Practice (Fall 1996), the Academic Senate identifies the following typical duties of the
Curriculum Chair;
e Prepare agendas.
¢ Conduct the committee meetings.
» Edit minutes.
¢ Set the calendar of committee meetings.
e Keep informed of curriculum smndards 1nclud1ng 'ijilé 5, -the Program and Course
Approval Handbook (formerly thﬁ Cumf:ulum Standards Handbook),
mtersegmentali f.nﬂ gg«ﬁrﬁdltatmn. k‘ 4 .

e Supervise thé ,‘(J:_"igr‘ltation:?éf new members and on-going training of continuing

T ey —
members. i o
-"‘*‘ ~4

~,

. ﬁssmt disciplifié -faculti?\i;;: thi& curriculum development process (usually with a

. fatuity cumculuhl oommif'tee member from that division).

o Assuré that co.lpfﬁ'l;tee function take place smoothly: technical review, pre-
requisite rf.‘Mew, distance education review, general education review, library
sign-off, articulation, and program review reports are submitted to the committee
and reported regularly to the academic senate.

¢ Sign off on final version of curriculum recommendations to the board.

e Sign off on IGETC and CSU-GE Breadth submittal forms

41



e Review catalog drafts for concurrence with approved changes.
Additional duties not outlined in the paper may also include:
e  Work with the curriculum Dean in order to ensure smooth communication
between the faculty and administration regarding program needs.
o Review certificates and degrees for submission to the chancellor’s office

¢ Review local courses to align with C-ID developed cours__eﬁ‘-‘if @essary.
#

e Ensure DE and CO documents are part of the courge"ﬂl the college’s course

management system. , Y

Articulation Officers

According to the California Articulafi;jn_feliqies and Pro:gdums Handbook (2013, p.6)

by the California Intersegmental Articuiﬁfion .Elpungil;ﬂlc Arﬁéulation Officer is be

. P
L. ¥ g ]
> - 3
P b = &

expected to:

Lo anlﬁé;écate for:l\!_;c g Student and, through the articulation process,
seek to ease the Studené:s ;clransiﬁo;f"'m

; ‘.Bg;:;eupinﬁ?ﬂ:nedfreééﬂi&'@cmon for students, campus faculty, administration,

‘OQ“RSeling/adviS‘-nTg Staff: énd transfer center personnel on transfer curriculum,

-
.
L
.

articu, an{d*‘i:'élatcd matters.

® Dissemin';‘ee c;ﬁrrent, accurate, articulation data to students, staff, appropriate
departments, and campuses.

e Serve on appropriate campus committees such as General Education, Curriculum,
Academic Policies, and Catalog to provide input and to receive information about

proposed changes in campus policy and curriculum.

42



e Serve as a consultant to faculty, academic, and student services units, providing
needed materials and information about course articulation proposals and
acceptances,

¢ Facilitate campus participation in intersegmental programs such as C-ID, regional
transfer fairs, and ICC activities.

* Monitor each stage of the articulation process and follow,uj)’ ’Wiﬂl department and

{‘.' 3
e Manage and update campus articulation data and prowde an armual summary of

faculty for timely responses and decisions

transfer-related curricular changes for bgfﬁ mtemal and external rec;plents

& *!

s Be a gatekeeper of course outlines, IGETC C’E\U‘GE baccalaureate lists, TCA

Lists, ASSIST, and other artlcula‘.tmn-related data

e Serve as an advocate for the facﬁljcy a.nd pam;xus academlc programs.

s«-‘"

e Serveasa modcrafm and medlator Qf problems or disagreements betwcen the
J )

faculties of: tﬁe home canipus and the amculatmg institutions.

-f".
“ 4

‘<‘- -, g
A

FUE
A=

Cumcgium Specialists - y

p ¢
Below a?rq axamples of _]bb descriptions and duties for curriculum specialists in the
Imperial Commumty Co‘llege District and the Ventura County Community College

\ r
District. These arg provided for information only and not as an endorsement by the

ASCCC.

IMPERIAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

CLASS TITLE: CURRICULUM & ACADEMIC SYSTEMS SPECIALIST

43



BASIC FUNCTION:

Under the direction of the Vice President for Academic Services, or designee, provide
highly responsible, complex, and sensitive administrative and technical support;
coordinate and maintain curriculum databases; serve as technical resource to faculty and
administrators in preparation of curriculum proposals to assure compliance with State and
local rules, regulations and policies; plan and coordinate the development and publishing
of the college catalog; assist faculty and staff on scheduling processes and procedures;
serve as a liaison to the Chancellor’s Office for curriculum related matters.

A

REPRESENTATIVE DUTIES: :

The following duties are typical for this classification. Incumbed’ts may not perform all of
the listed duties and/or may be required to perform additionalox. different duties from
those set forth below to address business needs and chang;ug bus?nes's practices.

Organize and manage the day-to-day activitics of the a%sagnéd area to assure efficient and
effective operations; coordinate communications; pérform complex, SpCCI&liZﬁd*’and
responsible administrative and technical dutles rﬁated to the. a531gned area. ;

t.’
Plan, organize and coordinate the preparation of the wlle*ge catalog, update degree audit
system accordingly; update database to assure comphange with changes relevant to
student academic progress; update, mamtam, and facilitate: changes in computer data
base. Establish and meet timelines; malatain cutrency of information in the catalog;
coordinate publishing and serve as editor, for the mﬂege catalo g.

Monitor catalog regarding’ d.egree and certlﬁ-.,ate requli'ements course additions and

deletions; course numhers t1tles, content and umt values; update degree audit systems
accordingly. A ‘_: J W

and dlssermnatc T:ﬂc A% regu]e@ons to d1v1s1ons admmlstrator faculty, and staff; compare
and conﬁ‘ast changes; to Title V regulaﬁons and make appropriate adjustments to materials
and oﬁler resources as mqmred o

"\
Assist in the developmeni and maintenance of the class schedule; serve as primary

backup to sch'edﬂlcr

Research, analyze pnd evaluate a wide variety of issues, data, recommendations and
alternatives; use independent judgment to develop and provide recommendations,
suggestions or information as appropriate.

Receive and transcribe dictation of letters and memoranda, including material of a
confidential nature; prepare correspondence and memoranda independently or from oral
instructions.

Type a wide variety of materials such as correspondence, reports, forms, applications,
memoranda, letters of recommendation and other documents.

44



Initiate and answer telephone calls; screen and direct calls and visitors to appropriate
personnel; schedule and confirm appointments and meetings; arrange travel
accommodations for assigned area as necessary.

Maintain a variety of complex files and records; maintain budget and other financial
records related to assigned area, as necessary.

Compile information and data for reports and assist in the preparation of statistical and
narrative reports; conduct research as required. iy

Inspect documents, forms, records and other materials for a.eemacy and completeness;
process a variety of forms and documents according to estabhshed procedures assure

conformance to established guidelines and standards. ’r-.‘,_ L k- N

Prepare agenda items for meetings; take and transcx;ibe mmutes and dlstri‘bute to
appropriate personnel. yr

L

Y
‘\- !

Assure that Board agenda items and supporting docimimlts are developed prepared and
forwarded within college timelines and legal guidelines;,

Maintain confidentiality of records arngd’ mﬁmnat:lon 1ncludmg 1nfonnat10n regarding
Board, District, personnel, student or c&ntrovmal matters. .

Compose correspondence 1ndependently, formﬁt type, pmoﬁ'ead duplicate and distribute
correspondence, notices, lists. forms, mcmbranda and other materials according to
established proccdures and standards B

Coordinate commudlc and-‘ac’ttviﬁﬂs with bther District departments and personnel,
students, educatlonal inst] Ons vendors, other outside organizations and the public.
Opcratcfa vari efy of oﬁce eqmpmanf including microcomputer, calculator, copy
machme, facsimile mh@hme and dictation equipment; input and retrieve computerized
data. v

Train and prb\{ids work direction and guidance to others as assigned; coordinate
workflow to ass‘tf(p theé proper and timely completion of work.

Perform related dﬁﬁes as assigned.

VENTURA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT CLASS TITLE:
CURRICULUM TECHNICIAN

45



(Established October 2010)
CLASSIFIED

BASIC FUNCTION:

Under the direction of an assigned supervisor, coordinate, prioritize, and organize
activities related to curriculum changes, production and maintenance of the college
catalog, and related state reporting.

REPRESENTATIVE DUTIES:
{ I

Coordinate the preparation and distribution of the Cumcuium Commﬂiee materials,
agenda, and minutes. P Y h

Establish timelines and coordinate the producti,ﬂﬁr and prinfing of the colleg;: ca;calog,
compile, organize, and integrate input from d1v1s10ns and.:departments pertaining to

catalog content; proofread submitted materials for accuracy and consistency.

Assist in the management of academic semces data, 1nfonn‘atlon and materials; input
data into the online curriculum database momtor data for comphance with state and

\ -
k.

college regulations. .

Coordinate and facﬂltﬁte the submission of cmncula and programs to the California

Community College system ofﬁce %Slbt w1th the management of curriculum inventory
both at the state and Iocal kweis

Malntam a Wlde Vaz{ﬁt} of rcco‘rds and data, including articulation agreements, library
resom’ces of college cataiogs permlmng to articulation and curriculum transfer, and
artlculatlw tecords related to Advanced Placement (AP), International Baccalaureate
(IB), Collegeulevel Edwatlonal Program (CLEP), Tech Prep (Perkins), and Credit-by-
Exam. s W

Coordinate and facilitate the submission of articulation materials to appropriate state
agencies, including the University of California Office of the President for the UC
Transfer Course Agreement, the California State University Chancellor’s Office for CSU
GE-Breadth, Intersegmental General Education Transfer Curriculum (IGETC), and
Articulation System Stimulating Interinstitutional Student Transfer (ASSIST).

Participate in development and implementation of new information systems and
processes designed to support curriculum functions; pursue resolutions to any identified

46



problems.

Serve as an informational resource regarding curriculum issues, responding to requests,
inquiries, and questions from administrators, faculty, staff and students.

Research information; create queries, compile data and prepare a wide variety of periodic
and special statistical reports related to instructional activities, curriculum, and related
matters.

May provide administrative assistance to assigned supervisor. Perf,éfni.ielated duties as
-

assigned.

;/ 4
Vo g
4

KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES:

KNOWLEDGE OF:

State directives, laws, rules, and regulations reiaté”d’ﬁi cuu‘icldﬁm and articulation
Modern office practices, procedures, and equlpmentlj(’mcct English usage, grammar,
spelling, punctuation and vocabulary for report ertlng Distm‘t orgamzat:lon operations,
policies, goals, and objectives ' :

._.‘
s

Modern computer softwarc apphcatlons mcluémg word processmg, database, and
spreadsheet apphcatlons - __

Principles and proéeﬁu;esof re;g:brﬂ* keeping ﬁ

s .

ABILITY 1‘9:

Interpret and apply réiat»ed laws, regulations, policies, and procedures Communicate
effectlvely, ‘both orally and in writing [ Establish and maintain comprehensive and
accurate ﬁIes de record$ Prepare concise and complete reports as required

Adapt to changmg pbllCICS and procedural requirements(|Establish and maintain
effective working f clatlonshlpsEIManage multiple projects simultaneously DExhibit detail
orientation in reviewing documentation and records OPrepare accurate reports, agendas,
minutes, spreadsheets and other documents related to

scheduling, curriculum, and articulation
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE:

Any combination equivalent to:

47



Education: Graduation from high school or evidence of equivalent educational
proficiency. An associate degree is preferred.

Experience: Three years of technical clerical experience, including experience preparing
minutes, proofreading documents, and maintaining records.

WORKING CONDITIONS:
ENVIRONMENT

Office environment

PHYSICAL ABILITIES ' «f

Seeing to inspect various documents, on-screen data spreadsheets EHearmg and speaking
to communicate with District staff(]Sitting forﬁ\iended peuods of tImeEIDcxterlty of
hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboa:rd and oth&' office equipment

48



Appendix B — Accreditation Eligibility Requirements and Standards Applicable to
Curriculum

Accreditation requirements play a large role in supporting colleges to establish efficient
and effective curriculum processes. The Eligibility Requirements, Standards, and
Commission Policies require that institutions (colleges) provide a catalog that includes

accurate information on facts, policies, requirements, and procedures._
‘.'/ Ao i
.“" -

Standard I.C.2 states that the institution must provide a pr{g}t or on]mﬁ catalog for

i

students and prospective students with precise, accua‘ate, and current mfotmatlon on all

facts, requirements, policies, and procedures llst@d in the “(;"g_xalpg Reqmrements” (see

T e
E. N _allled

endnote). (ER 20) .
.\ \~.. ) )
The words, “precise, accurate, and curremt" make it cl@ar fhat the curriculum

il /' ,tv

development and appro!. ‘al proqesses must bc effectlve and efficient.

2
L

L

b '
~ )
-

ER 20 mandatf:& that the catalog must contain the following:

—7

* 4 C ourse, Prograpa and Degtee Offerings

° SttldpntkLeammg} Gutcomes for Programs and Degrees

Acaderﬁ'ii: Calcndar and Program Length

Accreditation Standards from section II.A are specific to maintaining current, relevant,
and high quality curriculum. All elements of the curriculum are covered here such as
expected practices in higher education in regard to depth, breadth, and rigor; program

length and course sequencing; general education

49



I1.A.2 Faculty, including full time, part time, and adjunct faculty, ensure that the content
and methods of instruction meet generally accepted academic and professional standards
and expectations. Faculty and others responsible act to continuously improve
instructional courses, programs and directly related services through systematic

evaluation to assure currency, improve teaching and learning strategies, and promote
p
student success. :

4"'

= 0y

I1.A.3 The institution identifies and regularly assebses learning outcomes for éburses,
& )
programs, certificates and degrees using established jﬁstitﬁﬁohﬁl procedures. The

institution has officially approved and cufrcnt course ouﬂiges that include siudent

learning outcomes. In every class sectiijp students receive a course syllabus that

includes learning outcomes from the ins"ﬁﬁi‘ti-on’s oﬁﬁ"cially approved course outline.
»y '

II.A.5 The institution’s d&grees and pmgtams follow practices common to American
— .

higher gdﬁéétion,"ingiuding aﬁp{gprigte length, breadth, depth, rigor, course sequencing,

< L

timé'rtoqémpletion, anﬂz@}ﬁlthesié of learning. The institution ensures that minimum
degree requirements are,60 semester credits or equivalent at the associate level, and 120
B ; .

b P
v
o

credits or equivaiém at the baccalaureate level. (ER 12)
II.A.6 The institution schedules courses in a manner that allows students to complete

certificate and degree programs within a period of time consistent with established

expectations in higher education. (ER 9)

50



II.A.11 The institution includes in all of its programs, student learning outcomes,
appropriate to the program level, in communication competency, information
competency, quantitative competency, analytic inquiry skills, ethical reasoning, the

ability to engage diverse perspectives, and other program-specific learning outcomes.

/“
o

9

PO :
-
<
VA

11.A.12 The institution requires of all of its degree programad'éb@poncnt of general

S - - 1
education based on a carefully considered philosophy foir.both associatg and
baccalaureate degrees that is clearly stated in its ;{atalog The institution, reYyi:ﬁgon

PL
£
s B 5

faculty expertise, determines the appropriateness df’-‘eﬁi;ha%ﬁfﬁé for inclusion in the

general education curriculum, based u'pnn student learmng ouicomes and competencies

.

appropriate to the degree level. The leammg ou'h:amas 1nclude a student s preparation for

?-

and acceptance of responsabie part1c1pat10f1; m clv11 soqlety, skills for lifelong learning

and application of lﬁérmng, and ‘a broad compwhﬁnsmn of the development of
\ . fl s
knowledge, practlce and\mterprenve appmaches in the arts and humanities, the sciences,
A
mathematlc:., and suctal scwnm {ER 12)

.5 ol
L

IL.A.13 All d%r’ee‘pro g}:&nds include focused study in at least one area of inquiry or in an
established interdl"st_:'[i*:iiinary core. The identification of specialized courses in an area of
inquiry or in an established interdisciplinary core is based upon student learning

outcomes and competencies, and include mastery, at the appropriate degree level, of key

theories and practices within the field of study.

51



I1.A.14 Graduates completing career-technical certificates and degrees demonstrate
technical and professional competencies that meet employment standards and other

applicable standards and preparation for external licensure and certification.

II.A.16 The institution regularly evaluates and improves the quality and currency of all
instructional programs offered in the name of the institution, incl}uiihg}_tollegiate, pre-

collegiate, career-technical, and continuing and community edusation courses and
.

programs, regardless of delivery mode or location. The inshtﬁtion sj}st@natically strives
to improve programs and courses to enhance leqming outcemes and achie‘Ve;m;ent for

students.

The next two standards are met througlf‘the estaiglmshment (_)f-’fthe college and/or district

L
R B

curriculum committee(s)...s

P

v‘\ : I-j‘ ‘, . . _5}
Standard 11L.A.2 includesxgbef@l’lbﬁing.siqteﬁlent: Faculty job descriptions include

developmient and review of cursacnlum as well as assessment of learning.
i ~ "

b

N
-

In Standard TVA4 it sta!gs that Faculty and academic administrators, through policy and
procedures, and thmugh well-defined structures, have responsibility for recommendations

about curriculum and student learning programs and services.

52



Appendix C — Relevant Statutory and Regulatory Citations
California Education Code

§70902(b)(7) Establish procedures that are consistent with minimum standards
established by the board of governors to ensure faculty, staff, and students the
opportunity to express their opinions at the campus level, to ensure that these opinions
are given every reasonable consideration, to ensure the right to participate effectively in
district and college governance, and to ensure the right of academic senates to assume
primary responsibility for making recommendations in the areas of curriculum and
academic standards. o Y

Title 5 Sections on Academic Senates &

$53200 Definitions.

For the purpose of this Subchapter:
(a) “Faculty” means those employees of a comnwhrry college district who are employed
in positions that are not designated as supervisérs: or. management for the pérposes of
Article 5 (commencing with Section 3540) of Chaptqf 10:7 of Division 4 of Title 1 of the
Government Code, and for which minimum qual1ficatlons for hire are specified by the
Board of Governors. 4 .

(b) “Academic senate,” “faculty councﬂ ™ a.oﬂ “faculty senate™ fileans an organization
formed in accordance with the prowsmns of thiy ﬂubchapter avhose primary function, as
the representative of the faculty, is to make. rec.omrne@ai:tons to the administration of a
college and to the governingboard of a d1strf61 with regpect to academic and professional
matters. For purposes of this’ Subehapter, refgtence to the term “academic senate” also
constitutes reference’m‘ “faculty pouncil” or ‘faﬁz;l‘ty senate.”

(c) “Academic and professmnal:inﬂters” meajas the following policy development and
implementation matters:™_ ” 4

() cumculum, m“eludlng est@hshmg prerequisites and placing courses within
d1sc1pl1nﬁf, o -

(2) degree and certlﬁcate requ1rements,

(3) gradm,g policies; " -

(4) educahon&l program development

(5) standards-ar policiesgegarding student preparation and success;

(6) district and oolleggigovernance structures, as related to faculty roles;

(7) faculty roles a\l’ld mvolvement in accreditation processes, including self-study and
annual reports;

(8) policies for faculty professional development activities;

(9) processes for program review;

(10} processes for institutional planning and budget development; and

(11) other academic and professional matters as are mutually agreed upon between the
governing board and the academic senate.

(d) *Consult collegially” means that the district governing board shall develop policies on
academic and professional matters through either or both of the following methods,
according to its own discretion:

53



(1) relying primarily upon the advice and judgment of the academic senate; or

(2) agrecing that the district governing board, or such representatives as it may designate,
and the representatives of the academic senate shall have the obligation to reach mutual
agreement by written resolution, regulation, or policy of the governing board effectuating
such recommendations.

§53202 Formation; Procedures; Membership.

The following procedure shall be used to establish an academic senate:

(a) The full-time faculty of a community college shall vote by secret ballot to form an
academic senate.

(b) In multi-college districts, the full-time faculty of the district colleges may vote on
whether or not to form a district academic senate. Such vote shall be by secret ballot.

(c¢) The governing board of a district shall recognize the acad?:mw scnate and authorize
the faculty to: i b

(1) Fix and amend by vote of the full-time faculty the eampegtlon stmcture and
procedures of the academic senate.

(2) Provide for the selection, in accordance with, a‘ccepted democratlc electmn
procedures, the members of the academic senate.., . N

(d) The full-time faculty may provide for the membershlp and partlclpatlon of part-time
faculty members in the academic senate. L N

(e) In the absence of any full-time fa(mlty members in a Ct)mmunlty college, the part-time
faculty of such community college may fmm an academlc senaj:c
§53203 Powers. 4

(a) The governing board of @ €ommunity cqllcge dlstlwt shall adopt policies for
appropriate delegation of authtmty and respanslblhty to its college and/or district
academic senate. Ameng other matters, said policies, at a minimum, shall provide that the
governing board or P18 designees williconsult gollegially with the academic senate when
adopting policies and prowﬂufes on academm and professional matters. This requirement
to consult callﬂgmi«ly shall not limit other rights and responsibilities of the academic
senate which are Speclﬁcally pmﬂded 1n statute or other Board of Governors regulations.
(b) In: adoptmg the pchucs and procedures described in Subsection (a), the governing
board ot its des1gnees sha]l consult collegially with representatives of the academic
senate. - !

(c) While 1 in the process, of consulting collegially, the academic senate shall retain the
right to meet wif( o1 tg appear before the governing board with respect to the views,
recommendations, of proposals of the senate. In addition, after consultation with the
administration of the college and/or district, the academic senate may present its views
and recommendations to the governing board.

{d) The governing board of a district shall adopt procedures for responding to
recommendations of the academic senate that incorporate the following;

(1) in instances where the governing board elects to rely primarily upon the advice and
judgment of the academic senate, the recommendations of the senate will normally be
accepted, and only in exceptional circumstances and for compelling reasons will the
recommendations not be accepted. If a recommendation is not accepted, the governing
board or its designee, upon request of the academic senate, shall promptly communicate

54



its reasons in writing to the academic senate.

(2) in instances where the governing board elects to provide for mutual agreement with
the academic senate, and agreement has not been reached, existing policy shall remain in
effect unless continuing with such policy exposes the district to legal liability or causes
substantial fiscal hardship. In cases where there is no existing policy, or in cases where
the exposure to legal liability or substantial fiscal hardship requires existing policy to be
changed, the governing board may act, after a good faith effort to reach agreement, only
for compelling legal, fiscal, or organizational reasons.

(e) An academic senate may assume such responsibilities and perform such functions as
may be delegated to it by the governing board of the district pursuant.to Subsection (a).
(f) The appointment of faculty members to serve on college or dislﬂct'mmmlttees task
forces, or other groups dealing with academic and professmnaLmatters shall be made,
after consultation with the chief executive officer or his or hsr dw,@ee by the academic
senate. Notwithstanding this Subsection, the collective naa:gammg @resentanve may
seek to appoint faculty members to committees, task ferces ,'ar other § g:oups

"-.

Title 5 Sections on Curriculum, Including Dlsfmﬁ@_cguga -

$55002 Standards and Criteria for Courses.

(a) Degree-Applicable Credit Course: A d;egree—apphcabla crcdlt course is a course which
has been designated as appropriate to the asgoviate degree in. mﬁrda.nce with the
requirements of section 55062, and whlah has’ ‘beani'ecomm&idcd by the college and/or
district curriculum committee and approved byti‘xe d:lﬁtrid; ‘governing board as a
collegiate course meehng,the mseds of the wifdents. Jf,

(1) Curriculum Committee. The eollege m&'}m: district curriculum committee
recommending the pdrurse shall he established by*fhe mutual agreement of the college
and/or district admlnls!‘:atmn and thie, a;c.adcmw senate. The committee shall be either a
committee of the academisg: smmte or am:@mnlttee that includes faculty and is otherwise
compnsed ina@way that is mutually agrceable to the college and/or district administration

and the ,academlc smi:e \‘*\{ e

(2) Sta&dards for Apprmral The bgllege and/or district curriculum committee shall
recolnmm;l approval ofthe course for associate degree credit if it meets the following
standards™.} % *

(A) Gradmg\?ﬁhacy The*coursc provides for measurement of student performance in
terms of the staqu toufse objectives and culminates in a formal, permanently recorded
grade based upon ’quorm standards in accordance with section 55023. The grade is
based on demonstrated proficiency in subject matter and the ability to demonstrate that
proficiency, at least in part, by means of essays, or, in courses where the curriculum
committee deems them to be appropriate, by problem solving exercises or skills
demonstrations by students.

(B) Units. The course grants units of credit based upon a relationship specified by the
governing board between the number of units assigned to the course and the number of
lecture and/or laboratory hours or performance criteria specified in the course outline.
The course also requires a minimum of three hours of student work per week, including
class time for each unit of credit, prorated for short-term, extended term, laboratory

55



and/or activity courses.

(C) Intensity. The course treats subject matter with a scope and intensity that requires
students to study independently outside of class time.

(D) Prerequisites and Corequisites. When the college and/or district curriculum
committee determines, based on a review of the course outline of record, that a student
would be highly unlikely to receive a satisfactory grade unless the student has knowledge
or skills not taught in the course, then the course shall require prerequisites or
corequisites that are established, reviewed, and applied in accordance with the
requirements of this article.

(E) Basic Skills Requirements. If success in the course is dependent upon communication
or computation skills, then the course shall require, consistent with thxtfprowsmns of this
article, as prerequisites or corequisites eligibility for enrollment'm associate degree credit
courses in English and/or mathematics, respectively.

(F) Difficulty. The course work calls for critical thinking qmj the unﬁ@rstandlng and
application of concepts determined by the curriculum mmmﬂ:tee to be at college lcvel.
{G) Level. The course requires learning skills and avocabulary that the curriculum
committee deems appropriate for a college course. ’

(3) Course Outline of Record. The course is d@soﬂbed ina murse outline of record that
shall be maintained in the official college files and made 4V ailable to each instructor, The
course outline of record shall specify the unit value the. expected number of contact hours
for the course as a whole, the prereqmsates corequisites or.advisories on recommended
preparation (if any) for the course, the Qalala)g description, olgsctlves and content in
terms of a specific body of knowledge. The courke outline shall also specify types or
provide examples of required reading and. wnMg as*s:gnments other outside-of-class
assignments, instructional méthodology, am'l nethods of evaluation for determining
whether the stated objj ecfives have been met by students.

(4) Conduct of Coursae Fach section of the cougse’is to be taught by a qualified instructor
in accordance with'a set 6f obJe@nm and w1th other specifications defined in the course
outline of record. )

(5) Repetition: Repeated cnlﬂqllment is allowed only in accordance with the provisions of
section 51002, artl(:le 4 ( oommmgg with section 55040) of subchapter 1 of chapter 6,
and smn 58161. -

(b) Nomk‘.gree Apphcabl@ Credlt Coursc A credit course designated by the governing
board as nt\t applicable to.the associate degree is a course which, at a minimum, is
recon:unendedby the co]ﬁcge and/or district curriculum committee (the committee
described and estﬁ:hhshed under subdivision (a)(1) of this section) and is approved by the
district governing bo,ard

(1) Types of Courses. Nondegree-applicable credit courses are:

(A) nondegree-applicable basic skills courses as defined in subdivision (j) of section
55000,

(B) courses designed to enable students to succeed in degree-applicable credit courses
(including, but not limited to, college orientation and guidance courses, and discipline-
specific preparatory courses such as biology, history, or electronics) that integrate basic
skills instruction throughout and assign grades partly upon the demonstrated mastery of
those skills;

(C) precollegiate career technical preparation courses designed to provide foundation

56



skills for students preparing for entry into degree-applicable credit career technical
courses Or programs;

(D) essential career technical instruction for which meeting the standards of subdivision
(a) is neither necessary nor required.

(2) Standards for Approval. The college and/or district curriculum committee shail
recommend approval of the course on the basis of the standards which follow.

(A) Grading Policy. The course provides for measurement of student performance in
terms of the stated course objectives and culminates in a formal, permanently recorded
grade based upon uniform standards in accordance with section 55023. The grade is
based on demonstrated proficiency in the subject matter and the ability to demonstrate
that proficiency, at least in part, by means of written expression that ‘maay include essays,
or, in courses where the curriculum committee deems them to beappropnate by problem
solving exercises or skills demonstrations by students. &

(B) Units. The course grants units of credit based upon a rélatlonship spcmﬁed by the
governing board between the number of units asmgnedfi) the eourse and the number of
lecture and/or laboratory hours or performance critgrfia’ specified in the ctiln'se optline,
The course requires a minimum of three hours of student work per week, pqt unit,
including class time and/or demonstrated compe‘egncy, for eaﬂh unit of credft, prorated for
short-term, extended term, laboratory, and/or acthlty coufkes.’

(C) Intensity. The course provides instruction in critical thmklng and generally treats
subject matter with a scope and 1ntensitv that prepares smdeﬁts to study independently
outside of class time and includes readmgﬂud writing assignments and homework. In
particular, the assignments will be sufﬁe;enﬂy“ngm‘ous that students successfully
completing each such course, or sequenceof reqmredg.;ourses, will have acquired the
skills necessary to successfally.complete dw*ec-apphmble work.

(D) Prerequisites and corequissies. When thy college and/or district curriculum committee
deems appropnate the course mgy require prewqﬁlsﬁes or corequisites for the course that
are established, reviewed;and apphed in accopdance with this article.

(3) Course Outline of Re d.The course 15" described in a course outline of record that
shall be maintsiried in the offwlal college files and made available to each instructor. The
course oaﬂmc of regord shall spaelfy the unit value, the expected number of contact
hours: for the course as & whole, the prerequisites, corequisites or advisories on
recommmded prcparatltm Gf any) for the course, the catalog description, objectives, and
content interms of a spetific body of knowledge. The course outline shall also specify
types or proWde exampleés of required reading and writing assignments, other outside-of-
class assignments. instfuctional methodology, and methods of evaluation for determining
whether the stated ﬁb]ectlves have been met by students. Taken together, these course
specifications shalt be such as to typically enable any student who successfully completes
all of the assigned work prescribed in the outline of record to successfully meet the
course objectives.

(4) Conduct of Course. All sections of the course are to be taught by a qualified instructor
in accordance with a set of objectives and with other specifications defined in the course
outline of record.

(5) Repetition. Repeated enrollment is allowed only in accordance with the provisions of
section 51002, article 4 (commencing with section 55040} of subchapter 1 of chapter 6,
and section 58161.

57



(c) Noncredit Course. A noncredit course is a course which, at a minimum, is
recommended by the college and/or district curriculum committee (the committee
described and established under subdivision (a)(1) of this section) and approved by the
district governing board as a course meeting the needs of enrolled students,

(1) Standards for Approval. The college and/or district curriculum committee shall
recommend approval of the course if the course treats subject matter and uses resource
materials, teaching methods, and standards of attendance and achievement that the
committee deems appropriate for the enrolled students. In order to be eligible for state
apportionment, such courses must be approved by the Chancellor pursuant to article 2
(commencing with section 55150) of subchapter 2 of this chapter and satisfy the
requirements of section 58160 and other applicable prov1s10ns of ehspﬁér 9 (commencing
with section 58000) of this division. ;

(2) Course Outline of Record. The course is described in a cc‘m'se outlmc of record that
shall be maintained in the official college files and made qvmlable 10.each instructor. The
course outline of record shall specify the number of contact hpurs nom;ally required for a
student to complete the course, the catalog descnptlén ‘the objectives, contents in terms
of a specific body of knowledge, instructional mct"hodology, examples of asmgnmcnts
and/or activities, and methods of evaluation fof* dn:tf:nmmng whether the stated objectives
have been met.

(3) Conduct of Course. All sections of the course are o, beiaught by a qualified instructor
in accordance with the set of ob]ectlves aﬂd other spcmﬁcatmns deﬁncd in the course
outline of record. %™

(4) Repetition. Repeated enrollment is aﬂowed 'enlv in accordance with provisions of
section 58161. w o4

(d) Community Services Offéring. A commmnty serviges offenng must meet the
following minimum reqi.uremm b

(1) is approved by th#district gowemmg boal‘d

(2) is designed for (the“phvswal mtaL moraf ‘economic, or civic development of
persons enrolled therein;™

(3) provides subject matter“ctgnicnt resource matenals and teaching methods which the
district gmrermng'hnatd deemsgmsropnate for the enrolled students;

(4) is.¢onducted in accordance Wﬂ‘h a predetermined strategy or plan;

(5) is opento all membu‘s of the community willing to pay fees to cover the cost of the

offering; and -
(6) may not be clauncd ﬁn‘ apportionment purposes.

$55202 Course inality Standards.

The same standards of course quality shall be applied to any portion of a course
conducted through distance education as are applied to traditional classroom courses, in
regard to the course quality judgment made pursuant to the requirements of section
55002, and in regard to any local course quality determination or review process.
Determinations and judgments about the quality of distance education under the course
quality standards shall be made with the full involvement of faculty in accordance with
the provisions of subchapter 2 (commencing with section 53200) of chapter 2,

58



$55204 Instructor Contact.

In addition to the requirements of section 55002 and any locally established requirements
applicable to all courses, district governing boards shall ensure that:

(a) Any portion of a course conducted through distance education includes regular
effective contact between instructor and students, through group or individual meetings,
orientation and review sessions, supplemental seminar or study sessions, field trips,
library workshops, telephone contact, correspondence, voice mail, e-mail, or other
activities. Regular effective contact is an academic and professional matter pursuant to
sections 53200 et seq.

(b) Any portion of a course provided through distance education is cenducted consistent
with guidelines issued by the Chancellor pursuant to section 409 Qf( ﬂle Procedures and
Standing Orders of the Board of Governors. e

$§55206 Separate Course Approval, & L

If any portion of the instruction in a proposed or existing COWySe or course section is
designed to be provided through distance educatloqdh Tiéu of face-to-face nteraction
between instructor and student, the course shall bé. separatgly reviewed and approved
according to the district's adopted course appr(wal procedum i

*
i
n

United States Department of Educatiogf{" Regulations
k- 5 ., R
-

34 CFR 600.2 Definitions
(Selected Federal deﬁmtzons of relevance! for gw rzcwhtm vommittees)

Clock hour: A period ¢ oﬁlme mlstmg of—»—

(1) A 50-to 60-m1nm§c\class lecture or rec1t$mﬁ in a 60-minute period;

(2) A 50- to 60-minute. ﬁaculty sﬁpewmed Iabgratory, shop training, or internship in a 60-
minute period; or R

(3) Sixty minutesiof preparaqon in a correspondence course.

Correspaﬁdence cw.m‘e (1) AGourse provided by an institution under which the
mstltuﬁon provides instructional materials, by mail or electronic transmission, including
exartiinggions on the materials, to ‘students who are separated from the instructor.
Interaction Dbetween the instructor and student is limited, is not regular and substantive,
and is pnmahiy initiated’by the student. Correspondence courses are typically self-paced.
(2) If a course 18pa:t gdrrespondence and part residential training, the Secretary considers
the course to be a tofrespondence course.

(3) A correspondence course is not distance education.

Credit hour: Except as provided in 34 CFR 668.8(k) and (1), a credit hour is an amount of
work represented in intended learning outcomes and verified by evidence of student
achievement that is an institutionally established equivalency that reasonably
approximates not less than—

(1) One hour of classroom or direct faculty instruction and a minimum of two hours of
out of class student work each week for approximately fifteen weeks for one semester or
trimester hour of credit, or ten to twelve weeks for one quarter hour of credit, or the
equivalent amount of work over a different amount of time; or

59



(2) At least an equivalent amount of work as required in paragraph (1) of this definition
for other academic activities as established by the institution including laboratory work,
internships, practica, studio work, and other academic work leading to the award of credit
hours.

Distance education means education that uses one or more of the technologies listed in
paragraphs (1) through (4) of this definition to deliver instruction to students who are
separated from the instructor and to support regular and substantive interaction between
the students and the instructor, either synchronously or asynchronously. The technologies
may include—

(1) The internet;

(2) One-way and two-way transmissions through open broadcast, e{ﬂﬁed circuit, cable,
microwave, broadband lines, fiber optics, satellite, or wireless oémmumcatlons devices;

ne -

(3) Aundio conferencing; or i
(4) Video cassettes, DVDs, and CD-ROMs, if the cassettes,. DVDS m’ CD-ROMs are

used in a course in conjunction with any of the technol(sgles listed in paragraphs (0
through (3} of this definition. ;

60



b

Academic Senate
E for California Community Colleges

tan FoERMPOWERMINY, VOICE,

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Caucus Participation and Engagement Month: February | Year: 2016

Item No: IV. G

Attachment: No

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will discuss caucus Urgent: No - Spring

participation and engagement and consider for | Time Requested: 10 minutes
approvai if subsequent action is needed

CATEGORY: Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: North/Freitas/Adams Consent/Routine

First Reading X
STAFF REVIEW": Julie Adarns Action

Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

Recently concern was raised regarding the membership of the ASCCC caucuses and whether or not
they were inclusive and open to anyone from the field. The Executive Committee will discuss how
to ensure that caucus activities remain aligned with ASCCC's mission, goals, principles and operating
purview. Members will also consider how best to use the caucuses to better inform the ASCCC
work.

Note: The ASCCC Caucus process can be found on our website here:
http://www.asccc.org/node/184082/.

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






EA‘ Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Spring Session Planning

| Month: January | Year: 2016

ltermn No: IV H,

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME:

2016 Spring Session Planning and possible
keynote presenters.

Urgent: YES

Time Requested: 20 minutes

TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:

CATEGORY: Action

REQUESTED BY: David Morse/Julie Adams Consent/Routine
First Reading

STAFF REVIEW?: Tonya Davis Action X
Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

The Spring Plenary Session will be held on April 21 - 23, 2016, at the Sacramento Convention Center
and Sheraton Grand Sacramento. The approved theme is “Aligning Partnerships for Student
Success”. During this meeting, the Executive Committee will discuss keynote presentations, approve
the preliminary program and discuss other planning details for the Spring Plenary Session.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.







2016 Spring Session Timeline

January 2016
1. Start thinking about general sessions, breakouts, presenters, facilitators for session.
February 2016
1. Possible Breakout Topics due to Julie by February 1, 2016 for discussion at February Executive
Committee Meeting.
2. Save the date emailed - February 8, 2016.
3. Draft papers due February 18, 2016 - Send with Agenda item.
4, Area meeting information due to Tonya - February 18, 2016.
5. Pre-session resolutions due to Julie - February 18, 2016.
March 2016
1. A/V Needs due to Edie - March 14, 2016.
2. Presenter List due to Julie - March 14, 2016.
3. Final breakout descriptions due to Julie- March 16, 2016
April 2016
1. Early Registration expires- Aprii 1, 2016
2. Area Meetings — April 1-2, 2016
3. Deadline for Area A and B Meeting resolutions to Julie - April 2, 2016
4. Deadline for Area C and D Meeting resclutions to Julie - April 3, 2016
5. Room availability guarantee expires -April 3, 2016.
6. All presentations, handouts, and material due for posting to eventmaterials@asccc.org — April 8
2016
7. “Print your Boarding Pass and Breakouts” Email Out: April 13, 2016.
8. Spring Session - April 21-23, 2016 Sacramento Convention Center.







EA Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADEHRSHIP, EMPOWERMENT, VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBIJECT: Career Technical Education (CTE) Program Month: February | Year: 2016
ftem Do V. 1.
Attachment: YES
DESIRED QUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: NO
approval the program for the May CTE Time Requested: 20 mins.,
Leadership Event.
CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Goold Consent/Routine
First Reading X
STAFF REVIEW®. “Juhie Adams Action X
5 Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

The CTE Leadership Committee has begun the planning the CTE Leadership Institute held May 6-7,
2016, at the DoubleTree Hilton in Anaheim and recommends the following general sessions and
breakout topics. The Executive Committee will consider for approval topics for the event program.

Pre-session: Hold CTE Liaison luncheon?

General Sessions:

e  ASCCC State of the Senate (President)

o Contextualized Teaching (integrating basic skilis with CTE): Panel of Experts
¢ CTE Implementation

* Launchboard build out (Kathy Booth): presentation and table top exercise
¢ Future of Industry: What will the Workforce Look Like {Futurist)
Breakouts:

Contextualized Teaching — How to Start
CTE Implementation to the WFTF: Five breakouts
o Student Success
o Career Pathways
© Workforce Data
o Curriculum
o CTE Faculty
¢  Why and How to Develop Stackable Credentials
C-ID CTE (model curriculumy)
s  Curriculum Process

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.



Dual Enrollment Toolkit

Grant Development and Funding: Federal and State Funding Sources
Program Competition: The good, the bad, and the ugly

Regional Consortium (invite consortium chairs}

Noncredit CTE

Advisory Board — How to Fix a Broken System

ASCCC 101 —the Role of the Mothership

CTE Counseling—imbedded counselors

Intrusive interdisciplinary discussion

Notes:

e Connect individuals within industry
Opening: Student ~ diversity (transfer, career, basic, veterans, EOPs, DSPS, CalWorks)

Role of ASCCC Liaison

Educational Pathways

What everyone should about C-1D

Workbased learning

Contextualized teaching

Dual enroliment

Critical conversations — deans, VPIs, faculty, etc.
o The great divide (CTE — other academics)
o Implementation of CTE Recommendation

e Theming — model what we expect our colleagues to do; what does it look like.....

e Implementation conversations.....



EA’ Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda ltem

SUBJECT: Periodic Review of the ASCCC Month: February | Year: 2016

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME: Consider for approval conducting the ASCCC Urgent: YES
Periodic Review in 2016 -17 Time Requested:
CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: John Stanskas & Julie Adams Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEWS julle Adams Action X
by | Information

Please note: Sfaff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

Resolution SP14 01.02 states that we will conduct a Periodic Review by the Spring 2016 Plenary
Session.

DESIRED OUTCOME:

For the following reasons, we recommend that such a review be conducted in the 2016-2017
Academic year instead:

1. The Spring Plenary session has a limited number of breakouts and is a shared conference with
the ClOs, CS550s, and CCCAQE which is, perhaps, not the best environment to conduct such a
review

2. Collecting the requisite number of reviewers and bringing them together has been a challenge.
While some reviewers have been identified, a few more need to be generated and contacted.

3. More time will facilitate a better and more useful evaluation and recommendations to the body
and the Executive Committee to improve our service to the field.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






Guidelines for the Periodic Review of Academic Senate for California Community Colleges

Introduction

The following guidelines shall be employed for the Periodic Review of the ASCCC. These
guidelines accompany the Review Criteria to be used by the Periodic Review Task Force and by
the ASCCC Executive Committee. The guidelines address the following areas: the composition
of the Task Force, the selection process for the Task Force, the responsibilities of the Task Force
chair and reviewers, resources to review, the responsibilities of the ASCCC Executive
Commitiee, evaluation by the ASCCC Executive Committes, and the report documeni and
presentation. The review process should culminate either in actions that can be taken by the
ASCCC Executive Committee to strengthen the organization or in resolution driven
recommendations which will be discussed and voted on at an ASCCC Plenary Session.

Composition of the Periodic Review Task Force

The Periodic Review Task Force will consist of 10 totai members:
* 1 nonvoting chair
* 9 Reviewers

Selection Process for Reviewers

A Periodic Review Task Force consisting of ten faculty members will be identified at the
Spring Plenary Session prior to the review year. To establish a representative group of
faculty evaluators, the Academic Senate will employ a random selection process. A list of
faculty participating in Academic Senate activities during the previous 12 months will form
the pool of candidates, specifically including delegates, ASCCC committee and task force
members, and faculty attendees at plenary sessions and all institutes, Current Executive
Committee members will be excluded from the list.

During an open session of the Spring Plenary in which any attendee may oversee the
randomization process, each faculty member on the list will be assigned a random number.
The list of prospective reviewers will then be reordered from the smallest random number
to the highest. The Academic Senate will ask the first ten individuals on the list if they are
willing to serve as reviewers. If all ten faculty agree, the selection process will end and the
Review Task Force for that review cycle can begin its work. If some individuals in the first
ten slots on the list are unable to serve or are not interested in serving, the Academic
Senate will ask the next individual on the ordered list until the Periodic Review Task Force
consists of ten faculty who have agreed to serve.

The ten Task Force members will choose one individual from among themselves to be the
non-voting chair. The ASCCC Elections Chair will oversee the selection process and
announce the resuits to the body. ASCCC staff will conduct the process by compiling the list
and assigning random numbers. A copy of the ordered list of names will be saved and
made available on the ASCCC web site.

Responsibilities of the Periodic Review Task Force Chair and Reviewers
The non-voting chair of the Task Force will agree to the following responsibilities:
*  Work with the Executive Director in managing the budget for the Task Force

1



Develop the meeting schedule in consultation with the reviewers

Attend both Fall and Spring Plenary Sessions (ASCCC will finance attendance)

Sign a statement of responsibility to be fair, responsible, and professional and to
have no conflicts of interest

Attend all meetings of the Task Force

Coordinate the completion of the Task Force report and submit the report to the
Executive Committee no later than the February Executive Committee meeting
After consideration of the response and input of the Executive Committee, present
a completed report to the body at the Spring Plenary Session

The nine voting reviewers of the Task Force will agree to the following responsibilities:

Be available to attend both Fall Plenary to hold a breakout and Spring Plenary to
present the report, though attendance at both events may not be required
Determine in consultation with the chair which reviewers will attend and
participate in each plenary session presentation,

Coordinate the completion of the report and submit the report to the Executive
Committee no later than the February Executive Committee meeting

After consideration of the response and input of the Executive Committee, bring
forward a completed report to the body at the Spring Plenary Session

Sign a statement of responsibility to be fair, responsible, and professional and to
have no conflicts of interest

Attend all meetings of the task force unless prevented from attending a specific
meeting by extenuating or emergency circumstances

Resources to Review
Periodic Review Task Force members will base their report on the following resources:

http: ntent/executive-committee-information

ASCCC Mission, Values, Bylaws, Policies, and Procedures

ASCCC Program page

ASCCC Resolutions page

Interviews with Executive Committee members, ASCCC committee and task force
members, and other individuals as appropriate

ASCCC Annual Report

Executive Committee Internal Evaluation

Surveys

Other resources as determined to be appropriate by the Review Task Force

Responsibilities of the ASCCC Executive Committee

Executive Committee members are required to participate in the Review Process by
providing information when requested, being available for interviews by the reviewers,
and striving for honesty, integrity, and professionalism in their interactions with the
reviewers. The Executive Committee is responsible for approving the budget for the
Periodic Review Task Force's work and providing any necessary resources in a timely
manner to ensure that the reviewers are able to complete their work. Additionally, the
Executive Committee shall complete an internal evaluation. Finally, the Executive

2



Committee may compose a response to the findings of the Task Force to address any
factual errors or if the Executive Committee determines that a need to provide additional
context or interpretation of events or actions.

Evaluation by the Executive Committee

The members of Executive Committee possess a unique perspective on the decision-
making, planning, and advocacy efforts of the Academic Senate that is derived from their
daily efforts representing the faculty of the California Community Colleges. To assist the
Periodic Review Task Force, the members of the Executive Committee will prepare an
internal evaluation of the Academic Senate based upon same Areas of Review being
considered by the Task Force. The evaluation will consist of individual Executive
Committee members’ analysis of how effectively the Academic Senate is working in each of
the Areas of Review. It should include specific details that support the statements made
and information regarding resources through which the evaluation team can locate
additional details. The Executive Committee will complete this internal evaluation prior to
the beginning of the Spring Plenary session that initiates the review process.

Report Content and Presentation

The report of the Periodic Review Task Force will include both commendations and
recommendations regarding the work of the ASCCC as a whole and in specific of its
Executive Committee. The Task Force will present the report in person at a meeting of the
Executive Committee no later than February of the year in which the evaluation is being
conducted. The Executive Committee will have this opportunity to request clarifications
regarding the recommendations and commendations or evidence of findings or to offer
further information to the Task Force. The Task Force will then present its final report to
the body of the ASCCC at the Spring Plenary Session. The Executive Committee will
consider all recommendations and commendations but will not be bound to any specific
action by the reportitself. Recommendations from the report may be implemented and
become direction to the Executive Committee through the ASCCC resolution process, Such
recommendations may be introduced by the Executive Committee itself or by any member
of the ASCCC body.

Review Cycle

The ASCCC Executive Committee will initiate this evaluation process every four academic
years. The ASCCC will complete the selection process for the Review Task Force in Spring
2015 and undergo and complete its first Periodic Review of the ASCCC by the Spring 2016

Plenary Session.

Evaluation of the Periodic Review of the ASCCC Process

The ASCCC will assess the efficacy of the Periodic Review of the ASCCC process, including
the Guidelines for the Periodic Review of the Academic Senate for California Community
Colleges and Periodic Review of the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges
Review Criteria, after completion of the first periodic review and report back to the body
any modifications or adjustments by Spring 2017 Plenary Session



1)



é Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges
LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOILE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBIJECT: Chancellor’s Office Liaison Discussion Month: February | Year: 2016
ltem No: V- A,
Attachment: NO
DESIRED OUTCOME: A liaison from the Chancellor’s Office will Urgent: NO
provide the Executive Committee with an Time Requested: 45 min.
update of system-wide issues and projects.
CATEGORY: Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: David Morse/Julie Bruno Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW!. Julie Adams Action
[ Discussion/Information | X

Please note: Staff will com,élete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

A Chancellor’s Office representative will bring items of interest regarding Chancellor’s Office
activities to the Executive Committee for information, updates, and discussion. No action will be
taken by the Executive Committee on any of these items.

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






ﬁ‘ A H
- Academic Senate
S for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIPF., EMPOWERMENT. VOILE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Board of Governors/Consultation Council Meetings Month: February ] Year: 2016
Itetn No: V. B.
Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will receive an Urgent: NO

update on the recent Board of Governors and Time Requested: 10 minutes
Consultation Council Meetings.

CATEGORY:; Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: David Morse/Julie Bruno Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFFREVIEW: [ Julle Adams : Action
Information/Discussion | X

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

President Morse and Vice President Bruno will highlight the recent Board of Governors and
Consultation meetings. Members are requested to review the agendas and summary notes
(website links below) and come prepared to ask questions.

Full agendas and meeting summaries are available online at:

http://extranet.cccco.edu/SystemOperations/BoardofGovernors/Meetings.aspx

http://extranet.cccco.edu/SystemOperations/ConsultationCouncil/AgendasandSummaries.aspx

L staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






Officers of the Board

Geoffrey L. Baum, President
Cecilia V. Estolano, Vice President

Chancellor’s Office

JeffBurdlck ,;

‘,‘.\'

Brice W. Harris, Chancellor

Andrew Campbe!l
Conme Cbnway ﬁ-
Thomas Epstgln

Cecrhav Estofano -

:;.ﬁ DannyE Hawkms .
Hasunl(han :
Deborah Malume;:I .
Jehnufer!. ?erl'v

' GaryReed
\!alerlel. Shaw

Nancy Sumner '

January 19-20 2016 o

- Chancellor's Office - T
1102 Q Street, 6™ Floor -~
Sacramento, CA 95811 -




STANDING ORDERS OF BUSINESS
Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance
President’s Report

Chancellor’s Report

CoNSENT CALENDAR

November 16-17, 2015, Meeting Minutes (Erik Skinner) Item 1.1
This item presents the minutes from the November 16-17, 2015, Board Meeting,

ACTION

Approval of Contracts and Grants (Erik Sinner) tem 2.1
This item recommends that the Board of Governors approve entering into the contracts and

grants described in the January 2016 agenda.

Board of Governors Campus Visit for 2016 {Erik Skinner) item 2.2
This item presents the Board with an opportunity to select the location for its campus visit for
2016.

Request to Change Election System at Santa Clarita Community College District Item 2.3

(Thuy T. Nguyen)
This item requests approval for the Santa Clarita Community College District to move from an

at-large election system to a by-trustee area election system for District elections.

Request to Change Election System at the Gavilan loint Community College District ltem 2.4

(Thuy T. Nguyen]
This item requests approval for the Gavilan Joint Community College District to move from an

at-large election system to a by-trustee area election system for District elections.

Independent Warrant Authority for Antelope Valley Community College District tem 2.5

(Dan Troy)
This item presents a request for Independent Warrant Authority status pursuant to Education

Code section 85266.5 from the Antelope Valley Community College District (AVCCD).

Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators (Disciplines List) Additions Item 2.6

and Revision {Pamela Walker)
This item presents additions to the minimum qualifications of the Disciplines List which are the

result of a two-year intreduction, review, and voting process by the statewide Academic Senate.

*Ajl times are approximate and subject to change. Order of items is subject to change



FIRST READING

Minimum Qualifications for Disabled Students Programs and Services Employees ltem 3.1
(Public Hearing) (Denise F. Noldon)
This item presents proposed changes to California Code of Regulations, title 5, section 53414, to
create minimum qualifications for a faculty Learning Disability Specialist position, and to amend
the current minimum qualifications for a Disabled Student Programs and Services {DSPS)
Counselor position.

Regulations Authorizing the Establishment of the Baccalaureate Degree Pilot Item 3.2

Program Handbook {Pamela Walker)
This item is a first reading of new regulations that would authorize the establishment of the

Baccalaureate Degree Pilot Program Handbook.

INFORMATION AND REPORTS

2015 State of the System Report (Brice W. Harris) Item 4.1
This item presents information about the 2015 State of the System Report, the highest reporting
level of the Student Success Scorecard framework. This year's report includes the System Goals,
a series of statewide measures and goais that align with student success.

Strategic Plan Final Report (Brice W. Harris) Item 4.2
This item presents the final report on the System Strategic Plan.

Update on the Governor’s 2016-17 Budget Proposal {Dan Troy) Item 4.3
This item presents an overview of the Governor’s 2016-17 budget proposal as it relates to the

California Community Colleges.

Strong Workforce Task Force Recommendations Implementation (Van Ton-Quinlivan}  Item 4.4
This item will preview implementation plans for the 25 board adopted recommendations,
highlighting whether the plans require legislative, fiscal, regulatory and/or administrative
approaches.

Student Equity Program (Denise F. Noldon) Item 4.5
This item provides an update on the Student Equity Program (SEP), including an overview of
recent legisiation and related initiatives intended to close achievement gaps and mitigate
disproportionate impacts for identified student groups.

Equal Employment Opportunity Report {Thuy T. Nguyen) Iltem 4.6
This item provides a report on the new allocation model for the Equal Employment Opportunity
(EEQ) Fund as part of four statewide Equal Employment Opportunity initiatives by the
Chancellor's Office.

State & Federal Legislative Update (Vincent Stewart) ltem 4.7
This item presents Board of Governors 2016 sponsored legisiation.



2015-16 Exemplary Program Award {Pamela Walker) ltem 4.8
This item announces the 2015-16 Exemplary Program Award recipients for recognition by the

Board of Gavernors.

Board of Governors Invites Input on Chancellor Search (Thuy T. Nguyen) Item 4.9
This item provides an opportunity for members of the public to provide input on the position

description for the chancelior search.

Equal Employment Opportunity training in preparation for new Chancellor Item 4.10

selection {Thuy T. Nguyen)
This item provides background information on Equal Employment Opportunity {EEQ) training.

Board Member Reports ltem 4.11
Board members will report on their activities since the last board meeting.

PusLic FORUM

People wishing to make a presentation to the board on a subject not on the agenda shall obhserve the
foilowing procedures:

A. A written request to address the board shall be made on the form provided at the meeting.

B. Written testimony may be of any length, but 50 copies of any written material are to be
provided,

C. An oral presentation is limited to three minutes. A group wishing to present on the same subject
is l[imited to 10 minutes.

NEw BUSINESS

ADIJOURNMENT

*All times are approximate and subject to change. Order of items is subject to change



Tuesday, January 19, 2016
4:00 PM°
Chancellor's Office
1102 Q Street, 6" Floor
Sacramento, CA 95811

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA

Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation: Under Government Code section 11126{e){1) and
{e)(2)(A), the California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office hereby provides public notice that some
or all of the following pending litigation will be considered and acted upon in closed session:

e Llopez. v. San Bernardino Community College District, et al., San Bernardino Superior Court of
California, Case No. CIVDS1511495

Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation: Under Government Code section 11126(e), the
Board of Governors hereby provides public notice that it may meet in Closed Session to decide whether
there is significant exposure to litigation, and to consider and act in connection with matters for which
there is significant exposure to litigation. Under Government Code sections 11126(e}{1) and {e}{2), the
Board of Governors hereby provides public notice that it may meet in Closed Session to decide to
initiate litigation and to consider and act in connection with litigation it has decided to initiate.

Personnel Matters: Under Government Code section 11126(a}, the Board of Governors hereby provides
public notice that it may meet in Closed Session regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation of
performance, or dismissal, discipline, or release of public employees, or a complaint or charge against

public employees. Public employees include persons exempt from civil service under Article VII, Section

4{e) of the California Constitution.




STATE OF CALIFORNIA Brice W. Harris, CHANCELLOR

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES

CHANCELLORS OFFICE

1102 Q STREET
SACRAMENTO, CA 95811
{916) 445-8752

http://www.cccco.edu

AGENDA
Consultation Council
Thursday, January 21, 2016
Chancellor’s Office, Room: 6B and 6C
9:30 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.
1102 Q St, 6" Floor
Sacramento, CA 95811

The items on this agenda will be discussed at the upcoming Consultation Council Meeting.

1. Student Senate Update
2. Governor’s Budget Proposal
3. Strong Workforce Implementation

4. State and Federal Legislative Update

5. Other

Future 2016 Meeting Dates:

February 18, 2016
March 17, 2016
April 21, 2016
May 19, 2016
June 16, 2016
July 21, 2016
August — No Meeting
September 15, 2016
October 20, 2016
November 17, 2016 (Riverside)



»

Z&  Academic Senate
fE: for Catifornia Community Colleges
LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT., VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: 2016 Instructional Design and Innovation Institute Debrief

Month: February | Year: 2016

tem No.V.C.

Attachment: NO

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will debrief the
Instructional Design and Innovation Institute

Urgent: YES

Time Requested: 20 minutes

CATEGORY: Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams/Craig Rutan Consent/Routine
First Reading
“STAFF REVIEW!: Julie Adams Action

Information/Discussion | X

BACKGROUND:

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

The 2016 Instructional Design and Innovation Institute was held on January 28 — 30, 2016, at the
Riverside Convention Center. Members will debrief about the Institute including the discussion
about the program structure, breakout topics, keynote presentations, and other issues.

! Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.







A

—=——" Academic Senate
S for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE,

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Lauchboard

Month: February Year: 2016

tem No; V. D.

Attachment: YES

DESIRED QUTCOMIE: The Executive Committee will be updatedona | Urgent: YES
recent discussion on the Launchboard build Time Requested: 15 mins.,
out.
CATEGORY: Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION: b
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams/Julie Brung Consent/Routine
_ First Reading T
STAFF REVIEW®: Julie Adams Action X

Information/Discussion

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

At the January Executive Committee meeting, members approved ASCCC partnering with other
constituent groups to promote the Launchboard build out. On January 26, 2016, Adams and Bruno
attended the kickoff of the Launchboard initiative. Members will be updated on the goals and

timeline, which are very aggressive.

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.







Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative Spring 2016 CTE Data Unlocked Trainings

Goals:
1. Respond to Task Force recommendation to provide labor market, workforce outcome,

and student demographic data/information that are easily accessible and usable and to
provide technical assistance, data visualization tools, and analysis tools to colleges for
the use of labor market and student outcome data

2. Ensure practitioners are familiar with the suite of data tools available to them and have
a basic understanding of how they could be integrated into college processes like
planning, program review, and accreditation

3. Certify at least one member of each college’s leadership team as understanding the
LaunchBoard features, as a pre-condition for receiving funding and technical assistance
to improve local CTE data quality and usage

4. Support colleges in responding to questions about CTE completion and earnings
outcomes that are likely to be triggered by the new skills-builder metric in the Scorecard

Proposed Agenda:

Note: the morning is intended for a full team the includes the a member of the colleges
executive leadership team, CTE deans and chairs, faculty, and institutional researchers

9:30-10:00 Setting the Stage

e Overview on IEP| {10 minutes — IEPI rep)

e Ask participants to respond to a series of prompts: What types of data do they use to
evaluate CTE outcomes? Do they feel that they have access to the information they
need? What types of concerns or needs do they have related to measuring CTE
outcomes, understanding CTE data, and planning for CTE programs? (5 minutes —
Chancellor’s Office staff)

e Qutline the Task Force recommendations related to data, to show how local concerns
relate to statewide priorities (10 minutes — Chancellor’s Office staff)

e Overview of the agenda (5 minutes — Chancellor’'s Office staff)

10:00-10:30 What You Need to Know: Additional CTE Metrics on the Student Success Scorecard
¢ Explain the rationale for measuring outcomes for skills-builders, including the Task Force
recommendation (10 minutes — TRIS staff}
e Walk participants through the display of the data for all CTE metrics in both the
statewide and the college versions of the Scorecard (10 minutes — TRIS staff)
e Q&A (10 minutes — TRIS staff}

10:30-11:30 Tools You Can Use Now: Resources for Common Questions
e Walk participants through four common data usage scenarios: Scorecard review at
board meetings, accreditation, equity planning, and program review, with screen shots



showing where they can get the information they need on Data Mart, Wage Tracker,
Salary Surfer, and the LaunchBoard (TRIS staff and Kathy Booth)

11:30-12:00 Grants and Technical Assistance for Supporting CTE Data Usage

e Describe the CTE Data Unlocked initiative and the opportunities that colleges will have
to strengthen their use of CTE data through additional training, online tools, technical
assistance, and grants {10 minutes - Kathy Booth)

¢ Showcase a few of the resources that have already been developed, including the videos
and the guides on using labor market information, alert participants to upcoming
training opportunities and deadlines (10 minutes - Kathy Booth)

¢ Remind participants about the shift to hands-on activities in the afternoon, explain the
dot-voting process (10 minutes — Kathy Booth)

12:00-12:30 Lunch & Dot Voting for Hands-on Activities (equity planning, supply & demand,
accreditation benchmarking, employment & earnings, or scorecard review)

Note: the afternoon is intended for practitioners who are likely to be pulling and reviewing CTE
data including CTE deans and chairs, faculty, and institutional researchers. Two topics will be
covered using a hands-on exercise and two topics will get a detailed walk-through with an
explanation of data caveats. Topics will be determined based on participant votes for five
possible topics. See page three for a description of each topic.

12:30-1:30 Hands-On Exercise One

1:30-2:30 Hands-on Exercise Twe

2:30-2:45 Break

2:45-3:00 Cverview One

3:00-3:15 Overview Two

3:15-3:30 Wrap Up



Scorecard Review at a Board Meeting

Overview topics:

® Using a Scorecard report from a college in the region, showcase programs that have
large numbers of skills-builders

¢ Using the LaunchBoard Program Snapshot Report on “How much money are students
making?” show earnings data for skills-builders and completers in these program areas

¢ Using the LaunchBoard Program Snapshot Report on “What kinds of students are taking
courses,” contextualize findings for a program that primarily serves skills-builders by
showing students’ ages, full-time status, and prior awards.

¢ Introduce participants to a guide that describes ways to flesh out information on skills-
builder pathways so that the college can clearly explain who these students are and how
they fit into regional labor market demand

Hands-on exercise:

Identify which programs have the largest volume of skills-builders at your college
Determine whether these programs are serving primarily skills-builders or also include
completion pathways

¢ Compare earnings for skilis-builders and completers

Discuss which programs cater to skills-builders and which attract completers

Evaluate implications for marketing, matriculations requirements, and repeatability
Plan for technical assistance and funding to improve data usage in this area

Accreditation Benchmarking

Overview topics:

e Using the Milestones and Success tabs of the Program Snapshot Tables, demonstrate
time trends, regional comparisons, and statewide averages and clarify how these could
be used for benchmarking purposes

e Using the Program Snapshot Report on “Which Colleges have the Most Effective
Programs?” discuss how this information could help determine how high to set goals

Hands-on exercise:
¢ Assess time trends related to program-level course success, persistence, and completion
e Review comparison data on program-level course success, persistence, and completion
rates within the region
e See comparison data on program-level course success, persistence, and completion
rates across the state
Review the top five colleges for completion rates in this program area
Identify appropriate benchmarking amounts
Plan for technical assistance and funding to improve data usage in this area



Reviewing Employment and Earnings Data

Overview topics:

Clarify the various sources of information on employment and earnings

Explain key caveats regarding various sources of employment and earnings data and
how to assess whether the data are representative

Walk participants through the Wage Tracker and explain how it differs from Salary
Surfer

Walk participants through employment information in the CTEOS tab of the
LaunchBoard

Walk participants through the Program Snapshot Reports on “Are students getting
jobs?” “How much money are students making?” “Are students making reasonable
wages?” and the Employment tab of Program Snapshot Tables

Hands-on exercise:

Compare median earnings for completers and skills-builders

Review multi-year figures on median earnings

See other contextual information such as employment in field of study, part-time versus
full-time work, and starting a business

Benchmark earnings against salaries for related occupations

Understand whether students attained a living wage

Determine how this information could inform educational planning and counseling

Plan for technical assistance and funding to improve data usage in this area

Equity Planning

Overview topics:

Provide an overview of additional characteristics to consider for CTE students such as
attending multiple colleges, full-time status, and prior awards

Explain various ways to calculate disproportionate impact and which methodologies are
included in the LaunchBoard

Using the LaunchBoard Program Snapshot Report on “What kinds of students are taking
courses,” show student characteristics

Using the LaunchBoard Program Snapshot Tables, provide additional information on
student characteristics

Using the LaunchBoard Program Snapshot Report on “Are there equity gaps in student
success?” walk participants through equity gaps related to completion

Hands-on exercise:

View gender, ethnic, and age demographics
Determine rate of full-time enrollment



Examine proportion of students who already have earned a certificate or degree

See the volume of students in various special needs groups (foster youth, financial aid,
basic skills)

Understand whether student are taking courses at multiple colleges

Clarify which ethnic groups show disproportionate impact for completion

Document the size of equity gaps in completion for specific ethnic groups

Determine how this information could inform student support resource allocation
Plan for technical assistance and funding to improve data usage in this area

Program Review Supply and Demand Analysis

Overview topics:

Using the LaunchBoard Program Snapshot Report on “Are we training the right number
of students for available jobs?” walk participants through the characterization of supply
and demand

Describe key caveats including TOP code designations, low-unit certificate reporting,
non-CCC graduates, skills-builders, and other qualified workers

Direct users to the guides on labor market information

The local Centers of Excellence rep will describe available services to support labor
market analyses

Hands-on exercise:

Document the gap between community college completers and available jobs in related
occupations

Determine the occupations with the most jobs in your region, at both the associate
degree and certificate leveis

Consider additional skilled workers who may be competing for these jobs

Assess the alignment between program content and available jobs

Evaluate whether it would be wise to grow the program

Plan for technical assistance and funding to improve data usage in this area






FEB 16 VIA.i.

EA Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

CURRICULUM COMMITTEE
Wednesday, December 16, 2015, 2:00 PM
CCC Confer
888-886-3951, www.cccconfer.org
Passcode: 133648
(Meet & Confer Access Available, Closed Captioned)

MINUTES

Members Present: John Freitas, Ginni May, Tiffany Tran, Vivian Varela, Michael Heumann, Lori Bennett, Sofia
RamirezGelpi, Diana Hurlbut, Bernard McFadden

Minutes by Ginni May
I Call to Order and Adoption of the Agenda - John called the meeting to order at 2:03.

Il Approval of the December 2, 2015 Minutes — approved after correcting M. Heumann’s name
spelling.

NOTE: Michael and Bernard live far enough away from Moorpark that they can qualify for lodging
the night before the January 11 meeting.

1. Effective Curriculum Processes — Paper (Resolution .01 515}

a. Review of progress — sections from Sophia, Tiffany, Michael, Ginni
Ginni has done a first round of editing on Tiffany's and Michael’s drafts.
John has done a first round editing on Ginni’s draft.
John and Ginni are working Il and have made some suggestions.
Michael has sent something to Vivian.
Diana will review the section that Sophia submitted.

b. Timeline for bringing to spring plenary — first draft to committee lanuary 11, first reading by
Exec February 5, second reading by Exec March 4, John will send a draft to the committee for
proofing on January 11, ACTION — keep sending drafts to John ASAP|

v, Assigned resolutions — review status
a. Resolutions that still need to be addressed — 7.05 F14; 9.04 F12

i. 7.05 F14 — No official state definition of basic skills exists — we don’t have a formal
definition besides that in the Poppy Copy, which is reiterated in our Guide to Basic Skills
from 2008 as well as in the BSI guide. Should we have a formal definition, or just create
a set of guidelines? Discussion ensued. We now have CB21 rubrics, which we did not
have when the Poppy Copy was created. We could come up with a more detailed
statement or set of guidelines. John recommended taking this item to Exec for direction.
In addition, the CC will put together a group to work on a statement regarding the Basic
Skills Definition based on guidance from Exec at January Exec meeting.

ii. 9.04 F12 - Ginni and John to write a Rostrum article




VI

VIi.

VI

X

Spring Regional Curriculum Meetings — are they needed, feasible? There are many spring meetings
taking place: IDI, Al, AA, Plenary, Noncredit Regionals, Cl, etc. The committee is offering to help with
the Noncredit Regionals and other events as needed.

Meeting calendar for spring — John sent this out based on our DoodlePoll results. Calendar was
adopted with the understanding that meetings that are not needed can be cancelled and the May
25 in-person meeting will be moved up to early May or late April.

SACC Report — After January 14 meeting the PCAH will go out for review. It is being split into 3
{three} documents, with some that can updated as systems change. A low-unit certificate Work
Group was established. Currently, these ceriificates don’t appear on transcripts nor are the colleges
given credit for completion. Discussion ensued. It was requested that lots of examples be included in
the PCAH.

Question: Couldn’t there be non-substantial program updates that are automatic with non-
substantial course updates. John will take this to SACC.

There will be a Work Group on Stand-Alone Course Approval to brainstorm parameters for stand-
alone courses.

Cooperative Work Experience Units — at SACC the minimum unit credit for work experienced was
raised. Title 5 gives a minimum of 1 unit for 60 hours unpaid or 75 hours paid work experience per
term. There was an interest in allowing fractional increments. A resolution to explore this may be

needed.
Send any possible SACC items to John before January 5.

Other items on the radar

a. Curriculum Institute — start thinking of ideas!

b. Regional coordination survey results (https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-8J3HHWP2/)
—we need to pare down the duplication and examine the inconsistent responses.

Announcements

a. Next meetings — Monday, January 11, 2016, 10-3 at Moorpark College

b. CTE Curriculum Academy, January 14-15, Napa Valley Marriott

c. Instructional Design and Innovation Institute, January 21-23, Riverside Convention Center

d. Accreditation Institute, February 19-20, Marriott Mission Valley, San Diego

e. Academic Academy, March 17-19, Sacramento Grand Sheraton

f.  Spring Area Meetings — April 1% (Areas A and 8), April 2" {Areas Cand D)

g. Spring Plenary Session, April 21-23, Sacramento Convention Center/Sacramento Grand Sheraton

Adjournment

Status of Previous Action ltems:

a. Meeting calendar — in progress. The committee approved the calendar through January 11,
2016. The spring calendar still needs to be determined.

b. Regional coordination survey — in progress. The survey was distributed to the field on October
8. The deadline for responding is November 1. Staff will compile the results and draft a
summary report.

c. Effective curriculum processes position paper —in progress. The white paper will be
incorporated into the position paper. The paper outline needs to be approved by the Executive
Committee at its 11/4 meeting, with draft paper going to Exec for a first reading in February and




action in March for approval by the body in April.

COR paper revision — in progress. A workgroup will review the 2008 paper and identify which
parts need to be updated. The outline should be submitted to the Executive Committee for
approval by it's February meeting.

Separate definition of Basic Skills for ESL {Resolution 7.05 F14) — in progress. The committee will
research definitions of basic skills and bring back for discussion at the January meeting.
Availability of major prep classes (Resolution 9.04 F12) — in progress. Ginni and John will draft a
Rostrum article.







FEB 16 VILA.ii.

Academic Senate
for California Community Colleges

1
(=
LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Faculty Development Committee
Thursday December 3™, 2015
10:30 AM -12:30 PM

Members Present: J. Adams, R. Cabral, A. Foster, C. Rutan, K. Oborn, K. Schaefers, C. Smith

Meeting began at 10 AM

1.
2.

Order of the Agenda: The agenda was approved as presented.

Approval of Minutes — September 26, 2015: The minutes from the September 26™ meeting were
approved without changes.

Debrief from Fall Plenary Session FDC Breakout: The plenary session breakout was well
attended and many of the suggestions that came up had already been discussed out the
September FDC meeting. Alternative means of professional development included consolidating
multiple regional topics into a single weekend, the use of podcasts, and increasing the use of
webinars. Suggestions from the breakout session may be included in the ASCCC professional

development plan.

Update on Resolution 19.03 Spring 2013

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges work with
statewide bargaining organizations and other relevant constituencies to develop training
materials and/or other guidance to help local colleges and districts establish effective
training processes for faculty engaged in peer evaluation,

This resolution was initially assigned to as task force in 2013-14. That task force did breakout
sessions at both fall and spring plenary, but were not able to collect many best practices to be
disseminated. The 2014-15 Professional Development Committee recommended that this
resolution be assigned to Educational Policies to research the best practices. C. Rutan reported on
conversations with the Educational Policies chair, D. Davison, to have Educational Policies
research best practices in peer review and the Faculty Development committee would use that
research to develop a new module for the Professional Development College. This
recommendation will be submitted for approval by the Executive Committee in January.

Barriers for Professional Development: C. Rutan reported on discussions about potential barriers
that have come up during the professional development meetings of the Institutional
Effectiveness Partnership Initiative. These barriers include having time to attend more in person
trainings and cost of attending those events, both barriers that have been previously discussed at
FDC when looking at other means of offering professional development. The information was
provided to update the committee about other professional development conversations that are
happening at the state level and to show how timely the conversations for the professional

development plan are.



6. ASCCC Professional Development Plan:

The committee reviewed the draft notes for the professional development plan that were
developed at the September meeting. J. Adams describes that the plan needs to include goals,
objectives, and actions for each objective. The first goal proposed was to “Deliver a
comprehensive professional development program for all faculty in the California community
colleges.” It was suggested that a single goal might be sufficient for the professional
development plan. Objectives for the plan include diversifying the faculty in the California
community colleges, evaluation of professional development offered by ASCCC, offering
professional development using different modalities, and increase partnerships with other
statewide organizations. C. Rutan and J. Adams will consolidate all of the suggestions into a
draft plan that will be discussed at the next FDC meeting.

7. Scheduling Next Meeting: The next FDC meeting will be held using Zoom on Monday, January
11, 2016 from 1 PM until 3 PM.

Meeting adjourned at 11:45 AM

Approved January 11, 2016

Respectfully submitted,

Craig Rutan



,A » FEB 16 VLA. iii.
E Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

ASCCC Noncredit Committee
Minutes
October 26, 2015
9:00am-10:00am

Meeting Type: Call Confer

1. Agenda approved and note-taker assigned; Roll call
Present: Cheryl Aschenbach, Diane Edwards-LiPera, Alicia Munoz, Julie Nuzum, Jan Young.

Absent: Melody Nightingale, John Stanskas
2. Approved September 28 minutes
3. Important Dates and Information
o Fall Plenary November 5-7 (Irvine) Diane, Jan, and Julie will present
¢ Curriculum Regionals November 13 & 14 (North & South)
Cheryl shared that as part of a noncredit breakout, Ann Lowe from College of the Canyons will be
presenting information about how Canyons converted their arithmetic classes to noncredit.
ASCCC Noncredit Committee December 4 at Glendale College
ASCCC Noncredit Committee January 11 @ 9am, CCC Confer
Instructional Design and Innovation Academy January 21-23, 2016 (TBD)
ASCCC Noncredit Committee February 1 @ 9am, CCC Confer
ASCCC Noncredit Committee February 29 @ 9am, CCC Confer
Academic Academy March 17-19, 2016 (Sacramento)
ASCCC Noncredit Committee April 4 @ 9am, CCC Confer
Spring Plenary April 20-23 (Sacramento)
¢ ASCCC Noncredit Committee May 2 @ 9am, CCC Confer
4, Noncredit Liaison Update

o The expectations for noncredit liaisons developed at our last meeting are on the Executive Committee

agenda for action on November 4.
5. Association of Community and Continuing Education (ACCE)
o Last year, Madelyn Arballo from Mt. SAC was an ACCE liaison to the ASCCC noncredit commitiee,
and she's interested in continuing to work together this year. We’ll make sure she’s invited to future
Noncredit Committee meetings.
¢ On November 12 ACCE is holding a Southern Regional meeting at South Orange CCD’s Anaheim
campus. Cheryl will be attending.
6. BSAC Update
o Cheryl and Madelyn Arballo are co-chairs of the Chancellor’s Office Basic Skills Advisory
Committee this year.
* Interesting info from a Chancellor’s Office update at the BSAC meeting: Ten largest programs of
CDCP produce 81% of the noncredit courses; 32 smallest produce 19%. Many don’t produce any
noncredit CDCP FTES currently.
o Many districts do not understand how to create noncredit programs. Some need assistance with
coding courses correctly. Jan pointed out that ACCE can provide a coding presentation.
¢ Discussions are underway about combining elements of SSSP, SEP, and BSI plans.
7. Fall Plenary noncredit breakouts (Update)
¢ They Showed Us the Money, Now Give Them the (Non)Credit: Effectively Implementing CDCP
Noncredit (with ASCCC Curriculum Committee)
Representatives of College of the Canyons will be presenting with Cheryl and John Freitas. Cheryl
and John will present noncredit basics while COC folks present on their transition of arithmetic
courses from credit to noncredit.




Are You Talking about Noncredit on Your Campus? You Should Be
Jan, Julie and Diane will facilitate a presentation about how noncredit should be part of the
discussion around SSSP, SEP, BSI, AB86/AEBG, Workforce Taskforce, and more.

Instructional Design and Innovation Academy

Takes place January 21-23, 2016.
Cheryl submitted two proposals on behalf of the Noncredit Commuttee
Panel: Utilizing Noncredit in Innovative Ways to Increase Student Success

Have you wondered about noncredit courses but aren't quite sure how they can be used? Noncredit
isn’t just for ESL! Join this panel of representatives from colleges who are using noncredit curricula
in ways that serve basic adult education needs (AB86/AEBG), workforce needs, and basic skills
needs. Learn about what they 're doing, how they implemented the courses and programs they have,
and what roadblocks they encountered. Leave with innovative ideas for developing and using
noncredit on your oWwn campus.

Noncredit: An Innovative Approach to Serving Students

9. Other

In 2014-2015, six community colleges districts generated 62% of the statewide noncredit FTES
while the next five highest generated only 13% combined, less than each of the top two noncredit
FTES generating districts. If you 're one of the schools cutside the top eleven and are interested
in how vour school can generate more noncredit FTES to meet student needs, join us for a brief
overview of noncredit as well as discussion about the role that noncredit education plays in CTE,
adult basic education, transitioning students from adult school to community college, supporting
credit courses, and serving as prerequisites for basic skills classes.
Cheryl and Diane will be attending the IDI; Jan and Julie will not be. Others are unsure at this time.
Ideas for panel presenters included examples of SSSP-funded noncredit assessment courses,
Pasadena College s noncredit Disabled Students program, CITE Stacking certificate program with
medical front and back office certificates, Southwestern's pre-apprenticeship program or noncredit
retraining readiness program, Glendale’s math pre-assessment course or noncredit accounting
course, or Cypress/North Orange’s pharmacy tech program with overlapping credit and noncredit
paths.

Jan suggested we build a list of model programs to share with interested colleges. This could involve
doing a survey to gather input about types of programs and key contacts to serve as a resource for
others. Everyone agreed this is worth exploring.

What about having a manual about how to do noncredit? There is a resolution for Fall Plenary to
update the Senate’s noncredit paper and the Chancellor’s Office Noncredit-at-a-Glance document, but
maybe a how-to manual is also necessary.

10. Adjourn




-

E Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

ASCCC Noncredit Committee
Minutes
September 28, 2015
9:00am-10:30am

Meeting Type: Call Confer
Meeting Name: ASCCC Noncredit Committee Meeting
Telephone Conference Line: (888) 450-4821
Participant Passcode: 315147
Presenter Passcode: 2005590

W

Agenda approved and note-taker assigned; Roll call
Present: Cheryl Aschenbach, Diane Edwards-LiPera, Alicia Munoz, Melody Nightingale, Julie Nuzum,
John Stanskas, Jan Young.
Approved August 31 minutes
Important Dates and Information
» Agenda Items for November Executive Meeting due Oct 20
Area meetings October 23 & 24
ASCCC Noncredit Committee October 26 @ 9am, CCC Confer
Fall Plenary November 5-7 (Irvine)
Curriculum Regionals November 13 & 14 (North & South)
ASCCC Noncredit Committee December 4, Location TBD
ASCCC Noncredit Committee January 11 (@ 9am, CCC Confer
Instructional Design and Innovation Academy January 21-23, 2016 (TBD)
ASCCC Noncredit Committee February 1 @ 9am, CCC Confer
ASCCC Noncredit Committee February 29 @ 9am, CCC Confer
¢ Academic Academy March 17-19, 2016 (Sacramento)
e ASCCC Noncredit Committee April 4 @ 9am, CCC Confer
o  Spring Plenary April 20-23 (Sacramento)
# ASCCC Noncredit Committee May 2 @ 9am, CCC Confer
Adult Education Block Grant (AEBG) Summit update (Information)
Diane Edwards-LiPera, Melody Nightingale, and Cheryl Aschenbach attended the AEBG Block Grant
Summit in Sacramento on September 24-25, 2015.
Highlights of the meeting included:
o The template for the Governance Structure of each consortium needs to be submitted.
o The money allocated to each consortium needs to be spent.
o Best Practices
e  The Pasadena Consortium has created a new noncredit CTE program for developmentally
disabled adults.
® IBEST is currently being used at NOCCCD to help accelerate student progress as they
pursue academic or career pathways.
o College of Marin and Tamalpais Adult School have created seamless transitions between
schools for adult school students.
Noncredit Resolution (Information)
Committee reviewed draft resolution calling for update of the 2009 Senate noncredit paper. The Curriculum
Committee has also developed a resolution to revise the Senate noncredit paper as well as the Chancellor’s
Office Noncredit At-A-Glance document. The committee agreed that combining the papers into one document
is a good ideq and that a single resolution would be appropriate.
Fall Plenary noncredit breakouts (Discussion)




They Showed Us the Money, Now Give Them the (Non)Credit: Effectively Implementing CDCP
Noncredit (with ASCCC Curriculum Committee)

Members or guests of the ASCCC Curriculum Committee are planning to speak on this topic with
Cheryl and John Freilas.

Are You Talking about Noncredit on Your Campus? You Should Be

Jan, Julie and Diane will facilitate a panel discussion. Cheryl will be the moderator. Cheryl will
draft a description and send it to the presenters.

7. Noncredit Liaison — Expectations (Discussion/Action)
This is in response to a resolution from spring to identify a Noncredit Liaison. A list of expectations needs to
be created for the position. The committee looked at the expectations of the CTE Liaison and made some
revisions. Cheryl will send the draft around for review and then will submit it for action at the November
Executive Committee meeting.

8. Call for Presentations: Instructional Design and Innovation Academy
Takes place January 21-23, 2016.
The deadline for proposals (individual or panel) will probably be extended, but priority will be given to those
proposals that are submitted early.
The focus of the proposals should be on instructional design and innovation.
Possible topics for proposals:

9. Other

Seamless transitions from adult schools to community colleges.

Noncredit and/or CTE support courses for credit courses.

Panel discussions should focus on what the group did and what the process entailed.

Panel discussions may be used as a basis for break-out sessions.

A breakout should be devoted to a presentation by the Chancellor s Office on noncredit program as
pre-requisites/co-requisites for credit programs.

An update on noncredit certificate programs should be provided by the Chancellor’s office

Update on FON requested by Jan. John filled everyone in on current status.

10. Adjourn




_A - FEB 16 VLA.iv.
E. Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

ONLINE EDUCATION COMMITTEE
Monday, 11 January 2016
10:30 AM -11:30AM
CCC Confer
Participant Passcode: 531488
Toll free number: 1-888-450-4821
AGENDA

IL

IIIL.

V.

Call to Order — 10:35am
a. Members present: Dolores Davison (chair); Wheeler North; Joe Perret; Sanya Soyemi;
Fabiola Torres

Approval of the Agenda — Approved by consensus with addition of item IV(c)

Discussion items, with action as needed
a. Review of IDI breakouts
i. Online Professional Development (Friday morning) — Fabiola, Sanya, Dolores —
focus on part time opportunities, non traditional PD, use of online modality;
Fabiola to take lead
ii. Constructing Learning Environments (Friday afternoon) — Fabiola, Joe, Dolores —
need for faculty involvement in construction of both physical and online
classrooms; pedagogy and need for faculty participation. Fabicla and Joe to talk
off line to create.

iii. MOOCs and High Touch Courses (Thursday afternoon) — Dolores, Sanya,
Fabiola — use of contact, high touch, personal touches to attract and connect to
students (increase in retention) — Dolores to take lead

b. Preparation for OE Regionals
i. College of San Mateo, Friday, 8 April -- confirmed
ii. TBD (Glendale?), Saturday, 9 April - to be confirmed by David Morse

1. Breakout topics —agenda with possible breakouts approved by exec last
weekend; committee will narrow topics to 6 options and volunteer to be
involved - all committee members

2. General session — what to cover — updates, initiatives, general topics
(accreditation, curriculum, CCCCO) - Dolores, Wheeler, John Freitas
(Curriculum chair)

New Business
a. Resolutions assigned to OE
i, 7.03 (515): Accurate Information in the CVC - maybe not be an OFE committee
topic; will check with David Morse/Julie Adams
ii. 9.01 (515): Online Education Rubrics — cover in Rostrum article with
links/references to effective practices?




V.

ifi. 9.07 (515): Definition of Regular, Effective, and Substantive Contact — may
involve Curriculum, SACC, others if Title 5 changes become necessary
iv. Dolores will check on any additional assignments and update the committee
b. Breakouts for Plenary session (topics) — Accreditation and OE (being done at the Al but
might be worth bringing up to Senate presidents); topics due by 21 January; will submit
“Hot Topics” as place holder
¢. Annual Report - committee report due in February; Dolores will start draft and
distribute for additions/comments

Announcements

CTE Curriculum Academy - January 14-15, Napa Valley Marriott
Instructional Design and Innovation - January 21-23, Riverside Convention Ctr
Accreditation Institute — February 19-20, Marriott Mission Valley - San Diego
Academic Academy — March 17-19, Sheraton Sacramento

Online Education Regionals — April 8-9

ASCCC Spring Plenary — April 21-23, Sacramento Convention Center

mPoan o

Adjournment — 11:27am




FEB 16 VIA.v.

Part-Time Task Force Meeting Notes (DRAFT)
January 13, 2016

Present: Wheeler North, Julie Adams, Roseann Berg, John Freitas, Kristen Huyck

Update on Executive Committee Discussion: The discussion at the January Executive
Committee was reviewed. Adams reminded the group that Exec directed the PT Task Force to
develop a near-term and long-term plan with goals for the ASCCC to work on part-time issues.
Adams also recommended that another in-person meeting be planned for the spring to flesh out
the plan. Adams articulated the following possible goals: professionalizing the part-time
faculty, developing a part-time research agenda, and ?

ACTION: Adams will solicit/survey potential actions/activities from the members of the task
force that align with the articulated goals. -

Spring Plenary Planning: North suggested that a spring plenary breakout be designed to
encourage full-time and part-time faculty, as well as administrators, to attend so that there can
be a conversation about how to meet the needs of part-time faculty. Huyck and Berg were
asked if they can attend plenary. Both will try to attend one or two days if possible.

Possible resolutions: encouraging local senates to establish mentoring programs for part-time
faculty. ASCCC to work with local senates. Regional approaches to professional development,
networking. Perhaps assessing effectiveness of the Chancellor’s Office registry.

ACTION: Freitas will work on resolution.

Part-time Caucus: North noted that the Part-Time Caucus cancelled its meeting at the fall 2015
plenary session. There was a discussion about what happens if a caucus repeatedly cancels
meetings. There was a concern expressed about the inclusivity of the current Part-Time Caucus.
North will bring an agenda item to the Executive Committee about the responsibilities of
caucuses.

Rostrum Article: Article submitted for September Rostrum will be reviewed and edited as
needed for submission for the February Rostrum.

Professional Development Modules: Adams will start focusing on the PD modules once CTE
Curriculum and Instructional Design Institute. North will send out a Doodle poll to determine a
possible meeting date in February or March (?77)

Increasing Part-Time Faculty Participation: there is a concern about the participation on this
task force. Adams and North will discuss this offline.

Announcements: CTE Curriculum Institute, Instructional Design Institute, Online Education
regional meetings, Noncredit regional meetings, Spring Plenary

Adjourned at 11:19.



M



v FEB 16 VLB. |,

Ansesiation of Cammunity and Sontinuing Edusstion

Fall Southern Workshop
November 12, 2015

8:00-9:30am Continental Breakfast

9:30-9:45am Welcome
Jarek Janio, Ph.D., ACCE President, Faculty Coordinator, Santa Ana College
Valentina Purtell, Past ACCE President, interim Provost of North Orange
County Community College District

CONTINUING EDUCATION TRACK

9:45-10:45am The Latest on the Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative (IEPI)

Hear the latest update on the Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative
(IEPI) efforts to date, and plans for this year, including changes to the
Framework of Indicators, colleges that are involved in Partnership Resource
Teams, upcoming specialized training activities, the Online Clearinghouse of
effective practices and the new IEPI Communications Plan. Come learn about
possibilities for ACCE to partner with IEPI related to workshops/statewide
trainings focused on CDCP and noncredit.

-- Facilitator: Theresa Tena, Vice Chancellor of Institutional Effectiveness,

California Community College Chancellor’s Office

Page 3 of 4



10:45-11:00am

11:00am-12:00pm

12:00-1:00pm

1:00-2:00pm

2:00-3:00pm

BREAK

SSSP Updates from the Chancellor's Office

Our Noncredit SSSP Plans have Just been submitted to the Chancellor's

Office. What's next? In this session, Chris Graillat will recap the plan's
guldelines and share new developments at the state level, including the new
funding formula's transitioning timeline and the MiS/accountability measures
specific to noncredit core services of orientation, assessment, education plans,
counseling services, and other/follow-up services.

— Facilitator: Chris Groailiat, SS5P Speciolist, Calffornia Community College
Chancelfor’s Office

LUNCH

Adult Education Block Grant (AEBG}), AB104

Learn more about the implementation of the Adult Education Block Grant, a
collaboration between community colleges and K-12 adult schools. The AEBG
budget bill {AB 104) outlines specific requirements that consortia must follow to
align and deliver regional educational services and create pathways to post-
secondary and employment. Hear the latest AEBG updates and then ask
questions about AEBG, upcoming requirements, and accountability metrics.
-Facilitator, Neil Kelly, Specialist, Colifornic Community College Chancellor’s

Office

Roundtable Discussion- AEBG

Wrap-up the Southern Workshop with a panel discussion facilitated by Neil Kelly
from the Chancellor’s Office. Panelists are heavily engaged with Regional
Consortia imnlamentation and will discuss challenges, opportunities, and share
best practices that will benefit adult educators in navigating through AB104.
Facilitator: Neil Kelly

Panelists:

- Jesse Crete, Aduit Education Block Grant Project Director

North Orange County Regional Consortium;

~Dr. Jim Lancaster, Dean of Curriculurn, Career/Technical and Continuing
Education, Citrus Community College;

~Dr. Alfred Ramirez, Dean, Workforce Development, Continuing and Community
Education, Glendale College;

— Jose Vargas, Vice-President, Continuing Education,

Rancho Sontiago College

Page4of4



FEB 16 VLB.ii.

BSAC Meeting - October 15, 2015
560 million Transformation Program; $10 million CSU Partnership Program

Council of Chief Librarians have asked to be represented in this group; they have
representatives on other committees. They see themselves as integral to basic skills and BS
resources and feel the library perspective is important to discussion. There is no interest in
adding a CCL representative now,

Ginni suggested we have co-chairs with a faculty member and an administrative member. Eric
shared that we anticipate meetings once a month and there is a lot of work to do so co-chairs
could be useful. Alketa, past chair, agreed. The committee is in support of the idea. Bylaws
need revision, so MSCU. Cheryl elected for ASCCC. Madelyn Arballo elected for administration.

Mission statement. Ginni proposed a revision to include mention of Academic Senate and
Chancellor’s Office specifically in the first sentence. Mission statement was revised to remove
any reference to composition.

Committee meetings.

LeBaron shared that the type of work we can expect to be doing: advanced integrated planning
{includes SSP & SEP), review of BS & other expenditure plans, feedback on RFA development for
Transitions and Partnership, plus other ideas/tasks generated by the committee. LeBaron felt
that a combination of live and conference. First project according to Eric is the RFAs. LeBaron
said he could set up a process to collect input from groups. CSU also wants to be involved in
Transitions RFA.

Next meeting: Dec 10 10-3 tentative (review RFA after getting input from our groups).

LeBaron: BOG Retreat BS Update

September retreat included two presentations: one on Workforce recommendations and a
second on basic skills. BS included a range of presentations including 3CSN, Eric shared info,
Vice-Chancellor gave information. Eric shared that intent was to share some success stories
with BOG. BOG has expressed interest in BSI {since it's been around since 2007). Another
presentation is scheduled for January at the regular Board meeting for another update to share
the work done on the two RFAs as well as reporting whether we’ve moved the needle enough
given the investment in BS. Are we making the difference? Background: system invested 2007
$33 million initially annually in BS. $20 milliion starting in 2009. Now $70 million {1 time
money), so it gets a lot of attention. Susan offered that she has stories regarding positive
impact of BS, and LeBaron encouraged us to connect personal stories to BS when possible; he
may need more information. Kathy llowsky reminded everyone that there is a Basic Skills
Completion book available that has research-based documentation on practices throughout our

system.

LeBaron: CCC System Budget Request for Basic Skills Initiative



This year we got almost $1 billion dollars more than in the past. Another budget change
proposal has been submitted for nearly another $1 billion. One item that was noted in the
request was an additional $20 million on-going for BS on top of regular $20 million. That was
approved by BOG and is at the Dept of Finance. We'll find out in January with the release of the
budget if it's included in the Governor’s proposed budget (based on proposed revenues).

3CSN Plans for 2015-2016 (Jeanne Costello for Deborah Harrington)

mission — curricular and instructional redesigns in support of ...

funded by BSI — professional development in support of BS student success. RFA created,
housed at LACCD.

Theory of Change — use communities of practice models and networks. All leaders are
practitioners.

According to Eric, 3CSN can be looked at as a vendor from within the system. Yet Ginni pointed
out that there isn’t any connection to the ASCCC,

Barbara llowsky shared that NADE Conference in March also includes a 2-day pre-session.

Noncredit and CDCP Update

Madelyn is on ACCE board. Emphasis is on AEBG, Noncredit SSSP, CDCP equalization funding. All
provide an opportunity to expand services and better develop infrastructure especially an
increase in full-time faculty in noncredit. Another emphasis is leveraging resources to serve all
of our students ~ intergration of plans as much as possible rather than duplication. One of the
biggest is AEBG. We're also still holding out hope that noncredit progress indicators will be
included in Title 5 — changed from may to shall. Some colleges are electing to use progress
indicators now, but the incentive isn’t built in yet. She also indicated that there is some interest
in updating the Basic Skills Completion book te further include noncredit successes based on
research.

LeBaron shared CDCP update.

Must report nhumber of CDCP courses and programs created annually — required by statute
coming out of SB361. 2014-2015 42 districts used CDCP (30 did not). 10 largest CDCP districts
represent 81% of all of the CDCP-approved courses {not necessarily offering). June 30
approved Cert Completion: 514; Cert Competency 94. Short-term vocational is biggest area:
283 completion & 39 competency. ESL/VESL second biggest area.

Eric — Basic Skills by the Numbers — comparing BS Cohort Tracker with Course Completion Rates
Suggests both are needed — not one over another. Course Completion rates system-wide
2007/08 to 2014/15 demonstrate positive trends in ESL but not in English, reading, or general
math over the last three years.

This committee needs to consider the future computations to decide what advice to give to CO
regarding changes in analysis to support BS strategy implementation. Suggestions that we
consider having a work group to explore the feasibility, plus to look at how to make the
measurement methods consistent between the different plans.



BSI Plan Summaries

The plan responses (101 total; others granted an extension) have been compiled into a single
spreadsheet. Demonstration of responses to Question 4a sorted by type of treatment using the
e-resource {with the potential to update the e-resource along the way). Question was asked
about how SEP and SSSP were reviewed, and whether that would be useful for us. No analysis
was done prior; just full plans were received and reviewed. There was a disconnect between
rubrics and plan construction, so much was learned. Alketa suggested that we do a similar
process to SEP/SSSP if we want to give feedback to the colleges — that was helpful to colleges. A
rubric is something that was considered important only if given to colleges in advance. LeBaron
would like to see a working group to discuss how to organize this information in the future (for
next version) for analysis and for sharing across the system — suggest a process as an outcome
of the work group’s effort. Madelyn, Alketa, Kathy all volunteered. Everyone else was
encouraged to share input with the other three. Ajani and Jillian from the CO will also support
their efforts.

CCC Basic Skills Transformation Program discussion SB 81 {look at language sent by LeBaron in
June)

LeBaron sent language for both programs to the committee in June; not much has changed as it
was approved by the Legislature. Jeff Spano and Paul Steenhausen were both present and can
support discussion around the Transformation Program. $60 million one-time money — must
be allocated this year. Colleges would have two additional years to expend the funds.

Paul —is there a chance for Success Center help to make the T-grant a big success? How can we
get the biggest bang for our buck? Idea: provide support for colleges who want to apply for
these funds. In applications, colleges must identify two or more evidence-based strategies.
Suggestion to provide help on the front end to help colleges think about the evidence-based
strategies available. Invite teams from colleges to workshops, have colleges with effective
practices to serve as resources, and have them work together to think through a college’s
application. Goal would be that college leaves with an outline of their application. There would
also probably need to be some technical assistance once colleges are selected. Suggestion from
Jeanne Costello to consider ways to fund organizations (like 3CSN) to support college efforts
instead of putting money directly into colleges. LeBaron shared that the trailer bill language is
very prescriptive and applications must be made by colleges (not organizations). Additionai
suggestion from Barbara to pull together a sample of colleges who have implemented a
strategy but haven’t yet institutionalized it yet — discuss with them what it would take to
institutionalize the effort. Mistake would be to spend the money studying programs and
projects. LeBaron said we are interested in supporting the e-resource product that has been
published from within the system. Alketa pointed out that there needs to be some thought as
to how pt faculty are invoived since they teach BS students, as well as some consideration of
collaboration with K-12 —is there room for collaboration? Ginni suggested expecting the
empbhasis to be on scale rather than new programs — as Barbara talked bout. Paul said the
legislation certainly supports scaling up.

CCC Partnership Pilot Program Ed Code 88700



Grants to be given for CCCs who partner with CSUs to deliver BS Education to CSU students.
Expectation of 5 $2 million grants. Funds must be encumbered by June 30, and colleges have
two years to spend the funds.

Considering a regicnal approach. Intended that CSU students needing remediation would do it
through CCCs. Julie A recommended that this program be taken to ICAS for discussicon since it
involves multiple systems and should be driven by faculty rather than administration within the
systems — LeBaron and Julie will talk more about this for the January ICAS meeting. At the same
time, BSAC can continue to talk about it.

Integrated Planning

Basic Skills, Equity, and SSSP — three categorical programs that have 5500 million allocated
between them. There is an interest at the CO to integrate the planning for these three plans.
With the help of IEPI & Student Success Center, the CO would like to put together an event to
bring people together to taik about how to integrate the planning. Wouid like a workgroup to
work with CO to put that together. LeBaron will either request funding to do this, or Julie A
suggested that it could be a part of the IDIl in January. He needs a workgroup from this
committee to participate in planning. Jeanne aiso shared that 3CSN has already been doing
some integrated planning workshops in different environments. LeBaron also suggested that
colleges create plans in spring in advance of budgeting the following year rather than planning
to spend this year’s funds next year as has been the practice for BSI funding (and the other
plans to some degree as well). Workgroup: Jeanne Costello, Susan Gaer, Cheryl Aschenbach

Update on noncredit progress indicators

Ad-hoc this summer. Came to the conclusion they would support a TS change. Had to see about
mandanted costs, did a survey to determine impact, and had internal discussions. In support of
noncredit grades for CDCP courses. MIS has set up the ability to college SP grades. Need to
meet with legal affairs to address T5 changes. Grade reporting would become a condition of
participating in a CDCP program; LeBaron thinks noncredit repetition may become an issue if
students are receiving completed grades (not SP or NC — only a passing grade) — may become
an unintended consequence. The question is whether we’ll need to address repetition or not.
The top 7 are being polled to see how that might impact their programs,

Begin to think of notion of 3 plans. LeBaron will get templates for us to discuss. Start by looking
at three documents for key integration points. Ask Jeanne about the 3CSN crosswalk she
mentioned — first the WHAT. The second part is the WHO — how do we lead this effort?
Breakouts? General Session? Brainstorm how to accomplish this.



BSAC Meeting — Sacramento, CA - December 10, 2015

Submission timelines — BS! plans 2016-2017

2014-2015 date was 10/15/14

2015-2016 date was 10/01/15

Both submission dates are 25% into fiscal year

For the first few years, the BSI $5 wasn’t in the January budget so time was given for schools to
pull plans together for submission in October

There have been discussions at CO about moving BS| submission dates to spring. It seems more
sensible to do plans in advance of fiscal year.

Proposed submission date for 2016-2017 of May 16. We will know what money is present by
January and February based on P1 as well as P2 {end of April).

Allocation list is on the website. One third of schools get $90,000. Anything between 4800 &
5000 FTES gets $90,000; more for those with more FTES.

Advantages and disadvantages:

© Adv-Dialog could happen in spring rather than as everyone comes back to get a
semester started.

o Adv-Plans could be developed before spending commenced rather than 25% into the
funding year.

o Disadv-could be more difficult to do the process (RFPs, review process) on some
campuses in a shorter period spring 2016. Suggestion: move date for 2017-2018 to give
colleges more lead time to prepare for the shift.

o Disadv-while initial allocation may be known in January, revisions may be made in April
with P2, which may lead to the need for last minute changes to a campus’s plan. Plus,
some colleges/districts kick plans back locally if budget doesn’t match allocation.
LeBaron pointed out that the recalculation in October will also change numbers a little
bit; it’s difficult to be exact. Suggestion for submission later in May or in June to allow
more time for P2

o Disadv-P2 only affects credit since noncredit relies on positive attendance and isn’t
determined until the end of the semester. This makes budgeting for

2016-2017 may be too soon; 2017 is better for the adjustment from October to end of spring.
instead of mid-May, june 15 is suggested.

Suggestion that expenditure reports be submitted by September 1. The earliest they can be
requested is 30 days after end of fiscal year, but schools have preferred more time to prepare
the reports. Have been October 1, but there is interest for moving them forward.

This effort only applies to BSI, not SEP and SSSP because those are 3-year plans that aren’t
completed and submitted annually (even though that is happening now).

Workgroup on reading 2015-2016 BSI Expenditure Plans (see handout from workgroup)

A rubric should be going out with plans so campuses can know what they’re being measured
against.

It may be useful to look at extended performance rather than single-year performance
Interest in having a 1-day workgroup meeting to pull together information beyond the info
Jillian aiready pulled together. Interest in seeing what assistance colleges need for measuring
and reporting. Suggestion that this group meet in LA area sometime in February.

There can also be people with specific expertise in areas to look at the

Definitely want to look at activities to see where colleges are spending the funds.



Once everything has heen read and reviewed, a rubric could be created to give better
information to colleges as well as to share some of the best practices being seen in plans.

The group also looked at the expenditure report from this year, and there were questions about
why some of the data was being collected differently this year (z score); some felt the data
submitted was a lot of work without much information generated. Perhaps RP Group could give
suggestions for how we can best collect useful data.

Suggestion to return to previous expenditure report method with addition of addressing
achievement gaps and commenting on how those gaps are being addressed.

LeBaron’s feedback is that the z score was intended to inform the narrative. CO isn’t locked into
numbers for numbers purpose but have been asking about the differences between the data
points and the z score was intended to help determine if results are significant.

The data needs to be looked at to see if distributions are approximately bell-shaped, and if they
aren’t, then the calculation is meaningless. The assumption is that the data was examined to
determine if the calculation was appropriate and useful. If that wasn’t done, we're calculating
for the sake of calculating.

LeBaron shared that the impression of the BS program by the legislation is that the program has
been ineffective. The idea is that if you're not aware whether you're being effective or not, it
becomes a moot point to do the BS programs. While the z test may not be necessary, there is
direction in the legislation to collect and calculate certain data.

Concerns exist about the data being used for the BS cohort tracker because we are measuring
the wrong things for success. Transfer level math isn’t necessary for certificates or non-transfer
degrees, yet those students are counted with transfer-oriented students in the data tracker.
There is the perception that we aren’t doing enough to help BS students succeed, and this may
be accurate, but not to the point the data tracker suggests and not to the point that all
populations are being affected the same way.

What can we do to change the perception by communicating the fact that the data isn’t
accurate? Can we weed out the populations designated as certificate or vocational certificate
and keep only those declaring undecided or transfer.

LeBaron shared that based on 88810 and funding practices, colleges may not be able to receive
funds for anything outside the six practices designated, and those practices won’t fund anything
below three levels of basic skills.

May need to get RP Group and CO IT to work together to explore a way to add a tool to tracker
so students are calculated based on educational goal and expected level of basic skills
attainment. Discussions also need to include the number of noncredit students and separate
indicators for them.

Next task: this workgroup needs to identify the items on the BSI plans that need to be pulled for
review by the committee. Then the entire committee will need to meet to review the plan.
Need a date in February — February 18 in LA.

New workgroup on project reporting variables

88810 reporting compenent identifies 7 variables as the floor for reporting. Others can be
reported, but seven provide the absolute minimum. Alketa started a conversation after our
October meeting about the reporting requirements for 88810 and other variabies we might
consider measuring. A workgroup of RP Group members and members of CO IR staff with
Academic Affairs staff may meet to discuss reporting elements. An invitation also extended to
LAO office because it will be compiling the report that is sent to the legislature.



o Do we compile more than 7 variables? If so, what other variables. Eric Nielsen suggests
15, but this group will need to have conversation.

o Do we need to do a rigorous evaluation plan?

o Besides the e-resource, is there some other way of gathering evidence to inciude
practices as effective. What measures do we include? What is acceptable as “evidence-
based”?

© Alketa (BSAC rep) + 3 RP Group + Eric Nielsen (Chair as BS Specialist) + Alice (Head CO IR}
& 2CO IRreps

o Suggestion to include a faculty member — a BS practitioner

© This group would have a very short timeline because it’s tied to the RFA development.
After that task, the group could proceed to discuss data tracking and scorecard metrics
with BSAC.

Workgroup on integration of plans

As part of discussion about what type of event to have, the memo about the Student Success
Conference came up — BSAC should have been informed because the event could be an
opportunity to accomplish workgroup goals.

CO internal meeting yesterday. LeBaron met with Denise & some of her staff that oversee SEP
and SSSP. Pam also spoken to separately, All were in agreement that BSAC should work with
Student Services division to collaborate on the possible of integrating into the event,

Chris suggests that we look at Student Success Strand or Other Areas of Focus for a place to put
presentations about coordination of plans and effort.

Workgroup will meet via CCC Confer ASAP to discuss what we need to do then follow up with
Chris Graillat.

LeBaron would like to develop a sixth strand for CO SSC Conference for Coordination/Integration
of plans to make the effort and information more visible and increase the level of importance.
Chris G's suggestion to also explore highlighting/encouraging the spread of funds across areas
serving students disproportionately and use of SEP funds for BS and noncredit.

Career Ladders Project and Contextualized Learning Models — Naomi Castro

Career Ladders Project — nonprofit. Fosters educational and career advancement through
research, policy initiatives and direct assistance to CCs and partners. Look to CCs as a way to
foster workforce and economic development and to pull together students and industry.
o Utilize a trade as a springboard to master a basic skill and move beyond
Excited about high impact practices in basic skills.
o More accurate placement via multiple measures
o Career pathways that align with English and math
o Instructional innovations to help students get through coursework including
acceleration and redesign
o Integrated support services for students
Contextualized Teaching and Learning (CTL)
o Instructional strategies designed to help students learn basic skills by putting them in
context of a skill/trade
Evidence of student success, persistence, progression, motivation, and engagement
o Chuck Wiseley — did dissertation comparing CTL to non-CTL developmental math

Levels of CLT



o Low, mid, or high depending on amount of engagement between classes, instructors,
and industry
o Could be contextualized for a specific trade or for general trades or clusters of careers
= Career Advancement Academy
o Initiative funded by CO. Started in 2007. Framework that provides industry-responsive
training with CTL and transition support
s Resources available in PPT that Naomi provided for LeBaron — it was shared with us.
= Barbara reminded everyone that CTL is included in the Basic Skills document produced by CO
with assistance from Learning Works
s Question about process for contextualizing — Who does it? What's needed?
o Incentives to help instructors work together is helpful
o Support for instructors — professional development — summer institutes, workshops, etc
o Existing course outlines can be used.
o The key is having the right faculty teams — willingness to try new things, willingness to
collaborate, willingness to adapt. Synergy matters.

RFA Process — BS Student Outcomes and Transformation {see timeline via email)
# Target is to release RFA January 10 with Regional Bidders Proposal Conferences in early
February (3 separate 1-day events)
e Projects start July 1 with 3-year implementation per Ed Code. Grants end June 30, 2019.
Reporting period includes period through June 20, 2020.
e Paul Steenhausen — Student Success Center — proposal trainings/Bidder’s Conference
o Recognize programs in BS document, Senate award winning, or other recognition as
models and have presenters provide specific info about their strategy for attendees
of the conference
© Suggestion 1o include a CAl rep {Jennifer Coleman, CAl Director or Craig Rutan,
faculty rep) for #1 because it’s the system’s own effort, rather than highlighting
competing efforts
o There is recognition that some possibilities on the initial list are controversial and
we need to be careful not to suggest that the CO is endorsing any particular
approach. Balanced options need to be available to attendees.
o Discussed possibilities for each of the six categories
o Training will be supported by the IEPI PD grant (awarded to Chabot College)
s Proposal reading for grants process
o Submission via electronic format
o Grants manual has rules about review and scoring that we will follow
o Do we come together in Sacramento to read and score or have grants sent to usin
advance to read then travel to a location to discuss?
o Training could be provided virtually in advance to ensure inter-rater reliability
o Committee expressed preference for having grants to review in advance, then
having time for discussion afterwards
o Readers will be BSAC members + additional people as needed. 15-20 would be idea.
LeBaron expects 70-75 applications

Partnership Pilot Program (CSU partnership)
¢ 5 applications, regional (consortium groups) with CSU
e Legislation is very prescriptive for this grant.



» LeBaron should be able to share the draft of this one for us next week (once the draft of the
other is finished)
s (Can use the same reading/rating training process for this one as the other.

NOTES:
LeBaron is unplugging as of Jan. 1 for 90 days to complete his dissertation. His duties will be temporarily

handled by others in the office; actual assighments TBD.

Next meetings:

January 28 BSAC 8-9:30 CCC Confer

February 18 BSAC in LA (Reading BSI plans)

March 16 BSAC — Grant Norming 4-5pm CCC Confer

March 28 BSAC — Grant Rating/Discussion 10-4 in LA (LA Valley or LA Pierce?)






FEB 16 VIB.iii.

Director’s Collaborative Committee Meeting
Monday, September 28, 2015
Chancellor's Office, Sacramento, California

Attendees: Alice Van Ommeren, Anna Stirling, Barbara lltowsky, Bonnie Peters, Caryn Albrecht,
Chris Graillat, David Shippen, Erik Skinner, Gary Bird, Jeff Holden, Jennifer Coleman, Joe
Moreau, John Makevich, Jory Hadsell, Ken Sorey, LeBaron Woodyard, Lou DelZompo, Mia
Keeley, Michelle Pilati, Pam Walker, Pat James, Paul Steenhausen, Rico Bianchi, Sandoval
Chagoya, Sarah Tyson, Steve Klein, Theresa Tena, and Tim Calhoon.

Opening and Introductions:
Alice Van Ommeren opened the meeting at 10:06 am. She reviewed the agenda and had

members introduce themselves.

Minutes:
The minutes of the last meeting were not provided to the committee prior to the meeting today, so
approval will be considered at a later time.

Approval of Charter:

The draft charter was developed by Gary Bird and Bonnie Edwards early in 2014 and had been
presented to the committee for review and revision. Some revisions were made in June of last
year. The revised draft charter was presented to the committee today for review and approval or

editing.

The purpose of the Director's Collaborative Committee is to:
= Ensure interoperability between projects,
» Help to avoid duplication of efforts with professional development, tools developed, and
RFPs sent out for vendor selection, and
» Keep all the project directors informed of what is going on with all the projects.

The committee will meet quarterly, with two in-person, and two virtual meetings.
There were no edits, comments, or objections to the Charter.

The Charter was approved.

Project Director Updates, Timelines, Sustainability, and Concerns:

Online Education Initiative (OEI):

OEI has been pursuing a busy schedule. The Course Design Rubric was completed in January
and has now been used to review 80-80 courses for the Exchange. Colleges outside of the pilot
are also allowed and encouraged to use the rubric as well. The course list for OE| was built by
looking at core courses neéded for ADT that were also in highest demand and filled the quickest;
seventeen course titles were selected and are listed on the OEIl website. Online Readiness
Modules, along with the Smarter Measure assessment, were launched in August, largely due to
the efforts of Bannie Peters and Anita Crawley. Pilot colleges are using both the modules and the
assessment, and other colleges in the system are making use of the modules which were
developed under a Creative Commons license, and are available online. Eight full launch
colleges are in Canvas now and using both of tutoring and readiness tools within their OEI
courses. Those courses have also been enhanced for accessibility and through a review process
using the course design rubric. OEIl courses will make up the body of the Exchange which will
allow students to take courses at other colleges. Barbara Illowsky is working on embedding basic
skills resources into those classes in the pilots. There are no courses that are specifically for
basic skills, but since some of the courses have no prerequisites, some students with those
needs will end up in the pilot courses and need to make use of basic skills resources to support

their success.

q_"
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28,2015  Page 1



Jory Hadsell has been working on academic integrity solutions including both proctoring and
plagiarism detection tools. That RFP is going out now in partnership with the Foundation, so that
it can be piloted in the spring and be ready for use when the Exchange launches in the fall. A
proctoring network is also being organized through the DE Coordinators to provide proctoring on
site at any college in the network. Bonnie is putting out an RFP for a counseling platform that will
connect online students to counselors, and she has been in communication with David Shippen
and the Education Planning Initiative (EPI) on areas of overlap. At this point there is a lot of time
and energy being spent on the Exchange, which wili mean that the mechanism will exist if the
economy takes a turn for the worse. However, there are other elements to OEl that can be used
by colleges even if they are not interested in participating in the Exchange.

Pam Walker noted her appreciation for the work being done and encouraged strong
communication with ClI0s, CSS0s, and faculty senates on campuses to make sure that there are
intersections with all areas. It is important that the good work of embedding basic skills in the
pilots doesn't get missed by the colleges. Pat James explained that anything that goes out to DE
coordinators also goes out to ClOs as well. She also mentioned that they are thinking about
having a CIO and CEQ summit since OEl hasn’'t had as much direct contact with CEOs especially
from the pilot colleges. OEl is simultaneously starting up the Consortium, which will be the
overall governing body; it will begin as a pilot consortium with twenty-four colleges, but eventually
there will be the opportunity for outreach to other colleges. Pam reiterated the need to make sure
that CSSOs are involved so that the valleys that can develop do not continue. Pat noted that
when the reciprocity agreements were forged last spring there were Student Services officers
involved in those communications.

The process followed for the selection of the CCMS began in April 2014 and ended with a nearly
unanimous decision to select Canvas in February of this year. There were many stakeholders
involved, and both faculty and students were quite pleased with what they saw in the
demonstrations and interviews. Since then the contract has been signed and ratified and the
project is supporting colleges using Canvas in various ways. The primary focus is on the eight
pilot colleges currently implementing Canvas with OEl courses. There is an average of three
courses per college, with twenty-seven total courses in the eight pilots; Steve Klein noted that
implementation has gone fairly smoothly. There are a total of eleven colleges in the system
which will be doing a full Canvas adoption and five other colleges that were already on Canvas
and have now moved over to the OEI negotiated pricing. The pilot is in year one, and OEl is
projecting 50% of colleges adopting Canvas within three years.

A full campus adoption for colleges means that OEI will pay 100% of the cost for Canvas for
projected college adoptions, at least through the 2018/19 year. Continued funding of 2/3 to 100%
is anticipated after ongoing depending upon the level of funding. Full adoption means that a
college agrees to fully transition off their existing CMS after eighteen months; this will help to
demonstrate the success of the project. Projections for 80% of colleges coming on by the end of
the fifth year were calculated pretty aggressively but also seem to be fairly accurate based on
interest expressed and the current status and timing of CMS contracts.

Alice wondered if the reason colleges are looking at Canvas is based on interest or the cost;
Steve explained that it is probably a combination of both. The project is making Canvas very
affordable by paying 100% of the cost through 2018/19 based on grant funding, but the product is
also very modern and well-developed to meet the needs of students and faculty; no one would be
interested in switching if that wasn't the case. There were nearly 70 people in the room, and 40
of those were voting members of the committee when the nearly unanimous decision was made
to go with Instructure as the vendor with Canvas. The decision was based on what was best for
students and could also evolve going forward. This is a modern platform, built for the cloud, and
designed to work for students in 2 mobile environment. Despite the fact that Blackboard had
about 40% of the CCC market while Canvas only had about 5%, Canvas had built the right
product at the right time, with the capacity to ramp up easily that was needed for the system.
Canvas is also being adopted across the country, which increases the knowledge base across

o N W 5 = -~ I 5 T L W
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28,2015  Page 2



users. Another important factor was the fact that this was not just a product, but a partnership
with Instructure; they had a roadmap and a vision, and they understood the vision of the QEI,
They were what they said they were and that has been a credit to the company.

The eleven colleges that are doing new full campus Canvas implementations include:
s 3 of the first eight pilot colleges,
+ 3 of the second sixteen pilot colleges, and finally,
e 5 colleges in the system that are not part of the pilot that also wanted to switch to
Canvas.

With those eleven added to the five colleges in the CCC system that were already Canvas
customers, there will be sixteen colleges on Canvas this first year. All of those colleges fall under
the same pricing negotiated by OEI, because the project felt it was important to have a contract
that addressed all of the colleges equally.

Some colleges are hesitant to make the change to Canvas because they don't know what will
happen after 2018/19, but it is important to recognize the power that the CCC system has in
hegofiaiing confracis. This contract was beneficial to the system as weli as for Instructure.
Strategically it is important to keep vendors hungry and to minimize lock-in; so we should
continue to look at new producis coming up and treat it as an ecosystem where the vendor will
want to support the CCC because it is mutually beneficial. OEIl will also be looking toward
preparing a Budget Change Proposal to cover the cost to continue centralized funding for
Canvas. it would be cost sffective for the system. If the existing funding is extended it would
cover about 2/3 of the cost for the whole system. Colleges that sign on with Canvas are receiving
a contract that shows the real cost for Canvas and the current 100% coverage by OE| which
helps with communication about the cost. Currently the CCCs are paying a total of $14.5M for
LMSs, and providing Canvas for 90 colleges would cost only $7.5M. Even if colleges needed to
pay for 1/3 of the cost, that would represent 1/3 of about ¥ of what they are paying now.

OEl is working with colleges and Unicon to upgrade their authentication with Shibboleth and a
mini-grant program is anticipated to help support the rest of the colieges in the system in making
that transition. Canvas provides guided implementation, training, and Tier 1 support, and
additional training is being provided by @ONE at no cost to colleges. There are a lot of
resources being provided to help campuses, including resources to help with campus discussions
about whether or not to make a transition to Canvas. The transition deciston is an important one,
and there needs to be full campus buy-in to make that commitment.

The OEI Course Exchange is both a concept and a process to allow for a student to take an
online course offered by another college if both the student's college and the college offering the
course are in the Exchange. The Exchange will be piloted with the eight full launch colleges
beginning one year from now, in fall 2016. This will provide the opportunity to have access to
some courses from another college, but not to complete entire programs. The intent is to have
agreements so that students will not be required to go through additional steps for enroilment;
those business processes are what is being agreed upon among the eight pilot colleges. The
home college will receive the credit, and the teaching college will receive the FTES.

There are three ways that colleges can make use of QEl resources:

* A college may not want Canvas, and not want to participate in the course Exchange, but
it does want to use project resources: tutoring, readiness, etc.

* A college may want Canvas, and project resources, but not be sure that they want to
participate in the course Exchange, or

=« A college may want Canvas, participation in the Exchange, and also wants to use project
resources.

All three levels of participation are supported and encouraged by OEl, and there are colleges
engaged at all of these levels.

e
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28, 2015 Page 3



At this point the technical elements of the Exchange are starting {o be built. The first
development sprint is underway and involves OEl working Lou DelZompo and the Technology
Center. The reciprocity agreements among those eight pilot colleges must be finalized including
defining what it means to determine residency status, financial aid, and so on. There is a large
continuum of what the Exchange will include; the first release will be for the easiest agreements
that can be formalized through a data exchange, while one of the last might be financial aid
considerations. This is a long term development product. Those reciprocity agreements need to
be finalized and have been sent to the Chancellor's Office for approvals. Joe felt that the draft
document was superb; so when that is final it will be ready to go. The team is identifying and
assembiling the centralized architecture and registration workflows from the eight pilots, and
developing user stories. The new update of the CVC Catalog was released in the spring; it
greatly increased functionality. The next development cycle will incorporate C-ID information, as
well as having a content update.

There are concerns from colleges about how courses will be advertised to students, and the idea
being discussed so far is that of first offering only local region options (within the college or
district) and oniy once the available local options have been exhausted, will the same regisiration
screen be able to present Exchange options from OEL At that point the student will be presenied
with centralized pre-registration and so on.

There is some discontinuity between the OEl and EPI initiatives that would be helpful to
overcome regarding how offerings are being provided. EPI selected Hobsons as a vendor for an
education planning and degree audit tool, and the Starfish tool for Early Alert and retention was
also included in that contract. However, although many scheools already have an education
planner and degree audit tool, many of those schools are interested in Starfish. Starfish is
enormously popular and on a technical level it would be really helpful for colleges to be able fo
get Starfish coincident with their Canvas implementation.

Common Assessment Initiative (CAI):

CAIl has seven different work groups that have been meeting for over a year. Prior to July groups
were meeting singularly, but now they are being brought together so that general questions can
be answered together. The content area work groups originally came together around developing
the competency maps and are now working on item development and actual test content. The
test development vendor, Link Systems International, has also met with the work groups twice to
look at how test items will be developed from the competency maps.

English and ESL met together recently to determine how they will interact within the test. The
recommendation is that based on pre-registration questions students will enter the assessment
for English/ESL and the testlet adaptive model will move students seamlessly into or out of
English and ESL as needed for that student. This means that students will not need to choose
the test that they take and they will still be given the questions that appropriately determine their
competencies. The outcome could in certain cases provide a dual recommendation for
placement depending upon what programs the school has in place for English/ESL. This will be a
huge move forward and CAl believes it will serve students better. The English and ESL work
groups also talked about writing samples and what will be offered to colleges. The
recommendation from the work group which will be going forward to the Steering Committee is to
put out an RFP for a technology driven sclution which will leverage the use of existing work and
prompts from the field as well as the use of technology going forward.

The outcome of the test for both English/ESL and math will be some kind of a profile of student
performance; it will not just be a raw number. As a result, there will be additional work needed
locally to determine placement from that profile of competencies.

CAl is also using the work from the Multiple Measures Assessment Project (MMAP) to inform
which multiple measures will be offered through CCCAssess. There is some pilot coliege overlap
between the two projects and they are currently convening with regard to non-cognitive variables.

N L L —
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28, 2015  Page 4



At this point the project is looking at some kind of dual recommendation report from the test,
standard versus customized. Once a student has taken the test their high school data could
provide another potential recommendation which could be considered for placement. Version
1.0 could be the standard model with standard components, and version 2.0 could have
additional customization in regards to the model along with additional multiple measures.

The Test Development Process work group is currently looking at what type of approval to seek
from the Assessment Standards work group, and is leaning toward not selecting a standard
option and instead doing something different. Dr. William Fisher, from the UC Berkeley BEAR
Center has been brought in to provide a team with psychometric expertise. This will also allow for
the ability to leverage statewide resources and national and international advisors. He is also
aware of work that has been done in terms of competency based test building and the results that
come out of it, which is, so far very theoretical, but also interesting.

The Professional Development work group is collecting FAQs, project information, coordination of
dates/offerings, and putting out an RFP for Video Production through Saddieback. They are
working on trying to coordinate dates and offerings for professional development, which is a
challenge, because all of the calendars are really impacted. The project is hoping to leverage
statewide activities and have a presence without having to schedule a separate event. That way
information can be provided while attendees are at another conference. The pilot project team
plans to roil out one set of resources to test them and then they will be repackaged to go out to
the rest of the colleges with the leveraged assistance of the Professional Development work

group.

The Platform work group is meeting regularly to provide input into the user interface,
interoperability, and reporting, through their work with the team at Unicon. The user interface is
being developed and Unicon provides demos on current development to get feedback. There is
also the ability on Basecamp to debate what should be made available as part of the project.
John Hadad is the product manager for CCCAssess and is driving the project development. He
uses the direct feedback from demos, and ongoing spring planning for development.

Overall, the project is working on defining success for the project. What can be rolled out the field
and celebrated as a success, what is the minimum viable product for release, and what are the
expectations? Some people feel that the product has to be better than every possible thing being
used by anyone in the field, while others feel that it isn't possible to make everyone happy, so
instead the goal should be to start at the minimum threshold and build upon it in the future.
Colleges are seeing this as an opportunity to make changes that they have wanted to make for a
long time, but previously didn’t have data to support or for other reasons the time wasn't right to
make changes. The project has been looking at what guidance and suggested best practices to
provide.

The project is focused on assessment, not placement. This is a very important message to
share. Members have learned to be careful with the language used to describe what the project
will provide in terms of resources without dictating specifics. There will not be a single traditional
cut score, instead a student profile of results matched to competencies, maybe in a graphic
representation will be provided. That profile will be used by local colleges to determine
placement. Jennifer Coleman explained the concern for Omar, a representative student, who is
having challenges getting started in school. The issue of whether or not anything is being fixed if
the same placement is not offered at different colleges has been brought up. CAl Is using this as
an opportunity to encourage regional discussions about how differing placements would affect
students. Additionally, the assessment approval model that ends up being used will also
determine what is needed [ocally in terms of validation.

The current timeline begins now and is focused on item quality and piloting specific content items,
as well as looking at non-cognitive variables. Spring 2016 will be for field testing including on the

I ——
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28, 2015 Page 5




platform and test validation. The summer 2016 will be for approval and revisions, then finally in
the fall 2016 there will be a phased release beyond the pilots with a focus on implementation.

The scale of the beginning of the pilot of the project has expanded significantly beyond what was
originally anticipated since the sunset of Compass in November 2016 has been announced. The
pilot process will now begin with the original pilot colleges, followed by sister colleges of the
pilots, then Compass using colleges, and other colleges in the system. To the extent possible,
the goal is to keep cotleges from having to come up with an interim solution. Right now, at the
pilots local implementation teams are being set up including: assessment center staff, faculty, IT,
researchers, administrators, and so on. Jennifer is working in conjunction with the Chancellor's
Office to put together a list of launch dates to be released to the field so that colleges can make
plans. Colleges have to get on board, and seme will want on right away, while others will want to
wait as late as possible.

There are a number of factors that will be addressed now and on an ongoing basis with
CCCAssess. It will not be a static product once it is rolled to the field, the test will need to be
refreshed and approved; changes as a result of SBAC/Common Core will be needed in the near
future. It will be important to maintain security of the system and the security of the test bank of
questions, while also looking at how to accommodate access remotely and other current
practices. How will English/ESL writing samples realistically be graded since there is not a cave
of graders living under the Chancellor's Office?

The original timeline and work plan assumed purchase of an existing product, instead the project
decided to build the test. As a result there is more work needed for test approval, and many of
the people who would normally be involved in that review are participating in the creation of the
test. Therefore it is important to make sure there are enough people who do not need to excuse
themselves from the approval process to actually provide a high quality review.

Additionally ongoing faculty participation is critical to the creation of the test, and at present there
are concerns about losing support for faculty participation over stipends. Jennifer noted that the
issue has to do with what faculty is paid and whether that amount is a fair and equitable amount.
The project has a really good relationship with the Academic Senate and contracted with the
Academic Senate for representatives. The Executive Committee set the rates for faculty
reimbursement, and is paying those rates. There is incredible faculty participation at a very deep
level and CAl does not want to lose that participation because the project is moving into a point
where there will be review of the items and actual test content. Faculty participation is essential,
so the team hopes that the issue can be resolved right away.

Communication and the coordination of communication can also be an issue; Jennifer routinely
gets contact from people in different departments at the same school, who have not spoken to
each other. As she goes out to talk to different stakeholders she has also found that assessment
center directers are ready, but the other element of how a student's results map to the local
curriculum still needs to be done; that background piece is going to be important and will be huge
amount of work. Another challenge is that sometimes there are local culture conflicts between
departments that may cause problems. Sandoval is working on client management and tracking
those local contacts so that people can be encouraged back toward integrated work at the local
level. There may be mini-grants available to colleges to fund that work creating the local
placement models. This work involves mapping the results to your local curriculum. Final
decisions about how the output of the assessment will look have not been made yet; afterward,
that mapping will need to be locally defined. There is also a local concern on the part of some
colleges with respect to access to researchers. Some research departments have been
restructured and they have concerns about how they will accommodate the local validation that
will be needed. Finally, continuing to reinforce the message that if a test is used, colleges will be
required to use CCCAssess if they want to continue to receive funding is critical.

]
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28, 2015 Page 6



Chris felt that it was important for the Chancellor's Office to think about how the phase in of CAI
and its tie to SSSP and when funding will be cut off needs to be thought out carefully so that
colleges can plan for what to do with respect to their existing contracts with Accuplacer and so
on. Sarah agreed that it is important to ensure in the timeline the capacity to allow realistic time
to get colleges on board. Jennifer noted that because of when the Compass announcement
came out, the project has been able to provide direction to the developer that the scaling wilt
need to be quicker and that aspect of need is being factored in now.

There will be two repositories for the assessment data. There will be a central data warehouse
for storing the results when the student takes the test, those results will go to the colleges so that
students don’t have to carry paper. There will also be a backend system that will be used to store
MIS, CCCApply, CalPASS data, etc. and the use cases for that data regarding security and
workflow. How to get a more regular flow of data in a secure way and how to manage that will be
important. John Hadad is working on who will have access, and what data governance should
lock like. Alice emphasized that the Chancellor's Office wants to continue to receive follow-up
information from those in depth meetings as well.

Education Planning_Initiative (EPI):
David Shippen, provided an overview of the scope of the EP| and a demonstration of the current
Student Services Portal. The project has a pretty broad scope with potential touchpoints with the
other initiatives in the following areas:
= Application authentication and authorization
Workflow integration of data and movement toward synergy in data use
Multi-coliege use
Training materials and professional development
Marketing
Reporting and metrics

There are three elements of the EPI that many in the system want right away: the portal, the
Starfish Early Alert and retention tool, and version 2.0 of the Curriculum Inventory. These tools
are especially important to the system so communication is especially important fo avoid rumors
and misunderstandings. There wiil be grants to help colleges with implementation of various
tools, and the project is working on developing a good process for ongoing operations.

The portal is being built using an iterative development process on secure and scalable
infrastructure so that it can expand quickly for peaks and troughs of use. It has been extensively
student-tested. Much of the last year has been spent on the foundation of the portal; now that the
foundation work has been done the portal is at a point where development will move a lot faster.
The portal will eventually include CCCApply, College and Career Explorer, and other student
service tools. The project is looking at how to deal with the fact that the Luminis Portal is no
longer being supported, which affects forty colleges. The portal will link together actions by the
student into a student profile and workflow. Later, machine learning will be applied to interact
with students in a meaningful way by: sending messages, prompting actions, and putting things in
their calendar. The current version of the portal has a crisp, clean, modern looking interface. The
branding, logo, and background images will be configurable by individual colleges using
administrative tools.

The main content supplied to students will be presented in a center area carousel of checklist
boxes. These are items that are either required of students or recommended to them. Each of
the checklist boxes contains links out to tasks for the student to complete and a progress bar that
fills in as they are completed; the progress bar was specifically added based upon student input.
Administrative tools for the college allow the content of the checklists, number of checklists, etc.
to all be entirely configurable. The design is responsive so that the portal is accessible on
iPhones, laptaps, etc. There is also a pin board with an app launcher with links out to portlets or
sites which is configurable by the institutions and acts as a consolidated list of tools and
resources that can be searched and saved by the student for easy reference.

e e ——
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28, 2015 Page 7



The portal will not come with a high level of preconfigured content, instead a series of tools will be
provided so that non-technical individuals in colleges and districts will be able to create content
for use by their campus. The campus staff will be able to configure elements by using a form to
decide on the name and the number of items on the checklist and then to develop an information
page, a questionnaire, or a form with branching guestions, as needed for the checklist.

Students will be able to access some tools in the portal as an unattached student before applying
to college, and will be able to use it after the application process as well using their Open CCCID,
even if the student's college is not interested in using the portal. Additionally, colleges may
decide to use the whole portal or individual portlets within their college specific portal.

The contract with Hobsons has been signed for an Education Planning/Degree Audit tool and that
contract includes Starfish, an excellent retention tool. There are eight pilot colleges that have
finished contracting paperwork and are now starting implementation of those tools. The pilot
colleges will be helping to develop tools and knowledge to be leveraged by the rest of the CCC
system to make Hobsons and Starfish easier to implement and use. David emphasized that the
project is in the business of promoting education planning, but not necessarily Hobsons; colleges
may decide to remain with their existing education planning and degree audit tools, and still make
use of the student portal and Starfish for retention.

Additionally, ail colleges will benefit from work done behind the scenes in several other areas.
EPI is also working on C-ID, ASSIST, Curriculum Inventory, and e-transcripts. The first version of
C-ID is no longer supported and version 2.0 is in the design phase. There wilf be thirty workflows
developed using business process management (BPM); Mt. SAC has been engaged as a grant
manager for that development. ASSIST Next Gen now has APls in place and the project is
working on supporting the rollout, help desk, and work flows. The Chancelior's Office Curriculum
Inventory system supported by Governet is obsolete. Version 2.0 is in the design phase with the
CCC, and they are intending to use the same BPM tool as C-ID using the business processes
documented by the CCC Technology Center. Emphasis will be focused on data quality and web
services. There will also be Steering Committee oversight of project development. Finally, a
dedicated product manager. has been hired to work on the ongoing deployment of e-transcript
through the end of 2015. Steps are being taken toward: a California e-transcript standard, a
student ordering portlet, and a potential RFP. Currently if you want to send a transcript, the
transcript is left on the Speede Server to be picked up by whoever you are sending it to; that
means that the student’s Pll and record is sitting there until it is picked up. Through work with
PESC, a transition to a system where the transcript will be transferred directly from one party to
another without a third party in the middle is being made; this will really streamline the process.
That work with PESC will form a new foundation for e-transcripts within California and throughout
the United States. What E-transcript California is promoting is an electronic transcript standard
for all vendors to follow; if Credentials, Parchment, and all others use the same standard behind
the scenes it will simplify the exchange process for everyone regardless of vendor used. Lou
explained that if a college connected with everything being developed with EPI there would be
fourteen different integrations. He will be developing a project to address those integrations.

Related to transcripts, Pam asked whether there will be resources related to prior learning for
Veterans within EPI. Barbara explained that OEI has been looking at ways to be able to provide
credit for prior learning to Veterans, and found that typically prior learning would form parts of
CTE courses and not full General Education courses. It might be possible to develop a smaller
online course to be put together with the work on an Army or Navy transcript of prior learning to
make for a complete CTE course. With respect to air flight, FAA regulations require taking the
whole course to receive credit. She also noted that most Veterans are not looking for CTE in the
area of their military service; they are almost always interested in transitioning over to Business or
Finance. Tim put in a peer request with Gartner and the CIO for the Army schools; they are very
interested in figuring out how to integrate the training programs. Barbara asked Tim to keep her
informed about any progress.

I e e e T
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28,2015  Page 8




TTIP North:

CCCApply, which is still under TTIP, has four more colleges or districts coming on which means
that there will be 100 colleges on CCCApply. There are twelve colleges that have given
commitments to be live by the spring, which will leave only Allan Hancock College left to bring on
to have the whole CCC on CCCApply. The International application will be released this fall;
there has been a lot of accessibility work done the last 34 months to have it ready for review by
the state auditor. Open CCCApply is the account set up system for students attached to
CCCApply and there are now 2.5 million student accounts set up through that system. A data
scientist has looked at the data to determine whether there are many duplicate accounts and with
a sampling of about 300,000 accounts, he found only .3 of 1% duplication, which is not bad, but
they will also be working on reducing that. As great news, colleges are also now starting to
replace use of the social security number as identifier with the CCC-ID.

There was a large problem with CENIC of old networking equipment and routers, with more than
100 that needed to be replaced. There were many redundant circuits that were lost during the
recession that also needed to be replaced so that if one circuit was cut, service would not go
down. Equipment needs to be replaced and refreshed. Additionally, the system is looking at
upgrading colleges with saturated and close to saturated circuits. Finally, there are 77 eligible off
site centers that will be connected into the CENIC backbone. Gary Bird and Tim Calhoon are
working on that large CENIC circuit project, right now there are about thirty circuits completed and
another seventy-six in progress.

The Information Security Center put out a survey in 2013 and found that 63% of colleges in the
system consider their information security programs to be “immature,” with 76% not having even
one full time employee on information security. Jeff Holden worked with SAC and ISAC to launch
an information security standard to help provide awareness to all of the colleges in the system
about keeping data secure. He is working on providing security assessments to colleges to
provide scanning and help them evaluate their overall security situation. This year the security
team will be come out with an offering for scanning software which will scan source code for
vulnerabilities. These tools and programs are also being used to audit and control the internal
security for the Technology Center and its initiatives. Jeff noted that the system is moving in the
right direction, and a new survey will be sent out next week.

The Technology Center is also setting up an Accessibility Center which will provide the same
kinds of guidance, tools, and information, that the Information Security Center has been offering
for data security, in the area of accessibility. The Accessibility Center will survey colleges and
provide offerings for scanning and accessibility. It will be helpful to have a database of common
web platforms to provide to colleges and also be able to provide audits and controls for
Technology Center offerings. Ken thought that providing those kinds of guidelines or best
practices and documenting improvements would be helpful to other projects within the system;
CalPASS probably needs to adhere to accessibility guidelines as well. Sean Keegan, the
accessibility specialist will help to meet more stringent standards for accessibility especially for
the public elements that are audited.

TTIP South;

Rico Bianchi talked about some of the ongoing offerings provided by TTIP Scuth. CCCConfer
includes Collaborate, Ultra and ConferNow. Collaborate and Ultra (with good accessibility
features planned for deployment fali 2016) will have LTI integrations available on most LMS.

Both types of recordings are automatically added to 3C Media Solutions. ConferNow (also known
as Zoom) will be available for deployment for instructional courses in the spring/summer of 2016.
It will have new keyboard “hot keys” to provide for better accessibility. A caption window will also
be available in spring 2016. As of October 10" Zoom came out with a capacity of fifty participants
for all pro accounts (a large capacity account will still be needed for groups larger than fifty). LTI
integrations are available on most LMS. Again with this product, recordings are automatically
added to 3C Media Solutions,

S,
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28,2015  Page 9



3C Media Solutions provides video on demand and LTI integration is available on most LMS.
Amazon S3 Video conversion will be available in spring 2016, and Wowza streaming in the
summerffall 2016. 3C Media Solutions provides a really easy to use form to request DECT
funded captioning. DECT funding captioning when done at the college is more involved; the
coliege has to apply for it, they are given a certain amount of allotment which the instructor has to
go through the DE coordinators to access and be reimbursed for. With 3C Media solutions the
instructor creates the video, puts it in 3C Media Solutions, requests captioning, and within three
days it is added. The only problem is that ease of use has made it very popular; in one month the
cost was $28,000. TTIP South is now working with Gary and Alice to revise the process and to
figure out 2a model for the system that is easy to use. Also under 3C Media Solutions is
3CMENOW for event coverage. Additionally, UStream and podcasting accounts are available.

Collaboration tools for 3CMedia will be available in fall 2016. Right now the Amazon account is
provided per user, but they are planning to provide it for colieges at a discounted rate. Lou
explained that the Technology Center is looking at being looped in to standard with Amazon and
suggested that TTIP North and South should partner up and pool resources; Rico agreed.

Part of the storage for TTIP South used to be on a private area of YouTube, but little by little they
are changing to Amazon S3. There will be a lot of resources provided there. TTIP South has
also been working with Paul Steenhausen at the Chancellor’s Office to catalogue professional
development resources.

TTIP South and @ONE put on the Online Teaching Conference again this year, June 15-17 at
the San Diego Convention Center. There is system-wide participation in the OTC each year.
Next year the OTC will be held in the same location. The search for a venue for 2017/18 has
already begun in order to find a large enough venue, since this year there were over 1000
attendees. When the OTC was first brought back there were 200 participants, and last year there
were over 700 which shows that people really do want to get together. There was more online
than face-to-face participation during the recession.

The old CETC Ambassador Program is being resuscitated by providing DE Coordinators with
stipends to help with bi-weekly communications to colleges about technolegy project resources.
It will be useful to have collaboration between the various initiatives about what needs to be
communicated. In TTIP South they scraped the @ONE website to gather 50,000 or so email
address. They don’t have everybody, but there are about 35,000 faculty email addresses.
Committee members felt that the ability to send email to faculty members would be a tremendous
resource. However, coordination is important so that people are not spammed.

Anna Stirling reported on the support in professional development activities @ONE is providing
for OEl with two primary focuses: involvement in the course design review and the Canvas
migration process. The Introduction to Teaching with Canvas course will go live October 19t
There will be both facilitated and self-paced versions available. There will be four live “Canvas
Conversations” offered that will be available under the community college license at Canvas
deployment. There will also be regional “Train the Trainers for Canvas Introduction” that will be
offered as face-to-face workshops for pilot schools before December; the intent is to have two
trainers from each pilot school.

The Cnline Education Standards and Practice (OESP) course has its foundation in OEl and
@CNE rubrics and it is being offered in pilot delivery as a course in Canvas. That course is on
track for public delivery in spring 2016, and will also be offered in both facilitated and self-paced

versions.

There are currently 98 graduates from the new twelve week @ONE certification program. The
old program took thirty-two weeks, while the new program consists of five courses that are each
four weeks in length and has portfolio development built into the program. There are eleven
people going through the final review of their portfolio development with another class of sixteen

b e )
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28, 2015  Page 10




ready to begin. The five courses that make up the certification will be updated and maoved into
Canvas as well. @ONE will continue to support Introduction to Moedle and Introduction to
Blackboard until they are no longer needed. They are now developing out the schedule for fail
and spring. There has been a pretty good participation rate in the @ONE trainings and Anna
feels they have been successful in getting more information out to the system. However, @ONE
has no staff; they use contractors throughout the system, primarily faculty, so it can be hard to
meet demand; that is why they have been moving to “train the trainers® modeled programs. They
are hoping to bring on additional resources by January or February of next year. @ONE has
been providing a lot of support to OEI and will be talking to the other projects in terms of the best
ways to support them.

Cal-PASS Plus:

Cal-PASS Plus is starting year four of a five year cycle and Ken reported on what has been
happening over the last year. They have been able to provide data reports back to colleges via
data dashboards and the Launchboard. They have been working on bringing together a number
of different CTE programs and other transition pathways from high school to college, community
college to four year institution, and so on. There has also been some work with special
populations, including foster youth dashhoards, student athletics, and some work around a STEM
pipefine. There is a major effort to answer questions about what is happening at those key
transition points.

A big part of the work in the last year has been renewal of the MOUs from around the state, 80%
expired in June 2015, so that has required going to every school in the state and getting them to
renew their agreements. That work is largely done, with only 1-2 college districts that are
stragglers. Cal-PASS Plus is also seeing increasing traction with the CSUs and UCs. The
purpose of that work is to connect the data and answer questions via regional learning
collaborative. They are able to jump start that collaborative work when complete data sets can be
pulled together. A lot of the work from muitiple measures has come as a resuit of that regional
work being partnered with RP Group effort.

The STEPS Project came from testing whether connecting regional data sets could provide a
more robust picture of student capacity. That project has grown and is now up to twenty-nine
community colleges (those names are on the RP Group website) that are piloting some type of
multiple measure from the high school transcript; results from early adopters are promising,
particularly around equity. In a number of early pilots, schools are doubling, if not tripling the
number of students going into transfer level courses. There is great faculty buy-in and there will
be events on October 27t (at Cyprus) and 28t (in the Bay Area) that will bring colleges together
for discussion.

Communications and Coordination:

John Makevich explained that OEI has decided to consolidate their messaging regarding that
project down to a weekly update sent to SPOCs (who are sometimes Deans or faculty members).
They will also be starting the Consortium soon, so they want to be able to simplify and reduce the

amount of messaging.

Alice asked the projects to keep TRIS, Academic Affairs, and Student Services aware of
conferences and events that leadership members will be doing presentations at, so that
attendance can be coordinated with Chancellor's Office staff where appropriate. The request
came from recognizing that there should be coordination regarding statewide consultation
councils and the role that each person can play in user groups, small work groups, and larger
statewide gatherings. Members clarified that there are a wide variety of events they are attending
and there is a fair amount of coordination between the initiatives. Access to the management
calendars can be provided in order to make the best use of exceptional opportunities. Pam
mentioned that she hadn’t known about the CalPASS Plus equity work and reiterated the need to
keep from having separate silos, it is important for new CS80s, ClOs, and equity officers to know
about all of the work that is happening so that opportunities are not lost.
mmm__%
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28, 2015  Page 11



Sandoval explained that there is a Master Marketing Calendar along with existing calendars
within each initiative and Google does allow for the blending of calendars. He felt that
coordination with fall events has been covered pretty well. He then reviewed background for how
the initiatives came about ultimately as a result of the Student Success Initiative and the Student
Success Task Force recommendations. The way the RFA for the initiatives was developed in
eight sections there was an attempt to be comprehensive in taking the good work around Student
Success back to the system. The goal is to use technology as a tool for the collective good of
supporting the practitioners in the system. Sandovai sees his role as one focused on
coordinating communication to provide support and promote collaboration between all TTIP,
TRIS, and CCC Technology Center partners. Some of the opportunities for coordination in
2015/16 invoive use of: events calendar, internal news cycle twice monthly, customer relationship
management software, PR support and tracking, marketing firm, and websites/social media.

Top events in the fall time frame:

CCC RP Group Student Success Conference October 7-9

CIO Fall Conference October 28-30

Academic Senate CCC Fall Plenary November 5-7 {CAl has a session scheduled there
combining CAl and Multiple Measures)

Student Senate November 13-15

CC League Annual Conference November 19-21

Additionally, the ASCCC Innovation and Instructional Design Institute and Spring Plenary, both in
the spring, are events that will have the opportunity for participation and heavy presence from the
initiatives.

CISOA is in March and the cut off for presentations has been extended; the TRIS division will be
at CISOA.

Sandoval felt that there were opportunities for coordination within the internal news cycle of the
CCC TechEDge News and the CCC Technology for Student Success News. He said that most
articles will penetrate to 1000 people depending upon the story. Tim explained that the hardest
stakeholder group to reach is the faculty. Rico will work with Sandoval to reach the faculty
members who have self-subscribed through @ONE.

In terms of PR support and tracking, Sandoval uses Meltwater News Service for news media
monitoring, media data base/PR distribution, and wire distribution. There is also local and
regional PR support with pilot colleges, as well as coordinated state PR for the Chancellor's
Office. There are also opportunities for coordination with customer relationship management
(CRM) software using ZOHO, a CRM which is integrated with Google Apps and has a specific
and verified database of contacts. There is also an RFP in progress due for release in October
for a Technology Center Marketing/PR Firm, which would be a multi-year partnership with 1-2
awardees, intended to be for the remaining calendar life on the grants.

New brand development is near completion with the initiative websites, they will also be
supported with social media. Full development of print collateral and a shared resource approach
will allow for collaboration and cross pollination. There is also opportunities for coordination with
the Step:Forward student marketing campaign. That campaign is focused on increasing student
awareness of the steps of orientation, assessment, and education planning. Obviously, there are
opportunities for messaging overlap with those three elements and the initiatives. Bringing the
Step:Forward messaging into the portal will provide for "point of sale” communication with
students right at the time they submit their application.

The existing shared resources that are available at the Technology Center are: director, editor,
copywriter, graphic designer, pilot support, and multimedia development. A project manager

. ______________________________________________________ . - ____ o o ]
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28, 2015  Page 12



position is being developed and is expected in October/November. Sandoval would also like to
see social media experts, PR specialists, and video production on his team.

Some potential channels of communication to consider are blogs attached to project websites
and site messaging. Additional ways to increase collaboration include: hold a student portal
branding summit, continue to assess existing resources/needs, amplify messaging for all projects,
refine outreach to practitioners/stakeholders, and report out more during Director's Collaborative
meetings. Tim suggested that for the portal branding, a smaller group should come up with a list
of possible options for a farger group to evaluate.

Members noted that it might be helpful to find ways to send out TechEDge or the Student
Success newsletter in a way that embeds it in a message from the leadership of stakeholder
groups, like Julie Adams embedding it in an email sent to the Academic Senate members; or
consider rebranding it with a departmental approach if it could be done with cohesion.

Professional Development Coordination:
Rico provided an overview of the CCC Professional Learning Network website that Paul and

Anna have been working on as a location to: gather resources, make connections, find speakers,
look at a calendar of conferences, and so on. MyPD will be a feature for faculty, staff, etc. to
develap their own professional development plan. The regional summits last November found
this was a feature that attendees and especially adjunct faculty thought was highly desirable.
They can identify what skills and competencies they want to develop over the next year and use
this location to establish those goals, and keep track as competencies are acquired. LeBaron
noted that it would be helpful to use the calendar and My PD to keep track of Flex Day offerings
and individual plans even over the course of several years. The network will also be a place for
all three initiatives to consolidate their professional development resources. This will help with
identifying and disseminating best practices for all three initiatives as well. There is also the
possibility of expanding it so that colleges could put their own content. Paul explained that
materials and resources could be placed into the network in a variety of ways, including through
the use of a review panel or teams of reviewers using a rubric, or material developed by
recipients of state awards. Currently the Speakers Directory includes those who have spoken at
conferences over the last year or so. In the future, keynote speakers would be added, and
people from ouiside of the system who want to be included would submit some sort of letter or
application. Pam expressed concern that there might be the potential for stakeholders to post
comments that might not be appropriate, and members agreed that forum discussions would
need to be moderated in some way.

Lou menticned that this website was built using WordPress, and that particular platform has had
a lot of security issues, so it is important to be very aware of patching it on a regular basis, and it
might be a good idea to consider the use of single sign-on. Rico noted that they haven't found a
way to have single sign-on with Confer especially with adjunct faculty. Lou and Tim confirmed
that it would be necessary for @ONE to become an authenticator. Lou also noted that if desired,
the network might be able to be put into a Canvas plug-in with a scaffold.

Rico suggested that there be a separate discussion of single sign-on at a future meeting, to try to
help address the issues involved with adjunct faculty who teach at 3-4 different colleges. Pat
agreed, and noted that OpenCCC provides students with a system ID, but there is not an
equivalent for adjunct faculty. Lou noted that there is a technical solution, and it comes down to
an administrative choice in how the system is set up.

Discussion and Wrap Up:

The group decided that it would make sense to continue to meet quarterly having the first meeting
of the year in person, with the next meeting occurring on-line. There was agreement that having
a shorter period of time set aside for updates would be useful, to allow more time for discussion.

e e e e —————————— R e ———
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28, 2015 Page 13



David suggested that a document repository be set up as a location for the Charter, style guides,
ete.

Next Meeting:
The next Director's Collaborative meeting will be on January 13, 2016 at the Chancellor's Office

in Sacramento.

Adjournment:
The meeting was adjourned at 3:30pm:.

e e ]
Director’s Collaborative Sacramento September 28, 2015  Page 14



A’ A 3
- Academic Senate
E for California Community Colleges

LEADEARSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOILE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: GEAC Meeting Notes Month: Feb. | Year: 2016
Item No- o
Attachment: YES

DESIRED QUTCOME: Awareness Urgent: No

Time Requested: none

L ;

CATEGORY: TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: John Stanskas Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW* | Action
' Information X

Please note: Staff will corhpfei‘e the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

The CSU system office and CSU Academic Senate hold a meeting of the General Education Advisory
Committee, GEAC, prior to each CSU Academic Senate general assembly. Attached are the minutes

and attachments from the meeting on January 19.

Other items of interest not in the attachments include:

1. The CSU system is struggling with general education learning outcomes. There is a conference
sponsored by WASC's Assessmeni Resource Council April 6-8 in Orange County. We may wish

to send a representative. The website is www.wascarc.org.

2. There was considerable discussion regarding the California Community College Baccalaureate
Degree Pilot Program. I spent considerable time explaining the varicus methodologies apparent

across the country used to construct degrees of value.

DESIRED OUTCOME:

None.

L staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.







m The California State University

OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR

Chancellor’s General Education Advisory Committee
Agenda for January 19, 2016
11:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.
Anacapa Room, CSU Office of the Chancellor

Contact the CSU Academic Senate to participate by phone or video conference.

11:00 1 Approval of agenda for meeting of 1/19/2016 and minutes of Bill Eadie
11/3/2015
11:15 2 Liberal Learning Partnerships (Debra David report) Ken O’Donnell
11:30 3 Math Education; Uppcr Division GE Eric Forbes
time
certain
Noon Lunch
1:00 4 CSU Institute for Teaching and Learning Emily Magruder
1:30 5 Update on annual review of CCC courses proposed for GE Ken O’Donnell
2:00 6 Upper-division GE in California Community Colleges John Stanskas
2:30 7 Quantitative Reasoning Ken O’Donnell
3:00 8 C-ID Mark Van Selst
3:30 9 Other items, open forum Bill Eadie
4:00 Adjourn
CSU Campuses Fresno Monterey Bay San Francisco
Bakersfield Fullerton Nerthridge San José
Channel Islands Humboldt Pomoena San Luis Obispo
Chico Long Beach Sacramento San Marcos
Domingnex Hills Los Angeles San Bernardino Sonoma

East Bay Maritime Academny San Diego Stanislaus



GEAC MEETING
Nov. 3, 2015

Call to order at 11 am.

Present: Members: Chair Bill Eadie, Vice-Chair Mary Ann Creadon, Barry
Pasternak, Catherine Nelson, Susan Gubernat, Virginia May [for John Stanskas],
Joseph Bielanski, Mark Wheeler, Terri Eden, Mark Van Selst, Ken O’Donnell,
Elizabeth Adams, Sean Walker, Jeff Spano, Jason Colombini. Guests: Steven
Filling, Christine Miller, Debra David, Denise Fleming

Approval of agenda for meeting of 11/3/15 and minutes of 9/1/15

e Agenda: Approved.
¢ Minutes of Sept. 1, 2015: Approved.

introduction of members and guests

Liberal Learning Partnerships

e Debra David reported that the Compass Report has been receiving much
positive publicity and response. They are working now on proficiency
initiatives through the AAC&U sponsored Faculty Collaboratives Project.
This project is a ten-state initiative with, here in California, 10 CSU and 4 CC
members, who are working with different existing proficiency initiatives
(e.g., the WICHE initiative, Lumina Foundation work, Degree Qualifications
Profile} to develop proposals to increase proficiency at individual campuses.

e Debra announced that she will no longer be the Passport representative.

e Questions arose about the involvement of the CSU in WICHE in particular,
and the extent to which our participation in these initiatives lends weight to
the projects.

e Debra said that ours is not a buy-in effort, but only an educational and
informational resource for WICHE and for us.

¢ Responses came from committee members who testified to the value of
the involvement on their campus of some of these initiatives.



e Upon questioning, Debra said this hub of proficiency initiatives has funding
right now through September 2016, but the intention is to keep the hub
going and so figure out how to do that, and under whose aegis it will be
maintained (e.g., AAC&U, or the Chancellor’s Office, or under the ASCSU).
Debra said she would prefer it was under the ASCSU because it is a faculty
project.

e Chair Eadie said we will check up on this again and see where it is going and
who will take over the hub.

Critical Thinking Standards in Interstate Passport

Mark Van Selst discussed the critical thinking outcomes developed by
Interstate Passport, saying that in California these outcomes don’t
exactly fit our critical thinking outcomes, though they do fit the AAC&U
rubric. WICHE has not yet figured out how to know if, or communicate
how, the student achieved the skills of the outcomes, and scalability is a
problem.

Ken O’Donneli said that many campuses are interested in how to
determine that a student has achieved critical thinking skills, so the
guidelines are useful.

Barry Pasternak worried that campuses with engineering programs in
particular, which have removed critical thinking courses from the GE
requirements, and have second language learners, will have a
particularly difficult time determining the success of these outcomes
and the ability to communicate them.

Susan Gubernat expressed a concern about scalability, and the tendency
towards standardization and homogeneity that it encourages.
Outcomes should be local and based on what a campus needs and has
available to it. Even this document, not meant as policy, suggests the
advisability of homogeneity of standards, and drills fairly far down to
specifics.

Catherine Nelson noted that this was the second discussion of this
meeting about proficiency standards, and the implied sense that
proficiency standards matter more than taking a course. K-12 shows the



problem with this, where they have become accustomed to “teach to
the test.”

e Ken O’Donnell agreed that K-12 damaged themselves with much of the
business about testing, but that this document accounts for nuance and
is not designed toward teaching to the test.

Statway, Math Council

Ken O’Donnell explained the import of the memo from the
Chancellor’s office extending the statistics pilots, whether through
Statway or the California Acceleration Project. Now the question is
how to keep algebra competence in the requirements, and what
should be the floor. Forming the group to determine that was the
ASCSU’s job; extending the pitot through the memo was his job.
Terri Eden expressed some confusion about the “statistics pathways”
identified in the CO document, and what would be the consequences
for the C-ID courses that have been approved for Associate Degree
for Transfer. Mark Van Selst agreed, saying that adding in CAP or
Statway may break the legislative mandate against additional units.
Ken O'Donnell noted that these pilots and courses are only for GE,
not for a major, but advisors and students will have to look out for
their major requirement units.

Mary Ann Creadon and Catherine Nelson reported on the discussion
of Statway at the Math Council meeting they attended in October,
noting that some on the Council still expressed strong opposition to
Statway and the diminishment of algebra it allows. Math Council
members were encouraged to participate in the Task Force being
organized by ASCSU.

Steven Filling reported that because of some troubling responses
from the Chancellor’s office about consultation in determining
general education standards for quantitative reasoning, the ASCSU is
first having a discussion with the CO about faculty governance of
curriculum before the Task Force is instantiated.



Ken O’Donnell suggested that the troubling language may have come
from him as he tried to open the quantitative reasoning standards
discussion to other constituents, although the CSU should have the
final word on GE standards.

Catherine Nelson and Susan Gubernat expressed concern about the
CO response because it did not clearly indicate that CSU faculty are in
a leadership position.

Virginia May indicated serious concerns about CAP and Statway,
suggesting that if the standards are being altered by the inclusion of
these pathways, we should be open about that fact.

CSU Institute for Teaching and Learning

e Ken O’Donnell reported in place of Emily Magruder. He said her

position is different from her predecessors because it is a long-
term position that allows her to look at long-term issues such as
assessment. They are now casting around for themes for their
spring meeting.

Report on Pilots: SBCC, Online Oral Communication

¢ Ken O’Donnell reminded the group that a few years ago we

allowed the testing out by faculty of online oral communication
courses. Three CC faculty responded, and now there are four or
five CC campuses doing such courses. It now looks as though we
will accept, with standards, online oral communication courses.
Susan Gubernat said that before approval is given, we should
receive more advice from the discipline. Here is where a
discipline council for Communication would be good, so they can
talk to each other about this, and offer advice.

Christine Miller worried that allowing more campuses to do these
pilots implies approval before we have had full advice and
consultation. She remembers GEAC specifically wanting this to be
a very limited pilot.



¢ Discussion ensued that reminded people that what has been
accepted is the possibility of more proposals.

e Virginia May asked how the pilot works so that when it is
documented for transfer, the articulation officers know that it was
an online course. Chair Eadie said he thought the online courses
were not to be allowed for transfer, and Ken O’Donnell said that
articulation officers were good about this fact, but don’t always
know, particularly if a course is taken out-of-state.

¢ Ken O’Donnell said that there will be an upcoming conference call
about the pilots with representatives from GEAC, the discipline,
and the participating faculty.

e The other oral communication pilot was part of a proposal by
SBCC to modify the transfer curriculum by keeping a cohort
together for two years and dispersing the oral comm
requirements among other coursework for this cohort. A
Communication faculty member would spot-visit those classes to
see how the requirements were being met, and they would look
at data for retention, also. The faculty member doing the visits
was not happy with the caliber of speeches given, so Ken is going
to take down that pilot from our web page.

¢ Susan Gubernat expressed concern about the dispersal of
disciplinary content for GE, and our need to honor disciplinary
expertise in GE areas.

» Jeff Spano commended GEAC for being willing to give this pilot a
chance and allowing the SBCC faculty to come to their own
conclusion about its efficacy.

Upper Division GE, Online Courses, and Transfer

e Sean Walker said that Senate Chairs are concerned about the
transfer of upper division GE within the CSU. This will be more
of a problem with the CC baccalaureate programs emerging.
CourseMatch makes this problematic, also. Because upper
division GE transfer is infrequent, there is little machinery for
evaluation.



Terri Eden said that articulation officers are involved with
CourseMatch, however.

Steven Filling said that lower division GE articulation has slowly
migrated to upper division, and we should watch out for this.
Catherine Nelson said that AA will prepare a resolution on this,
urging campuses to develop policies for upper division GE
transfer, with faculty in charge of developing these policies.
Virginia May said that resolutions proposing what upper
division GE is for CC will come up this week at CC Senate. Ideas
include 6 units, including two courses remote from the major,
and one idea suggested requiring written and/or orai
communication requirements in the courses.

Discussion ensued about a division between the CO, which
wants to make transferability easy, and the Senate, which
wants upper division GE be campus specific.

Further discussion included remarks about online courses and
transferability of CourseMatch, since those courses are
considered the equivalent of in-residence courses. One could
take all CourseMatch courses and fulfill upper division GE from
another or other campuses.

Elizabeth Adams suggested that online courses for lower
division GE from other parts of the country are a bigger
problem and need to be watched, because they are not
rigorous courses in many cases.

Catherine Nelson said that insuring the integrity of the
articulation process is vital.

Terri Eden said there is a need to identify the areas of upper
division learning, and make clear what we want to take place
in upper division GE.

All expressed interest in what the CC Senate resolution about
upper division GE would ultimately be.



Humanities and Skills Based Courses in Logic, First-Year
Language

Representatives from Mt. San Antonio College and
Moorpark College participated via phone.

Ken O’Donnell said that in the humanities we expect a
certain kind of learning that is sense-making: taking
disparate sources and pulling them together to discover
and articulate meaning. Thus, we’ve said certain courses
don’t belong in humanities: logic never, and the first
semester of foreign language generally, don’t count for
humanities GE. Bob Stewart from Mt. San Antonio objected
to what they perceived as unfair treatment of ASL courses,
and Matthew Morgan from Moorpark said the CSU is
unclear about logic and its place in the humanities.
Discussion ensued about the teaching of logic with pop
culture examples, which contextualizes the logic, and
whether, if a textbook were created that used such
examples, the course could count for humanities.

The question of whether or not the course could double
count for Area A and for humanities came up, or if the
course could count only in one area.

Bob Stewart from Mt. San Antonio College was surprised
that there was a decision to reverse the approved
articulation of ASL, since it meets the criteria for GE
humanities, as the course requires a sympathetic response
evoked toward the culture. As the course is taught by him,
it is an immersion experience (they don’t talk during class,
e.g.).

Ken O’Donnell said that the specific request to our
committee is whether or not we will accept the Moorpark
logic course which uses a specific textbook that
contextualizes the skills in pop culture examples, and if we
will accept the Mt. San Antonio ASL course for GE
humanities.



e Catherine Nelson suggested that the question for the
committee is framed analogously to the Statway issue: is
there enough humanities substance in these courses?

e Some members expressed hesitancy about their
competence in reviewing a textbook, or their expertise
about the humanities content in an ASL course.

e Ken O’Donnell said that perhaps we should strike a
categorical denial of logic from the guiding notes, but say it
is very difficult to give logic humanities content. As for ASL,
contemporary language study suggests that all language is
learned in context, so that some language courses might
meet GE humanities content. His sense is that the
preponderant opinion of the group is that we don’t need to
categorically deny approval for such courses. We should
therefore come up with language that says that such
proposals might be accepted.

Other Items, Open Forum

e Terri Eden said, locking at CLEP exams and ACE
recommendations, there is a discrepancy in our coded
memo for units allowed for the second level of language,
particularly a discrepancy with regard to recent changes
made by ACE. There is another discrepancy with units
allowed for calculus. We should review such
discrepancies.

e Ken O’Donnell said we could review these at a future
meeting. Unit counts have always looked high, so if ACE
is reducing units allowed, we can revisit this. We should
ask language faculty what they think about this.

¢ Susan Gubernat asked about reviewing ambiguities in
the guiding notes, and Ken O’Donnell said he would
share revisions with the committee.



e Mark Van Selst asked if the campuses could be asked
about the uniqueness of upper division GE on their
campuses such that transferability does not work.

e Ken O’Donnell said he wasn’t sure the CO will want to
ask about what doesn’t transfer, and Susan Gubernat
asked if a campus would be punished if it asserted that
its GE was unique and not amenable for articulation.

e Sean Walker suggested that perhaps we could frame a
request to campuses positively, asking them “what is
unique about your GE?” Then it would not be in danger
of being subject to punishment.

The meeting was adjourned at 5 pm.



EAP Results 2015

2015
CST/EAP Predictio
Participation 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 | 2013 2014 n =
Number of students 440,20 461,6 4659 466,3 4694 473,0 470,34
taking CST 5 82 86 53 57 85 9 | 468,583 484,993
Number of students 317,05 346,0 3561 3694 3808 3851 386,32
taking EAP 6 38 69 65 37 44 4 | 387,405 | 335,951
Participation Rate % 72% 75% 76% 79% 81%  81% B2% 83% 100% |
English 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | .
Number of students 418154 4407 4461 4477 4515 4468 | R/ ™= ! [
taking English CST 63 53 83 75 52 440116 | 435222
Number of student 312167 3423 3529 3669 3788 3829
taking English EAP 48 43 49 70 15 383562 | 384722 | 332,065
Participation Rate % 75% 789  79%  B2%  84%  86% 87% 88% |
Number of students 48072 | 5520 | 6039 | 5938 | 7782 | 8550 | -
ready i 6 2 1 6 [SE=46 86939 87318 82,270
% ready 15% | 169% | 17% | 16% | 21% | 23% |  23% 23% | 25% 11%
Number of students ' ' ) ‘
ready conditional Kk -58468 56552 47,883
% conditional ' ' - 15% 15% " 15% 30%
Number of students 2640 | 2827 | 2885 | 3039 | 2976 | 2937 '
not ready 95 75 99 98 30 58 | 237642 | 240367 | 199,595 I
% not ready 85% | B3% | 82% | 83% | 79% | 77% 62% 63% 61% 59%
Math Totals 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
18_47 § 2018 20‘98_ 2203 2313 2399 246,27
Students Tested CST 09 - i 27 73 21 57 11 7 253,004
1370 1416 i 1478 16594 1786 1909 203,90
Students Tested EAP 67 - 48 25 78 67 15 6 | 212,836 | 209,584
Participation Rate % 74%  70% 70% 7% T77%  80% 83% 84%
| Number of students | 1612 | 1717 | 1944 | 2224 | 2605 | 2952 : :
ready 4 0| 3 2 7 6 4| 30,426 30,781 21,973
% ready 0 F 12% |  12% 13% 13% 15% 15% 15% | . 14% | 10% - - 11%
Number of students - 5882 | 6069 | 6266 | 7446 | 7550 | 8184
ready conditional - o 2 7 0 7 2 9| 92,831 97.378 35,576
% conditional 43% 43% 42% 44% 42% 43% 46% | 46% | 0 4a% | T 209
Number of students 6212 | 6371 | 6571 | 7268 | 7705 | 7948
not ready 5 0 8 8 3 6 | 80,596 | 84,623 | 101,777 |
% not ready 45% A5% A4% 43% 43% 42% 40% 40% 49% 67%
[ & = S g gy = 48 _ ] T 5 T

Ccardenas (1/15/16) CSU Office of the Chancellor Page 1



\, JuaLwissassy Aleg pue yoeannQ olwepesy
N | seuaple) 9 euljoie)
S90IAISS Olllapedy Juspnig
JojjgouryD 8yl 10 8910 NSO

9L0Z Atenuep
sajepdn dv3

A)is1aAlIun 3)e)S BlUJOI|R)

VINHOA1IYS H0d ORINEOM

E_Ema:: 8)e)S BilLIo|RY 3l




[euon}ipuon Apeay Apeay

BECERN g)¢')9

0¥S5 96

£LS8EL

- 00002

- 000°0%

- 00009

- 000°08

s)nsay ysiibug 4dv3

000°091

VINHOAITIVT 04 SXIAROM

Ayisianun ajels eniopeg 3y}




[euonipuo) Apeay

-0
- 000°0Z
glocu
000’0t
viocs
€iocem
- 00009
_
- - 00008
|
= = : ——— 00000}
_
000'0Z1

Sjinsay Yle|N dv3

YINEOA TV G ONINE0M

Mussenun sverg siwogijes ay) [[THY




G"“

BILIOJIED JO I3RS

paSelueapesiq Ajjeajwoucsy 10N pa8ejueapesiq Ajjeaiwouaay

0
- 0000t
13N 10N piepuels
19N Ajeap piepuels 0000
PWpepueys m N

n &
papaaix3 pJepuels A 1 5
e 2 5
et A S < o aan 3 - m m-
- m
Z 79 »
3 IShiZe o
=3 (113
= a
@ 1]
- o

0000L

00008

ysijbu3g — snjejg s1wiouosyg

WINHO4ITYI HOH DNINEOM

hisianug ayelg enuogijes ayj




19l 1ON
B
piepueis 19\ Aean piepuess
19N piepuels,,

papa22x] pJepuelss

BIUJOJI[ED JO 1elS

pasejueapesig padeiueapesiq

Ajjesrwouod] Jo Ajjeaiwouony

w
W
B
3
2.
o
-1
e
o]
[
=
11}
=l

oo
vAR'GE
00002
0000t

TEL'9ZT w 00009
[
2 00008
&
-
N Q. __ 00000T
m
Y]
']
e 2 ORIV R | | R Q0G0ZT
1]
o
[
. o 0000PT

Yle|N — snjejs Jiwouod

YINHO-HITYD 50: DRINEO0M

Ayisianiun ajelg einuopjed aijj




19IA1 10N piepuels , 33Nl AjJeaN paepuess 5 19\l pJepuers Papasax3 piepuels s

Biulojle) jo ajels
uesIAwWY anneN
Japuels| ayed sazey uesuyy BYSEIY JO
IOl 1O OML 10 UEllEmMEH SAEN  oupe 1o uedsiy oudi4 10 pejg. ueisy UeIpU| UeDIRUY

____ :-_- _=_ B T

00001

coooz

C000E

oooor

0000s

00009

0000£

00008

ysi|bu3 - sapiojuylg apimajels

WINHOA VYD HOA ORINBOM

AjsiaAlf ajels viIoe ay .




131\l 10N piepuels 191N Apean piepuess 12N pJepuels , papaadx3 piepuels

eluso)l|e) jo aels

uedLAWY annen
a3puejs| JyIeg S30eY ouge UESLY Bysey Jo
auYm 3I0{Al JO OM] 1O UENEMEH BAIIEN Jo Juedsiy ourdip4 10 )2E|g uelsy uepu| UEIBWY

_ aoooz
| go00t
00009
o 00008
00000T
00002t
- 0000%T

Ulel - AJo1uyy3 spimejelg

VINHOATVDY 904 DNINNOAM

Aysisniup ajejs einoyje) sug E




BiLIOJIRD) JO BBiS
oupeE Jo Jjuedsty URaLaUy UBDLYY 10 Yoe|g

Ll b
- Gh@Z " .2E8'0. - 6460 ... 00001
18N 10N pJepuBis junoy Jo wng a BVERZ — B e e i e (0008
1O Auee piepuBIS JUNOD) JO WG 2
18\ PIEpUBIS UNOD JO WNG T N 0000Y
papasIXg pIEpUE]S JUNCD 4O WNG =
— = ————— P iy
—— e 00005
00009
G66°09

i
1
|
|
|
]
i

19| JON pmpue;s
!

papaaox3 plepue)g
]

}
1
l

18Z'es

5 00004
80269

00008

ysijbu3 - uesuswy uesLyy pue o:_ﬂm._

VINUOSTYD HOAd DHRINHOM

Ajisianiup siels enueges sy E




BIUJIOJ|[ED JO 2IBYS

oune 1o nuedsiy uedLIBWY UBILYY 10 Yoelg
0
(i _ —
4 tSL
p ogz's PIS¢
S.9°8
— - LEE'ST-— S 00002
o
6182 W
19N 1ION plepuels B m.".— e w.. 0000
19N AldeaN pJepuels @ W. m
19N plepuels @ 6TCYS - - oo - - ﬂ._- 5608
o 0
PapasOX] pIepUES - %
sanen,| S - A8k, 00008
T = a
(1]
[
00000T
s 0000ZT
87611
0000rT

YJe|N - Uuesswy uedLiyy pue oulje

ViNHOATVI HO2 SNIDBOUM

Kusianjup ajels eluiojijes ayj




Ayisianiun ajels eiusojijeq ayy E

YiNHOATVI HO: SNIABGM

Kusiaau aje)g enuajijes ay)







11972016 Survey of colleges finds that distribution requirements remain popular but with new features

INSIDE =
HIGHER ED

Jiwww,insidehighered.com)

INSIDE

HIGHER ED

Survey of colleges finds that distribution requirements remain
popular but with new features

Submitted by Scott Jaschik on January 19, 2016 - 3:00am

When colleges discuss general education reforms or announce curricular revamps, it's common to
hear professors talk of the need to replace "cafeteria-style" approaches. Distribution requirements,
critics say, may assure that all students take a course or two in such broad fields as the humanities,
the social sciences and the physical and biological sciences. But the requirements don't necessarily
encourage thoughtiul integration of different fields of study -- and many students simply look for the
easiest options to check the requirements off. (Think "physics for poets.")

But for all the talk about moving past distribution requirements, it turns out that they are alive and
well, but with twists that deal with some of the criticisms.

That is one of the key findings of a survey 1 -- released today by the Association of American
Colleges and Universities -- of its members on issues such as general education, learning outcomes
and teaching approaches. The results being released today are the second from a survey completed
by provosts or chief academic officers at 325 AAC&U member colleges and universities.

Other key findings relate to a growing majority of colleges having intended learing goals or
outcomes for all students, and some skepticism about whether faculty members are using
technology in the most effective ways.

Distribution Requirements

Many general education programs have been built around distribution requirements. And the
AAC&U survey suggests that relatively few institutions have abandoned them. In the 2015 survey,
76 percent of colleges reported using distribution requirements, down only modestly from the 79
percent of colleges that reported using distribution requirements in a 2008 survey. But the norm --
even more now than in 2008 -- is a distribution requirement plus other features for general
education. In fact, the share of colleges relying only on distribution requirements fell nearly in half
between the two surveys.

httos:/www .insidehighered.com/news/2016/01/19/survey-colleges-finds-distribution-reauirements-remain-poputar-new-features 2utm_source=Inside+Higher+ 15



1192016 Survey of colleges finds that distribution requirements remain popular but with new features

i Distribution model only
% Distribution model with other features
: One or more other features only

88%

November — December 2008 July — October 2015

According to the AAC&U report, colleges are building on distribution requirements by also requiring
common intellectual experiences of students, thematic courses, learning communities (in which
groups of students take a common sequence of courses) and other techniques.

In the survey, academic leaders were asked to indicate the design elements of their general
education programs -- and they could list more than one such element.

Design Elements of General Education, 2015 Survey

P |Percentage of
Element Colleges
Distribution model 76%
Capstone or culminating studies (in 60%
majors)

Upper-level general ed o
reguirements 46%
Core curriculum 44%
Thematic required courses 42%
Common intellectual experience 41%
Capstone experience (in general 26%
ed)

Learning communities 22%

The University of Nevada at Las Vegas is an example of a university keeping distribution
requirements but also adding other approaches to general education. So undergraduates across
fields re still required to complete courses in writing, mathematics, fine arts and humanities, social
sciences, and life/physical sciences, among other categories. But UNLV has added other required
elements, such as a first-year seminar, a second-year seminar and new upper-division requirements
in majors, leading to a "culminating experience."

Chris Heavey, vice provost for undergraduate education at UNLV, said the university was trying to
more closely link its general education requirements to the major and to institutional learning goals.

https /www.insidehighered.com/news/2016/01/18/survey-colleges-finds-distribution-requirements-remain-popular-new-features ?utm_source=Inside+Higher+... 2/5



11972016 Survey of colleges finds that distribution requirements remain popular but with new features

But he said it was "very challenging for most institutions to go entirely away from distribution models

because the structure and resources of the institution [have] probably grown up to support those
offerings.”

Debra Humphreys, senior vice president for academic planning and public engagement at AAC&U,
said that "many people theoretically get that it's not adequate" to just create categories of courses

for students, and to require them to take some number of courses in each category. But she agreed
with Heavey that "institutions are still organized largely by disciplinary categories that correspond to

knowledge areas.” As a result, colleges "continue to chip away" at reliance on distribution
requirements "but we're still not quite there yet" in terms of moving to an entirely new model.

Humphreys is encouraged by moves like that of UNLV's, which use distribution as a base for general

education but don't leave it there. She also said it was important that general education
requirements be linked to desired learing outcomes, as the survey suggests colleges are doing.

On learning outcomes, the survey found that 85 percent of colleges report that they have a common

set of desired outcomes for all undergraduates, regardless of major. That figure is up from 78
percent in the 2008 survey.

Further, of those institutions that have a common set of learning cutcomes for all students, there is
consensus about some of the elements that are included. The table below shows, from the 2008
survey and the 2015 survey, the share of colleges reporting that these skills and knowledge areas
are part of their learning outcomes.

Common Elements of Colleges® Learning Outcomes

Skills’/Knowledge =~ |2008|2015
Writing skills 99% [ 99%
Critical thinking and analytic reasoning skills | 95% | 98%
Quantitative reasoning skills 9% |94%
Knowledge of science 91% {92%
Knowledge of mathematics 87% |92%
Knowledge of humanities 92% [92%
Knowledge of global world cultures 87% |89%
Knowledge of social sciences 90% |89%
Knowledge of the arts nfa |85%
Oral communication skills 88% [82%
Intercultural skills and abilities 79% | 79%
Information literacy skills 76% |76%
Research skills and projects 65% (75%
Ethical reasoning 7 75% 75‘7:.
Knowledge of diversity in the United States 73% |73%
Integration of learning across disciplines 63% | 68%
-Application of learning beyond the classroom |66% 65‘%_

httns #www insidehiohered com/news/2016/01/1%/survev-colleges-finds-disfribution-requirements-remain-ponul ar-new-feattires 2utm _source=|nsida+Higher+

R



1/19/2016 Survey of colleges finds that distribution requirements remain popular but with new features

Civic engagement and competence 68% |63%
Knowledge of technology 61% |[49%
Knowledge of languages other than English  |42% |48%
Knowledge of American history 49% 47%
Knowledge of sustainability 24% [27%

Humphreys said she was pleased by one of the topics that saw the biggest increase from 2008 to
now: research skills and projects. She said this was consistent with the idea of working in teams and
working to solve problems -- skills that employers seek and that promote cohesive iearning that goes
beyond one course or discipline.

Some of the scores on the list may be hard to explain. For example, the results suggest more
colleges include study of a language other than English as a learning outcome. But a report from the
Modern Language Association 1z a year ago found foreign language enroliments declining, and
many foreign language departments in the last few years have found themselves the target of cuts.

The high percentage (85 percent) of colleges reporting that knowledge of the arts is a learning
outcome is also at odds with the relatively few colleges that require arts study for all students.
Humphreys said she suspected that the high figure was due to provosts looking at requirements for
arts and humanities courses and counting them as arts requirements.

Are Students Aware?

The provosts were also asked whether they believed students were aware of the desired learning
outcomes at their institutions. Only 9 percent said that they believed all students understood the
desired learning outcomes, and only 36 percent said that a majority of students understood them.

Humphreys said that academics should be "very worried" about these findings. She said she worried
that faculty members may spend lots of time developing a general education program consistent
with their institutions’ missions, launch the system with fanfare and then not do enough to promote
understanding of it. That may mean that, a few years after a program launch, students may not know
much about it.

The findings also point to a need for more of a focus on academic advising and for advisers to talk to
students about the broad goals of general education, and not just requirements to be finished.

The completion agenda, she said, may make this more difficult. Many advisers are "under pressure
to get students through as soon as possible," she said. That is admirable, but means that students
aren't necessarily being asked about how course plans "relate to learning broadly," but rather are
encouraged to find "an efficient way to get this done.”

Technology and Online Learning

The survey also asked chief academic officers about their impressions on the use of digital tools by
faculty members.

Thirty-six percent of survey respondents said they believed that most faculty members were using
the tools effectively, while 61 percent said that some faculty members were doing so, and 3 percent
said that very few faculty members were doing so.

Even if some of the academic leaders think that most of their faculty members are using digital
learning tools effectively, most of the provosts want more.

hitps:/iwww.insidehighered.com/news/2016/01/19/survey-colleges-finds-distribution-requirements-remain-popular-new-features utm_source=inside+Higher+...

4/5



1/19/2016 Survey of colleges finds that distribution requirements remain popular but with new features

Asked to respond to the statement that "all or most of our teaching faculty should be using more
digital learning strategies in undergraduate courses or programs," 89 percent said that they totally
agreed.

There is less of a consensus, however, on offering more online courses for undergraduates, with 26
percent of chief academic officers saying that was a high priority, 36 percent saying it was a medium
priority and 38 percent saying it was a minor priority or a nonpriority.

Teaching and Learning iz

Links:

[1] http://www.aacu.org/about/2015-membersurvey

[2] https://www.insidehighered.com/news/2015/02/11/mla-report-shows-declines-enroliment-most-foreign-languages
[3] https:/fwww.insidehighered.com/news/focus/teaching-and-leaming

undefined
undefined

https.//www.insidehigher ed.com/news/2016/01/18/survey-colleges-finds-distribution-requirements-remain-popular-new-features utm_source=Inside+Hicher+... 55






